
 

 
 

Agenda for Planning Committee 

Tuesday, 24th September, 2024, 10.00 am 
 
Members of Planning Committee 

 
Councillors  B Bailey, I Barlow, C Brown, J Brown, 

S Chamberlain, M Chapman, O Davey 
(Chair), P Faithfull, S Gazzard, D Haggerty, 
A Hall, M Hall (Vice-Chair), M Howe, 

S Smith, E Wragg and K Bloxham 

 

Venue: Council Chamber, Blackdown House, Honiton 

 
Contact: Wendy Harris, Democratic Services Officer 

01395 517542; email 

wharris@eastdevon.gov.uk 

(or group number 01395 517546) 
Issued: Friday, 13 September 2024 

 
 
This meeting is being recorded for subsequent publication on the Council’s website and will be 

streamed live to the East Devon District Council Youtube Channel 
 

Speaking on planning applications 
In order to speak on an application being considered by the Planning Committee you must 
have submitted written comments during the consultation stage of the application. Those 

that have commented on an application being considered by the Committee will receive a 
letter or email detailing the date and time of the meeting and instructions on how to 

register to speak. The letter/email will have a reference number, which you will need to 
provide in order to register. Speakers will have 3 minutes to make their representation.  
 

The number of people that can speak on each application is limited to: 
 Major applications – parish/town council representative, 5 supporters, 5 objectors 

and the applicant or agent 
 Minor/Other applications – parish/town council representative, 2 supporters, 2 

objectors and the applicant or agent 

 
The revised running order for the applications being considered by the Committee and the 

speakers’ list will be posted on the council’s website (agenda item 1 – speakers’ list) on 
the Friday before the meeting. Applications with registered speakers will be taken first.  
 

Parish and town council representatives wishing to speak on an application are 
also required to pre-register in advance of the meeting. One representative can be 

registered to speak on behalf of the Council from 10am on Tuesday, 17 September 2024 

up until 12 noon on Friday, 20 September 2024 by leaving a message on 01395 517525 
or emailing planningpublicspeaking@eastdevon.gov.uk.    

 

East Devon District Council 
Blackdown House 

Border Road 

Heathpark Industrial Estate 
Honiton 

EX14 1EJ 

DX 48808 Honiton 

Tel: 01404 515616 

www.eastdevon.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack

page 1

https://www.youtube.com/@eastdevoncouncil1/streams
http://new.eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/committees-and-meetings/have-your-say-at-meetings/
mailto:planningpublicspeaking@eastdevon.gov.uk


 
Speaking on non-planning application items  
A maximum of two speakers from the public are allowed to speak on agenda items that 

are not planning applications on which the Committee is making a decision (items on 
which you can register to speak will be highlighted on the agenda). Speakers will have 3 

minutes to make their representation. You can register to speak on these items up until 12 
noon, 3 working days before the meeting by emailing 
planningpublicspeaking@eastdevon.gov.uk or by phoning 01395 517525. A member of 

the Democratic Services Team will contact you if your request to speak has been 
successful. 

 
 
 
1 Speakers' list and revised running order for the applications  (Page 4) 

2 Minutes of the previous meeting  (Pages 5 - 9) 

 Minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on 20 August 2024. 
 

3 Apologies   

4 Declarations of interest   

 Guidance is available online to Councillors and co-opted members on making 

declarations of interest 
 

5 Matters of urgency   

 Information on matters of urgency is available online 

 

6 Confidential/exempt item(s)   

 To agree any items to be dealt with after the public (including press) have been 
excluded. There are no items that officers recommend should be dealt with in 
this way. 

 

7 Planning appeal statistics  (Pages 10 - 28) 

 Update from the Development Manager 
 

Applications for Determination 

 
8 23/1258/MOUT (Major) WOODBURY AND LYMPSTONE  (Pages 29 - 118) 

 Land To The Rear Of Orchard House, Globe Hill, Woodbury EX5 1JP 

 

9 23/1600/MOUT (Major) WOODBURY AND LYMPSTONE  (Pages 119 - 231) 

 Land Off Globe Hill, Woodbury EX5 1LL  
 

10 24/1051/FUL (Minor) BROADCLYST  (Pages 232 - 250) 

 Unit 10 Mushroom Road, Hill Barton Business Park, Clyst St Mary. 

 

 
 

page 2

mailto:planningpublicspeaking@eastdevon.gov.uk
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillor-conduct/councillor-reminder-for-declaring-interests/
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/matters-of-urgency/


Under the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014, members of the 
public are now allowed to take photographs, film and audio record the proceedings and 
report on all public meetings (including on social media). No prior notification is needed 

but it would be helpful if you could let the democratic services team know you plan to film 
or record so that any necessary arrangements can be made to provide reasonable 

facilities for you to report on meetings. This permission does not extend to private 
meetings or parts of meetings which are not open to the public. You should take all 
recording and photography equipment with you if a public meeting moves into a session 

which is not open to the public.  
 

If you are recording the meeting, you are asked to act in a reasonable manner and not 
disrupt the conduct of meetings for example by using intrusive lighting, flash photography 
or asking people to repeat statements for the benefit of the recording. You may not make 

an oral commentary during the meeting. The Chair has the power to control public 
recording and/or reporting so it does not disrupt the meeting. 
 

Decision making and equalities 

For a copy of this agenda in large print, please contact the Democratic 
Services Team on 01395 517546 

 

page 3

http://new.eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/committees-and-meetings/decision-making-and-equalities-duties/


Planning Committee, Tuesday, 24 September 2024 – 10am 

Speakers’ list for the planning applications 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda item 9 

Application number: 23/1600/MOUT (Major) Pages 119 - 231 

Ward: Woodbury & Lympstone 

Address: Land off Globe Hill, Woodbury 

Ward Member: Councillor Ben Ingham / Councillor Geoff Jung 

Objector 
Roger Stokes 

Richard Bagwell 07715 665 071 

Parish Council Representative Richard Ball, Woodbury Parish Council 

Applicant Gary Salter 

Ward Member 
Cllr Ben Ingham 

Cllr Geoff Jung 

Agenda item 8 

Application number: 23/1258/MOUT (Major) Pages 29 - 118 

Ward: Woodbury & Lympstone 

Address: Land to the rear of Orchard House, Globe Hill, Woodbury 

Ward Member: Councillor Ben Ingham / Councillor Geoff Jung 

Objector Tony Bennett 

Parish Council Representative Cllr John Pyne, Woodbury Parish Council 

Agent Dan Trundle 07423 754 569 

Ward Member 
Cllr Ben Ingham 

Cllr Geoff Jung 

Agenda item 10 

Application number: 24/1051/FUL (Minor) Pages 232 - 250 

Ward: Broadclyst 

Address:  Unit 10 Mushroom Road, Hill Barton Business Park, Clyst St Mary 

Ward Member: Councillor Paula Fernley / Councillor Eleanor Rylance 

Committee Ward Member: Councillor Sarah Chamberlain 

Agent Peter Thomas  

page 4

Agenda Item 1



EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Minutes of the meeting of Planning Committee held at Council Chamber, 

Blackdown House, Honiton on 20 August 2024 

 
Attendance list at end of document 

The meeting started at 10.05 am and ended at 5.55 pm.  The Committee adjourned for lunch at 
1.50 pm and reconvened at 2.30 pm. 

 
During the meeting brief adjournments took place at 11.33 am and reconvened at 11.45 am and 

4.50 pm and reconvened at 5.00 pm. 
 
 

191    Minutes of the previous meeting  

 

The minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on 16 July 2024 were confirmed as 
a true record. 

 
192    Declarations of interest  

 

Minute 199. 23/1269/MFUL (Major) WOODBURY and LYMPSTONE. 
Councillor Olly Davey, Affects Non-registerable Interest, Member of RSPB. 

 
Minute 199. 23/1269/MFUL (Major) WOODBURY and LYMPSTONE. 

In accordance with the Code of Good Practice for Councillors and Officers dealing with 
planning matters as set out in the constitution Members advised of lobbying in respect of 
this application. 

 
193    Matters of urgency  

 

There were none. 

 
194    Confidential/exempt item(s)  

 

There were none. 
 

195    Planning appeal statistics  

 

The Committee noted the Development Manager’s report which included two updates.  
The first related to an appeal against an enforcement notice in respect of Higher Wick 
Farm (21/F0358).  Members were advised that as the enforcement notice had not 

specified sufficient information on the alleged breach the Inspector had deemed it invalid. 
 

The second related to an appeal against the refusal of a lawful development certificate in 
respect of Salcombe Regis Camping and Caravan Park (23/0027/CPL) which would 
have allowed the siting a large number of static caravans with unfettered use.  The 

Development Manager was pleased to report that as a result of all the hard work from 
officers representing the council’s position the Inspector had dismissed this appeal which 

was a good result for the council and residents. 
 

196    22/1478/FUL (Minor) SEATON  

 
Applicant: 

page 5

Agenda Item 2



Planning Committee 20 August 2024 
 

Mr T Sidhu. 
 
Location: 

Axe Valley Mini Travel, 26 Harbour Road, Seaton, EX12 2NA. 
 
Proposal: 

Demolition of existing STC store and bus garage on site to be replaced by 7 residential 

units, 198 square metres of commercial floorspace (Use Class E) and landscaped 
gardens and private parking. 
 

RESOLVED: 

Approved contrary to officer recommendation subject conditions to be agreed by the 

Development Manager in consultation with the Chair, Vice Chair and Ward Members 
which should include: 

1. Not to be used for holiday lettings 

2. Notwithstanding the existing FWEP, prior to commencement a revised FWEP is to 
be prepared and approved. 

3. Permitted Development Rights Class E to be removed to prevent conversion to 
Class C3. 

 

Members considered that the sequential test had been met and that the Flood Warning 
and Evacuation Plan had demonstrated that the development would be safe for its 

lifetime and so was not contrary to Policy EN21 of the East Devon Local Plan. 
 

197    23/1276/MOUT & 23/1271/FUL (Major) DUNKESWELL and 

OTTERHEAD  

 

Applicant: 

Mr R Falle. 

 
Location: 

Land adjacent to Hillcrest, Awliscombe. 

 
Proposal: 

23/1276/MOUT 
Outline planning application for construction of 20 dwellings,village hall and farm shop 
and provision of village green and car parking, seeking approval of access only (matters 

of appearance, landscaping, layout and scale reserved). 
 

23/1271/FUL 
Change of use of agricultural land to form recreation area. 
 

RESOLVED: 

23/1276/MOUT 

Refused in accordance with officer recommendation. 
 
23/1271/FUL 

Approved contrary to officer recommendation with conditions to be agreed by the 
Development Manager in consultation with the Chair, Vice Chair and Ward Members. 

 
Members considered that the proposal was in line with Policy RC 4 (Recreation Facilities 
in the Countryside and Coast) and so would not conflict with the countryside, nature or 

landscape nor would it detract from the amenities of the area. 

page 6



Planning Committee 20 August 2024 
 

 
198    24/0226/FUL & 24/0227/LBC (Minor) BROADCLYST  

 
Applicant: 

Mr & Mrs Stewart. 
 
Location: 

Town Tenement Farm, Clyst Hydon, Cullompton, EX15 2NB. 
 
Proposal: 

24/0226/FUL 
Demolition of lean-to structure, proposed part conversion to one residential dwelling with 

garden and associated works and the rebuild, repair and conservation of the existing 
barns. 

 
24/0227/LBC 
Demolition of lean-to structure and the rebuild, repair and conservation of the existing 

barns. 
 
RESOLVED: 

24/0226/FUL 
1. The Appropriate Assessment be adopted. 

2. Approved contrary to officer recommendation subject to planning conditions to be 
agreed by the Development Manager in consultation with the Chair, Vice Chair and 

Ward Members. 
 
Members considered that the heritage benefits would outweigh the minor conflicts with 

Policy D8 (Re-use of Rural Buildings Outside of Settlements) and the proposal is in line 
with Chapter 16 of the NPPF. 

 
24/0227/LBC 
Approved with conditions in accordance with officer recommendation. 

 
199    23/1269/MFUL (Major) WOODBURY and LYMPSTONE  

 
Applicant: 

Mr Nick Yeo (3West Strawberry Hill Ltd.) 

 
Location: 

Land south of Meeting Lane, Lympstone. 
 
Proposal: 

Construction of 42 residential units, affordable housing, new vehicular accesses from 
Meeting Lane and Strawberry Lane, associated internal roadways, SUDS features and 

landscaping. 
 
RESOLVED: 

1. The Appropriate Assessment be adopted 
2. Refused contrary to officer recommendation. 

 
Members considered that: 

page 7



Planning Committee 20 August 2024 
 

 The site is located outside the settlement boundary of Lympstone in an 
unsustainable location, distant from local services and without safe pedestrian 

access to services contrary to Strategy 7 and 27. 

 It would have an adverse impact on trees contrary to Policies D1 and D2. 

 Poor layout in particular failure to pepper pot affordable homes throughout the 
development creating a division of social adhesion contrary to Strategy 34. 

 

200    24/1197/PIP (Other) FENITON  

 

Applicant: 

Mr Graham Braddick. 

 
Location: 

Land adjacent to Hamlet House, Nags Head Road, Gittisham. 

 
Proposal: 

Permission in principle application for the conversion of an existing building into a single 
dwelling. 
 

RESOLVED: 

Refused in accordance with officer recommendation. 

 
201    24/0603/FUL (Minor) TALE VALE  

 
Applicant: 

Mr Craig Davies. 

 
Location: 

Beacon Copse, Talaton. 
 
Proposal: 

Erection of 4 x military tents, installation of 20ft container for storage of equipment, 
installation of two person compost toilet. 
 
RESOLVED: 

Approved with conditions in accordance with officer recommendation. 

 
 

 

Attendance List 

Councillors present: 

B Bailey 
I Barlow 

C Brown 
J Brown 
M Chapman 

O Davey (Chair) 
P Faithfull 

D Haggerty 
A Hall 
M Hall (Vice-Chair) 

S Smith 
E Wragg 

page 8



Planning Committee 20 August 2024 
 

K Bloxham 
 
Councillors also present (for some or all the meeting) 

R Collins 
M Hartnell 

B Ingham 
G Jung 

T Olive 
 
Officers in attendance: 

Wendy Harris, Democratic Services Officer 
Nigel Barrett, Senior Planning Officer 

Jeremy Ebdon, Principal Planning Officer (East) 
Liam Fisher, Senior Planning Officer 
Damian Hunter, Planning Solicitor 

Wendy Ormsby, Development Manager 
Jamie Quinton, Senior Planning Officer 

Gavin Spiller, Principal Planning Officer (West) 
 
Councillor apologies: 

S Chamberlain 
S Gazzard 

M Howe 
 
 

 
 

 
Chairman   Date:  

 

page 9



 
 

EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
LIST OF PLANNING APPEALS LODGED 

 
 
Ref: 24/0542/FUL Date Received 05.08.2024 
Appellant: Mr Stephen Condell 
Appeal Site: Littlebrook   Venlake End Uplyme  DT7 3SF   
Proposal: Demolition of existing single storey garage and store room, 

erection of two story side extension, and new external 
materials. 

Planning 
Inspectorate Ref: 

APP/U1105/D/24/3349512 

 
 
Ref: 24/0136/FUL Date Received 12.08.2024 
Appellant: Mr David Gillingham 
Appeal Site: Tinkers Barn Payhembury EX14 3JQ     
Proposal: Part garage conversion, first floor extension over existing 

garage and single storey rear extension and the introduction 
of solar panels 

Planning 
Inspectorate Ref: 

APP/U1105/D/24/3349925 

 
 
Ref: 24/0913/PIP Date Received 12.08.2024 
Appellant: Mr Jake Huntley 
Appeal Site: 2 Lime Grove Exmouth EX8 5NN     
Proposal: Permission in principle for 1 no. dwelling. 
Planning 
Inspectorate Ref: 

APP/U1105/W/24/3349912 

 
 
Ref: 23/2604/FUL Date Received 18.08.2024 
Appellant: Mr S Hallett & M Conibear 
Appeal Site: Lower Sweetcombe Farm   Sidbury EX10 0QR     
Proposal: Change of use of land from agricultural to holiday/tourism 

accommodation including the retention of a shepherd’s hut, 
shed (housing a kitchen/store and shower) and toilet 
(retrospective) 

Planning 
Inspectorate Ref: 

APP/U1105/W/24/3350271 

 
Ref: 23/2506/MFUL Date Received 28.08.2024 
Appellant: P Quincey 
Appeal Site: Winslade Park Clyst St Mary       
Proposal: Installation of solar array with associated infrastructure, 

access and landscaping 
Planning 
Inspectorate Ref: 

APP/U1105/W/24/3350852 

 
 

page 10

Agenda Item 7



Ref: 24/0320/LBC Date Received 28.08.2024 
Appellant: Mr C Smith 
Appeal Site: 2 School Cottages Woodbury Salterton EX5 1PG     
Proposal: Replace 1no. rooflight with Fakro rooflight on rear northwest 

elevation 
Planning 
Inspectorate Ref: 

 

 
 
Ref: 22/1813/LBC Date Received 06.09.2024 
Appellant: Mr Mel Ziziros 
Appeal Site: Podburys Cottage   Higher Way Harpford Devon EX10 0NJ 
Proposal: Construction of a Two storey side extension, construction of a 

detached garage with office space above, retrospective 
approvals for both the widening of the existing vehicular 
access to the boundary wall and a greenhouse and 
reparations to a retaining wall 

Planning 
Inspectorate Ref: 

APP/U1105/Y/24/3351417 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

page 11



 
 

 

EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
LIST OF PLANNING APPEALS DECIDED 

 
 
Ref: 23/0017/CPE Appeal Ref: 23/00053/LDC 
Appellant: Mr Paul Sparks 
Appeal Site: Barn Close Combe Raleigh Honiton EX14 4SG   
Proposal: Certificate of existing lawful development to confirm material 

start to planning ref. 02/P0677 and breach of condition 3 
(landscaping details). 

Decision: Appeal Allowed 
(no conditions) 

Date: 05.08.2024 

Procedure: Written representations 
Remarks: Delegated refusal. 

 
The planning permission, for the erection of workshop & staff 
accommodation for use with kennels and cattery was granted 
on 17 June 2002. In light of a building control inspection on 
14 June 2007, there is no dispute that trenches, located so as 
to mimic the development permitted, were carried out before 
the date on which the Planning Permission expired. However, 
condition 3 was not complied with. It is worded such that it 
prohibits development prior to the required landscaping 
scheme being submitted. 

 

The Inspector found that given what is required by condition 3 
and the wording of the other conditions insofar as they relate 
to the implementation of those details, the requirement to 
agree the details before development took place did not go to 
the heart of the permission. Therefore, on the balance of 
probability, the foundation trenches were dug lawfully in 
accordance with the planning permission. 
 
The Inspector concluded that the Council's refusal to grant an 
LDC was not well-founded and that the appeal should 
succeed. 

BVPI 204: No 
Planning 
Inspectorate Ref: 

APP/U1105/X/23/3333743 

 
 
Ref: 23/0809/LBC Appeal Ref: 23/00036/LBCREF 
Appellant: Mrs Jill Bayliss 
Appeal Site: Flat above Flix Hair Design Market Place Colyton EX24 6JR 
Proposal: Retention of 2no. first floor windows on front elevation 
Decision: Appeal Dismissed Date: 06.08.2024 
Procedure: Written representations 
Remarks: Delegated refusal, listed building conservation reasons 

upheld (EDLP Policy EN9). 
BVPI 204: No 
Planning 
Inspectorate Ref: 

APP/U1105/Y/23/3329576 

 
 

page 12



Ref: 23/0027/CPL Appeal Ref: 23/00038/LDC 
Appellant: Mr Gary Burns 
Appeal Site: Salcombe Regis Camping and Caravan Park Salcombe 

Regis Devon EX10 0JH   
Proposal: Proposed lawful development for the use of land for the siting 

of static caravans. 
Decision: Appeal Dismissed Date: 08.08.2024 
Procedure: Hearing 
Remarks: Delegated refusal. The Inspector concluded that the Council’s 

refusal to grant a certificate of lawful use or development in 
respect of the siting of 100 static caravans on the application 
site was well-founded and that the appeal should fail. 

BVPI 204: No 
Planning 
Inspectorate Ref: 

APP/U1105/X/23/3330294 

 
 
Ref: 23/1224/FUL Appeal Ref: 23/00055/REF 
Appellant: Mrs Elaine Paget 
Appeal Site: The Barn Annexe 2 Lower Court Cottages Fluxton Ottery St 

Mary EX11 1RL 
Proposal: Subdivision of 2 Lower Court Cottages, with creation of 

vehicular access and parking to serve new independent 
property 

Decision: Appeal Allowed 
(with conditions) 

Date: 16.08.2024 

Procedure: Written representations 
Remarks: Delegated refusal, accessibility reasons overruled (EDLP 

Policies D8, TC2 and Strategies 7 & 27). 
 

The Inspector considered that the appeal site is not 
isolated and that the walking or cycling route, both in 

terms of distance and access to various services and 
facilities is no different in relation to the annexe 
compared to many nearby properties. The surrounding area 
is punctuated by hamlets, farmsteads and occasional 
properties and the rural landscape is not one with a strong 
sense of remoteness. Settlements and buildings dotted about 
form part of its character.  

 
The Inspector further considered that the scheme is not for a 
new building, but rather for an independent dwelling in place 
of an existing annexe. Therefore, not only should locational 
implications be considered in a rural context consistent with 
the function of Policy D8, but also relative to present 
circumstances.  
 
The Inspector concluded that on balance and with reference 
to the specific circumstances in this case, the proposal 
complies with the purpose of LP Policy D8. 

BVPI 204: Yes 
Planning 
Inspectorate Ref: 

APP/U1105/W/23/3333794 

 
 

page 13



Ref: 23/2244/FUL Appeal Ref: 24/00017/REF 
Appellant: Mr Lee Galan 
Appeal Site: The Firs Woodbury Salterton Exeter EX5 1ER   
Proposal: Demolition of existing garage, construction of two storey 

extension and associated works 
Decision: Appeal Dismissed Date: 20.08.2024 
Procedure: Written representations 
Remarks: Delegated refusal, design and amenity reasons upheld (EDLP 

Policy D1 & Strategy 7). 
BVPI 204: Yes 
Planning 
Inspectorate Ref: 

APP/U1105/W/24/3341596 

 
 
Ref: 23/1829/FUL Appeal Ref: 24/00003/REF 
Appellant: Mr Harry Carter 
Appeal Site: H Carter and Sons 50 High Street Budleigh Salterton EX9 

6LJ   
Proposal: Replacement shop front and installation of 2no new UPVC 

windows to replace existing bay windows 
Decision: Appeal Dismissed Date: 23.08.2024 
Procedure: Written representations 
Remarks: Delegated refusal, conservation reasons upheld (EDLP 

Policies EN8 & EN10). 
BVPI 204: Yes 
Planning 
Inspectorate Ref: 

APP/U1105/W/24/3336569 

 
 
Ref: 23/0885/FUL Appeal Ref: 24/00007/REF 
Appellant: Mr Harry Carter 
Appeal Site: H Carter and Sons 50 High Street Budleigh Salterton Devon 

EX9 6LJ 
Proposal: Proposed first floor extension to provide 1no. one bedroom 

studio/flat. 
Decision: Appeal Dismissed Date: 23.08.2024 
Procedure: Written representations 
Remarks: Delegated refusal, conservation reasons upheld (EDLP 

Policies EN8 & EN10). 
BVPI 204: Yes 
Planning 
Inspectorate Ref: 

APP/U1105/W/24/3337549 

 
 
  
 

 

page 14



East Devon District Council 
List of Appeals in Progress 

 
 
App.No: 22/0686/MFUL   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/23/3323252 
Appellant: Mr Troy Stuart 
Address: Hill Barton Business Park Sidmouth Road Clyst St Mary   
Proposal; Change of use of land for the purposes of parking, associated 

with the existing operations at Hill Barton Business Park, for a 
temporary period of 3 years  
(retrospective application) 

Start Date: 26 October 2023 Procedure: 
Hearing 

 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 2 November 2023 
Statement Due Date: 30 November 2023 
Hearing Date: 30 July 2024 
 
 
App.No: 23/0102/FUL   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/23/3334808 
Appellant: Mr Gary Conway 
Address: 9 Tip Hill Ottery St Mary EX11 1BE   
Proposal; Erection of a new dwelling in land to the rear of 9 Tip Hill. 
Start Date: 27 February 2024 Procedure: 

Written reps. 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 5 March 2024 
Statement Due Date: 2 April 2024 
  
 
App.No: 22/1377/FUL   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/23/3331872 
Appellant: Mr & Mrs D Branker 
Address: Site Of Spillers Cottage   Shute EX13 7QG   
Proposal; Construction of a dwelling (retrospective) for occupation while 

the dwelling permitted under reference 21/0535/VAR is 
constructed, after which the first dwelling will be demolished 

Start Date: 5 March 2024 Procedure: 
Written reps. 

 

Questionnaire Due Date: 12 March 2024 
Statement Due Date: 9 April 2024 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
page 15



 
 
App.No: 23/1270/CPE   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/X/24/3339119 
Appellant: Mr and Mrs C M Summers 
Address: The Olde Dairy Hunthays Farm Awliscombe Honiton EX14 

3QB 
Proposal; Application for a Lawful Development Certificate (CLUED) 

submitted under section 171B(3) of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (as amended) for the use of the building 
known as The Olde Dairy as an independent dwelling. 

Start Date: 14 March 2024 Procedure: 
Written reps. 

 

Questionnaire Due Date: 28 March 2024 
Statement Due Date: 25 April 2024 
  
 
 
App.No: 22/2582/FUL   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/23/3332347 
Appellant: Mr Justin Werb 
Address: Barnards (land adjoining) Harepath Hill Seaton EX12 2TF  
Proposal; Erection of one dwelling and associated works. 
Start Date: 20 March 2024 Procedure: 

Written reps. 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 27 March 2024 
Statement Due Date: 24 April 2024 
  
 
 
App.No: 23/1279/FUL   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/23/3335680 
Appellant: Mr Alban Connell 
Address: Land Adjacent Poppins Goldsmith Lane All Saints   
Proposal; Conversion of an agricultural barn to form a 1-bedroom 

dwelling. 
Start Date: 26 March 2024 Procedure: 

Written reps. 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 2 April 2024 
Statement Due Date: 30 April 2024 
  
 
 

page 16



App.No: 22/0349/OUT   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/23/3334118 
Appellant: Mr & Mrs Reeves 
Address: Kilmore House Poltimore Exeter EX4 0AT  
Proposal; Outline application for an exception site comprising of 4 

affordable houses and 2 open market houses 
Start Date: 3 April 2024 Procedure: 

Written reps. 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 10 April 2024 
Statement Due Date: 8 May 2024 
  
 
App.No: 22/1973/MOUT   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/24/3336475 
Appellant: ALD Developments (Mr A Davis) 
Address: Land East of Sidmouth Road Ottery St Mary    
Proposal; Outline application with some matters reserved (access) for 

the residential development of up to 63 dwellings and 
associated infrastructure. 

Start Date: 10 April 2024 Procedure: 
Written reps. 

 

Questionnaire Due Date: 17 April 2024 
Statement Due Date: 15 May 2024 
  
 
App.No: 23/2535/PIP   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/24/3338889 
Appellant: Mr Gary Moore (The Land & Planning Consultancy Ltd) 
Address: Land Adjacent Elsdon House Elsdon Lane West Hill   
Proposal; Permission in principle for the demolition of an existing 

greenhouse and the construction of two dwellings 
Start Date: 15 April 2024 Procedure: 

Written reps. 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 22 April 2024 
Statement Due Date: 20 May 2024 
  
 
 
 
 

page 17



 
App.No: 23/1115/FUL   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/24/3339579 
Appellant: Antony Paul 
Address: 24 Cherry Close Honiton Devon EX14 2XT  
Proposal; Construction of a new dwelling. 
Start Date: 23 April 2024 Procedure: 

Written reps. 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 30 April 2024 
Statement Due Date: 28 May 2024 
  
 
 
App.No: 

 
24/0017/FUL 

  

Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/24/3340283 
Appellant: Ms Sam Knighton 
Address: The Maltsters Arms Greenway Woodbury Exeter EX5 1LN 
Proposal; Retrospective application for retention of marquee to be used 

as ancillary accommodation to the Maltster's Public House 
Start Date: 7 May 2024 Procedure: 

Written reps. 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 14 May 2024 
Statement Due Date: 11 June 2024 
  
 
 
App.No: 

 
23/1472/FUL 

  

Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/24/3339709 
Appellant: Mr Darren Pyne 
Address: 18 Colleton Way Exmouth Devon EX8 3PX  
Proposal; Separating existing property into two dwellings including 

gardens and driveways and addition of front porch. 
Start Date: 14 May 2024 Procedure: 

Written reps. 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 21 May 2024 
Statement Due Date: 18 June 2024 
  
 
 
 

 
page 18



App.No: 23/1978/FUL   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/24/3341070 
Appellant: Mr & Mrs Dan and Claire McCandlish 
Address: Land Adjacent to Park House Plymtree    
Proposal; Proposed new dwelling and relocated site access with 

associated landscaping and parking 
Start Date: 23 May 2024 Procedure: 

Written reps. 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 30 May 2024 
Statement Due Date: 27 June 2024 
  
 
 
App.No: 23/2540/VAR   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/24/3341698 
Appellant: Mr and Mrs Anthony 
Address: Land South Of Underhill Close Lympstone    
Proposal; Variation of conditions 1 (Approved plans), 8 (Privacy screen) 

and 9 (Void space) of 22/2410/RES (Application for approval 
of reserved matters (appearance, landscaping, layout and 
scale) for the construction of a predominantly single storey 
dwelling following outline application (20/0933/OUT) 
(pursuant to the grant of outline planning permission appeal 
ref: APP/U1105/W/21/3282445) to update the house design 
and drawing reference numbers 

Start Date: 28 May 2024 Procedure: 
Written reps. 

 

Questionnaire Due Date: 4 June 2024 
Statement Due Date: 2 July 2024 
  
 
 
App.No: 23/1794/FUL   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/24/3342388 
Appellant: Mrs Tina Percival 
Address: The Greyhound Inn   Fenny Bridges Devon EX14 3BJ  
Proposal; Retrospective application for a static caravan for staff 

accommodation and re-siting of dog kennel. 
Start Date: 10 June 2024 Procedure: 

Written reps. 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 17 June 2024 
Statement Due Date: 15 July 2024 
  
 
 

page 19



App.No: 23/1670/FUL   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/24/3342434 
Appellant: Mr Michael Stevens 
Address: Coxes Farm   Sidmouth Road Clyst St Mary Devon EX5 1DN 
Proposal; Proposed two storey 2 bed house with parking. 
Start Date: 13 June 2024 Procedure: 

Written reps. 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 20 June 2024 
Statement Due Date: 18 July 2024 
  
 
 
App.No: 23/1317/LBC   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/Y/24/3343238 
Appellant: Mr & Mrs Halse 
Address: Combehayes Farm Buckerell Devon EX14 3ET  
Proposal; Demolition of existing extension and proposed replacement 

single storey extension, reconfiguring external stone wall and 
hard landscaping 

Start Date: 18 June 2024 Procedure: 
Written reps. 

 

Questionnaire Due Date: 25 June 2024 
Statement Due Date: 23 July 2024 
  
 
 
App.No: 23/2262/VAR   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/24/3343375 
Appellant: Mr & Mrs Clinch 
Address: The Barn and Pinn Cottage   Bowd Sidmouth EX10 0ND  
Proposal; Removal of occupancy condition no.2 of permission ref: 

7/39/02/P1130/00114 to allow use as an unrestricted dwelling 
Start Date: 13 June 2024 Procedure: 

Written reps. 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 20 June 2024 
Statement Due Date: 18 July 2024 
  
 
 

page 20



App.No: 24/0216/FUL   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/24/3343467 
Appellant: Mr Darrol Moss 
Address: Brackenrigg   Cathole Lane Yawl Devon DT7 3XD 
Proposal; Site Log Cabin 
Start Date: 25 June 2024 Procedure: 

Written reps. 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 2 July 2024 
Statement Due Date: 30 July 2024 
  
 
 
App.No: 23/1849/FUL   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/24/3344323 
Appellant: Mr Mark Weekes 
Address: Land South of Dunsmore Farm Rewe Exeter EX5 4DX  
Proposal; Proposed erection of a permanent rural workers dwelling, 2x 

proposed car port and installation of 28x solar panels on roof. 
Start Date: 12 June 2024 Procedure: 

Hearing 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 19 June 2024 
Statement Due Date: 17 July 2024 
Hearing Date: 28 August 2024 
 
 
App.No: 24/0325/FUL   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/24/3345160 
Appellant: Mr D J Blackmore 
Address: Southlands Gardens King Street Honiton   
Proposal; Demolition of storage building and erection of a one bedroom 

bungalow. 
Start Date: 13 June 2024 Procedure: 

Written reps. 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 20 June 2024 
Statement Due Date: 18 July 2024 
  
 
 
App.No: 24/0088/FUL   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/D/24/3345795 
Appellant: Mrs Sascha Kranen 
Address: 31 Oaklea Honiton EX14 1XH   
Proposal; Construction of a two-storey rear extension 
Start Date: 13 June 2024 Procedure: 

Householder 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 20 June 2024 
  
  
 
 

page 21



App.No: 23/1317/LBC   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/Y/24/3343238 
Appellant: Mr & Mrs Halse 
Address: Combehayes Farm   Buckerell Devon EX14 3ET  
Proposal; Demolition of existing extension and proposed replacement 

single storey extension, reconfiguring external stone wall and 
hard landscaping 

Start Date: 18 June 2024 Procedure: 
Written reps. 

 

Questionnaire Due Date: 25 June 2024 
Statement Due Date: 23 July 2024 
  
 
 
App.No: 24/0216/FUL   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/24/3343467 
Appellant: Mr Darrol Moss 
Address: Brackenrigg   Cathole Lane Yawl Devon DT7 3XD 
Proposal; Site Log Cabin 
Start Date: 25 June 2024 Procedure: 

Written reps. 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 2 July 2024 
Statement Due Date: 30 July 2024 
Hearing/Inquiry Date:  
 
 
App.No: 24/0525/COU   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/24/3345084 
Appellant: M Stephen Hartwell 
Address: Land adjacent too Grange Farm Newton Poppleford EX10 

0BY   
Proposal; Change of use of agricultural land to residential garden 
Start Date: 8 July 2024 Procedure: 

Written reps. 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 15 July 2024 
Statement Due Date: 12 August 2024 
  
 
 

page 22



App.No: 23/0571/MFUL   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/24/3341996 
Appellant: Mr Paull (McCarthy and Stone Retirement Lifestyles Ltd) 
Address: Former Council Offices Knowle Sidmouth EX10 8HL  
Proposal; Redevelopment of site to provide: a) Care home building 

(Class C2) with associated parking, landscaping, staff and 
resident facilities and associated works, b) Extra care 
apartment building (53 units) with associated communal 
lounge, wellbeing suite, restaurant and care provision (class 
C2) c) Retirement living apartment building (33 units) with 
associated communal lounge d) Erection of 4 houses, and 3 
townhouses (Class C3) along with accesses; internal car 
parking, roads, paths, retaining walls, refuse and landscaping 
associated with development. Retention/refurbishment of 
building B, erection of habitat building and sub-stations. 
(Demolition of buildings other than building B) | Former 
Council Offices Knowle Sidmouth EX10 8HL 

Start Date: 9 July 2024 Procedure: 
Hearing 

 

Questionnaire Due Date: 16 July 2024 
Statement Due Date: 13 August 2024 
Hearing Date: 5 November 2024 
 
 
App.No: 23/2418/PDQ   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/24/3344843 
Appellant: Mr and Mrs Willis 
Address: Higher Berry Farm Clyst St Lawrence Cullompton EX15 2NW  
Proposal; Prior approval application to convert existing farm building to 

a residential dwelling with associated development 
Start Date: 9 July 2024 Procedure: 

Written reps. 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 16 July 2024 
Statement Due Date: 13 August 2024 
  
 
 
App.No: 23/1496/FUL   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/23/3333745 
Appellant: Mr Paul Sparks 
Address: Barn Close Kennels   Combe Raleigh Devon EX14 4SG  
Proposal; Change of use from kennels to 3no. dwellings including 

associated works and parking. 
Start Date: 15 July 2024 Procedure: 

Written reps. 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 22 July 2024 
Statement Due Date: 19 August 2024 
  
 
 

 
page 23



App.No: 23/2373/PIP   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/24/3345706 
Appellant: Mr David Selway 
Address: Land West of Backwells Mead Northleigh    
Proposal; Permission in principle for 4no. dwellings 
Start Date: 18 July 2024 Procedure: 

Written reps. 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 25 July 2024 
Statement Due Date: 22 August 2024 
  
 
 
App.No: 23/2548/COU   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/24/3345720 
Appellant: Paul FitzHenry 
Address: Ivy Green Farm Chardstock EX13 7BY   
Proposal; Change of use of existing annexe accommodation to enable 

dual use as either annexe and/or holiday accommodation 
Start Date: 18 July 2024 Procedure: 

Written reps. 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 25 July 2024 
Statement Due Date: 22 August 2024 
  
 
 
App.No: 23/2167/FUL   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/24/3345882 
Appellant: Churchill Estates Management 
Address: Tanyards Court   Beer Road Seaton Devon EX12 2PA 
Proposal; Erection of seagull netting on roof of Tanyard's Court 

[Retrospective] 
Start Date: 18 July 2024 Procedure: 

Written reps. 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 25 July 2024 
Statement Due Date: 22 August 2024 
  
 
 

page 24



App.No: 23/1050/FUL   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/24/3345960 
Appellant: Mr Steve Richards 
Address: Land South of 15 Halsdon Avenue Exmouth   
Proposal; To erect a 2 storey 2-bed dwelling with associated amenity 

space. 
Start Date: 23 July 2024 Procedure: 

Written reps. 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 30 July 2024 
Statement Due Date: 27 August 2024 
  
 
 
App.No: 24/0439/TRE   
Appeal Ref: APP/TPO/U1105/10189 
Appellant: Mr Steven Richards 
Address: Land South Of 15 Halsdon Avenue Exmouth Devon EX8 3DL 
Proposal; G7.1 and G7.2 Lime:   

i) Create high pollard on structural branches, with 
preferentially nodal pruning at a height of approx. 8m, with 
target pruning cuts of typically 100mm dia. Establish radial 
spread of approx. 2.5m. 
ii) Repeat management on cycle of not less than 5 years, and 
not more than 7 years. 
 

Start Date: 26 July 2024 Procedure:  
Written reps. 

 

Questionnaire Due Date:  9 August 2024 
  
  
 
App.No: 24/0926/FUL   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/D/24/3347872 
Appellant: Mr Justin Wright 
Address: 2 The Barnfield Jerrard Close Honiton EX14 1DX  
Proposal; Raising of roof and conversion to habitable accommodation. 
Start Date: 6 August 2024 Procedure: 

Householder 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 13 August 2024 
  
  
 
 

page 25



App.No: 24/0110/FUL   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/24/3347347 
Appellant: Mulberry Architectural Services 
Address: Branscombe Farm Ebford Lane Ebford EX3 0QX  
Proposal; Proposed demolition of existing structures and erection of two 

dwellings, garages, improvements to existing vehicular 
access, hardstanding, landscaping and all associated 
development 

Start Date: 13 August 2024 Procedure: 
Written reps. 

 

Questionnaire Due Date: 20 August 2024 
Statement Due Date: 17 September 2024 
  
 
 
App.No: 24/0217/FUL   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/D/24/3347667 
Appellant: Mr Neil Hitt 
Address: 1 Pithayes Cottages Church Road Whimple Devon EX5 2TG 
Proposal; Construction of detached double garage with workshop and 

gym/storage on first floor. 
Start Date: 14 August 2024 Procedure: 

Householder 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 21 August 2024 
  
  
 
 
App.No: 23/2523/FUL   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/24/3347765 
Appellant: Mr & Mrs Eccles 
Address: Northcombe Farm Salcombe Regis EX10 0JQ   
Proposal; Proposed annexe (conversion of redundant rural building) 
Start Date: 19 August 2024 Procedure: 

Written reps. 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 26 August 2024 
Statement Due Date: 23 September 2024 
  
 
 

 
page 26



App.No: 24/0605/FUL   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/24/3346991 
Appellant: Mr Nigel Morgan 
Address: Clapperentale Farm Escot Park Ottery St Mary Devon EX11 

1LU 
Proposal; Siting of rural workers dwelling (static caravan) in support of 

rural business (retrospective) 
Start Date: 23 August 2024 Procedure: 

Hearing 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 30 August 2024 
Statement Due Date: 27 September 2024 
Hearing Date: 29 October 2024 
 
 
App.No: 23/1064/FUL   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/W/24/3347829 
Appellant: Mr and Mrs A Brewer 
Address: Bung Ho Southdown Road Beer Devon EX12 3AE 
Proposal; Two storey, 5-bed, detached dwelling, with associated 

parking and amenity space and demolition of existing dwelling 
and garage. 

Start Date: 23 August 2024 Procedure: 
Written reps. 

 

Questionnaire Due Date: 30 August 2024 
Statement Due Date: 27 September 2024 
  
 
App.No: 23/2774/FUL   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/D/24/3348516 
Appellant: Mr Alex Watson 
Address: Bramblecot Gate Hawkchurch Devon EX13 5TZ  
Proposal; Addition of detached double garage to property. 
Start Date: 29 August 2024 Procedure: 

Householder 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 5 September 2024 
  
  
 
 

page 27



App.No: 24/0175/FUL   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/D/24/3348571 
Appellant: Miss Clare Humphreys 
Address: 58 St Andrews Drive Axminster Devon EX13 5EZ  
Proposal; Fencing erected to replace hedging (retrospective) 
Start Date: 29 August 2024 Procedure: 

Householder 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 5 September 2024 
  
  
 
App.No: 24/0136/FUL   
Appeal Ref: APP/U1105/D/24/3349925 
Appellant: Mr David Gillingham 
Address: Tinkers Barn   Payhembury EX14 3JQ   
Proposal; Part garage conversion, first floor extension over existing 

garage and single storey rear extension and the introduction 
of solar panels 

Start Date: 6 September 2024 Procedure: 
Householder 

 

Questionnaire Due Date: 13 September 2024 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 28



Ward Woodbury And Lympstone

Reference 23/1258/MOUT

Applicant Mr David Lovell (Heritage New Homes)

Location Land To The Rear Of Orchard House Globe Hill
Woodbury EX5 1JP

Proposal Outline application (with details of access to be
considered and all other matters reserved) for
the residential development of up to 35 no.
dwellings (12 affordable); vehicular and
pedestrian access from Globe Hill, pedestrian
access only from public right of way; demolition
of existing wooden structure to be replaced with
Parish Council building; community parking
area; public open space, landscaping,
wildflower meadow and orchard and other
associated infrastructure

RECOMMENDATION: 
1. Adopt the appropriate assessment
2. Secure financial contributions and other matters through a Section 106 Legal Agreement
3. Approve with conditions

Crown Copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey 100023746

page 29

Agenda Item 8



 

23/1258/MOUT  

  Committee Date: 24.09.2024 
 

Woodbury And 
Lympstone 
(Woodbury) 
 

 
23/1258/MOUT 
 

Target Date:  
04.10.2023 

Applicant: Mr David Lovell (Heritage New Homes) 
 

Location: Land To The Rear Of Orchard House Globe Hill 
 

Proposal: Outline application (with details of access to be considered 
and all other matters reserved) for the residential 
development of up to 35 no. dwellings (12 affordable); 
vehicular and pedestrian access from Globe Hill, pedestrian 
access only from public right of way; demolition of existing 
wooden structure to be replaced with Parish Council 
building; community parking area; public open space, 
landscaping, wildflower meadow and orchard and other 
associated infrastructure 
 

  

 
RECOMMENDATION:  1. Adopt the appropriate assessment 

2. Secure financial contributions and other matters 
through a Section 106 Legal Agreement 

3. Approve with conditions 
 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
This application is before Members because it represents a departure from the 
adopted Development Plan and a contrary view has been adopted by the Ward 
Member. 
 
The proposal is not in accordance with the Local Plan, with Strategy 7 stating that 
new development in the countryside, and outside Built Up Area Boundaries 
should be strictly controlled.  As planning applications must be determined in 
accordance with the development plan this would suggest that planning 
permission ought to be refused, unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise. 
 
The site is located adjacent to the western edge of the built-up area boundary for 
Woodbury and comprises a mainly green field site with an area of 2.77ha, 
accessed from Globe Hill.  It is outside of the settlement boundary with part of the 
eastern side of the site within Woodbury Conservation Area, which also abuts the 
southern side of the site.  It is considered to be well related to the centre of the 
village, with The Arch on the opposite side of Globe Hill, where there are a number 
of facilities and services. As such the proposal would therefore have some 
support from Strategy 3 which supports sustainable development, and would 

page 30



 

23/1258/MOUT  

appear to accord with the overarching principles of delivering sustainable 
development.  
 
The application has been submitted in outline form for the construction of 35 
residential dwellings, including 12 (34.3%) affordable on site dwellings, with 
public open space, SuDs systems, landscaping and associated infrastructure.  
Access is to be considered at this stage, with a new access road being created 
onto Globe Hill.  The proposed access, including the alterations to the existing 
road layout, has been found to be acceptable from a highway safety perspective 
and whilst further off-site highway works and traffic calming measures on Globe 
Hill are also proposed, they are not required to make the application acceptable 
in highway safety terms.  The detail of access, which is sought under this 
application is considered to be acceptable. 
 
The indicative layout of the site shows built development on the northern side of 
the watercourse which dissects the site from east to west, is generally considered 
to be reasonable and would be acceptable in terms of flood risk, surface water 
management and safeguarding the water course. 
 
The application also proposes the provision of a new parish council building and 
community parking area within the site and off-site highway improvements, and  
traffic calming measures on Globe Hill.  Whilst these additional works are 
considered to be of benefit to local residents they are not required as part of the 
wider development under any policy and therefore cannot be secured in any legal 
agreement with the council and can be attributed limited weight in the 
consideration of the development.  
 
Some harm to the setting of the adjacent conservation area and landscape visual 
impact has been identified, which needs to be balanced against the benefits 
arising from the proposal.  Whilst it is noted that the Council can, at present, 
demonstrate that the necessary 4 year housing supply this is considered to be a 
short term position and that in order to be able to meet longer term housing 
requirements new housing development is necessary.  In this respect this site is 
considered to be sustainably located and the benefits arising from the proposal 
including new housing and particularly affordable housing which is given 
significant weight in the decision making balance, are considered to weigh heavily 
in favour such that the limited harm identified is outweighed by these benefits.   
 
It is recommended therefore that the appropriate assessment be adopted, that 
outline permission (with access approved) is granted subject to the completion of 
a S106 agreement and the conditions set out below. 
 

 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Local Consultations 
 
Woodbury And Lympstone - Cllr Geoff Jung 
24/04/24 - 23/1258/MOUT 
 

page 31



 

23/1258/MOUT  

I have viewed the further documents submitted in April 2024 for planning application 
for 23/1258/MOUT for outline application (with details of access to be considered and 
all other matters reserved) for the residential development of up to 35 no. dwellings 
(12 affordable); vehicular and pedestrian access from Globe Hill, pedestrian access 
only from public right of way; demolition of existing wooden structure to be replaced 
with Parish Council building; community parking area; public open space, landscaping, 
wildflower meadow and orchard and other associated infrastructure at land to the rear 
of Orchard House Globe Hill Woodbury EX5 1JP 
 
I previously stated following changes to Government Planning policy in Dec 2023 the 
local planning policy can now demonstrate a 4-year land supply and therefore the 
current local plan can demonstrate that there is a 4-year land supply and therefore the 
EDDC Local Plan is at present current and active and not considered 'out of date'. 
 
Therefore, as this application does not comply to the Current Local Plan, I am unable 
to support this Application. 
I also note that South West Water has proposed a Grampian order for a current 
application in Woodbury and I believe this would be appropriate for this site as well. 
 
It states.  
 
The occupation of any dwellings approved by this, or subsequent Reserved Matters 
pursuant to this, permission shall not be authorised until written confirmation is 
received by the Local Planning Authority from South West Water that improvement 
works at Woodbury Waste Water Treatment Works have been completed, or until 1st 
December 2025, whichever is sooner. 
 
Reason: To enable required improvement works to take place at Woodbury Waste 
Water Treatment Works to suitably receive and accommodate the increase in flows 
expected as a result of the proposed development. Allowing flows above acceptable 
volumes from the occupation of # dwellings prior to these works being completed 
would have unacceptable impact on existing infrastructure, with unacceptable risk of 
potential pollution events occurring. 
 
No development approved by this, or subsequent Reserved Matters pursuant to this, 
permission shall be commenced until details of a scheme for the provision of foul water 
management has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
Finally, if this application is proposed to be recommended for approval, I would want 
to see some clarification to the continuing management of the open spaces for this 
site along with the proposed other assets as it is normal practice for these site-specific 
proposals would be managed by a site management company in perpetuity. However, 
these open spaces would seem to be accessed and able to be used by the general 
public. 
However, I reserve my final views on this application until I am in full possession of all 
the relevant arguments for and against. 
 
Woodbury And Lympstone - Cllr Geoff Jung 
25/03/24 - 23/1258/MOUT  

page 32



 

23/1258/MOUT  

I have viewed the further documents for planning application for 23/1258/MOUT for 
outline application (with details of access to be considered and all other matters 
reserved) for the residential development of up to 35 no. dwellings (12 affordable); 
vehicular and pedestrian access from Globe Hill, pedestrian access only from public 
right of way; demolition of existing wooden structure to be replaced with Parish Council 
building; community parking area; public open space, landscaping, wildflower meadow 
and orchard and other associated infrastructure at land to the rear of Orchard House 
Globe Hill Woodbury EX5 1JP 
Following changes to Government Planning policy in Dec 2023 the local planning 
policy can now demonstrate a 4-year land supply and therefore the current local plan 
can demonstrate that there is a 4-year land supply and therefore the EDDC Local Plan 
is at present current and active and not considered 'out of date'. 
Therefore, as this application does not comply to the Current Local Plan, I am unable 
to support this Application. 
If this application is proposed to be recommended for approval, I would want to see 
some clarification to the continuing management of the open spaces for this site along 
with the proposed other assets as it is normal practice for these site-specific proposals 
would be managed by a site management company in perpetuity. However, these 
open spaces would seem to be accessed and able to be used by the general public.  
However, I reserve my final views on this application until I am in full possession of all 
the relevant arguments for and against. 
 
Woodbury And Lympstone - Cllr Geoff Jung 
27/11/23 - 23/1258/MOUT 
 
I have viewed the further documents for the outline planning application 
23/1258/MOUT outline application (with details of access to be considered and all 
other matters reserved) for the residential development of up to 31 no. dwellings (8 
affordable); vehicular and pedestrian access from Globe Hill, pedestrian access only 
from public right of way; demolition of existing wooden structure to be replaced with 
Parish Council building; community parking area; public open space, landscaping, 
wildflower meadow and orchard and other associated infrastructure on land to the rear 
of Orchard House Globe Hill Woodbury. 
 
A previous application very similar for this site was refused in May 2016 because it 
was outside the agreed BUAB, plus the impact on the Conservation Area and the 
urban grain of this part of the village, and impact on local open space, as the main 
reasons.  
 
Last year there was a consultation for sites coming forward for a proposed East Devon 
new local plan based on the Government requirement for 910 new dwelling to be built 
each year in East Devon. This site was considered not appropriate from the various 
sites put forward for Woodbury. 
 
Therefore, I do not support this application. However, I reserve my final views on this 
application until I am in full possession of all the relevant arguments for and against. 
 
Woodbury And Lympstone - Cllr Geoff Jung 
14/07/23 - 23/1258/MOUT  

page 33



 

23/1258/MOUT  

I have viewed the documents for the outline planning application 23/1258/MOUT 
Outline application (with details of access to be considered and all other matters 
reserved) for the residential development of up to 31 no. dwellings (8 affordable); 
vehicular and pedestrian access from Globe Hill, pedestrian access only from public 
right of way; demolition of existing wooden structure to be replaced with Parish Council 
building; community parking area; public open space, landscaping, wildflower meadow 
and orchard and other associated infrastructure on land to the rear of Orchard House 
Globe Hill Woodbury 
Last year there was a consultation for sites coming forward for a proposed East Devon 
new local plan based on the Government requirement for 940 new dwelling to be built 
each year in East Devon. This site was considered not appropriate from the various 
sites put forward for Woodbury, however since the consultation the Government has 
removed the housing number policy, but as yet not replaced the policy, and therefore 
all work on the housing requirements for East Devon are on hold. 
Therefore, my view is this application should be determined on the current local plan 
which would consider the application outside the built-up area boundary and therefore 
not compliant to the existing local plan. 
Therefore, I do not support this application However, I reserve my final views on this 
application until I am in full possession of all the relevant arguments for and against. 
 
Parish/Town Council 
30/04/24 -  
Woodbury Parish Council supports this application subject to the Heads of Terms and 
Transport Statement being part of the binding legal S106 agreement.  
SW Water must demonstrate that there is sufficient capacity for this development. Our 
previous comments also still stand. 
 
Clerk To Woodbury Parish Council 
18/03/24 - Woodbury Parish Council's original observation as East Devon District 
Council did not have a 5-year land supply and with the dwellings per annum figure of 
910 required to be approved, that we support this application subject to the Heads of 
Terms and Transport Statement being part of the binding legal S106 Agreement, as a 
minimum and as detailed within the supporting documentation provided by the 
developer. 
 
- Affordable Housing being made up of at least 25% of the overall development with a 
minimum number of 8; 
- Landscaping, drainage management / maintenance provision is to be made for the 
onsite public open space area, including attenuation basin; 
- Community Parking Area with a minimum of 30 spaces, (tarmac and lined) 
- Offsite highways infrastructure including calming measures; 
- Pebble bed heath & Exe Special Protection Area mitigation contribution; 
- Parish Community building details negotiated with PC/EDDC and developer. If this 
is not wanted then a financial contribution is provided to the Parish Council for an 
alternative community benefit. 
 
Although the S106 Heads of Terms does not have a provision for a safe pedestrian 
access to the village centre we would like this to be negotiated. 
 
We would also expect that; 

page 34



 

23/1258/MOUT  

- EDDC / South West Water ensures that there is sufficient capacity for sewage 
treatment for the additional housing. 
- EDDC allocates sufficient funds from the Community Infrastructure Levy for Traffic 
Regulation Order for 20mph across the village of Woodbury 
- A proportion of the Community Infrastructure Levy is allocated for The Arch 
improvements. 
 
If this development is approved, we want this housing figure to be deducted off any 
specific allocation to Woodbury in the new Local Plan. 
 
Even though EDDC can now demonstrate a 4 year land supply, we still support this 
application with the increase of dwellings to accommodate the additional affordable 
required, totalling 12 and the reduced car park area of 20 spaces, plus the above as 
stated. 
 
Parish/Town Council 
03/08/23 - East Devon District Council do not have a 5-year land supply and with the 
dwellings per annum figure of 910 required to be approved, Woodbury Parish Council 
supports this application subject to the Heads of Terms and Transport Statement being 
part of the binding legal S106 Agreement, as a minimum and as detailed within the 
supporting documentation provided by the developer.  
 
' Affordable Housing being made up of at least 25% of the overall development with a 
minimum number of 8; 
' Landscaping, drainage management / maintenance provision is to be made for the 
onsite public open space area, including attenuation basin; 
' Community Parking Area with a minimum of 30 spaces, (tarmac and lined) 
' Offsite highways infrastructure including calming measures;  
' Pebble bed heath & Exe Special Protection Area mitigation contribution; 
' Parish Community building details negotiated with PC/EDDC and developer. If this is 
not wanted then a financial contribution is provided to the Parish Council for an 
alternative community benefit.  
 
Although the S106 Heads of Terms does not have a provision for a safe pedestrian 
access to the village centre we would like this to be negotiated. 
 
We would also expect that; 
' EDDC / South West Water ensures that there is sufficient capacity for sewage 
treatment for the additional housing.  
' EDDC allocates sufficient funds from the Community Infrastructure Levy for Traffic 
Regulation Order for 20mph across the village of Woodbury 
' A proportion of the Community Infrastructure Levy is allocated for The Arch 
improvements. 
  
If this development is approved, we want this housing figure to be deducted off any 
specific allocation to Woodbury in the new Local Plan.  
 
Summary of Technical Consultations (Full Responses in Appendix 1) 
 
County Highway Authority 18/12/23 -  

page 35



 

23/1258/MOUT  

 
Recommendation: 
 
THE HEAD OF PLANNING, TRANSPORTATION AND ENVIRONMENT, ON 
BEHALF OF DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL, AS LOCAL HIGHWAY AUTHORITY, MAY 
WISH TO RECOMMEND CONDITIONS ON ANY GRANT OF PLANNING 
PERMISSION 
 
Housing Strategy/Enabling Officer - Cassandra Harrison 23/02/24  
 
Percentage of Affordable Housing - Strategy 34 in the adopted East Devon Local Plan 
2013 - 2031 requires 50% affordable housing.  This application is now offering 34.3% 
affordable which although not policy compliant is acceptable.  East Devon District 
Council does not currently have a 5 year housing land supply and 35% affordable is a 
pragmatic solution in the current housing crisis.   
 
Environment Agency 02/05/24  
 
We are satisfied that the revised layout 'GBHL-010P SITE PLAN, Rev H' addresses 
our previous concerns regarding safeguarding an 8m unfettered access buffer either 
side the important flood alleviation channel that is present within the site. We note the 
outline permission being sought is based upon the flood alleviation channel being 
retained in its current alignment and the layout being revised accordingly to 
accommodate an 8m buffer. We are also satisfied that the 'PROPOSED INDICATIVE 
SITE PLAN' Drawing No. GBHL-010P SITE PLAN, Rev H identifies provision of gated 
access either side of the channel both upstream and downstream of the proposed 
channel crossing, such being required to provide access for flood risk management 
purposes. The details of such can be covered by condition as recommended above. 
Details of the proposed bridge, the principles of which are shown on the above referred 
drawing, can be also be addressed by the above recommended conditions and 
through the flood risk activity environmental permit process. 
   
DCC Flood Risk SuDS Consultation 16/05/24  
 
Our objection is withdrawn and we have no in-principle objections to the above 
planning application at this stage, assuming that the following pre-commencement 
planning conditions are imposed on any approved 
permission: 
 
South West Water 17/07/23  
 
South West Water is able to provide clean potable water services from the existing 
public water main for the above proposal.  The practical point of connection will be 
determined by the diameter of the connecting pipework being no larger than the 
diameter of the company's existing network. 
 
Foul Sewerage Services 
South West Water is able to provide foul sewerage services from the existing public 
foul or combined sewer in the vicinity of the site.  The practical point of connection will 

page 36



 

23/1258/MOUT  

be determined by the diameter of the connecting pipework being no larger than the 
diameter of the company's existing network. 
 
The applicant can apply to South West Water for clarification of the point of connection 
for either clean potable water services and/or foul sewerage services.  For more 
information and to download the application form, please visit our website: 
 
Having reviewed the applicant's current information as to proposed surface water 
disposal for its development, please note that method proposed to discharge into the 
ground (infiltration) is acceptable and meets with the Run-off Destination Hierarchy.   
 
Devon County Archaeologist 25/04/24  
 
The Historic Environment Team therefore recommends that this application should be 
supported by the submission of a Written Scheme of Investigation (WSI) setting out a 
programme of archaeological work to be undertaken in mitigation for the loss of 
heritage assets with archaeological interest.   
 
Conservation 03/05/24  
 
It is considered that the proposed development works, continue to fail to preserve the 
setting of Woodbury Conservation Area as a heritage asset and to a lesser extent 
result in less than substantial harm to its significance. 
 
EDDC Trees 08/01/24   
 
Following initial tree officer comments, the amended Site Plan C now shows retention 
of group of six Silver Birch adjacent to the  B3179 and realignment of footpath to south 
of trees which is considered positive. 
  
EDDC Landscape Architect 22/05/24  
 
The landscape and visual effects of the proposed development are limited to the site 
itself and immediate surroundings including Globe Hill between the junctions with the 
Arch and Rydon Lane and extending to views from the south to a distance of some 
1.2km. It is accepted that the likely effects on the AONB are negligible. 
 
The indicative layout suggests a dense suburban character that is strongly at odds 
with the existing settlement pattern in the vicinity of the site and which is not conducive 
to the long term viability of the perimeter hedgerows. 
 
District Ecologist 13/10/23 
 
The submitted ecological survey information including ecological avoidance, 
mitigation, and enhancement measures proposed, subject to the above 
recommendations, especially regarding dark corridors and additional ecological 
enhancement measures are generally considered acceptable. 
 
Environmental Health 11/07/23  
 

page 37



 

23/1258/MOUT  

I have considered the application and further information will be required in order to 
address environmental health concerns in relation to noise.   
 
The development involves the introduction of noise sensitive dwellings in close 
proximity to an existing commercial business (car breakers).  A 
BS4142:2014+A1:2019 assessment should be undertaken in order to determine the 
noise impact from the neighbouring industrial/commercial business on the 
development.  The purpose of the noise assessment is to determine whether or not 
future residents are likely to be adversely affected by noise.   
 
Contaminated Land Officer 11/07/23  
 
Should any contamination of soil and/or ground or surface water be discovered during 
excavation of the site or development, the Local Planning Authority should be 
contacted immediately.  
 
NHS Local (Eastern Locality) 04/08/23 
 
Request S106 contribution towards the cost mitigation of the pressures on the local 
healthcare facility.  
 
Devon County Council Education Dept 15/03/24  
 
Devon County Council would seek a contribution based on the number of pupils 
generated directly towards additional primary education infrastructure. The 
contribution sought towards primary is £132,501 (based on the DfE extension rate of 
£17,097 per pupil). This would relate directly to providing primary education facilities 
for those living in the development. 
 
The contribution sought towards secondary is £109,461 (based on the DfE extension 
rate of £23,540 per pupil). This would relate directly to providing secondary education 
facilities for those living in the development.  
 
DCC would also require a contribution towards secondary school transport costs due 
to the development being further than 2.25 miles from Exmouth Community College. 
The current costs required are as follows: - 
 
4.35 secondary pupils 
£2.65 per day x 4.65 pupils x 190 academic days x 5 years = £11,706 
 
Police Architectural Liaison Officer - Kris Calderhead 17/07/23  
 
I appreciate that the layout of the site is only illustrative at this stage however, I would 
like to make the following comments and recommendations for consideration.  
 
Other Representations 
 
A total of 59 representations have been received, of which 57 raise objections, and 2 
make representation.  These are summarised below:- 
 

page 38



 

23/1258/MOUT  

• Impact on the Woodbury Conservation Area 

• Outside of Built up Area Boundary 

• Does not comply with East Devon Local Plan 2013-2031  

• Landscape and visual impact 

• Fails to make appropriate affordable housing contribution 

• Loss of high quality agricultural land 

• Detrimental to residential amenity 

• Dangerous access onto Globe Hill 

• Detrimental to highway safety 

• Loss of natural habitat 

• Ecological impact 

• Additional impact on overloaded drainage systems 

• Additional traffic 

• Too many houses being proposed in Woodbury 

• Existing infrastructure can't cope with more dwellings 

• Poor public transport links 

• Lack of healthcare facilities  

• The Council does not have a shortfall of housing 

• Increase in noise and disturbance 

• Create a precedent for further development  
 
Planning History 
 
Reference                     Description                                 Decision        Date 
 

14/2574/MOUT Outline application 

(appearance, landscaping, 

layout and scale reserved) for 

the construction of up to 24 

dwellings, community parking 

and access. 

Refused 

Appeal 

Dismissed   

24.08.2015 

 

05.05.2016 

13/0971/FUL Construction of new dwelling Approved 16.10.2013 

 
The following applications are considered relevant to this site:  
 
22/1761/FUL | Conversion and extension of existing buildings to create two residential 
dwellings, construction of 6no. dwellings with associated landscaping, infrastructure 
and works and demolition of existing buildings. | Land At Venmore Barn Woodbury | 
APPROVED (15 Jan 2024)  
 
22/2838/MOUT Outline application for the construction of up to 70 residential units 
including open space, affordable housing, and offsite highway works (all matters 
reserved except for access) | Land To South Broadway Woodbury | RESOLUTION 
TO APPROVE SUBJECT TO LEGAL AGREEMENT 
  
23/1600/MOUT  Outline application for construction of up to 28 residential units 
(including affordable housing), new vehicular access onto Globe Hill, open space, new 

page 39



 

23/1258/MOUT  

parish office and Globe Hill highway works (all matters reserved except for access) | 
Land Off Globe Hill Woodbury | PENDING CONSIDERATION  
  
23/2166/MOUT  Outline application for the construction of up to 60 dwellings 
including affordable housing seeking approval for new vehicular access and 
pedestrian access, with matters of layout, scale, appearance and landscaping 
reserved for future consideration. | Land South of Gilbrook House, Woodbury | 
PENDING CONSIDERATION 
 
POLICIES 
 
Strategy 1 (Spatial Strategy for Development in East Devon)  
Strategy 3 (Sustainable Development)  
Strategy 5B (Sustainable Transport)  
Strategy 7 (Development in the Countryside)  
Strategy 27 (Development at the Small Towns and Larger Villages) 
Strategy 31 (Future Job and Employment Land Provision)  
Strategy 34 (District Wide Affordable Housing Provision Targets)  
Strategy 36 (Accessible and Adaptable Homes and Care/Extra Care Homes)  
Strategy 38 (Sustainable Design and Construction)  
Strategy 43 (Open Space Standards)  
Strategy 46 (Landscape Conservation and Enhancement and AONBs) 
Strategy 47 (Nature Conservation and Geology)  
Strategy 48 (Local Distinctiveness in the Built Environment)  
Strategy 49 (The Historic Environment)  
Strategy 50 (Infrastructure Delivery)   
 
D1 (Design and Local Distinctiveness)  
D2 (Landscape Requirements)  
D3 (Trees and Development Sites)  
 
EN5 (Wildlife Habitats and Features) 
EN7 (Proposals Affecting Sites which may potentially be of Archaeological 
Importance)  
EN8 (Significance of Heritage Assets and their Setting)  
EN9 (Development Affecting a Designated Heritage Asset) 
EN10 (Conservation Areas) 
EN14 (Control of Pollution)  
EN19 (Adequacy of Foul Sewers and Adequacy of Sewage Treatment Systems)  
EN21 (River and Coastal Flooding)  
EN22 (Surface Run-off Implications of New Development) 
 
TC2 (Accessibility of New Development)  
TC7 (Adequacy of Road Network and Site Access)  
TC9 (Parking Provision in New Development) 
 
Government Planning Documents 
 
NPPF23 (National Planning Policy Framework 2023) 
National Planning Practice Guidance 

page 40



 

23/1258/MOUT  

 
Site Location and Description 
 
The application site is located on the western side of the village Woodbury. It 
comprises a green field extending to 2.77ha off Globe Hill to the rear of a property 
known as Orchard House.  It is currently in agricultural use and located outside of, but 
adjacent to the built up area boundary of the village.  The site generally falls from north 
to south and is bounded by residential properties, and a car breakers yard on its 
southern side, with Globe Hill to the east and open countryside to the north and west.  
A flood alleviation channel dissects the site from east to west, to the south of which  is 
a paddock with some stables adjacent to the southern boundary.   
 
The northern boundary is enclosed by hedgerow, with a protected oak tree on the 
northern boundary, and a further one just beyond the south western edge of the site.  
the other boundaries are generally enclosed by post and rail fencing,  
 
Part of the site to east, abutting Globe Hill, is within the Woodbury Conservation Area, 
whose boundary is also to part of the south of the site.   
 
There is an existing access onto Globe Hill with a crossing over the watercourse to the 
southern parcel of land. A new footpath access is proposed from the south western 
corner of the site to link into an existing public footpath.   
 
The East Devon National Landscape is approximately 1.2km to the east.  
 
The site is located within 10km of the Exe Estuary Special Protection Area (SPA) and 
East Devon Pebblebed Heaths Special Area of Conservation (SAC) and SPA.  
 
The wider village of Woodbury is home to a number of services including a 
convenience shop, doctors surgery, church, village hall, primary school, hairdressers, 
playing fields, public house and the village is served by a number of bus routes 
including the T, 58/58A, and 358. Exton Train Station is located around 2.8km from 
the site. The city of Exeter City Centre is around 7 miles to the northwest (20-25 
minutes by car) and Exmouth is around 4.5 miles to the south (10-15 minutes by car). 
 
Proposed Development  
 
Outline planning permission, with all matters other than access reserved, for the 
development of up to 35 dwellings including 12 affordable units.  The illustrative layout 
shows development on the northern side of the watercourse, served by a spinal 
access with the majority of the housing proposed in the northern side of this.   
 
A new vehicular access is proposed onto Globe Hill, adjacent to Orchard House, with 
the alignment of the road altered to provide improved visibility at the junction.  A 
diverted pedestrian footpath is proposed to the frontage of Globe Hill, with a link from 
this to the proposed public parking area in the south east part of the site.   
 
A new parish council building is proposed in the south eastern corner of the site, with 
a public car park for 20 cars indicated adjacent to this.  Access to the car park would 
be from the estate road via a new bridge over the flood alleviation channel. 

page 41



 

23/1258/MOUT  

 
A linear area of public open space is proposed along the southern side of the site 
adjacent to the watercourse, with a wildflower meadow and orchard adjacent to the 
proposed carpark and an entrance.  Further open space areas are proposed adjacent 
to the northern boundary and surrounding the attenuation basin proposed in the south 
western corner of the site.   
 
  
ANALYSIS 
 
The main issues to be considered in the determination of this application relate to:  

• Policy Position and The Principle of Development  

• Housing Land Supply Position 

• Affordable Housing  

• Transport and Access 

• Design and Layout  

• Heritage Impact 

• Archaeology 

• Landscape and Visual Impact  

• Residential Amenity  

• Arboricultural Impact 

• Drainage and Flood Risk 

• Ecology/Biodiversity 

• Loss of Agricultural Land 

• Open Space 

• Planning Obligations  

• Planning Balance and Conclusions 
 
 
Policy Position and Principle of Development 
 
Strategies 1 and 2 of the Local Plan set out the scale and distribution of residential 
development in the district for the period 2013-2031. The main focus is on the West 
End and the seven main towns. Development in the smaller towns, villages and other 
rural areas is geared to meet local needs and represents a much smaller proportion 
of the planned housing development. 
 
Strategy 3 (Sustainable Development) of the adopted EDLP (2016) states that the 
objective of ensuring sustainable development is central to our thinking. We interpret 
sustainable development in East Devon to mean that the following issues and their 
inter-relationships are taken fully into account when considering development: a) 
Conserving and Enhancing the Environment - which includes ensuring development 
is undertaken in a way that minimises harm and enhances biodiversity and the quality 
and character of the landscape. This includes reducing the risk of flooding by 
incorporating measures such as sustainable drainage systems. Developers should 
maximise the proportion of their developments that take place on previously developed 
land b) Prudent natural resource use - which includes minimising fossil fuel use 
therefore reducing carbon dioxide emissions. It also includes minimising resource 
consumption, reusing materials and recycling. Renewable energy development will be 

page 42



 

23/1258/MOUT  

encouraged c) Promoting social wellbeing - which includes providing facilities to meet 
people's needs such as health care, affordable housing, recreation space and village 
halls. d) Encouraging sustainable economic development - which includes securing 
jobs. e) Taking a long term view of our actions - Ensuring that future generations live 
in a high quality environment where jobs, facilities, education and training are readily 
available. 
  
The proposed development would comprise major development in the countryside, 
outside of the defined settlement boundary of Woodbury, thereby conflicting with 
Strategy 7 of the local plan. Consequently, the site would not offer an appropriate 
location for the development proposed having regard to the development plan's overall 
settlement strategy and expectation for such development to be contained within a 
designated built up area boundary.  
  
As stated above, the site in this case is located outside of the BuAB of Woodbury as 
defined in Strategy 27 (Development at the Small Towns and Larger Villages) of the 
adopted Local Plan and developed through the Villages Plan. In strategic policy terms 
therefore, the site is within the 'countryside' as defined in Local Plan Strategy 7 
(Development in the Countryside), the provisions of which would not ordinarily 
facilitate new build housing in the absence of any other local or neighbourhood plan 
policy that would permit such development. 
  
Given the above clearly residential development of this nature and in this location 
conflicts with the spatial approach to development as expressed within the 
development plan. This conflict is considered to be attributed significant weight given 
that this is one of the main objectives of the local plan.  
 
The application has some support from Strategy 3 of the EDLP which encourages 
sustainable development. This is also supported by the NPPF (2023) which sets out 
a presumption in favour of sustainable development which involves meeting three 
overarching objectives (economic, social and environmental) which includes building 
a strong and competitive economy, support strong and healthy communities and 
protecting and enhancing our built and natural environment. The proposed 
development would provide housing and much needed affordable housing in 
Woodbury with associated economic benefits, the proposal would be located in close 
proximity to the existing village and would be within walking and cycling distance from 
day-to-day services, community facilities and open space. It is considered that the 
proposal would appear to accord with the overarching principles of delivering 
sustainable development which is given weight in the planning balance.  
 
Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2008 states that 
development must be made in accordance with the development plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. This is also echoed in Paragraph 12 of the NPPF 
(2023) which states that the presumption in favour of sustainable development does 
not change the statutory status of the development plan as the starting point for 
decision-making. Where a planning application conflicts with an up-to-date 
development plan (including any neighbourhood plans that form part of the 
development plan), permission should not usually be granted. Local planning 
authorities may take decisions that depart from an up-to-date development plan, but 

page 43



 

23/1258/MOUT  

only if material considerations in a particular case indicate that the plan should not be 
followed.  
 
This paragraph of the NPPF allows for Local Planning Authority's to make decisions 
which depart from the local plan if the material considerations of the development 
outweigh the harm.  
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (December 2023) (NPPF) states, at 
paragraph 77, that "local planning authorities should identify and update annually a 
supply of specific deliverable sites sufficient to provide either a minimum of five years' 
worth of housing, or a minimum of four years' worth of housing if the provisions in 
paragraph 226 apply."   
  
Paragraph 226 states: "From the date of publication of this revision of the Framework, 
for decision-making purposes only, certain local planning authorities will only be 
required to identify and update annually a supply of specific deliverable sites sufficient 
to provide a minimum of four years' worth of housing (with a buffer, if applicable, as 
set out in paragraph 77) against the housing requirement set out in adopted strategic 
policies, or against local housing need where the strategic policies are more than five 
years old, instead of a minimum of five years as set out in paragraph 77 of this 
Framework. This policy applies to those authorities which have an emerging local plan 
that has either been submitted for examination or has reached Regulation 18 or 
Regulation 19 (Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 
2012) stage, including both a policies map and proposed allocations towards meeting 
housing need." 
  
The draft local plan consultation undertaken by East Devon District Council in 
November 2022 to January 2023 was carried out under Regulation 18. The emerging 
new Local Plan is therefore sufficiently progressed to benefit from this provision.   
  
On this basis, and as the Council can demonstrate a 4.5 year housing land supply, 
policies within the adopted Local Plan most important for determining the application 
remain up to date and the presumption in favour of sustainable development (the 'tilted 
balance') set out at paragraph 11d) of the NPPF need not be applied. 
 
(It is noted that the current government is consulting on a revised version of the NPPF 
which proposes to delete paragraph 226 from the NPPF, reverting to the standard 
requirement for all Council’s to demonstrate a 5-year housing land supply, but the 
consultation document carries little weight at present.) 
 
Housing Land Supply Position 
 
The need for housing over the next five years is a crucial consideration in planning 
decisions. According to paragraph 69 of the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF), local planning authorities must identify specific sites for housing for the next 
five years and broader areas for growth for the subsequent 10-15 years. This means 
that a responsible and proactive council should be looking beyond the mere 4 and 5 
year timescales, recognise the implications of present actions and take action now 
with regard to the impact of these longer time scales.  
  

page 44



 

23/1258/MOUT  

If the Council cannot demonstrate a five-year housing supply when adopting a new 
local plan, it would conflict with paragraph 69(a) of the NPPF.  Without an adequate 
supply of housing an Inspector would likely find such an emerging plan unsound and 
inconsistent with the requirements of paragraph 35 of the NPPF. Therefore, on this 
basis alone the Council should not rely solely on a short-term, four-year housing 
supply, as providing robust reason enough for resisting further housing as a matter of 
principle.  
  
Appeal decisions have shown that even if a site is not allocated in the current plan or 
is outside development boundaries, it can still nevertheless be considered for 
'sustainable development' if there is no identified contextual conflict and it is within 
reasonable reach of an appropriate level of services and facilities. This is especially 
relevant given the Council's current and future housing supply challenges, regardless 
of the 'tilted balance'. 
  
National policy, prior to December 2023 required a continuous five-year housing 
supply. Some other authorities have struggled to maintain this, leading to weaker 
positions when subject to appeals against planning decisions. These decisions often 
relied on overly optimistic policy assessments (purposely or otherwise), resulting in a 
compounded effect on future planning. The experience of these authorities shows that 
it takes time to recover (so to claw back an appropriate supply of housing) so as to 
successfully defend against appeals for sites deemed unacceptable.  
  
The Council's Housing Monitoring Update shows that the forthcoming five-year 
housing trajectory will fall below the required numbers and it is notable that affordable 
housing delivery has also been below the required levels. Currently, about 6,000 
households are on the Council's housing register. The district's identified affordable 
housing need is 272 dwellings per year, totalling 4,896 dwellings over the 18-year plan 
period. Delivery in recent years has fallen well short of this annual target 
 
This issue was considered by Strategic Planning Committee on 15/7/2024 following 
the receipt of advice from Kings Counsel.  The committee resolved to advise Planning 
Committee that in considering planning applications for housing developments that 
would deliver homes within the next 5 years in a sustainable way, significant weight 
should be given to the need to bolster the council’s housing land supply position. This 
is in order to ensure that the council has a robust housing land supply and as a result 
a sound local plan in respect of housing land supply for examination of the Local Plan. 
 
There is a clear need for more housing, both market and affordable, within the district. 
The current and projected levels of housing delivery do not meet this need in the long 
term under the current policy climate. This unmet need is a significant factor for 
decision-makers in planning applications and appeals, particularly pertinent for 
otherwise sustainable sites outside current settlement boundaries. 
  
To be in a strong position now, and remain so in the future, the Council must boost its 
supply of market and affordable housing and develop a local plan that ensures the 
realistic delivery of sufficient homes over the plan period. A robust approach in this 
regard would mean the adoption of a local plan which both expresses and reflects the 
needs of the district, provides the ability to defend unsustainable sites for development 
at appeal, prevent speculative planning applications afflicting local communities and 

page 45



 

23/1258/MOUT  

meet the social elements at a national scale by delivering the right type of housing at 
the right time.  Accordingly, the need to boost the supply of housing is a material 
consideration that can be attributed great weight given the strategic importance that 
maintaining a healthy supply of housing means to the council and its ability to retain 
control over key planning decisions. 
 
Affordable Housing 
 
There is a substantial need for affordable housing in the district with over 5000 
households on the housing register.   
 
As the site lies outside the BUAB for Woodbury and in accordance with Strategy 34 
the development should provide 50% affordable housing. Full weight can be given the 
Local Plan policies on housing as the Council has the requisite housing land supply 
as noted above. This would equate to 17.5 dwellings (based on 35 dwelling total). At 
the time of the submission of the planning application (when the Council did not have 
the requisite housing land supply and therefore our housing policies were out of date) 
the requirement would have been 25%, as originally submitted. Since the publication 
of the new NPPF, to reflect the new position the Council now finds itself in with regard 
to having an up to date set of housing policies, the developer has confirmed it will 
propose 50% affordable housing, 34.3% (12 dwellings) on site and 15.7% (£159,124) 
off-site contribution which would accord with Strategy 34. 
 
This level of affordable housing has received support from the Housing Enabling 
Officer, who has stated that 8 Social Rent units and 4 affordable home ownership 
units, is policy compliant with Strategy 34. 
 
Some concern, however, has been raised regarding the proposed clustering of the 
affordable housing, although as this application is in outline the exact layout can be 
altered as part of any reserved matters application.  
 
In order to secure the level of affordable housing proposed, a S106 legal agreement 
would be required should an approval be forthcoming. Officers would expect a mix of 
houses to meet the local requirement in Woodbury.  
 
In line with Strategy 36, all of the affordable housing and around 20% of market units 
must meet part M4(2) of the Building Regulations. This could be secured via S106 
legal agreement and reviewed as part of any reserved matters application.  
 
Having regard to the above, the development could accord with Strategy 36 
(Accessible and Adaptable Homes and Care/Extra Care Homes), and would accord 
with Strategy 34 (District Wide Affordable Housing Provision Targets), and Strategy 
50 (Infrastructure Delivery) of the adopted Local Plan (2016) and the East Devon 
Affordable Housing SPD (November 2020).   
 
Transport and Access 
 
Strategy 5B (Sustainable Transport) of the EDLP (2016) states that development 
proposals should contribute to the objectives of promoting and securing sustainable 
modes of travel and transport. Development will need to be of a form, incorporate 

page 46



 

23/1258/MOUT  

proposals for and be at locations where it will encourage and allow for efficient, safe 
and accessible means of transport with overall low impact on the environment, 
including walking and cycling, low and ultra-low emission vehicles, car sharing and 
public transport. 
 
Policy TC2 (Accessibility of New Development) of the EDLP (2016) states that new 
development should be located so as to be accessible by pedestrians, cyclists and 
public transport and also well related to compatible land uses so as to minimise the 
need to travel by car.  
 
Policy TC4 (Footpaths, Bridleways and Cycleways) of the EDLP (2016) states that 
development proposals will be required to include measures to provide, improve and 
extend facilities for pedestrians and cyclists commensurate with the scale of the 
proposal.  
 
Policy TC7 (Adequacy of Road Network and Site Access) of the EDLP (2016) states 
that planning permission for new development will not be granted if the proposed 
access, or the traffic generated by the development, would be detrimental to the safe 
and satisfactory operation of the local, or wider, highway network.  
 
Policy TC9 (Parking Provision in New Development) of the EDLP (2016) states that 
spaces will need to be provided for parking of cars and bicycles in new developments. 
All small scale and large scale major developments should include charging points for 
electric cars. 
 
The application is submitted in outline with the only detailed matter for consideration 
relating to access to the site.  Access to the site is proposed from Globe Hill (B1379) 
with a new junction being formed through what is currently part of the garden 
associated with Orchard House.  It is proposed to realign part of the road to provided 
appropriate visibility by removing part of the existing hedgerow on the eastern side of 
the road and extending the road junction to the east.  Whilst this would enable 
appropriate visibility at the junction with the proposed development, it would also have 
the effect of reducing the angle of bend on the approach to the village. 
 
The new entrance will have a carriageway width of 5.5m with 2m wide footways 
provided on both sides, with the footpath on the southern side being widened and 
diverted round existing trees to provide a more accessible pedestrian route to the 
centre of the village.  
 
The submitted draft Heads of Terms includes suggests contributions towards further 
off-site traffic calming measures on Globe Hill.  These include enhancement of the 
village gateway, various visual only speed bumps and markings, the provision of a 
pedestrian crossing and potentially the introduction of a reduced 20mph speed limit to 
this part of Globe Hill (although this element would require the approval of a Traffic 
Regulation Order) 
 
The new access and proposed traffic calming measures are considered to be 
necessary to afford safe access to the proposed development and would also be of 
wider public benefit in terms of improving highway safety for the community. 
 

page 47



 

23/1258/MOUT  

The indicative masterplan shows the internal main spine road extending through the 
site with from east to west, with short cul-de-sac highways serving the dwellings on 
the northern side of the road.  
 
The development will inevitably generate some additional vehicular activity on the local 
road network however the Highway Authority are of the opinion that this would not be 
significant, and whilst the off-site works would need to be subject to a Traffic 
Regulation Order, it is considered that the suggested measures will result in a safety 
net gain.  On this basis it is considered the proposal would comply with the provisions 
of Policy TC7 (Adequacy of Road Network and Site Access) of the Local Plan.  
 
In terms of wider accessibility, Policy TC2 and the NPPF seek residential development 
that is in positions where there are viable alternatives to the private car allowing 
pedestrian, cycle and public transport access to jobs, services, and amenities.  The 
application site is accessible to a range of services including bus services, shops, 
schools, medical services, and jobs (predominantly in further afield settlements by 
bus).  There are suitable and safe walking routes into the village centre.  The site is 
accessible and future residents would have viable and sustainable alternatives to 
using the private car. 
 
The submitted Transport Assessment is considered acceptable by Devon County 
Highway Authority and the overall the scheme considered to accord with Policies TC2 
and TC7 of the EDDC Local Plan and the guidance in the NPPF. 
 
Design and Layout 
 
Policy D1 (Design and Local Distinctiveness) of the Local Plan sets out detailed criteria 
to ensure that new development is of a high quality design and is locally distinctive.  In 
particular, development should respect the key characteristics and special qualities of 
the area and ensure the scale, massing, density, height, fenestration and materials of 
buildings relate well to their context.  In addition, development should not adversely 
affect the urban form in terms of significant street patterns, groups of buildings and 
open spaces. 
 
Section 12 of the NPPF, 2023 states that the creation of high quality, beautiful and 
sustainable buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and development 
process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development 
(para 126).  In addition, development should function well and add to the overall quality 
of the area; be visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and 
appropriate and effective landscaping; and be sympathetic to local character and 
history, including the surrounding built environment and landscape setting (para 130). 
Development that is not well designed should be refused (para 134) 
 
The application has been submitted in outline, with matters of design, appearance, 
layout and scale forming reserved matters to be considered in detail should an outline 
consent be forthcoming.  Nevertheless, an illustrative masterplan layout has been 
submitted which identifies, and seeks to address, the constraints of the site, both in 
physical terms and heritage impact. The majority of the development is proposed on 
the northern part of the site, avoiding any area identified as being at risk of flooding, 
but also with a view to facilitating views from and of the conservation area.    

page 48



 

23/1258/MOUT  

 
The illustrative masterplan shows the indicative road layout, location of public open 
spaces, suggested position of dwellings and private gardens together with the 
proposed parish building and public parking area. 
 
However, as the application is submitted in outline it is subject to amendments in terms 
of design and layout which would be considered as part of any reserved matters 
application.  Any reserved matters application would need to address specific 
concerns raised regarding layout and form as well as design and appearance of the 
built form.   
 
Overall, it is considered that the level of development being proposed could be 
accommodated on the site without resulting in a cramped form of development that 
would be at odds with the grain of development within the village or surrounding built 
form.  On this basis it is considered that the proposals would therefore comply with the 
provisions of Policies D1 (Design and Local Distinctiveness) of the Local Plan, and the 
advice contained within the NPPF23. 
 
Heritage Impact 
 
The statutory duty contained in section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires the decision maker to have special regard to 
the desirability of preserving listed buildings or their setting, or any features of special 
architectural or historic interest which they possess. When considering the impact of 
a proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great 
weight should be given to the asset's conservation (and the more important the asset, 
the greater the weight should be). This is irrespective of whether any potential harm 
amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less than substantial harm to its significance. 
Any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated heritage asset (from its 
alteration or destruction, or from development within its setting), should require clear 
and convincing justification.  
 
Section 72 requires the decision maker pay special regard to the desirability of 
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of conservation areas. 
 
Policy D1 (Design and Local Distinctiveness) of the Local Plan states that 
development proposals should not adversely affect the distinctive historic or 
architectural character of the area. 
 
Policy EN10 (Conservation Areas) states that proposals for development, including 
alterations, extensions and changes of use, or the display of advertisements within a 
Conservation Area, or outside the area, but which would affect its setting or views in 
or out of the area, will only be permitted where it would preserve or enhance the 
appearance and character of the area. 
 
Policies EN9 and EN10 reflect the guidance set out in paras 199 to 208 of the NPPF, 
2023 
 
Paragraph 201 of the NPPF requires that Local Planning Authorities identify and 
assess the particular significance of any heritage asset. Paragraph 205 requires that 

page 49



 

23/1258/MOUT  

great weight is given to the conservation of designated heritage assets and this 
position is further supported by EDLP Strategy 49 (The Historic Environment) and 
Policy EN10 (Conservation Areas). 
 
It is considered that the main heritage impact would be that affecting the setting of the 
Woodbury Conservation Area. The housing would have an urbanising effect and would 
erode part of the views towards the countryside from within  
 
Paragraphs 205-208 of the National Planning Policy Framework deal with the 
assessment of harm to designated heritage assets and which advises that great 
weight should be given to an asset's conservation, and this should be proportionate to 
the importance of the asset.  
 
It is acknowledged that the proposal would result in less than substantial harm to the 
setting Woodbury Conservation Area through the introduction of new residential 
development, However, it should also be noted that there is an extant planning 
permission for the development of a new dwelling on the site of the proposed access, 
and where the main views of the open countryside can be experienced from the 
conservation area.  It is also relevant to note that the final layout including landscaping 
and position of buildings would be a reserved matters application Planting is proposed 
within and around the site which will help integrate and screen the development into 
the landscape but this will only go so far.  
 
Where harm is identified, clear and convincing justification needs to be provided for 
any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated heritage asset including 
development within its setting (NPPF, Para 200).  
 
In cases where the scheme will affect an element that positively contributes to a 
conservation area or within the setting of affected assets, it should be considered as 
harmful. In the consideration of the application, any harm needs to be shown to be 
demonstrably outweighed by the public benefits offered by the scheme (NPPF, 206 
and 202).   
 
This identified harm to heritage assets needs to be weighed against any public 
benefits, not just public heritage benefit. The proposal would result in additional 
dwellings adjacent to the centre of Woodbury which would help support employment 
and services in the local area and 35% of the on-site dwellings would be affordable. 
The proposal would result in public open space and play space as well as pedestrian 
connections and of-site highway works, including traffic calming measures which 
would benefit the wider village and improve highway safety. There are also 
employment opportunities associated with the construction of the development.  
 
It is considered that whilst the proposed development would result in some visual harm 
to the site within the wider Conservation Area, this harm is considered to be at the 
lower end of less than substantial and the positive benefits of the development, in 
terms of providing new housing and much needed affordable housing, and creating 
public access to the site and new vistas of the heritage assets are considered to weigh 
heavily in favour of the development such that it would overall comply with the 
requirements of policy EN10 (Conservation Areas) of the Local Plan and paragraph 
208 of the NPPF23. 

page 50



 

23/1258/MOUT  

 
Archaeology 
 
The proposed development site lies in an area of known archaeological potential just 
outside the historic core of the historic settlement and in an area where Roman 
artefacts have been found in the surrounding landscape.  In addition, the geophysical 
survey of the site has identified linear features that may be indicative of early, either 
prehistoric or Romano-British, activity on the site in the form of the earlier field 
boundaries or enclosures, as well as the possible presence of pit features in the 
eastern part of the site.  Groundworks for the construction of the proposed 
development have the potential to expose and destroy archaeological and artefactual 
deposits associated with these potential heritage assets.   
 
Having regard to the submitted details if is considered that the impact of the proposed 
development upon the archaeological resource could be mitigated by a programme of 
archaeological work that will investigate, record and analyse the archaeological 
evidence that will otherwise be destroyed by the proposed development.   
 
This process can be the subject of pre-commencement conditions to ensure that any 
potential archaeological impact can be mitigated appropriately.  
 
Landscape and Visual Impact  
 
Strategy 46 (Landscape Conservation and Enhancement and AONBs) of the Local 
Plan requires that development will need to be undertaken in a manner that is 
sympathetic to and helps conserve and enhance the quality and local distinctiveness 
of, the natural and historic landscape character of East Devon, in particular in Areas 
of Outstanding Natural Beauty (now known as National Landscapes (NLs). 
 
When considering development in or affecting AONBs, great weight will be given to 
conserving and enhancing their landscape and scenic beauty.  This is reinforced by 
para 176 of the NPPF, 2023 
 
Policy D1 (Design and Local Distinctiveness) of the Local Plan states that 
development proposals should not adversely affect important landscape 
characteristics or prominent topographical features. 
 
Para 174 of the NPPF, 2023 states that planning decisions should contribute to and 
enhance the natural and local environment by protecting and enhancing valued 
landscapes, should recognise the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside 
and should maintain the character of the undeveloped coast. 
 
The site comprises open agricultural land on the western edge of the village and it is 
considered that the landscape and visual impacts of the development are limited to 
the site itself and immediate surroundings, including from Globe Hill between the 
junctions of The Arch and Rydon Lane, and longer distance views from the south.  
 
The proposals will have a major impact within the site, altering much of the site from 
open land to an urban landscape.  Some open vistas will be maintained in views from 
the eastern part of the site, although the majority of the site’s appearance will be 

page 51



 

23/1258/MOUT  

suburban.  It is considered that the alteration to the character of this part of the village 
adjacent and the edge of the conservation area will result in some visual harm.  
 
There is, however existing development on the western side of Globe Hill, which is 
already somewhat urban in form, with buildings and boundary walls located adjacent 
to the back edge of the narrow pavement.  It is also noted that, whilst not built, an 
extant permission exists for a dwelling on the open area currently forming part of the 
side garden of Orchard House, in the position of the proposed access.  Were this 
development to be undertaken, the currently open views from Globe Hill would be 
significantly reduced.   
 
The introduction of traffic calming measures at the entrance to the village, together 
with the formation of the new estate access and creation of a pedestrian refuge in the 
centre of the carriageway and introduction of pedestrian footway will also have an 
urbanising impact on this part of Globe Hill, and the approach to the village from the 
west.  
 
Overall, the residential development of the site, whilst having a major impact on the 
character of the site itself and resulting in some loss of views, and visual intrusion, 
wider landscape impacts are unlikely to be significant.  
 
Whilst there remains some concern regarding the illustrative layout, the application is 
submitted in outline form and the principle of housing development on the site is 
considered to be acceptable in terms of overall landscape and visual impact subject 
to detailed design and density such that it would comply with Policy D2 (Landscape 
Requirements) of the East Devon Local Plan 2013-2031.  
 
Residential Amenity  
 
Policy D1 (Design and Local Distinctiveness) of the Local Plan states that 
development should not adversely affect the amenity of occupiers of adjoining 
residential properties. 
 
Policy EN14 (Control of Pollution) of the Local Plan states that permission will not be 
granted for development which results in unacceptable levels of pollution including 
smell, fumes and dust; pollution of surface or underground waters; noise; vibration; 
light intrusion and fly nuisance  
 
Para 130 of the NPPF, 2023 states that development should create places that are 
safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and well-being, with a high 
standard of amenity for existing and future users. 
 
There are a number of residential properties whose gardens border the southern side 
of the site, with a further three to the north eastern boundary.  The indicative layout 
suggests that most of the proposed dwellings would be located towards the northern 
side of the site, with some indicated adjacent to the north eastern boundary.   
 
Concerns have been raised that the proposed siting and proximity of dwellings to the 
boundary of the site will have an unacceptable impact on residential and other 
amenity, however the proposals are in outline and do not include detailed plans for the 

page 52



 

23/1258/MOUT  

housing proposed.  These concerns are appreciated, although the exact location and 
design of residential dwellings, and any potential impact would be further considered 
and determined at the reserved matters stage.  Based on the illustrative masterplan 
submitted, it is considered that the number of dwellings and other development being 
proposed could be accommodated on the site without having an unacceptable impact 
on the residential amenities of those living adjacent to the site in terms of overlooking, 
loss of privacy or nuisance.  
 
In terms of Environmental Health, the District Council's Environmental Health Officer 
reviewed the application and recommended that due to the presence of a car breakers 
yard adjacent to the south western boundary of the site, a noise assessment should 
be undertaken prior to any development of the site to ensure that any impact on 
residential amenity for future residents is acceptable.  This aspect of the development 
could be appropriately controlled by suitable conditions. 
 
The proposed dwellings would be expected to comply with the Nationally Described 
Space Standards (NDSS). Whilst these are not adopted planning policy within the 
Local Plan, they are nevertheless a useful guide and Policy D1 seeks to ensure that 
development does not adversely affect the living conditions of occupants of proposed 
future residential properties and that development includes features that maintain 
good levels of daylight and sunlight into buildings. These requirements also accord 
with the P.135 (f) of the NPPF's requirement for a high standard of amenity for existing 
and future occupiers.  
 
The proposed development at outline stage is therefore considered to be acceptable 
and would comply with Policy D1 and Policy EN14.   
 
Arboricultural Impact 
 
Policy D1 (Design and Local Distinctiveness) of the Local Plan states that 
development should not adversely affect trees worthy of retention. 
 
Policy D3 (Trees and Development Sites) states that permission will only be granted  
for development, where appropriate tree retention and/or planting is proposed in 
conjunction with the proposed nearby construction. The council will seek to ensure, 
subject to detailed design considerations, that there is no net loss in the quality of trees 
or hedgerows resulting from an approved development. The development should 
deliver a harmonious and sustainable relationship between structures and trees. The 
recommendations of British Standard 5837:2012 (or the current revision) will be taken 
fully into account in addressing development proposals. 
 
Para 136 of the NPPF23 states that trees make an important contribution to the 
character and quality of urban environments, and can also help mitigate and adapt to 
climate change; opportunities should be taken to incorporate trees elsewhere in 
developments (such as parks and community orchards), that appropriate measures 
should be in place to secure the long-term maintenance of newly-planted trees, and 
that existing trees should be retained wherever possible. 
 
There are two protected oak trees adjacent to the site which could be affected by the 
proposed development, one just beyond the northern hedge boundary and the other 

page 53



 

23/1258/MOUT  

just outside the south eastern boundary.  The illustrative layout retains these with 
areas of open space proposed with the protection areas, although it is noted that the 
oak on the northern boundary has had its roots compromised by an existing high 
pressure water main which crosses the site.  
 
The indicative layout has been amended during the course of the application, with a 
group of silver birch trees which had been proposed to be removed, now retained.  
 
The proposed layout, subject to conditions is now considered to be acceptable in 
principle, such that the development would comply with Policy D3 (Trees and 
Development Sites) of the Local Plan.  
 
Drainage and Flood Risk 
 
Policy EN21 (River and Coastal Flooding) of the EDLP (2016) states that a sequential 
approach will be taken to considering whether new developments excluding minor 
developments and changes of use will be permitted in areas subject to river and 
coastal flooding. Wherever possible, developments should be sited in Flood Zone 1. 
The policy sets out a sequential approach whereby if there is no reasonably available 
site in Flood Zone 1, only then will locating the development in Flood Zone 2 and Flood 
Zone 3 be considered. 
 
Policy EN22 (Surface Run-Off Implications of new Development) states that planning 
permission for new development will require that: 
 
1. The surface water run-off implications of the proposal have been fully considered 
and found to be acceptable, including implications for coastal erosion.  
2. Appropriate remedial measures are included as an integral part of the development, 
and there are clear arrangements in place for ongoing maintenance over the lifetime 
of the development.  
3. Where remedial measures are required away from the application site, the 
developer is in a position to secure the implementation of such measures.  
4. A Drainage Impact Assessment will be required for all new development with 
potentially significant surface run off implications.  
5. Surface water in all major commercial developments or schemes for 10 homes or 
more (or any revised threshold set by Government) should be managed by sustainable 
drainage systems, unless demonstrated to be inappropriate. 
 
The NPPF (2023) states at Paragraph 168 that the aim of the sequential test is to steer 
new development to areas with the lowest risk of flooding from any source. 
Development should not be allocated or permitted if there are reasonably available 
sites appropriate for the proposed development in areas with a lower risk of flooding. 
The strategic flood risk assessment will provide the basis for applying this test. The 
sequential approach should be used in areas known to be at risk now or in the future 
from any form of flooding. 
 
The majority of the site is located within Flood Zone 1 where there is a very low risk of 
flooding however a part of the site is located in Flood Zone 2 and 3. This area is to the 
south eastern boundary of the site, to the south of the flood alleviation channel. No 
development is proposed within the flood zone on the illustrative master plan. 

page 54



 

23/1258/MOUT  

 
The applicant has proposed to manage surface water drainage back to the existing 
green field rates, including use of drained permeable paving, an attenuation basin and 
below ground attenuation structure. 
 
The application was reviewed by DCC Flood Risk, as the Lead Local Flood Authority 
who initially objected to the application and requested further information. Following 
the submission of an amended surface water drainage strategy, DCC Flood Risk 
removed their objection and requested a further detail condition is attached to any 
approval. The condition would seek a detailed drainage design, management of the 
surface water drainage system as well as information on the existing surface water 
drainage systems. The proposal is considered to be acceptable at this stage in relation 
to surface water subject to conditions.  
 
In relation to Foul Sewage, South West Water were consulted on the application and 
raise no objections to the principle of the proposed outline application subject to 
conditions. They requested conditions in relation to Surface Water Management and 
a Water Conservation Strategy. They have also recommended a condition requiring 
written confirmation prior to the occupation of any dwelling, from South West Water 
that improvement works at Woodbury Waste Water Treatment Works have been 
completed, or until 1st December 2025.    
 
 
As part of the site is located within the Flood Zone, the Environment Agency (EA) were 
consulted on the application. The EA raised no objection to the proposed development 
subject to the inclusion of a condition relating to the management of flood risk on any 
permission granted. The EA also advised the LPA that the flood risk Sequential Test 
must be satisfied in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
and the failure of the Sequential Test is sufficient justification to refuse a planning 
application.  
 
The Flood Risk Assessment submitted by the applicant indicates that the site layout 
and levels and associated finished floor levels will be wholly in Flood Zone 1, therefore 
the Sequential Test is deemed to be met. 
 
However, The R (Mead and Redrow) v SoS LUHC [2024] EWHC 279 High Court 
judgement indicated that as parts of the site (albeit not parts intended to be built on) 
were within flood zones 2 and 3, a sequential test was required in relation to flood risk. 
This judgement indicates that for this application, a more detailed sequential test would 
be required to consider whether there are any sites where all development and 
associated open spaces and accesses lie wholly outside flood zones 2 and 3, rather 
than just the built development.  
 
The reason for the sequential test is to ensure that areas at little or no risk of flooding 
from any source are developed in preference to areas at higher risk. This means 
avoiding, so far as possible, development in current and future medium and high flood 
risk areas considering all sources of flooding including areas at risk of surface water 
flooding. There is some limited national guidance (NPPG) on what information is 
required to inform the Sequential Test. 
 

page 55



 

23/1258/MOUT  

The guidance states that for individual planning applications where there has been no 
sequential testing of the allocations in the development plan, or where the use of the 
site being proposed is not in accordance with the development plan, the area to apply 
the Sequential Test across will be defined by local circumstances relating to the 
catchment area for the type of development proposed. For some developments this 
may be clear, for example, the catchment area for a school. In other cases, it may be 
identified from other Local Plan policies, such as the need for affordable housing within 
a town centre, or a specific area identified for regeneration.  
 
The NPPG does state that local factors can be considered when deciding the area of 
search to draw up. However, there is no up to date housing needs assessment 
identifying a specific need for the housing in the local area or any other factors that 
would limit the area of search to a smaller area, so for the purposes of this application 
the area of search is considered to be the district of East Devon. 
 
An important factor to take into account is the current local plan review that is being 
undertaken by the Council, in particular its allocation of housing sites to meet the 
needs of the district to cover the plan period. A strategic review of available sites 
across the district has been undertaken and culminated in a Regulation 18 plan being 
consulted upon which included first and second choice housing sites together with a 
new community.  Even if all proposed allocations are carried forward to Regulation 19 
stage the amount of sites would fall short of the number of houses required to meet 
the needs of the district going forward. The draft local plan includes this application 
site as a proposed housing allocation. Given that there is only a finite amount of 
available housing land in sustainable locations in the district it is considered that the 
sequential test has been passed. 
 
Where the sequential test has been passed paragraph 169 of the NPPF requires that 
the LPA undertakes an exceptions test, to pass the exception test it should be 
demonstrated that: 
 
a) the development would provide wider sustainability benefits to the community that 
outweigh the flood risk; and 
b) the development will be safe for its lifetime taking account of the vulnerability of its 
users, without increasing flood risk elsewhere, and, where possible, will reduce flood 
risk overall 
 
In this instance the proposal would provide much needed open market and affordable 
housing where there is a district wide need, but more importantly it would be in a 
sustainable location where there is good access to a range of services including a 
village shop, primary school, public house, place of worship together with convenient 
public transport links to further afield settlements. It would remain safe for the lifetime 
of its use given that none of the built form would be close to areas of flooding 
vulnerability and surface water run off from the site would be controlled in an 
appropriate manner (once improvements are made to the local sewerage pumping 
station to deal with flows form the combined surface and foul water drainage) which is 
a benefit over the current situation of green field run off. As such it is considered that 
the exceptions test would be passed. 
 

page 56



 

23/1258/MOUT  

In relation to Fowl Sewage, South West Water were consulted on the application and 
do not object to the principle of the proposed outline application subject to conditions. 
They requested conditions in relation to Surface Water Management and a Water 
Conservation Strategy. South West Water have also stated that the Woodbury Waste 
Water Treatment Works (WWTW) requires improvement works and amendments to 
existing permits prior to accepting an increase in flows and they have recommended 
a condition requiring written confirmation prior to the occupation of any dwelling, from 
South West Water that improvement works at Woodbury Waste Water Treatment 
Works have been completed, or until 1st December 2025. This condition would be a 
Grampian condition and officers have concerns in relation to the wording of this 
condition and consequences if the improvement works are not completed by this date. 
However, South West Water have confirmed some of the works have been completed 
and they are on track to complete by December 2025 but as the WWTW cannot accept 
any increases in flow it is necessary to allow for improvements to have been completed 
prior to the occupation of any dwelling. In any case, further dialogue would be required 
with South West Water.     
 
Having regard to the above the proposal is considered to comply with Paragraph 168 
of the NPPF23 and Policies EN21 (River and Coastal Flooding) and EN22 (Surface 
Run-off Implications of New Development) of the Local Plan. 
 
Ecology/Biodiversity 
 
Strategy 47 (Nature Conservation and Geology) of the Local Plan states that all 
development proposals will need to conserve the biodiversity and geodiversity value 
of land and buildings and minimise fragmentation of habitats; maximise opportunities 
for restoration, enhancement and connection of natural habitats and incorporate 
beneficial biodiversity conservation features.  The aims of this Strategy are reinforced 
in paras 180 to 182 of the NPPF, 2023. 
 
Policy EN5 (Wildlife Habitats and Features) of the adopted Local Plan (2016) states 
that wherever possible sites supporting important wildlife habitats or features not 
otherwise protected by policies will be protected from development proposals which 
would result in the loss of or damage to their nature conservation value, particularly 
where these form a link between or buffer to designated wildlife sites. Where potential 
arises positive opportunities for habitat creation will be encouraged through the 
development process. Where development is permitted on such sites mitigation will 
be required to reduce the negative impacts and where this is not possible adequate 
compensatory habitat enhancement or creation schemes will be required and/or 
measures required to be taken to ensure that the impacts of the development on 
valued natural features and wildlife have been mitigated to their fullest practical extent. 
 
The closest designated site is the East Devon Pebblebed Heaths SPA/SAC/SSSI, 
located about 1.8 km east of the site. The Exe Estuary SPA/SAC/RAMSAR is located 
around 2.8km from the site. There are also a number of non-statutory designated sites 
within 2 km of the site, the nearest being the Backhill County Wildlife Site (CWS) which 
is 1.9km from the site. Higher Mallocks Unconfirmed Wildlife Site (UWS) is 1.4km 
south east of the site and Rushmoor Wood Other Site of Wildlife Interest (OSWI) is 
1.9km north east of the site.  
 

page 57



 

23/1258/MOUT  

The application is supported by a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal, including an 
Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey.  The survey did not recommend any additional 
surveys, and the proposal is not supported by a biodiversity metric calculation to 
quantify potential ecological losses or gains for habitats, although it should be noted 
that this was not a requirement at the time that the application was submitted.  
 
The report indicates the proposed landscaping of the site, including an orchard would 
result in a net gain in biodiversity, although this is not quantified.  
 
There are several records of bats within the vicinity of the site, and the northern 
boundary of the site is considered to be likely to be used by foraging and commuting 
bats.  The stream is also likely to offer some value to bats although due to its alignment 
and bank is likely to be more limited. 
 
Recommendations, including enhancement measures for bats and nesting birds, 
together with mitigation and enhancement measures are proposed. 
 
The District Council's Ecologist reviewed the application and stated that the proposed 
ecological avoidance, mitigation, and enhancement measures are generally 
considered acceptable subject to conditions. 
 
The mitigation proposed as part of this application as well as a Construction and 
Ecological Management Plan will need to be secured and this can reasonably be 
achieved through a suitably worded condition in the form of the requirement for the 
approval of an Ecological Mitigation Strategy based on the proposed mitigation in the 
Environmental Report.  
 
Open Space 
 
Strategy 43 (Open Space Standards) of the adopted EDLP (2016) states that 
developments proposing net new dwellings will be expected to provide for open space 
on-site where there is a demonstrable need for such open space in the vicinity. 
Developments will be assessed against existing provision in the parish in which they 
are proposed. Where existing provision of specific typologies exceeds quantity 
standards, on-site provision will only be required where the existing open space 
typology is of poor quality or is in some other manner deficient such as not matching 
up to the accessibility standard. Developments will be expected to provide open space 
on-site through a Section 106 Agreement in line with the following thresholds: 

• 9 dwellings or less will not be required to provide any specific open space 
typologies onsite, however developers may choose to make such provision. 

• 10 - 49 dwellings will be required to provide amenity open space on-site. 

• 50 - 199 dwellings will be required to provide amenity open space, and 
children's and youth play space on-site.  

• 200+ dwellings will be required to provide for all open space typologies on-site. 
 
The application would include up to 35 residential dwellings meaning that amenity 
open space is required on site by Strategy 43. Strategy 43 sets out that in rural 
locations developments should include 3.0m2 per person of amenity open space  
 

page 58



 

23/1258/MOUT  

As detailed layouts are not known it is considered that the application could include up 
to 88 residents. The requirement for up to 88 residents would be for 264m2 of amenity 
open space.  Whilst the detailed site layout would be reviewed as part of the reserved 
matters the illustrative layout indicates that around 0.93ha of landscaped open space 
would be provided. 
 
The proposal is therefore considered to be acceptable in accordance with Strategy 43.  
 
Habitat Regulations Assessment and Appropriate Assessment 
 
The nature of this application and its location close to the Pebblebed Heaths and their 
European Habitat designation is such that the proposal requires a Habitat Regulations 
Assessment. This section of the report forms the Appropriate Assessment required as 
a result of the Habitat Regulations Assessment and Likely Significant Effects from the 
proposal. In partnership with Natural England, the council and its neighbouring 
authorities of Exeter City Council and Teignbridge District Council have determined 
that housing and tourist accommodation developments in their areas will in-
combination have a detrimental impact on the Pebblebed Heaths through impacts from 
recreational use. The impacts are highest from developments within 10 kilometres of 
the designation. It is therefore essential that mitigation is secured to make such 
developments permissible. This mitigation is secured via a combination of funding 
secured via the Community Infrastructure Levy and contributions collected from 
residential developments within 10km of the designations. The mitigation contribution 
would be secured through a S106, currently at £367.62 per dwelling. 
 
Natural England were consulted on the AA and have advised that on the basis of the 
appropriate financial contributions being secured to the South-east Devon European 
Sites Mitigation Strategy, they would concur with this authority's conclusion in the AA 
that the proposed development will not have an adverse effect on the integrity of the 
European Sites. It is for the LPA to adopt the AA and accordingly there is a further 
recommendation on this at the end of the report. 
 
Health Care 
 
A request for a financial contribution towards healthcare services provided by the 
Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust has been made.  However, the 
amount requested is yet to be qualified with the complexities in the funding gap 
unclear.  Recent court judgements have to be taken into account, and this, like other 
ongoing requests from the NHS have to be scrutinised in detail.  In this case insufficient 
justification has been provided to support this request. 
 
Education 
 
Devon County Council Education Department has indicated that the local primary 
school’s capacity would be breached by the school aged children which this 
development would produce and have asked for contributions towards extending the 
school. Such matters fall under the CIL regime where public bodies are required to bid 
for appropriate funding towards infrastructure projects including the extension of local 
schools. As this proposal would contribute a CIL amount from each dwelling, an 
education contribution cannot be secured. 

page 59



 

23/1258/MOUT  

 
Planning Obligations 
 
Strategy 50 (Infrastructure Delivery) of the adopted Local Plan (2016) states that the 
Council produced and consulted (in June/July 2013) on an Infrastructure Delivery Plan 
to set out how the implementation of Local Plan policies and proposals will be 
supported through the timely delivery of infrastructure improvements. It identifies 
schemes, sets out how much they will cost, indicates potential funding sources and 
establishes a funding gap. Developer contributions will be sought to ensure that the 
necessary infrastructure improvements are secured to support the delivery of 
development and mitigate any adverse impacts. The failure to provide or absence of 
relevant infrastructure will be grounds to justify refusal of permission. 
 
As set out throughout this report, the following obligations are sought for this 
development via a S106 legal agreement:  

• Provision of affordable housing (34.3% on site, comprising 8 affordable/social 
rent and 4 shared equity, and an off-site contribution of 15.7% - £159,124) 

• Habitats Mitigation contribution of £367.62 per dwelling 

• Provision and maintenance of public open space and drainage, including SUDs 
features outside of private gardens. 

• Agreement to secure alterations to the public highway to accommodate the 
access works 

• Off-site Highways Infrastructure 

• Travel Plan 

• Monitoring Fees 
 
At the time of writing a S106 legal agreement securing the above requirements has 
not been secured. Accordingly, the recommendation to Members is that of a resolution 
to approve, subject to the completion of the S106 and the conditions at the end of this 
report. Completion of the above mitigation measures are required to accord with 
Strategy 50 (Infrastructure Delivery) of the Local Plan.   
 
Other Matters 
 
The proposed parish council building and public car park would be of benefit to the 
community (which would be gifted to the parish council at nil cost), as would the 
proposed off-site traffic calming and improvements to Globe Hill and the area around 
The Arch, and it is noted that there is Parish Council support for these elements of the 
application which would also be of wider public benefit.  However there is no evidenced 
demand for these works and there is no policy requirement to lend support to these 
elements of the proposals. 
 
At the time of determination, there are also a number of other planning applications 
for residential development in Woodbury and consideration must be given to whether 
the village can support the level of growth proposed. At present application 
22/2838/MOUT has a resolution for approval (subject to the completion of a legal 
agreement) for 70 residential dwellings and applications 23/1600/MOUT and 
21/2166/MOUT are pending consideration for 28 and 60 dwellings respectively. In total 
and including this application, up to 193 additional dwellings are proposed at 
Woodbury, all of which are unallocated in the local plan. This increase, if all were 

page 60



 

23/1258/MOUT  

approved would result in a 26.4% increase in the number of dwellings in Woodbury 
and it is acknowledged that this would be a large increase for the village. 
 
Planning Balance 
 
The NPPF seeks to significantly boost the supply of housing across England. The 
proposal would provide for a not insignificant amount of dwellings, required to bolster 
the much needed supply of housing in the district. Notwithstanding the recent changes 
to the NPPF this Council will need to demonstrate a five year housing land supply in 
order to successfully bring forward a new, updated Local Plan.  Housing delivery 
therefore remains a significant material consideration.   
 
However as set out earlier in this report, this development proposes development in 
the countryside outside of a built-up area boundary.  There has thus been an identified 
conflict with Strategy 7 (Development in the Countryside) of the Local Plan. 
 
Whilst it is currently possible to identify a sufficient housing land supply to satisfy the 
amended NPPF23 such that the ‘tilted balance’ is not engaged, the lack of current and 
future delivery of homes, and particularly affordable homes is of significance such that 
a ‘flat balance’ is considered to be an appropriate assessment of the proposed 
development. 
 
The site is considered to occupy a sustainable location within the village and is in close 
proximity to the range of services and facilities on offer within Woodbury.   
 
This application has been submitted in outline form for up to 35 residential units 
seeking approval for access only. Matters of layout, appearance, scale and 
landscaping have been reserved for future consideration, however the submitted 
indicative layout, as amended is considered to be appropriate to demonstrate that it 
would be possible to accommodate up to 35 residential units whilst respecting the 
constraints of the site. 
 
The application has a number of associated benefits including housing delivery and 
the provision of affordable homes, highway works and public open space which are 
given weight in the decision. The sustainable location and access to services and 
infrastructure is also a benefit. The proposal would include economic benefits from 
construction to operation and benefits to local businesses and services as well as CIL 
payments of which a proportion would go to the parish council. These are all 
considered to be benefits of the development which align with the NPPF's three 
overarching objectives (economic, social and environmental). Limited harm to the 
landscape and heritage assets is acknowledged but this is not considered to be 
unacceptable. The application has been assessed in relation to design, amenity, 
ecology, sustainability, contamination and transport and is considered to be 
acceptable in these regards subject to conditions.  
 
When taking all of the above into account the conflict with residential development 
beyond the built up area boundary, and visual impact on the character of the 
immediate area and less than substantial harm to heritage assets, this not considered 
to significantly and demonstrable outweigh the benefits (noted above), when assessed 
against the policies of the framework as a whole.  

page 61



 

23/1258/MOUT  

 
Overall this proposal is considered to benefit from the presumption in favour of 
sustainable development which, as a material consideration, outweighs the limited 
conflict with the development plan.  As such a recommendation of approval is made, 
subject to completion of a Section 106 Agreement and appropriate conditions. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

a) ADOPT the Appropriate Assessment  
b) APPROVE the application subject to the completion of a S106 Agreement 

securing the items listed in the planning obligations section of this report and 
the following conditions. 

 
 
1. Application for approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the Local 

Planning Authority before the expiration of one year from the date of this 
permission. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of two years from the date of approval of the last of the reserved 
matters to be approved. 

  
(Reason - To comply with section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.). 

 
2. Approval of the details of the layout, scale and external appearance of the 

buildings and the landscaping of the site (hereinafter called "the reserved 
matters") shall be obtained from the Local Planning Authority in writing before 
any development is commenced. 

 
(Reason - The application is in outline with one or more matters reserved.) 

 
3. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved plans listed at the end of this decision notice. 
  

(Reason - For the avoidance of doubt.) 
 
4. Prior to any works commencing on site, a Construction and Environment 

Management Plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority and shall be implemented and remain in place 
throughout the construction period. The CEMP shall include at least the following 
matters: 

   
 1) Air Quality 
 2) Dust control 
 3) Lighting 
 4) Noise and vibration 
 5) Pollution Prevention and Control, including an emergency plan 
 6) Monitoring Arrangements 
 7) Site compound and parking - location and size 
 8) Construction traffic management  
 9) Waste Management 

page 62



 

23/1258/MOUT  

 10) Airport safeguarding  
 11) A detailed soil resources management plan prepared in accordance with 

Construction Code of Practice for the Sustainable use of Soils on Construction 
Sites - DEFRA September 2009. 

    
 Construction working shall not take place outside the hours of 8am to 6pm 

Monday to Friday and 8am to 1pm on Saturdays, with no working on Sundays or 
Bank Holidays, Christmas Day or Boxing Day. There shall be no burning on site. 
There shall be no high frequency audible reversing alarms used on the site. 

   
 (Reason – A pre-commencement condition is required to ensure that the details 

are agreed before the start of works to protect the amenities of nearby occupiers 
and to protect the ecology/protected species in the locality to accord with Policy 
EN14 (Control of Pollution) and EN5 (Wildlife Habitats and Features) of the East 
Devon Local Plan 2013-2031. The CEMP needs to be approved and 
implemented prior to the start of development operations as risks to the 
environment, amenity and ecology will be present from this point.) 

 
5. Construction Traffic Management Plan (CTMP)  
  
 No development shall take place until a detailed Construction Traffic 

Management Plan (CTMP) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The CTMP shall detail:  

  
 a) the timetable of the works;  
 b) daily hours of construction;  
 c) any road closure required (and a time table for this);  
 d) hours during which delivery and construction traffic will travel to and from the 

site, with such vehicular movements being restricted to between 8:00am and 
6:00pm Mondays to Fridays Inc.; 9.00am to 1.00pm Saturdays, and no such 
vehicular movements taking place on Sundays and Bank/Public Holidays unless 
agreed in writing by the Local planning Authority in advance;  

 e) the number and sizes of vehicles visiting the site in connection with the 
development and the frequency of their visits;  

 f) the compound/location where all building materials, finished or unfinished 
products, parts, crates, packing materials and waste will be stored during the 
demolition and construction phases;  

 g) areas on-site where delivery vehicles and construction traffic will load or unload 
building materials, finished or unfinished products, parts, crates, packing 
materials and waste with confirmation that no construction traffic or delivery 
vehicles will park on the County highway for loading or unloading purposes, 
unless prior written agreement has been given by the Local Planning Authority;  

 h) hours during which no construction traffic will be present at the site;  
 i) the means of enclosure of the site during construction works; and  
 j) details of proposals to promote car sharing amongst construction staff in order 

to limit construction staff vehicles parking off-site  
 k) details of wheel washing facilities and obligations  
 l) The proposed route of all construction traffic exceeding 7.5 tonnes.  
 m) Details of the amount and location of construction worker parking.  

page 63



 

23/1258/MOUT  

 n) Photographic evidence of the condition of adjacent public highway prior to 
commencement of any work;  

  
 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details 

and any subsequent amendments as shall be agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority.  

  
 (Reason - A pre-commencement condition is required to ensure that the details 

are agreed before the start of works to ensure that adequate measures are put 
in place to manage construction traffic during the development in accordance 
with Policy D1 (Design and Local Distinctiveness) and E14 (Control of Pollution 
in New Development) of the adopted East Devon Local Plan.) 

 
6. Prior to the commencement of any works on site (including demolition and site 

clearance or tree works), a full tree survey based on BS5837:2012, including a 
Tree Constraints Plan, Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural Method Statement 
for the protection of retained trees, hedges and shrubs growing on or adjacent to 
the site, [including trees which are the subject of a Tree Preservation Order 
currently in force], shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. No development or other operations shall take place except 
in complete accordance with the approved protection scheme. 

  
 The TPP and AMS shall adhere to the principles embodied in BS 5837:2012 and 

shall indicate exactly how and when the trees will be protected during the 
development process. Provision shall be made for the supervision of the tree 
protection by a suitably qualified and experienced arboriculturalist and details 
shall be included within the AMS. The AMS shall provide for the keeping of a 
monitoring log to record site visits and inspections along with: the reasons for 
such visits; the findings of the inspection and any necessary actions; all variations 
or departures from the approved details and any resultant remedial action or 
mitigation measures. On completion of the development, the completed site 
monitoring log shall be signed off by the supervising arboriculturalist and 
submitted to the Planning Authority for approval and final discharge of the 
condition. 

  
 (Reason - A pre-commencement condition is required to ensure retention and 

protection of trees on the site during and after construction. The condition is 
required in the interests of amenity and to preserve and enhance the character 
and appearance of the area in accordance with Policies D1 - Design and Local 
Distinctiveness and D3 - Trees and Development Sites of the Adopted East 
Devon Local Plan 2013-2031.) 

 
7. No external lighting shall be installed until a Lighting Design including lux 

contours, based on the detailed site design, most recent guidelines (currently 
GN08/23 and DCC 2022), and the proposed lighting strategy has been submitted 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The design should 
clearly demonstrate where dark corridors (<0.5 lux) are provided without the 
attenuation of habitat features which long-terms management cannot be 
guaranteed. All lighting shall be installed in accordance with the specifications 
and locations set out in the design, and these shall be maintained thereafter in 

page 64



 

23/1258/MOUT  

accordance with the design. Under no circumstances should any other external 
lighting be installed without prior consent from the Local Planning Authority. 

  
 (Reason - To ensure that the development has no adverse effect on protected 

and notable species and provides ecological mitigation and enhancement 
measures in accordance with Strategy 47 (Nature Conservation and Geology) 
and Policy EN5 (Wildlife Habitats and Features) and EN14 (Control of Pollution) 
of the Adopted East Devon Local Plan 2013-2031.) 

 
8. A Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) for a minimum period of 

30 years shall be submitted to, and be approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority prior to the commencement of the development based on the submitted 
Phase 1 Habitat Survey & Up-dated Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (Sunflower 
International June 2023 and comments made from the District Ecologist. It should 
include the location and design of biodiversity features including bird boxes (at a 
ratio of 1 per unit), bat boxes, permeable fencing, and other features to be shown 
clearly on submitted plans. 

  
 The content of the LEMP shall also include the following: 
  
 a) Description and evaluation of features to be managed. 
 b) Ecological trends and constraints on site that might influence management. 
 c) Aims and objectives of management. 
 d) Appropriate management options for achieving aims and objectives. 
 e) Prescriptions for management actions. 
 f) Preparation of a work schedule (including an annual work plan capable of being 

rolled forward over a minimum 30-year period). 
 g) Details of the body or organization responsible for implementation of the plan. 
 h) Ongoing monitoring and remedial measures. 
  
 The LEMP shall also include details of the legal and funding mechanism(s) by 

which the long-term implementation of the plan will be secured by the developer 
with the management body(ies) responsible for its delivery. The plan shall also 
set out (where the results from monitoring show that conservation aims and 
objectives of the LEMP are not being met) how contingencies and/or remedial 
action will be identified, agreed and implemented so that the development still 
delivers the fully functioning biodiversity objectives of the originally approved 
scheme. The approved plan will be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details. 

  
 (Reason - This is pre-commencement to ensure that the development has no 

adverse effect on protected and notable species and provides ecological 
mitigation and enhancement measures in accordance with Strategy 47 (Nature 
Conservation and Geology) and Policy EN5 (Wildlife Habitats and Features) and 
EN14 (Control of Pollution) of the Adopted East Devon Local Plan 2013-2031.) 

 
   
10. The Reserved Matters application(s) for layout and landscaping pursuant to this 

permission shall include details of a scheme for the provision of surface water 

page 65



 

23/1258/MOUT  

management which shall have been approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to the commencement of development. The details shall include: 

  
 - A description of the surface water drainage systems operation; 
 - Details of the final drainage schemes including ground investigations and 

testing results, calculations and layout; 
 - Confirmation of the viability of, and secured arrangements for, discharging 

surface water to the watercourse, if a SuDS solution is demonstrably evidenced 
to be unviable as sole discharge method; 

 - A construction Surface Water Management Plan; 
 - A Construction Quality Control Plan; 
 - Confirmation of details pertaining to the intended maintenance/adoption 

arrangements of the final drainage scheme, including responsibilities for the 
drainage systems and overland flow routes. The plan must include a drawing 
which clearly delineates the management responsibility for each drainage 
element and schedule of maintenance; and 

 - A timetable of construction. 
  
 The developments shall be implemented in accordance with the approved 

details. 
  
 (Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding and minimise the risk of 

pollution of surface and ground waters by ensuring the provision of a satisfactory 
means of surface water control and disposal, and in accordance with the aims 
and intentions of national (PPG: 7-056-20220825), county (Sustainable Drainage 
System - Guidance for Devon, Paragraph 6.3) and local policy (Strategy 3 & 
EN22). This needs to be a pre-commencement condition to adequately manage 
flood risk.) 

 
11. No development approved by this, or subsequent Reserved Matters pursuant to 

this, permission shall be commenced until details of a scheme for the provision 
of foul water management has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The details shall include: 

  
 - A description of the foul water drainage systems operation; 
 - Confirmation from South West Water Ltd that they will accept the flows from the 

development into their network; 
 - Details of the final drainage scheme including estimated volume of waste water 

from the development at full occupation; 
 - A Construction Quality Control Plan; 
 - A timetable of construction; 
  
 The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details. 
  
 (Reason: This is a pre-commencement reason to minimise the risk of pollution 

by ensuring the provision of a satisfactory means of foul water disposal and in 
accordance with policy EN19 of the East Devon Local Plan.) 

 
12. No development shall take place until details of the construction of the access, 

the internal roads, turning and parking areas have been submitted to and 

page 66



 

23/1258/MOUT  

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Prior to the start of any other 
development on the site, the first 5 metres of the access road, measured from 
the nearside edge of the carriageway, shall be constructed and surfaced in 
accordance with the approved details, and any other access to the site shall be 
permanently closed. 

 
(Reason - A pre-commencement condition is required to ensure that the road 
works are planned and provided  in good time in the interests of highway safety 
for construction and other vehicles and to ensure that mud and loose material is 
not deposited on the highway in accordance with the requirements of Policy TC7 
- Adequacy of Road Network and Site Access of the Adopted East Devon Local 
Plan 2013-2031.) 

 
13. No development shall commence until a Biodiversity Management Plan to ensure 

that there is a quantifiable net gain in biodiversity of at least 10% within a 30-year 
period as a result of the development has been submitted to, and approved in 
writing by, the Local Planning Authority.  

 
The net biodiversity impact of the development shall be measured in accordance 
with the DEFRA biodiversity metric as applied in the area in which the site is 
situated at the relevant time, and the Biodiversity Management Plan shall include:  

 
1. Proposals for on-site biodiversity net gain (full details of which will be provided 

in relation to each phase of development (where applicable) and/or for off-site 
offsetting); 

2. A management and monitoring plan for any on-site and off-site biodiversity 
net gain, including 30-year objectives, management responsibilities, 
maintenance schedules and a methodology to ensure the submission of 
monitoring reports in years 2, 5, 10, 15, 20, 25 and 30 from commencement 
of development, demonstrating how the biodiversity net gain is progressing 
towards achieving its objectives, evidence of arrangements and any rectifying 
measures needed;  

3. A methodology for the identification of any site(s) to be used for offsetting 
measures and the identification of any such offsetting site(s); and/or 

4. Details of any payments for offsetting measures including the biodiversity unit 
cost and the agreed payment mechanism.  

 
The development shall be implemented in full accordance with the requirements 
of the approved Biodiversity Management Plan and shall be retained as such 
thereafter. 

   
 (Reason: This is prior to development commencing to ensure that the 

development has no adverse effect on protected and notable species and 
provides ecological mitigation and enhancement measures in accordance with 
Strategy 47 (Nature Conservation and Geology) and Policy EN5 (Wildlife 
Habitats and Features) and EN14 (Control of Pollution) of the Adopted East 
Devon Local Plan 2013-2031.) 

 
14. No dwelling hereby approved shall be occupied until written confirmation is 

received by the Local Planning Authority from South West Water that 

page 67



 

23/1258/MOUT  

improvement works at Woodbury Waste Water Treatment Works to ensure there 
is capacity to deal with foul sewage from this development  have been completed, 
unless alternative means of adequately dealing with foul drainage have been 
previously agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and implemented in 
full.  

 
 (Reason: To enable required improvement works to take place at Woodbury 

Waste Water Treatment Works to suitably receive and accommodate the 
increase in flows expected as a result of the proposed development in 
accordance with Policy EN19 (Adequacy of Foul Sewers and Adequacy of 
Sewage Treatment Systems) of the East Devon Local Plan. Allowing flows above 
acceptable volumes from the occupation of dwellings prior to these works being 
completed would have unacceptable impact on existing infrastructure, with 
unacceptable risk of potential pollution events occurring.)  

 
15. The development shall not be occupied until the Local Planning Authority has 

been provided with evidence, including photographs and completed toolbox talk 
sheets, that all ecological mitigation and enhancement features, including bat 
boxes, bird boxes (at least 1 per dwelling), and other features that relate to that 
part of the development to be occupied have been installed/constructed, and 
compliance with any protected species licences, and ecological method 
statements detailed with the submitted LEMP and CEcoMP. 

  
 (Reason - To ensure that the development has no adverse effect on protected 

and notable species and provides ecological mitigation and enhancement 
measures in accordance with Strategy 47 (Nature Conservation and Geology) 
and Policy EN5 (Wildlife Habitats and Features) and EN14 (Control of Pollution) 
of the Adopted East Devon Local Plan 2013-2031.) 

 
16. Should any contamination of soil and/or ground or surface water be discovered 

during excavation of the site or the development, the Local Planning Authority 
shall be contacted immediately. Site activities in the area affected shall be 
temporarily suspended until such time as a method and procedure for addressing 
the contamination is agreed upon in writing with the Local Planning Authority 
and/or other regulating bodies. 

   
 (Reason: To ensure that any contamination existing and exposed during the 

development is identified and remediated in accordance with Policy EN16 
(Contaminated Land) of the East Devon Local Plan 2013 to 2031 and with the 
National Planning Policy Framework.) 

 
17. The landscaping works approved as part of the reserved matters application(s) 

or as part of an advance planting scheme shall be undertaken in accordance with 
the approved scheme within either, an agreed timetable or within 12 months of 
completion of development or during the next planting season following 
completion whichever is the sooner.  

  
 If within a period of 10 years from the date planted any tree, plant, grass area or 

shrub dies, is removed or becomes seriously damaged or diseased it shall be 

page 68



 

23/1258/MOUT  

replaced in the next planting season with other(s) of similar size and species by 
the developer.  

  
 If within a period of 10 years of the commencement of development, any part of 

any retained/translocated hedgerow dies or becomes diseased, it shall be 
replaced by the developer before the end of the next available planting season 
in accordance with details to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 

  
 (Reason - In the interests of enhancing and preserving the amenity of the area in 

accordance with Policy D2 (Landscape Requirements) of the East Devon Local 
Plan.) 

 
18. All reserved matters applications shall be accompanied by Waste Audit 

Statement to ensure that waste generated by the development during both its 
construction and operational phases is managed in accordance with the waste 
hierarchy, with a clear focus on waste prevention in the first instance. 

   
 Development must be undertaken in accordance with the agreed details. 
   
 (Reason: To ensure waste generated by the construction and operational phases 

is in accordance with Policy W4 of the Devon Waste Plan which requires major 
development proposals to be accompanied by a Waste Audit Statement.) 

 
19. The reserved matters application for layout shall include a detailed noise 

assessment prepared in accordance with BS4142:2014+A1:2019 to assess the 
noise impacts of the commercial development adjacent to the site on the amenity 
of future occupiers of the development hereby approved.  If mitigation measures 
are identified as being necessary the details of the mitigation shall be included 
within the reserved matters application to be agreed by the local planning 
authority and all mitigation measures shall be implemented in full prior to the 
occupation of the dwellings to which they relate.  The mitigation measures shall 
be retained and maintained for the lifetime of the development. 

 
        (Reason:  In the interest of residential amenity in accordance with Policy D1 of 

the East Devon Local Plan. 
 
NOTE FOR APPLICANT 
 
Informative: 
In accordance with the requirements of Article 35 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 in determining this 
application, East Devon District Council has worked positively with the applicant to 
ensure that all relevant planning concerns have been appropriately resolved. 
 
 
Informative:  
 
The Local Planning Authority (LPA) has a statutory duty under Regulation 3(4) to have 
regard to the requirements of the Habitats Directive in the exercise of its functions 

page 69



 

23/1258/MOUT  

when dealing with cases where a European Protected Species (EPS) may be affected. 
The species protection provisions of the Habitats Directive, as implemented by the 
Habitats Regulations, contain three 'derogation tests' which must be applied by Natural 
England when deciding whether to grant a licence to a person carrying out an activity 
which would otherwise lead to an offence under provisions protecting species in the 
Habitats Regulations. Having regard to the three tests, the LPA considers that the 
three tests would not be met and that Natural England are unlikely to grant an EPS 
licence.  
 
Informative - Biodiversity Net Gain: 
 
Paragraph 13 of Schedule 7A to the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 means that 
this planning permission is deemed to have been granted subject to ''the biodiversity 
gain condition" (BG condition).  
 
The Local Planning Authority cannot add this condition directly to this notice as the 
condition has already been applied by law.  This informative is to explain how the 
biodiversity condition applies to your development. 
 
The BG conditions states that development may not begin unless: 
(a) a Biodiversity Gain Plan (BG plan) has been submitted to the planning authority, 

and 
(b) the planning authority has approved the BG plan.  
 
In this case the planning authority you must submit the BG Plan to is East Devon 

District Council. 
 
There are some exemptions and transitional arrangements which mean that the 
biodiversity gain condition does not always apply. These are listed below. 
 
Based on the information available this permission is considered to be one which will 
not require the approval of a biodiversity gain plan before development is begun 
because one or more of the statutory exemptions or transitional arrangements in the 
list below is/are considered to apply. 
 
In this case exemption 1 from the list below are considered to apply:  
 
Statutory exemptions and transitional arrangements in respect of the biodiversity gain 
condition. 
 
1. The application for planning permission was made before 12 February 2024. 
 
2. The planning permission relates to development to which section 73A of the Town 

and Country Planning Act 1990 (planning permission for development already 
carried out) applies.  

 
3. The planning permission was granted on an application made under section 73 of 

the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and  
(i)  the original planning permission to which the section 73 planning permission relates 

was granted before 12 February 2024; or 

page 70



 

23/1258/MOUT  

(ii) the application for the original planning permission to which the section 73 planning 
permission relates was made before 12 February 2024. 

 
4. The permission which has been granted is for development which is exempt being:  
4.1  Development which is not 'major development' (within the meaning of article 2(1) 

of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) 
(England) Order 2015) where: 

(i) the application for planning permission was made before 2 April 2024;   
(ii) planning permission is granted which has effect before 2 April 2024; or  
(iii) planning permission is granted on an application made under section 73 of the 

Town and Country Planning Act 1990 where the original permission to which the 
section 73 permission relates* was exempt by virtue of (i) or (ii). 

 
4.2  Development below the de minimis threshold, meaning development which: 
(i) does not impact an onsite priority habitat (a habitat specified in a list published 

under section 41 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006); 
and 

(ii) impacts less than 25 square metres of onsite habitat that has biodiversity value 
greater than zero and less than 5 metres in length of onsite linear habitat (as 
defined in the statutory metric). 

 
4.3 Development which is subject of a householder application within the meaning of 

article 2(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management 
Procedure) (England) Order 2015. A "householder application" means an 
application for planning permission for development for an existing 
dwellinghouse, or development within the curtilage of such a dwellinghouse for 
any purpose incidental to the enjoyment of the dwellinghouse which is not an 
application for change of use or an application to change the number of dwellings 
in a building. 

 
4.4 Development of a biodiversity gain site, meaning development which is 

undertaken solely or mainly for the purpose of fulfilling, in whole or in part, the 
Biodiversity Gain Planning condition which applies in relation to another 
development, (no account is to be taken of any facility for the public to access or 
to use the site for educational or recreational purposes, if that access or use is 
permitted without the payment of a fee). 

 
4.5 Self and Custom Build Development, meaning development which: 

(i)    consists of no more than 9 dwellings; 
(ii)    is carried out on a site which has an area no larger than 0.5 hectares; and 
(iii) consists exclusively of dwellings which are self-build or custom housebuilding 

(as defined in section 1(A1) of the Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Act 
2015). 

 
Irreplaceable habitat 
If the onsite habitat includes irreplaceable habitat (within the meaning of the 
Biodiversity Gain Requirements (Irreplaceable Habitat) Regulations 2024) there are 
additional requirements for the content and approval of Biodiversity Gain Plans.  
The Biodiversity Gain Plan must include, in addition to information about steps taken 
or to be taken to minimise any adverse effect of the development on the habitat, 

page 71



 

23/1258/MOUT  

information on arrangements for compensation for any impact the development has 
on the biodiversity of the irreplaceable habitat. 
 
The planning authority can only approve a Biodiversity Gain Plan if satisfied that the 
adverse effect of the development on the biodiversity of the irreplaceable habitat is 
minimised and appropriate arrangements have been made for the purpose of 
compensating for any impact which do not include the use of biodiversity credits. 
 
Informative - Flood Risk Activity Permit: 
 
We take this opportunity to inform all parties that the watercourse at this location is 
designated as a 'Main' river. as a such the Environmental Permitting (England and 
Wales) Regulations 2016 require a permit to be obtained for any activities which will 
take place: 
 
- on or within 8 metres of a main river (16 metres if tidal) 
- on or within 8 metres of a flood defence structure or culverted main river (16 metres 

if tidal) 
- on or within 16 metres of a sea defence 
- involving quarrying or excavation within 16 metres of any main river, flood defence 

(including a remote defence) or culvert 
- in the floodplain of a main river if the activity could affect flood flow or storage and 

potential impacts are not controlled by a planning permission 
 
 
 
Plans relating to this application: 
  
010-B: 
junction/forward 
visibility splay 

Other Plans 05.07.23 

  
1507 Transport Statement 05.07.23 

  
GBH-010-P rev H Proposed Site Plan 09.04.24 

  
01-PHL-1001D: 
calming strategy 

Additional Information 14.11.23 

  
01-PHL-101C: 
preliminary 
access 
arrangements 

Additional Information 14.11.23 

  
01-PH:-1002B: 
calming strategy 

Additional Information 14.11.23 

  
GBHL-005 A Location Plan 07.11.23 

 
 

page 72



 

23/1258/MOUT  

 
List of Background Papers  
Application file, consultations and policy documents referred to in the report. 
 
 
 
Statement on Human Rights and Equality Issues 
 
Human Rights Act:  
The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights Act 
1998, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself. This 
Act gives further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on Human 
Rights. In arriving at this recommendation, due regard has been given to the 
applicant's reasonable development rights and expectations which have been 
balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as expressed through 
third party interests / the Development Plan and Central Government Guidance.  
 
Equality Act: 
In arriving at this recommendation, due regard has been given to the provisions of the 
Equality Act 2010, particularly the Public Sector Equality Duty and Section 149. The 
Equality Act 2010 requires public bodies to have due regard to the need to eliminate 
discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations between 
different people when carrying out their activities. Protected characteristics are age, 
disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race/ethnicity, religion or 
belief (or lack of), sex and sexual orientation. 
 
 
 

page 73



23/1258/MOUT - APPENDIX 1  

Technical Consultation Responses in Full 

Devon County Archaeologist 

25/04/24 - The proposed development site lies in an area of known 

archaeological potential just outside the historic core of the historic settlement 

and in an area where Roman artefacts have been found in the surrounding 

landscape.  In addition, the geophysical survey of the site has identified linear 

features that may be indicative of early, either prehistoric or Romano-British, 

activity on the site in the form of the earlier field boundaries or enclosures, as 

well as the possible presence of pit features in the eastern part of the site.  

Groundworks for the construction of the proposed development have the 

potential to expose and destroy archaeological and artefactual deposits 

associated with these potential heritage assets.  As such, I would concur with 

para 7.5.1 of the Heritage Statement submitted in support of this planning 

application that the impact of the proposed development upon the archaeological 

resource could be mitigated by a programme of archaeological work that will 

investigate, record and analyse the archaeological evidence that will otherwise 

be destroyed by the proposed development. 

The Historic Environment Team therefore recommends that this application 

should be supported by the submission of a Written Scheme of Investigation 

(WSI) setting out a programme of archaeological work to be undertaken in 

mitigation for the loss of heritage assets with archaeological interest.  The WSI 

should be based on national standards and guidance and be approved by the 

Historic Environment Team. 

If a Written Scheme of Investigation is not submitted prior to determination the 

Historic Environment Team would advise, for the above reasons and in 

accordance with paragraph 211 of the National Planning Policy Framework 

(2023) and Policy EN6 (Nationally and Locally Important Archaeological Sites) of 

the East Devon Local Plan, that any consent your Authority may be minded to 

issue should carry the condition as worded below, based on model Condition 55 

as set out in Appendix A of Circular 11/95, whereby: 

'No development shall take place until the developer has secured the 

implementation of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a 

written scheme of investigation (WSI) which has been submitted to and approved 

in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out 

at all times in accordance with the approved scheme as agreed in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority.' 

Reason 

'To ensure, in accordance with Policy EN6 (Nationally and Locally Important 

Archaeological Sites) of the East Devon Local Plan and paragraph 211 of the 

National Planning Policy Framework (2023), that an appropriate record is made 

of archaeological evidence that may be affected by the development.' 

page 74



This pre-commencement condition is required to ensure that the archaeological 

works are agreed and implemented prior to any disturbance of archaeological 

deposits by the commencement of preparatory and/or construction works. 

In addition, the Historic Environment Team would advise that the following 

condition is applied to ensure that the required post-excavation works are 

undertaken and completed to an agreed timeframe: 

'The development shall not be occupied until the post investigation assessment 

has been completed in accordance with the approved Written Scheme of 

Investigation. The provision made for analysis, publication and dissemination of 

results, and archive deposition, shall be confirmed in writing to, and approved by, 

the Local Planning Authority.' 

Reason 

'To comply with Paragraph 211 of the NPPF (2023), which requires the developer 

to record and advance understanding of the significance of heritage assets, and 

to ensure that the information gathered becomes publicly accessible.' 

I would envisage a suitable programme of work as taking the form of a staged 

programme of archaeological works, commencing with the excavation of a series 

of evaluative trenches to determine the presence and significance of any heritage 

assets with archaeological interest that will be affected by the development.  

Based on the results of this initial stage of works the requirement and scope of 

any further archaeological mitigation can be determined and implemented either 

in advance of or during construction works.  This archaeological mitigation work 

may take the form of full area excavation in advance of groundworks or the 

monitoring and recording of groundworks associated with the construction of the 

proposed development to allow for the identification, investigation and recording 

of any exposed archaeological or artefactual deposits.  The results of the 

fieldwork and any post-excavation analysis undertaken would need to be 

presented in an appropriately detailed and illustrated report, and the finds and 

archive deposited in accordance with relevant national and local guidelines. 

I will be happy to discuss this further with you, the applicant or their agent.  The 

Historic Environment Team can also provide the applicant with advice on the 

scope of the works required, as well as contact details for archaeological 

contractors who would be able to undertake this work. Provision of detailed 

advice to non-householder developers may incur a charge. For further 

information on the historic environment and planning, and our charging schedule 

please refer the applicant to: 

https://new.devon.gov.uk/historicenvironment/development-management/. 

Devon County Archaeologist 

27/02/24 - ARCH/DM/ED/38658c 

I refer to the above application and your recent re-consultation dated 21st 

February 2024.  The Historic Environment Team has no additional comments to 

page 75



those already made (other than to revise the original response in the light of 

revisions to the NPPF), namely: 

The proposed development site lies in an area of known archaeological potential 

just outside the historic core of the historic settlement and in an area where 

Roman artefacts have been found in the surrounding landscape.  In addition, the 

geophysical survey of the site has identified linear features that may be indicative 

of early, either prehistoric or Romano-British, activity on the site in the form of 

the earlier field boundaries or enclosures, as well as the possible presence of pit 

features in the eastern part of the site.  Groundworks for the construction of the 

proposed development have the potential to expose and destroy archaeological 

and artefactual deposits associated with these potential heritage assets.  As 

such, I would concur with para 7.5.1 of the Heritage Statement submitted in 

support of this planning application that the impact of the proposed development 

upon the archaeological resource could be mitigated by a programme of 

archaeological work that will investigate, record and analyse the archaeological 

evidence that will otherwise be destroyed by the proposed development. 

The Historic Environment Team therefore recommends that this application 

should be supported by the submission of a Written Scheme of Investigation 

(WSI) setting out a programme of archaeological work to be undertaken in 

mitigation for the loss of heritage assets with archaeological interest.  The WSI 

should be based on national standards and guidance and be approved by the 

Historic Environment Team. 

If a Written Scheme of Investigation is not submitted prior to determination the 

Historic Environment Team would advise, for the above reasons and in 

accordance with paragraph 211 of the National Planning Policy Framework 

(2023) and Policy EN6 (Nationally and Locally Important Archaeological Sites) of 

the East Devon Local Plan, that any consent your Authority may be minded to 

issue should carry the condition as worded below, based on model Condition 55 

as set out in Appendix A of Circular 11/95, whereby: 

'No development shall take place until the developer has secured the 

implementation of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a 

written scheme of investigation (WSI) which has been submitted to and approved 

in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out 

at all times in accordance with the approved scheme as agreed in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority.' 

Reason 

'To ensure, in accordance with Policy EN6 (Nationally and Locally Important 

Archaeological Sites) of the East Devon Local Plan and paragraph 211 of the 

National Planning Policy Framework (2023), that an appropriate record is made 

of archaeological evidence that may be affected by the development.' 

This pre-commencement condition is required to ensure that the archaeological 

works are agreed and implemented prior to any disturbance of archaeological 

deposits by the commencement of preparatory and/or construction works. 

page 76



In addition, the Historic Environment Team would advise that the following 

condition is applied to ensure that the required post-excavation works are 

undertaken and completed to an agreed timeframe: 

'The development shall not be occupied until the post investigation assessment 

has been completed in accordance with the approved Written Scheme of 

Investigation. The provision made for analysis, publication and dissemination of 

results, and archive deposition, shall be confirmed in writing to, and approved by, 

the Local Planning Authority.' 

Reason 

'To comply with Paragraph 211 of the NPPF, which requires the developer to 

record and advance understanding of the significance of heritage assets, and to 

ensure that the information gathered becomes publicly accessible.' 

I would envisage a suitable programme of work as taking the form of a staged 

programme of archaeological works, commencing with the excavation of a series 

of evaluative trenches to determine the presence and significance of any heritage 

assets with archaeological interest that will be affected by the development.  

Based on the results of this initial stage of works the requirement and scope of 

any further archaeological mitigation can be determined and implemented either 

in advance of or during construction works.  This archaeological mitigation work 

may take the form of full area excavation in advance of groundworks or the 

monitoring and recording of groundworks associated with the construction of the 

proposed development to allow for the identification, investigation and recording 

of any exposed archaeological or artefactual deposits.  The results of the 

fieldwork and any post-excavation analysis undertaken would need to be 

presented in an appropriately detailed and illustrated report, and the finds and 

archive deposited in accordance with relevant national and local guidelines. 

I will be happy to discuss this further with you, the applicant or their agent.  The 

Historic Environment Team can also provide the applicant with advice of the 

scope of the works required, as well as contact details for archaeological 

contractors who would be able to undertake this work. Provision of detailed 

advice to non-householder developers may incur a charge. For further 

information on the historic environment and planning, and our charging schedule 

please refer the applicant to:  

https://new.devon.gov.uk/historicenvironment/development-management/. 

Devon County Archaeologist 

16/11/23 - ARCH/DM/ED/38658b 

I refer to the above application and your recent re-consultation.  The Historic 

Environment Team has no additional comments to those already made, namely: 

The proposed development site lies in an area of known archaeological potential 

just outside the historic core of the historic settlement and in an area where 

Roman artefacts have been found in the surrounding landscape.  In addition, the 

geophysical survey of the site has identified linear features that may be indicative 

page 77

https://new.devon.gov.uk/historicenvironment/development-management/


of early, either prehistoric or Romano-British, activity on the site in the form of 

the earlier field boundaries or enclosures, as well as the possible presence of pit 

features in the eastern part of the site.  Groundworks for the construction of the 

proposed development have the potential to expose and destroy archaeological 

and artefactual deposits associated with these potential heritage assets.  As 

such, I would concur with para 7.5.1 of the Heritage Statement submitted in 

support of this planning application that the impact of the proposed development 

upon the archaeological resource could be mitigated by a programme of 

archaeological work that will investigate, record and analyse the archaeological 

evidence that will otherwise be destroyed by the proposed development. 

The Historic Environment Team therefore recommends that this application 

should be supported by the submission of a Written Scheme of Investigation 

(WSI) setting out a programme of archaeological work to be undertaken in 

mitigation for the loss of heritage assets with archaeological interest.  The WSI 

should be based on national standards and guidance and be approved by the 

Historic Environment Team. 

If a Written Scheme of Investigation is not submitted prior to determination the 

Historic Environment Team would advise, for the above reasons and in 

accordance with paragraph 205 of the National Planning Policy Framework 

(2021) and Policy EN6 (Nationally and Locally Important Archaeological Sites) of 

the East Devon Local Plan, that any consent your Authority may be minded to 

issue should carry the condition as worded below, based on model Condition 55 

as set out in Appendix A of Circular 11/95, whereby: 

'No development shall take place until the developer has secured the 

implementation of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a 

written scheme of investigation (WSI) which has been submitted to and approved 

in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out 

at all times in accordance with the approved scheme as agreed in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority.' 

Reason 

'To ensure, in accordance with Policy EN6 (Nationally and Locally Important 

Archaeological Sites) of the East Devon Local Plan and paragraph 205 of the 

National Planning Policy Framework (2021), that an appropriate record is made 

of archaeological evidence that may be affected by the development.' 

This pre-commencement condition is required to ensure that the archaeological 

works are agreed and implemented prior to any disturbance of archaeological 

deposits by the commencement of preparatory and/or construction works. 

In addition, the Historic Environment Team would advise that the following 

condition is applied to ensure that the required post-excavation works are 

undertaken and completed to an agreed timeframe: 

'The development shall not be occupied until the post investigation assessment 

has been completed in accordance with the approved Written Scheme of 

page 78



Investigation. The provision made for analysis, publication and dissemination of 

results, and archive deposition, shall be confirmed in writing to, and approved by, 

the Local Planning Authority.' 

Reason 

'To comply with Paragraph 205 of the NPPF, which requires the developer to 

record and advance understanding of the significance of heritage assets, and to 

ensure that the information gathered becomes publicly accessible.' 

I would envisage a suitable programme of work as taking the form of a staged 

programme of archaeological works, commencing with the excavation of a series 

of evaluative trenches to determine the presence and significance of any heritage 

assets with archaeological interest that will be affected by the development.  

Based on the results of this initial stage of works the requirement and scope of 

any further archaeological mitigation can be determined and implemented either 

in advance of or during construction works.  This archaeological mitigation work 

may take the form of full area excavation in advance of groundworks or the 

monitoring and recording of groundworks associated with the construction of the 

proposed development to allow for the identification, investigation and recording 

of any exposed archaeological or artefactual deposits.  The results of the 

fieldwork and any post-excavation analysis undertaken would need to be 

presented in an appropriately detailed and illustrated report, and the finds and 

archive deposited in accordance with relevant national and local guidelines. 

I will be happy to discuss this further with you, the applicant or their agent.  The 

Historic Environment Team can also provide the applicant with advice of the 

scope of the works required, as well as contact details for archaeological 

contractors who would be able to undertake this work. Provision of detailed 

advice to non-householder developers may incur a charge. For further 

information on the historic environment and planning, and our charging schedule 

please refer the applicant to: 

https://new.devon.gov.uk/historicenvironment/development-management/.  

Devon County Archaeologist 

13/07/23 - Application No. 23/1258/MOUT 

Land To The Rear Of Orchard House, Globe Hill, Woodbury, EX5 1JP - Outline 

application (with details of access to be considered and all other matters 

reserved) for the residential development of up to 31 no. dwellings (8 affordable); 

vehicular and pedestrian access from Globe Hill, pedestrian access only from 

public right of way; demolition of existing wooden structure to be replaced with 

Parish Council building; community parking area; public open space, 

landscaping, wildflower meadow and orchard and other associated 

infrastructure.: Historic Environment 

My ref: ARCH/DM/ED/38658a 

I refer to the above application and your recent consultation.  The proposed 

development site lies in an area of known archaeological potential just outside 

page 79



the historic core of the historic settlement and in an area where Roman artefacts 

have been found in the surrounding landscape.  In addition, the geophysical 

survey of the site has identified linear features that may be indicative of early, 

either prehistoric or Romano-British, activity on the site in the form of the earlier 

field boundaries or enclosures, as well as the possible presence of pit features 

in the eastern part of the site.  Groundworks for the construction of the proposed 

development have the potential to expose and destroy archaeological and 

artefactual deposits associated with these potential heritage assets.  As such, I 

would concur with para 7.5.1 of the Heritage Statement submitted in support of 

this planning application that the impact of the proposed development upon the 

archaeological resource could be mitigated by a programme of archaeological 

work that will investigate, record and analyse the archaeological evidence that 

will otherwise be destroyed by the proposed development. 

The Historic Environment Team therefore recommends that this application 

should be supported by the submission of a Written Scheme of Investigation 

(WSI) setting out a programme of archaeological work to be undertaken in 

mitigation for the loss of heritage assets with archaeological interest.  The WSI 

should be based on national standards and guidance and be approved by the 

Historic Environment Team. 

If a Written Scheme of Investigation is not submitted prior to determination the 

Historic Environment Team would advise, for the above reasons and in 

accordance with paragraph 205 of the National Planning Policy Framework 

(2021) and Policy EN6 (Nationally and Locally Important Archaeological Sites) of 

the East Devon Local Plan, that any consent your Authority may be minded to 

issue should carry the condition as worded below, based on model Condition 55 

as set out in Appendix A of Circular 11/95, whereby: 

'No development shall take place until the developer has secured the 

implementation of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a 

written scheme of investigation (WSI) which has been submitted to and approved 

in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out 

at all times in accordance with the approved scheme as agreed in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority.' 

Reason 

'To ensure, in accordance with Policy EN6 (Nationally and Locally Important 

Archaeological Sites) of the East Devon Local Plan and paragraph 205 of the 

National Planning Policy Framework (2021), that an appropriate record is made 

of archaeological evidence that may be affected by the development.' 

This pre-commencement condition is required to ensure that the archaeological 

works are agreed and implemented prior to any disturbance of archaeological 

deposits by the commencement of preparatory and/or construction works. 

In addition, the Historic Environment Team would advise that the following 

condition is applied to ensure that the required post-excavation works are 

undertaken and completed to an agreed timeframe: 

page 80



'The development shall not be occupied until the post investigation assessment 

has been completed in accordance with the approved Written Scheme of 

Investigation. The provision made for analysis, publication and dissemination of 

results, and archive deposition, shall be confirmed in writing to, and approved by, 

the Local Planning Authority.' 

Reason 

'To comply with Paragraph 205 of the NPPF, which requires the developer to 

record and advance understanding of the significance of heritage assets, and to 

ensure that the information gathered becomes publicly accessible.' 

I would envisage a suitable programme of work as taking the form of a staged 

programme of archaeological works, commencing with the excavation of a series 

of evaluative trenches to determine the presence and significance of any heritage 

assets with archaeological interest that will be affected by the development.  

Based on the results of this initial stage of works the requirement and scope of 

any further archaeological mitigation can be determined and implemented either 

in advance of or during construction works.  This archaeological mitigation work 

may take the form of full area excavation in advance of groundworks or the 

monitoring and recording of groundworks associated with the construction of the 

proposed development to allow for the identification, investigation and recording 

of any exposed archaeological or artefactual deposits.  The results of the 

fieldwork and any post-excavation analysis undertaken would need to be 

presented in an appropriately detailed and illustrated report, and the finds and 

archive deposited in accordance with relevant national and local guidelines. 

I will be happy to discuss this further with you, the applicant or their agent.  The 

Historic Environment Team can also provide the applicant with advice of the 

scope of the works required, as well as contact details for archaeological 

contractors who would be able to undertake this work. Provision of detailed 

advice to non-householder developers may incur a charge. For further 

information on the historic environment and planning, and our charging schedule 

please refer the applicant to: 

https://new.devon.gov.uk/historicenvironment/development-management/. 

Stephen Reed 

Senior Historic Environment Officer 

 

Conservation 

03/05/24 - On the basis of the information provided through the amendments 

proposed and in line with the National Planning Policy Framework Section 16 

para. 212. It is considered that the proposed development works, continue to fail 

to preserve the setting of Woodbury Conservation Area as a heritage asset and 

to a lesser extent result in less than substantial harm to its significance. 

page 81



There is a strong presumption against works that would have such harmful 

impacts through the workings of s.16 (2) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 

Conservation Areas) Act 1990. Paragraph 205 of the Framework explains that 

great weight should be given to the conservation of designated heritage assets. 

Paragraph 208 states that any less than substantial harm to a designated 

heritage asset should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal.  

Conservation 

23/11/23 - On the basis of the information provided through the amendments. 

Conservation has no additional comments to those already made on the 

07.09.2023. Case Officer to assess on planning merit. 

23.11.2023       SLG 

Conservation 

07/09/23 - CONSERVATION CONSULTATION FOR AN OUTLINE PLANNING 

APPLICATION AFFECTING THE SETTNG OF A CONSREVATION AREA.  

23/1258/MOUT 

Land to the Rear of Orchard House, Globe Hill, Woodbury, EX5 1JP 

Outline application (with details of access to be considered and all other matters 

reserved) for the residential development of up to 31 no. dwellings (8 affordable); 

vehicular and pedestrian access from Globe Hill, pedestrian access only from 

public right of way; demolition of existing wooden structure to be replaced with 

Parish Council building; community parking area; public open space, 

landscaping, wildflower meadow and orchard and other associated 

infrastructure. 

Significance - Setting of Woodbury Conservation Area 

The development site is proposed within an open agricultural site, located south 

west of the village on the periphery and adjoining Woodbury Conservation Area. 

In character this part of the settlement is more fragmented than the core and is 

experienced as a transition zone between the tight urban grain of the evolved 

historic core, the south and east of the village and the openness of the 

countryside beyond. The open views of the countryside to the west of the village 

that form the development site, as identified in the conservation area appraisal, 

are key as they provide the context in which the setting of the conservation area 

is experienced.  

The value of the undeveloped view toward the west and beyond the village is 

further appreciated when considered against the glimpsed wider views of the 

open countryside from within the built environment of the conservation area, 

which provides relief from the tight built form of the village, which includes 

boundary walls, fences and mature vegetation within gardens.  

page 82



Additionally, views on approaching the village along Globe Hill include 

development abutting the road that provides the impression of the main built up 

area of the village extends into this area, however as a result of its low density 

and vegetated verges, this part of the village has evolved to be of semi-rural 

character, which provides a marked transition on Globe Hill to the south of the 

development sites road frontage as it enters the core of the village and 

conservation area.  

There is a partially obstructed view of the development site from the intersection 

of Globe Hill and The Arch, the other important view is from the footpath to the 

south of the site and the views form the rear of the existing houses that front 

Globe Hill and Cobblers.   

In this respect the open character of the proposed development site allows for a 

mostly unobstructed view from the public and private domain,  to the east and 

south of the site, with partially obscured views from the north. Identified views 

that have evolved and are unique in this part of the village, providing the 

experience of a small community in a rural area, which makes a positive 

contribution to the character and appearance of the village itself that forms the 

historic and architectural interest of this part and the wider conservation area.  

Proposed works  

The works as proposed are for an outline application (with details of access to 

be considered and all other matters reserved) for the residential development of 

up to 31 no. dwellings (8 affordable); vehicular and pedestrian access from Globe 

Hill, pedestrian access only from public right of way; demolition of existing 

wooden structure to be replaced with Parish Council building; community parking 

area; public open space, landscaping, wildflower meadow and orchard and other 

associated infrastructure. 

The potential harm to the heritage asset (conservation area) and identified 

setting as a result of the proposed development works, has been balanced 

against paras. 202 and 206 of the NPPF21 and the New East Devon Local Plan 

(2013-2031), as discussed in the assessment of harm which forms part of this 

report. 

Assessment of harm 

In character and as discussed through the assessment of significance of the 

conservation area and its setting, Woodbury as a village represents a small 

community in a rural area, with open countryside surrounding the boundaries of 

the built form providing the rural context in which it is experienced. 

Whilst some development, in the form of a single dwelling, has been considered 

acceptable through planning in this part of the conservation area. The current 

application is for a more significant amount of development, which would result 

in the erosion of a principal outward view from within the conservation area and 

the increase in density of the urban grain in this part of the village. Both aspects 

would result in an adverse impact on the setting and the contribution this makes 

page 83



to the significance of the conservation area resulting in less than substantial harm 

without public heritage benefit. 

Turning to the indicative site layout submitted as part of the outline application 

the proposal, it is acknowledged this has been designed to ensure that 

continuous green corridor views from Globe Hill to the wider countryside are 

retained and framed through the retention of planning. However in terms of urban 

grain or the layout of buildings within the conservation area, which gives it, its 

unique character, there is a general pattern of historic development associated 

with ancient burgage plots. The value of Woodbury's built character being the 

catalyst for designating a conservation area where 'Development that follows 

suburban layouts or does not appear coherent with the urban grain of the 

conservation area should be strongly resisted.' 

In summary, the principal of development to the proposed scale would result in 

visual harm to the setting of the conservation area and how this is experienced, 

failing to preserve, enhance or better reveal the significance of the conservation 

area as a heritage asset resulting in less than substantial harm on a moderate 

level, with no historic public benefits. Fails to satisfy paras. 202 and 206 of the 

NPPF21 and the New East Devon Local Plan (2013-2031), as discussed in the 

assessment of harm which forms part of this report. 

Recommend refusal  

 

Housing Strategy/Enabling Officer - Cassandra Pressling 

23/02/24 - Percentage of Affordable Housing - Strategy 34 in the adopted East 

Devon Local Plan 2013 - 2031 requires 50% affordable housing.  This application 

is now offering 35% affordable which although not policy compliant is acceptable.  

East Devon District Council does not currently have a 5 year housing land supply 

and 35% affordable is a pragmatic solution in the current housing crisis.   

Tenure - Strategy 34 sets a target of 70% for rented accommodation (social or 

affordable rent) and 30% for affordable home ownership.  The applicant is now 

proposing 8 Social Rent units and 4 affordable home ownership units, which is 

policy compliant with Strategy 34.  

Location - I am concerned that the affordable housing is segregated from the rest 

of the homes in the top left hand corner of the site.   It is not well integrated or 

dispersed through the site.  The adopted Affordable Housing SPD states; 

"Affordable Housing should generally be provided in clusters of no more than 10 

dwellings."  

Housing Mix - the applicant is proposing 4 x 1 bed, 2 person flats, 3 x 2 bed, 3 

person houses and 1 x 3 bed, 5 person house as Social Rent tenure. The 

affordable home ownership unit sizes are 1 x 2 bed house and 3 x 3 bedroom 

houses.  All affordable units should meet M4(2) standards.   

page 84



Parking - There needs to be suitable provision for visitor parking to avoid overflow 

parking in neighbouring streets. 

Housing Strategy/Enabling Officer - Cassandra Pressling 

09/11/23 - No I do not support 25% on site and 9% as a financial contribution.  

They need to provide 35% on site or provide a financial viability assessment to 

prove why they cannot, the cost of reviewing this will be met by the applicant. 

09/11/23 - No further comments to add on these amended plans.   

Housing Strategy/Enabling Officer - Cassandra Pressling 

26/07/23 - Objection 

Percentage of Affordable Housing - under current policy Strategy 34, a 

requirement for 50% affordable housing would be required.  However, given the 

lack of a 5 year land supply and out of date policies, a pragmatic approach is 

being taken with sites adjacent to an existing built up area boundary and the level 

of affordable housing to be sought. The applicant is proposing to provide 25% 

affordable housing which equates to 8 units and this is acceptable.  

Tenure - Strategy 34 sets a target of 70% for rented accommodation (social or 

affordable rent) and 30% for affordable home ownership.  The applicant is 

proposing 4 Social Rent units and 4 Shared Equity units, which is not policy 

compliant with Strategy 34.  They would need to change this to 6 units for Social 

Rent tenure and 2 units as Intermediate Housing.   The applicants Shared Equity 

tenure is not an affordable housing product that East Devon support.  The 

applicant is proposing that applicants purchase 65% of the value of the property 

and the remaining 35% would be an interest free loan, which is similar to the 

government's previous Help to Buy scheme.  This is not classed as affordable 

housing.   East Devon District Council has over 5000 households on our housing 

register and we need more affordable housing to rent.   

Location - I am concerned that the affordable housing is located next to a car 

breakers premises.  This is not acceptable and would cause noise disturbance 

to residents.  

Housing Mix - the applicant is proposing 2 x 1 bed flats and 2 x 2 bed houses as 

Social Rent tenure.  However, we also require 2 x 3 bedroom houses as Social 

Rent tenure.  All affordable units should also meet M4(2) standards.   

Parking - There needs to be suitable provision for visitor parking to avoid overflow 

parking in neighbouring streets. 

26/07/23 - Objection 

Percentage of Affordable Housing - Strategy 34 in the adopted East Devon Local 

Plan 2013 - 2031 requires 50% affordable housing.  This application is only 

offering 25% affordable which is not policy compliant.  They have not submitted 

a viability appraisal to state why they are only offering 25% affordable housing 

so I object to this application. 

page 85



Tenure - Strategy 34 sets a target of 70% for rented accommodation (social or 

affordable rent) and 30% for affordable home ownership.  The applicant is 

proposing 4 Social Rent units and 4 Shared Equity units, which is not policy 

compliant with Strategy 34. The applicants Shared Equity tenure is not an 

affordable housing product that East Devon support.  The applicant is proposing 

that applicants purchase 65% of the value of the property and the remaining 35% 

would be an interest free loan. This is similar to the government's previous Help 

to Buy scheme, which was never designed as an affordable housing product, it 

was only to assist people to buy new build properties.   East Devon District 

Council has over 5000 households on our housing register and we need more 

affordable housing to rent, particularly Social Rent.    

Location - I am concerned that the affordable housing is located next to a car 

breakers premises.  This is not acceptable and would cause noise disturbance 

to residents.  

Housing Mix - the applicant is proposing 2 x 1 bed flats and 2 x 2 bed houses as 

Social Rent tenure.  However, we also require 3 bedroom houses as Social Rent 

tenure.  All affordable units should also meet M4(2) standards.   

Parking - There needs to be suitable provision for visitor parking to avoid overflow 

parking in neighbouring streets. 

 

Environment Agency 

02/05/24 - Thank you for re-consulting us on this application.  

Environment Agency position 

We have reviewed the revised layout as shown on drawing 'PROPOSED 

INDICATIVE SITE PLAN' Drawing No. GBHL-010P SITE PLAN, Rev H, and 

confirm that we are in a position to withdraw our previous objection subject to 

inclusion of conditions as detailed below. Whilst we recognise that this plan is 

not a confirmation of the final proposed layout, it identifies that the proposed 

development would be deliverable on site alongside the requirements to provide 

an easement to the flood alleviation channel.  

It is essential that the principles of flood risk management, and the way in which 

the applicant has proposed to incorporate the existing flood alleviation channel, 

(shown on the indicative site plan) are carried forward to the reserved matters 

stage to ensure the detailed design of the proposal is safe and does not 

compromise the functionality of the flood alleviation channel. Suggested wording 

for the recommended conditions and the reason for our position is provided 

below.  

Condition - Flood channel access details 

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until such 

time that the planning authority has received and approved in writing, details of 

the access arrangements to the flood channel, and the form and nature of fencing 

page 86



and gates on site. The scheme shall be fully implemented and subsequently 

maintained, in accordance with the scheme's timing/phasing arrangements, or 

within any other period as may subsequently be agreed, in writing, by the local 

planning authority. The features shall be retained for the lifetime of the 

development.  

Reason - To ensure adequate and safe access to the channel will be provided 

for the flood risk management authority and landowner over the lifetime of the 

development. 

Condition - Finished Flood Levels 

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until such 

time that the planning authority has received, and approved in writing, details of 

finished floor levels of the proposed buildings, levels of roads and landscaping. 

Reason - To ensure the proposed buildings would be free from flood risk in a 

scenario of the existing channel flood alleviation channel being blocked and thus 

overflowing. 

Condition - Permitted Development Rights 

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 or any order revoking and re-

enacting that order with or without modification structure shall be erected within 

the 8m buffer either side of the top of bank of the existing flood channel.  

Reason - To help safeguard the 8m buffer from development thus ensuring 

access for future flood risk management thus ensuring that management of the 

alleviation channel can be sustained for the lifetime of the development. 

Reason for position - Flood Risk 

We are satisfied that the revised layout 'GBHL-010P SITE PLAN, Rev H' 

addresses our previous concerns regarding safeguarding an 8m unfettered 

access buffer either side the important flood alleviation channel that is present 

within the site. We note the outline permission being sought is based upon the 

flood alleviation channel being retained in its current alignment and the layout 

being revised accordingly to accommodate an 8m buffer. We are also satisfied 

that the 'PROPOSED INDICATIVE SITE PLAN' Drawing No. GBHL-010P SITE 

PLAN, Rev H identifies provision of gated access either side of the channel both 

upstream and downstream of the proposed channel crossing, such being 

required to provide access for flood risk management purposes. The details of 

such can be covered by condition as recommended above. Details of the 

proposed bridge, the principles of which are shown on the above referred 

drawing, can be also be addressed by the above recommended conditions and 

through the flood risk activity environmental permit process. 

We recommend the following informative is also included on any decision notice 

because the applicant is required to obtain a flood risk activity permit separate to 

planning permission. 

page 87



Informative - Environmental Permitting 

We confirm that given the status of the flood relief channel as a 'Main' river. The 

Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) Regulations 2016 require a 

permit to be obtained for any activities which will take place, including; 

o on or within 8 metres of a main river, 

o on or within 8 metres of a flood defence structure or culverted main river (16 

metres if tidal), 

o in the floodplain of a main river if the activity could affect flood flow or storage 

and potential impacts that are not controlled by planning permission. 

Details can be obtained at Flood risk activities: environmental permits - GOV.UK 

(www.gov.uk) 

Please contact us again if you require any further advice. 

Environment Agency 

14/03/24 - Thank you for re-consulting us on this application and we apologise 

for the delay in responding.  

Environment Agency position 

We have reviewed the revised layout, as shown on drawing 'PROPOSED 

INDICATIVE SITE PLAN' Drawing GBHL-010P SITE PLAN Rev F. In light of this 

revision, we maintain our objection at this stage. Our primary objection relates 

to: 

o concerns regarding the feasibility of delivering, and subsequent performance 

of, the proposed diversion of a section of the existing flood alleviation channel, 

which forms part of Woodbury flood alleviation scheme. 

o Foreseeable use of the area shown as 'GRASSCRETE OVERUN AREA FOR 

MAINTENANCE AND ACCESS' for parking thus resulting in a loss of unfettered 

access to the EA for flood risk management reasons, unless such can be fenced 

off and not accessible for public/private usage. 

Secondary issues that require clarification prior to determination are: 

o a lack of clarity regarding the form and nature of the proposed 'NEW 

CROSSING' over the flood alleviation channel. 

Reasoning regarding proposed channel diversion and requirement for hydraulic 

modelling 

It is evident that the developer proposes the diversion of the existing flood 

alleviation channel rather than revision of the proposed residential build layout. 

As stated in our last formal response, we could accept the principle of a diversion 

subject only to absolute certainty being provided regarding the following prior to 

determination of the application. 

page 88



We require assurance, prior to determination of the application that; 

o there are no constraints present on site that would inhibit delivery of the 

proposed channel diversion 

o the hydraulic performance of the existing scheme would not be adversely 

affected. Such will necessitate hydraulic modelling. 

We will also stipulate that should we be in a position to accept the principle of 

diversion, subject to the above, then the diversion works must be delivered prior 

to commencement of the development sought to avoid a temporary increase in 

risk of flooding occurring during implementation of the development.  

Reasoning regarding proposed replacement crossing of the flood channel 

We note drawing GBHL-010P SITE PLAN Rev F states that a 'MIN 8 TONS' 

weight capacity will be provided and we support such. Before we can support the 

provision of a replacement crossing we require a list of principles regarding the 

form and layout that will be adhered to prior to determination. As stated in our 

previous formal consultation response dated 7 Feb 2024 we require assurances, 

by means of hydraulic modelling prior to determination of the application, that the 

existing flood alleviation schemes performance will not be adversely 

compromised by the form and nature of the proposed replacement crossing. 

Way forward 

Subject to absolute clarification of the above being given we would be 

comfortable to advise that compliance with the NPPF and PPG could in broadest 

terms be met subject to: 

o finished floor levels of the proposed buildings, roads and landscaping being set 

at a level to cater for the very present residual risk associated with a 

blockage/overflowing of the existing channel to ensure the proposed buildings 

would be free from flood risk. 

o permitted development rights being removed for the 8m buffer either side of the 

top of bank of the existing flood channel. 

o details of the access arrangements to the flood channel, and the form and 

nature of fencing and gates. 

o the channel diversion being implemented in full before construction of the 

development. 

These four requirements could be addressed by appropriately worded condition. 

Advice - Environmental Permitting 

We confirm that given the status of the flood relief channel as a 'Main' river.  The 

Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) Regulations 2016 require a 

permit to be obtained for any activities which will take place: 

o on or within 8 metres of a main river 

page 89



o on or within 8 metres of a flood defence structure or culverted main river (16 

metres if tidal) 

o in the floodplain of a main river if the activity could affect flood flow or storage 

and potential impacts are not controlled by a planning permission.  

The EA, as the regulator, hold the right to withhold a permit should an activity, 

for example 'interfere with the regulator's access to or along that river'. 

Environment Agency 

07/02/24 - Thank you for consulting us on this application.  

Environment Agency position 

Having reviewed the revised layout, as shown on drawing 'PROPOSED 

INDICATIVE SITE PLAN' Drawing ref.: GBHL-010P SITE PLAN Rev E, our 

position remains one of an objection at this juncture. We wish to highlight that we 

recognise the work undertaken to try to overcome our objection and these are 

welcomed. However,  primarily, our objection relates to: 

o concerns regarding the feasibility of delivering, and subsequent performance 

of, the proposed diversion of a section of the existing flood alleviation channel, 

which forms part of Woodbury flood alleviation scheme. 

Secondary issues (of equal importance) that require clarification prior to 

determination are: 

o the potential loss of EA access to a section of the channel and 

o a lack of clarity regarding the form and nature of the proposed replacement 

bridge over the flood alleviation channel. 

The removal of car parking spaces from the 8m buffer is a measure we can 

support. 

Further detailed reasoning for our objection and advice to overcome our 

objection is provided below.  

Reasoning regarding proposed channel diversion 

It is evident that the developer proposes the diversion of the existing flood 

alleviation channel rather than revision of the proposed residential build layout. 

We inform your authority that we could accept the principle of a diversion subject 

only to absolute certainty being provided regarding the following, prior to 

determination of the application. 

We require assurance, prior to determination of the application that: 

o there are no constraints present on site that would inhibit delivery of the 

proposed channel diversion and, 

o the hydraulic performance of the existing scheme would not be adversely 

affected. Such will necessitate hydraulic modelling. 

page 90



We will also stipulate that should we be in a position to accept the principle of 

diversion, subject to the above, then the diversion works must be delivered prior 

to commencement of the built development proposed to avoid a temporary 

increase in risk of flooding occurring during implementation of the development.   

Reasoning regarding proposed replacement access bridge 

Since receipt of your last consultation we confirm that we have consulted our 

internal Field Services Team, who manage the current flood alleviation scheme, 

on drawing GBHL-010P SITE PLAN Rev E 'PROPOSED INDICATIVE SITE 

PLAN'. Following their feedback we deem that we could support the principle of 

development following clarification of: 

o the form and nature of the proposed access bridge, which we require must 

provide a minimum 8 ton load capacity. 

o details regarding the access ramps that the 'Illustrative Masterplan' be revised 

to show 2.2m wide gated access on the left bank upstream of the proposed 

replacement bridge. Such is required to provide access for grass mowing 

equipment into that part of the vitally important flood alleviation channel. 

o assurances regarding diversion of the flood alleviation channel as detailed 

above.   

Way forward 

Subject to absolute clarification of the above being given we would be 

comfortable to advise that compliance with the NPPF and PPG could, in the 

broadest terms be met subject to: 

o finished floor levels of the proposed buildings, roads and landscaping being set 

at a level to cater for the very present residual risk associated with a 

blockage/overflowing of the existing channel to ensure the proposed buildings 

would be free from flood risk. 

o permitted development rights being removed for the 8m buffer either side of the 

top of bank of the existing flood channel. 

o the channel diversion being implemented in full before construction of the 

development. 

These three requirements could be addressed by appropriately worded 

conditions. 

Informative - Environmental Permitting 

We take this opportunity to highlight to your authority, and remind the applicant 

that a flood risk activity permit will be require for the works, as set out in the 

following informative paragraph:  

We confirm that given the status of the flood relief channel as a 'Main' river.  The 

Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) Regulations 2016 require a 

permit to be obtained for any activities which will take place: 

page 91



o on or within 8 metres of a main river 

o on or within 8 metres of a flood defence structure or culverted main river (16 

metres if tidal) 

o in the floodplain of a main river if the activity could affect flood flow or storage 

and potential impacts are not controlled by a planning permission.  

The EA, as the regulator, hold the right to withhold a permit should an activity, 

for example 'interfere with the regulator's access to or along that river'. 

Advice- Sequential Test 

We take this opportunity to remind your authority that before you determine the 

application, your Authority will also need to be content that the flood risk 

Sequential Test has been satisfied in accordance with the National Planning 

Policy Framework (NPPF) if you have not done so already.  

Please contact us again if you require any further advice.  

Environment Agency 

29/11/23 - Thank you for your consultation of 09 November 2023 following 

submission of amended plans in respect of this planning application. 

Environment Agency position 

We continue to object to this application for the same reasons set out in our 

previous letter of 01 August 2023 (Our ref. DC/2023/123414/01-L01).  The 

reasons for this position are summarised below.  The advice contained in our 

letter of 01 August 2023 in respect of flood risk, environmental permitting, 

biodiversity and pollution prevention still apply.   

Reasons - Proximity to Flood Relief Channel 

Having reviewed drawing GBHL-010-P SITE PLAN Rev B 'PROPOSED SITE 

PLAN' dated 26 October 2023 has not addressed our concerns regarding 

proximity to the existing flood relief channel that passes through the site which 

forms part of the Woodbury Flood Alleviation scheme.  It is likely that we would 

not be able to issue a Flood Risk Activity Permit for the layout currently submitted.  

We recommend that the application is not determined until a revised layout is 

submitted that shows an 8m unobstructed buffer be provided both sides of the 

flood relief channel.   

Environment Agency 

01/08/23 - Thank you for consulting us on the above planning application.   

Environment Agency position 

We object to this application in its current form because development is proposed 

too close to the existing flood relief channel that passes through the site which 

forms part of the Woodbury Flood Alleviation scheme.  It is likely that we would 

not be able to issue a Flood Risk Activity Permit for the layout currently submitted.  

page 92



We recommend that the application is not determined until a revised layout is 

submitted that shows an 8m unobstructed buffer be provided both sides of the 

flood relief channel.   

Before determining the application your Authority will need to be content that the 

flood risk Sequential Test has been satisfied in accordance with the NPPF if you 

have not done so already.   

The reasons for this position are set out below, together with an informative on 

environmental permitting, and advice on biodiversity and pollution prevention.   

Reasons - Development too close to Flood Relief Channel 

The Environment Agency maintain the flood relief channel within the red line 

boundary of the site, which is classified as a 'main river'.  Adequate access is 

needed to ensure that the channel can be properly maintained.   

The layout proposed would prevent/inhibit access to the flood relief channel.  The 

development layout as proposed is therefore contrary to paragraph 161 of the 

NPPF which states:   

'All plans should apply a sequential, risk-based approach to the location of 

development - taking into account all sources of flood risk and the current and 

future impacts of climate change - so as to avoid, where possible, flood risk to 

people and property. They should do this, and manage any residual risk, by:… 

o safeguarding land from development that is required, or likely to be required, 

for current or future flood management'  

It is important that land adjacent to the flood relief channel is safeguarded for 

flood risk management purposes and not developed.   

Overcoming our objection 

We advise that the layout should be revised to show that an 8m unobstructed 

buffer will be provided both sides of the alleviation channel.  This is necessary to 

allow unfettered access for current or future flood management over the lifetime 

of the development.  Failure to achieve this would result in an increase in flood 

risk which is contrary to the overriding policy aims of the NPPF. 

Informative - Environmental Permitting 

We confirm that given the status of the flood relief channel as a 'Main' river.  The 

Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) Regulations 2016 require a 

permit to be obtained for any activities which will take place: 

o on or within 8 metres of a main river 

o on or within 8 metres of a flood defence structure or culverted main river (16 

metres if tidal) 

o in the floodplain of a main river if the activity could affect flood flow or storage 

and potential impacts are not controlled by a planning permission. 

page 93



The EA, as the regulator, hold the right to withhold a permit should an activity, 

for example 'interfere with the regulator's access to or along that river'. 

Advice - Biodiversity 

If our objection can be overcome through the submission of a revised layout, we 

would welcome some environmental improvements in the final scheme.  For 

example, we would welcome any proposals to re-meander the straightened 

watercourse, with a more natural cross sectional and long profile, to reinstate 

more natural features and provide interest for both biodiversity and people.   

Additionally, we advise that the proposed timber bridge should not encroach on 

the channel, clear span is preferable, avoiding the need to build any structures 

in the channel or on the bank directly adjacent to the watercourse. 

Advice - Pollution Prevention 

We recommend that a Construction Environment Management Plan (CEMP) is 

produced to pull together and manage the pollution control and waste 

management requirements during the construction phase.  Run off from exposed 

ground / soils can pose a significant risk of pollution to nearby watercourses, 

particularly through soil/sediment run off and the CEMP should address how 

such run-off can be minimised, controlled and treated (if necessary).  The 

applicant should ensure that this is considered well in advance because some 

treatment methods can require an Environmental Permit to be obtained. 

We refer the applicant to the advice contained within our Pollution Prevention 

Guidelines (PPGs), in particular PPG5 - Works and maintenance in or near water 

and PPG6 - Working at construction and demolition sites.  These can be viewed 

via the following link:  

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/pollution-prevention-guidance-ppg 

Further guidance is available at:  

Pollution prevention for businesses - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 

We also advise that the use or disposal of any waste should comply with the 

relevant waste guidance and regulations.   

Advice to the LPA 

We will maintain our objection until the applicant has supplied information to 

demonstrate that the flood risks posed by the development can be satisfactorily 

addressed.  We would like to be re-consulted on any information submitted to 

address our concerns and we will provide you with bespoke comments within 21 

days of receiving formal re-consultation.   

If you are minded to approve the application at this stage contrary to this advice, 

we request that you contact us to allow further discussion and/or representations 

from us.    

 

page 94



EDDC Trees 

08/01/24 - Following initial tree officer comments, the amended Site Plan C now 

shows retention of group of six Silver Birch adjacent to the  B3179 and 

realignment of footpath to south of trees which is considered positive. 

EDDC Trees 

14/08/23 - In principle I have no objection to the proposal.  

The application is supported by an initial tree constraints appraisal and 

arboricultural impact assessment. Two A category Oaks have been identified on 

site which have recently been protected. Both trees have been cateogised as 

veteran trees. A group of six Silver Birch (mainly B category trees) located 

adjacent to the B3179 are proposed for removal to enable footpath widening. 

Mitigation planting is proposed. However it is considered that an alternative 

scheme of bringing the footpath onto the southern side of the trees is possible 

which would allow these trees to be retained. 

The following condition  should be put in place to ensure the retained trees are 

afforded protection during construction.  

(a) Prior to the commencement of any works on site (including demolition 

and site clearance or tree works), a full tree survey based on BS5837:2012, 

including a Tree Constraints Plan, Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural 

Method Statement for the  protection of retained trees, hedges and shrubs 

growing on or adjacent to the site, [including trees which are the subject of a Tree 

Preservation Order currently in force], shall be submitted to and approved in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority. No development or other operations shall 

take place except in complete accordance with the approved protection scheme. 

(b) No operations shall be undertaken on site in connection with the development 

hereby approved (including any tree felling, tree pruning, demolition works, soil 

moving, temporary access construction and / or widening or any operations 

involving the use of motorised vehicles or construction machinery) until the 

protection works required by the approved protection scheme are in place. 

c) No burning shall take place in a position where flames could extend to within 

5m of any part of any tree to be retained.  

(d) No trenches for services or foul/surface water drainage shall be dug within 

the crown spreads of any retained trees (or within half the height of the trees, 

whichever is the greater) unless agreed in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority. All such installations shall be in accordance with the advice given in 

Volume 4: National Joint Utilities Group (NJUG) Guidelines For The Planning, 

Installation And Maintenance Of Utility Apparatus In Proximity To Trees (Issue 

2) 2007.  

(e) No excavations for services, storage of materials or machinery, parking of 

vehicles, deposit or excavation of  soil or rubble, lighting of fires or disposal of 

page 95



liquids shall take place within any area designated as being fenced off or 

otherwise protected in the approved protection scheme. 

(f) Protective fencing shall be retained intact for the full duration of the 

development hereby approved and shall not be removed or repositioned without 

the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 

g) No trees, shrubs or hedges within the site which are shown as being planted 

or retained on the approved plans shall be felled, uprooted, wilfully damaged or 

destroyed, cut back in any way or removed without the prior written consent of 

the Local Planning Authority. Any trees, shrubs or hedges removed without such 

consent, or which die or become severely damaged or seriously diseased within 

five years from the occupation of any building, or the development hereby 

permitted being brought into use shall be replaced with trees, shrubs or hedge 

plants of similar size and species unless the Local Planning Authority gives 

written consent to any variation. 

h) The AMS shall provide for the keeping of a monitoring log to record site visits 

and inspections along with: the reasons for such visits; the findings of the 

inspection and any necessary actions; all variations or departures from the 

approved details and any resultant remedial action or mitigation measures. On 

completion of the development, the completed site monitoring log shall be signed 

off by the supervising arboriculturalist and submitted to the Planning Authority for 

approval and final discharge of the condition. 

(Reason - To ensure retention and protection of trees on the site prior to and 

during construction in the interests of amenity and to preserve and enhance the 

character and appearance of the area in accordance with Policies D1 - Design 

and Local Distinctiveness and D3 - Trees and Development Sites of the Adopted 

New East Devon Local Plan 2013-2031).   

 

EDDC Landscape Architect 

22/05/24 - Addendum response 22/05/2024 

1 INTRODUCTION 

This report is an addition to EDDC's previous landscape response to the 

application for the above site based on the updated Proposed Indicative Site Plan 

revision H. Comments should be read in conjunction with previous Landscape 

Response dated 19.10.2023 

2 REVIEW OF SUBMITTED DETAILS 

Changes to original layout 

The retention of the existing birch trees to Globe Hill is a positive change which 

reduces the impact of the development on Globe Hill. 

page 96



Increase in total number of units from 31 to 35 is of concern as this results in 

poor provision of gardens to the affordable housing in the northeast core of the 

site. This is also contrary to guidance within Building for a Healthy Life which 

recommends 'Designing homes and streets where it is difficult to determine the 

tenure of properties through architectural, landscape or other differences.' 

Further changes required 

In order to ensure the consistent and appropriate management oof existing 

boundary hedgebanks 2m width maintenance margins are required to the north 

and western site boundaries. These margins should be retained in the ownership 

of the management company. Plot boundaries adjacent to maintenance strips 

should comprise 1.2m high post and wire mesh fencing. 

Chris Hariades CMLI 

EDDC Landscape Architect & Green Infrastructure Officer 

EDDC Landscape Architect 

26/10/23 - 1 INTRODUCTION 

This report forms the EDDC's landscape response to the hybrid application for 

the above site. 

The report provides a review of landscape related information submitted  

with the application in relation to adopted policy, relevant guidance, current best 

practice and existing site context and should be read in conjunction with the 

submitted information. 

2 REVIEW OF SUBMITTED DETAILS 

2.1 Review of Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA) 

Methodology 

The methodology generally follows best practice guidance as set out in 

Guidelines for Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment 3rd Edition. 

Viewpoint photography is presented in both A1 and A3 formats but scale bars 

allow for accurate viewing digitally. Some of the photographs are of poor quality 

particularly viewpoints 3 and 13 which are taken against the light, obscuring 

detail and viewpoints 10 and 12 which are blurred. 

No details are provided of camera, lens focal length, field of view etc., which is a 

requirement of Landscape Institute technical note 6/19 - Visual Representation 

of Development Proposals. 

Landscape baseline assessment and sensitivity 

The 2.5km study area used in the LVIA is considered appropriate. The baseline 

assessment is generally thorough. 

page 97



In respect of the Lowland Plains Landscape character Type (LCT) 3E and the 

Clyst Lowlands Farmland Devon Character Area (DCA) which extend across the 

western portion of the site, the LVIA assesses sensitivity as medium-low (LVIA 

para. 6.47) citing large scale military base, large farms, power-lines and busy 

main roads as detractors from the sense of remoteness and rurality in the study 

area. Such influences occur at the limits of the study area (VPs 14 and 15) and 

are not evident nearer the site where, as noted in the key characteristics for this 

landscape type, the area retains a pleasant and rural feel. The field to the west 

rises to a low ridge which forms the skyline and contains views within a 

quintessentially rural lowland landscape as evidenced in figure 1 below. As such 

sensitivity to the change proposed should be considered medium for this 

landscape. 

Assessment of LCT 3B - Lower rolling farmed and settled slopes and DCA 

Pebble Bed Heaths and Farmland as medium sensitivity is accepted. 

For the site and its immediate environs the fact that part of the site falls within 

the conservation area and the view across it is identified as key in the 

conservation area statement together with the established soft edge it provides 

to this part of the settlement should confer a medium-high value and medium-

high susceptibility to change resulting in a medium-high sensitivity rather than 

medium as stated in the LVIA. 

Visual baseline and receptor sensitivity 

The LVIA selection of representative viewpoints is considered appropriate in 

relation to the proposals, site location and identified visual envelope. 

Site and immediate surroundings - The LVIA assessment of sensitivity of views 

as Medium-High for viewpoints 1-4 and 8-11 and 13 and viewpoints 14-15 as 

Medium is accepted. In respect of VPs 5-7 sensitivity for walkers and cyclists 

should be considered to be Medium-High rather than Medium as stated in the 

LVIA. (photograph here) - see document tab 

Proposals 

At section 7 the LVIA fails to provide a full indication of the proposals and their 

expected effects. On the basis of the illustrative masterplan and supporting 

details these should be expected to include: 

- The removal of a line of mature birch trees along the road frontage of the site 

in order to accommodate a new 2m wide footway. 

- The creation of a visibility splay on the east side of Globe Hill opposite the 

proposed site entrance by cutting back or translocation of existing hedgerow. 

This could result in the loss of some early mature ash trees within the hedge line 

at this location. 

- The introduction of a series of traffic calming measures along Globe Hill which 

are likely to entail additional highway infrastructure and possibly signage and 

page 98



road markings which would have an urbanising influence on its present semi-

rural character. 

- The introduction of street lighting within the site combining with light-spill from 

the new dwellings within an otherwise 'dark' village edge. 

While the LVIA notes the retention of existing field boundary hedgerows as part 

of the primary mitigation, the location of proposed housing in close proximity to 

these and their incorporation as part of individual plot boundaries as indicated on 

the illustrative masterplan would be likely to lead to their degradation in the 

medium to long term either through neglect or inappropriate management by 

occupants. A suitable buffer strip would be required between rear garden 

boundaries and the existing field hedgerow in order to avoid this. 

Although indicative only, the proposed layout and house types suggests a 

suburban character estate which does not reflect the character and density of 

existing development which, notwithstanding the adjacent breakers yard, 

currently forms the well-established settlement edge in this part of the village. 

Mitigation measures noted in the LVIA include the retention of views through the 

site between Globe Hill and the countryside beyond. However, proposed 

development would close down the existing view considerably and would be 

clearly evident even in the medium-long term, while the retained framed view to 

countryside beyond will be focussed along the line of the existing flood relief 

channel. 

There is no consideration of likely construction stage effects. 

Landscape effects 

The finding of the LVIA that there would be no change to the special  

qualities of the AONB arising from the proposals is accepted. 

In respect of the conservation area the proposed removal of five mature birch 

trees along Globe Hill and a section of hedgerow opposite, together with the 

introduction of traffic calming features do not appear to have been considered in 

the LVIA's assessment of effects. While the LVIA assesses the effect on the 

Conservation Area as low-medium adverse, accounting for the above overall 

effect should be considered to be medium-high adverse initially reducing to 

medium in the long term as mitigation planting matures. 

For LCT 3E - Lowland Plains and DCA Clyst Lowland Farmlands LVIA para. 

8.5.1 notes that development would either be hidden by topography or appear 

closely related to Woodbury. However in VPs 7, 8 and 9 the roofs and upper 

elevations of the proposed development would be clearly visible particularly in 

the western portion of the site and would appear as a thin strip of ribbon 

development extending some way westwards from the existing settlement edge 

into open countryside likely to result in a moderate adverse effect rather than 

slight as identified in the LVIA. For other LCTs and LCAs and the East Devon 

page 99



AONB the LVIA's assessment of effects are accepted, as is the assessment of 

no change on the East Devon AONB. 

For the site itself the LVIA assessment of medium magnitude of change arising 

from the proposals with an overall moderate adverse effect is disputed. 

Magnitude of change should be considered medium-high (permanent, large 

scale, localised). Notwithstanding slight beneficial effects that could arise in time, 

on the basis of site sensitivity being medium-high as noted above, overall effect 

of development on the site and its immediate surroundings should be considered 

moderate - high adverse rather than moderate adverse as stated in the LVIA. 

Visual effects 

Site and immediate surroundings -At para. 9.1.2 the LVIA incorrectly states that 

proposed housing would not be visible in VP2. New housing would be very 

prominent in this view initially and while this impact would be expected to reduce 

in the medium-long term it would still be visible particularly in winter. The 

proposed development would also be highly visible in VP4. For these viewpoints 

visual effects should be considered as moderate -high adverse initially reducing 

to moderate adverse over time subject to successful establishment of mitigation 

planting. 

Views from the south of Woodbury - For VPs 5 and 6 the LVIA assessment of 

effect as slight adverse is accepted. However for VPs 6, 8 and 9 the magnitude 

of change is likely to be greater than stated in the LVIA as a substantial amount 

of the roofs and upper elevations of proposed housing would be visible in these 

views and would read as a linear extension of development in to open 

countryside. The overall effect of development in these views should be 

considered moderate adverse rather than slight adverse as noted in the LVIA. 

Views from AONB and the west - It is accepted that proposed development would 

have minimal overall effect on views from the AONB and viewpoints towards the 

western edge of the study area (VPs 10, 11, 14 and 15). 

View from the north - VP 13 affords a view over the site from Rydon Lane. The 

extent of the site visible in this view is not adequately represented in the LVIA 

photograph and extends westwards some distance beyond. Towards its western 

end proposed development would be seen against agricultural land. 

2.2 Site plan and access arrangements 

Proposed site plan 

As noted above the overall suburban character evident on the illustrative site 

plan is at odds with that of the surrounding village edge and character, while the 

proximity of a number of proposed houses adjacent to the existing field boundary 

hedgerows and the incorporation of existing hedgerow into plot boundaries is 

likely to lead to their degradation due to poor management. 

The proposed loss of the mature birch trees along the road frontage to Globe 

Lane to accommodate a 2m width footway will have an adverse impact on local 

page 100



character and further open the development to views from Globe Hill. Potentially 

these could be retained were the proposed footway to be realigned to their west 

side, outside of their present redline area. 

It is accepted that the proposed footpath link, orchard and public open space will 

afford green infrastructure benefits for the wider community and bio-diversity. 

The rationalisation and reduction of fencing to either side of the flood channel 

although not proposed would reduce visual clutter. 

The proposed use of granite sett paving is inappropriate having no local 

precedent. 

Access proposals 

Proposed access arrangements and highway works to Globe Hill are set out in 

the Transport Statement and include for localised realignment of the carriageway 

in the vicinity of the site entrance and introduction of a series of traffic calming 

measures to either side which would have a strong urbanising effect on the 

existing character of the road. It is unclear from the submitted details what impact 

the proposed carriageway realignment would have on the existing boundary 

bank to the east side of Globe Hill would have on existing vegetation and it is 

possible that a section of hedge and associated trees would need to be removed 

to accommodate the required road take and associated grading works. Further 

details illustrating levels and extent of clearance and grading works for this 

should be provided prior to determination of the application. 

3 CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1 Acceptability of proposals 

The landscape and visual effects of the proposed development are limited to the 

site itself and immediate surroundings including Globe Hill between the junctions 

with the Arch and Rydon Lane and extending to views from the south to a 

distance of some 1.2km. It is accepted that the likely effects on the AONB are 

negligible. 

While this assessment is broadly in accordance with the submitted LVIA, the 

level of effects for identified receptors within this envelope is generally 

considered higher than predicted in the LVIA. This includes the Woodbury 

Conservation where the development would significantly alter the character of 

this section of Globe Hill, and the setting of the village particularly as perceived 

in views from the south (VPs 6, 7, 8 and 9) and west (VP4). 

The indicative layout suggests a dense suburban character that is strongly at 

odds with the existing settlement pattern in the vicinity of the site and which is 

not conducive to the long term viability of the perimeter hedgerows. 

Access proposals require further detail of the extent of vegetation clearance and 

grading works required to the east side of Globe Hill as part of the proposed 

carriageway realignment works. 

page 101



For these reasons the application is considered unacceptable in terms of 

landscape and visual impact and contrary to Strategy 7 and policy D1 of the local 

plan. 

3.2 Conditions 

Should the application be approved the following conditions should be imposed: 

1) No development work shall commence on site until the following information 

has been submitted and approved: 

a) A full set of hard landscape details for proposed walls, fencing, retaining 

structures, hedgebanks, pavings and edgings, site furniture, play equipment and 

signage. 

b) Details of locations, heights and specifications of proposed free standing and 

wall mounted external lighting including means of control and intended hours of 

operation including lux levels plan. 

External lighting shall be designed to minimise light-spill and adverse impact on 

dark skies/ bat foraging and commuting in accordance with Institute of Lighting 

Professionals (ILP) guidance notes GN01 2011 - Guidance notes for the 

reduction of obtrusive light and GN 08/18 - Bats and Artificial Lighting in the UK. 

c) A site levels plan indicating existing and proposed levels and showing the 

extent of earthworks and any retaining walls at 1:250 scale or greater. This shall 

be accompanied by a minimum of 4 sections through the site at a scale of 1:200 

or greater clearly showing existing and proposed ground level profiles across the 

site and relationship to surroundings. 

d) A landscape and green infrastructure strategy plan showing existing trees, 

hedgerow and habitat to be retained and removed; proposed tree and structure 

planting and new habitat to be created; existing and proposed watercourses, 

ponds and wetland areas; pedestrian and cycle routes through the site and how 

they connect to the existing network beyond 

d) Surface water drainage strategy incorporating an appropriate SuDS treatment 

train and details of SuDS features including proposed profiles, levels and make 

up of swales and attenuation ponds and locations and construction details of 

check dams, inlets and outlets etc. The SuDS scheme shall be designed to 

enhance bio-diversity value and engineered elements should have a positive or 

neutral impact on visual amenity. 

f) A soil resources plan prepared in accordance with Construction Code of 

Practice for the Sustainable use of Soils on Construction Sites - DEFRA 

September 2009, which should include: 

- a plan showing topsoil and subsoil types based on trial pitting and laboratory 

analysis, and the areas to be stripped and left in-situ. 

- methods for stripping, stockpiling, re-spreading and ameliorating the soils. 

page 102



- location of soil stockpiles and content (e.g. Topsoil type A, subsoil type B). 

- schedules of volumes for each material. 

- expected after-use for each soil whether topsoil to be used on site, used or sold 

off site, or subsoil to be retained for landscape areas, used as structural fill or for 

topsoil manufacture. 

- identification of person responsible for supervising soil management. 

g) A full set of soft landscape details including: 

i) Planting plan(s) showing locations, species and number of new tree, shrub and 

herbaceous planting, type and extent of new amenity/ species rich grass areas, 

existing vegetation to be retained and removed. 

ii) Plant schedule indicating the species, form, size, numbers and density of 

proposed planting. 

iii) Soft landscape specification covering soil quality, depth, cultivation and 

amelioration; planting, sowing and turfing; mulching and means of plant support 

and protection during establishment period together with a 5 year maintenance 

schedule. 

iv) Tree pit and tree staking/ guying details including details for extended soil 

volume under paving where necessary for trees within/ adjacent to hard paving. 

h) Measures for protection of existing perimeter trees/ undisturbed ground during 

construction phase in accordance with BS5837: 2012. Approved protective 

measures shall be implemented prior to commencement of construction and 

maintained in sound condition for the duration of the works. 

3) No development shall take place until a Landscape and Ecology Management 

Plan (LEMP) for a minimum period of 30 years has been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority which should include the 

following details: 

- Extent, ownership and responsibilities for management and maintenance 

accompanied by a plan showing areas to be adopted, maintained by 

management company or other defined body and areas to be privately owned/ 

maintained. 

- Details of how the management and maintenance of habitats, open space and 

associated features will be funded for the life of the development. 

- A description and evaluation of landscape and ecological features to be 

created/ managed and any site constraints that might influence management. 

- Landscape and ecological aims and objectives for the site. 

- Condition survey of existing trees, hedgerow and other habitat to be retained 

as a baseline for future monitoring and to identify any initial works required to 

address defects/ issues identified and bring them into good condition. 

page 103



- Detailed maintenance works schedules covering regular cyclical work and less 

regular/ occasional works in relation to: 

o Existing trees, woodland and hedgerows/banks. Hedgerow management shall 

be carried out in accordance with the Hedge Management Cycle as set out in 

Hedgelink guidance. 

o New trees, woodland areas, hedges and amenity planting areas. 

o Grass and wildflower areas. 

o Biodiversity features - hibernaculae, bat/ bird boxes etc. 

o Boundary structures, drainage swales, water bodies and other infrastructure/ 

facilities within public/ communal areas. 

- Arrangements for Inspection and monitoring of the site and maintenance 

practices. 

- Arrangements for periodic review and update of the plan that may be required 

to meet the objectives of the plan and reflect any relevant changes to site, 

legislation and best practice guidance. 

Management, maintenance and monitoring shall be carried out in accordance 

with the approved plan. 

4) The works shall be executed in accordance with the approved drawings and 

details and shall be completed prior to first use of the proposed buildings with the 

exception of planting which shall be completed no later than the first planting 

season following first use. 

5) Any new planting or grass areas which fail to make satisfactory growth or dies 

within five years following completion of the development shall be replaced with 

plants of similar size and species to the satisfaction of the LPA. 

(Reason - In the interests of amenity and to preserve and enhance the character 

and appearance of the area in accordance with Strategy 3 (Sustainable 

Development), Strategy 4 (Balanced Communities), Strategy 5 (Environment), 

Strategy 43 (Open Space Standards), Policy D1 (Design and Local 

Distinctiveness), Policy D2 (Landscape Requirements) and Policy D3 (Trees in 

relation to development) of the East Devon Local Plan. The landscaping scheme 

is required to be approved before development starts to ensure that it properly 

integrates into the development from an early stage.) 

 

Environmental Health 

11/07/23 - I have considered the application and further information will be 

required in order to address environmental health concerns in relation to noise.   

The development involves the introduction of noise sensitive dwellings in close 

proximity to an existing commercial business (car breakers).  A 

page 104



BS4142:2014+A1:2019 assessment should be undertaken in order to determine 

the noise impact from the neighbouring industrial/commercial business on the 

development.  The purpose of the noise assessment is to determine whether or 

not future residents are likely to be adversely affected by noise.   

This will help inform the decision making process for the proposed development.  

If the noise impact assessment highlights noise as an issue, mitigation will need 

to be considered and assessed in order to determine if it is at an appropriate 

level to achieve both satisfactory internal and external noise levels. 

 

Contaminated Land Officer 

11/07/23 - Should any contamination of soil and/or ground or surface water be 

discovered during excavation of the site or development, the Local Planning 

Authority should be contacted immediately. Site activities in the area affected 

shall be temporarily suspended until such time as a method and procedure for 

addressing the contamination is agreed upon in writing with the Local Planning 

Authority and/or other regulating bodies. 

Reason: To ensure that any contamination existing and exposed during the 

development is identified and remediated. 

 

DCC Flood Risk SuDS Consultation 

16/05/24 - Has the development proposals increased the density of dwellings? 

Unfortunately, this reduces the space for above-ground features to form a SuDS 

Management Train. We previously said that we have no in-principle objections 

to the planning application, but we will now need to object to the planning 

application. 

16/05/24 - Our objection is withdrawn and we have no in-principle objections to 

the above planning application at this stage, assuming that the following pre-

commencement planning conditions are imposed on any approved 

permission: 

- Prior to or as part of the Reserved Matters, the following information shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority: 

(a) A detailed drainage design based upon the approved Flood Risk Assessment 

and DrainageStrategy. 

(b) Detailed proposals for the management of surface water and silt run-off from 

the site during construction of the development hereby permitted. 

(c) Proposals for the adoption and maintenance of the permanent surface water 

drainage system.  

(d) A plan indicating how exceedance flows will be safely managed at the site. 

page 105



No building hereby permitted shall be occupied until the works have been 

approved and implemented in accordance with the details under (a) - (d) above.  

Reason: The above conditions are required to ensure the proposed surface 

water drainage system will operate effectively and will not cause an increase in 

flood risk either on the site, adjacent land or downstream in line with SuDS for 

Devon Guidance (2017) and national policies, including NPPF and PPG. The 

conditions should be pre-commencement since it is essential that the proposed 

surface water drainage system is shown to be feasible before works begin to 

avoid redesign / unnecessary delays during construction when site layout is 

fixed. 

Observations: 

Following my previous consultation response (FRM/ED/1258/2023; dated 25th 

July 2023), the applicant has provided additional information in relation to the 

surface water drainage aspects of the above planning 

application, via e-mail, for which I am grateful. 

The applicant has confirmed that the viability of the site requires the number of 

dwellings proposed.  

The applicant has confirmed, within an email dated 21st May 2024, that 

permeable paving will be used for private drives. They have also confirmed that 

SuDS Planters could be offered to buyers as upgrades. 

The applicant will need to ensure that groundwater does not impact on the 

proposed surface water drainage system. 

DCC Flood Risk SuDS Consultation 

25/03/24 - We've been consulted on the revised layout for the above site. Could 

some dwellings be removed to make space for some swales, rain gardens and/or 

tree pits? 

DCC Flood Risk SuDS Consultation 

25/07/23 - Although we have no in-principle objection to the above planning 

application at this stage, the applicant must submit additional information, as 

outlined below, in order to demonstrate that all aspects of the 

proposed surface water drainage management system have been considered. 

Observations: 

The applicant has proposed to manage surface water within a basin and tank 

before discharging into the watercourse flowing through the site. This 

watercourse is classed as a Main River, therefore, the applicant will need to apply 

for a Flood Risk Activity Permit (from the Environment Agency) for works within 

8m of the watercourse. 

page 106



The Ground Investigation encountered shallow groundwater. The applicant will 

need to ensure that this will not affect the surface water drainage system. 

The number of dwellings should be reduced to provide space for above-ground 

features to form a SuDS Management Train. There are currently areas of green 

space which could be used for these features (e.g. 

forming a small rain garden or narrow swale to convey surface water from 

approximately 3 dwellings). 

A swale should be assessed as the outfall from the basin into the watercourse. 

This might also be achievable for the car park. 

The applicant has proposed to use a very small flow control to manage surface 

water from the car park (to the southeast of the watercourse). The applicant has 

also proposed to use a high overflow. The flow control should be regularly 

monitored to ensure that blockage does not occur. 

  

County Highway Authority 

18/12/23 - ED-01258-2023 

The County Highway Authority (CHA) has visited the site and reviewed the 

planning documents. 

This is an outline application so I will reserve comments upon the internal layout, 

until such a point that a reserved matters application should come forward.  

The swept paths show successful manoeuvring of the proposed vehicular access 

utilising a refuse vehicle. The proposed access onto the B3179 has acceptable 

visibility in both the East and West direction in accordance with Manual for 

Streets 1 and 2 at 2.4m x distance by 43m y distance for a 30mph  speed limit. 

The CHA is pleased to see a highway traffic calming measure/gateway feature 

on the approach to the site in Globe Hill, including dragons teeth road markings 

and a neighbourhood sign feature. The final finish of this concept can be 

reviewed in detailed design should outline consent be given. 

The 30 to 20mph speed change re-location will require a Traffic Regulation Order 

(TRO), this is not subject to the outcome of the planning application, it is approval 

that sits outside the planning system. 

The 29 car park space will help alleviate visitor and tertiary parking demand from 

this development and mitigate against on-street parking, this car park is not due 

for adoption by the CHA. The widening of the footpath link to the village centre 

will help encourage sustainable travel and promote better compliance with DDA 

requirements. 

It is accepted that the trip generation from this development will present an 

increase over that of which is already permitted under its agricultural use but I do 

not believe this would trigger a severity clause under the National Planning Policy 

page 107



Framework (NPPF). However, the proposal does present a benefit to the 

highway network in form of an improved traffic speed calming feature into the 

entrance of the village, better footway and PROW access links and a public car 

park that may reduce parking upon The Arch. 

Should a reserved matters application come forward, secure cycle storage for 

this development 

should further assist in encouraging sustainable travel, especially for shorter 

trips. The local services and facilities of Woodbury including the primary school 

and doctor surgery will also help reduce vehicular trips, together with Woodbury's 

regular bus service. 

Recommendation: 

THE HEAD OF PLANNING, TRANSPORTATION AND ENVIRONMENT, ON 

BEHALF OF DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL, AS LOCAL HIGHWAY AUTHORITY, 

MAY WISH TO RECOMMEND CONDITIONS ON ANY GRANT OF PLANNING 

PERMISSION 

1. Prior to commencement of any part of the site the Planning Authority shall 

have received and approved a Construction Management Plan (CMP) including: 

(a) the timetable of the works; 

(b) daily hours of construction; 

(c) any road closure; 

(d) hours during which delivery and construction traffic will travel to and from the 

site, with such vehicular movements being restricted to between 8:00am and 

6pm Mondays to Fridays inc.; 9.00am to 1.00pm Saturdays, and no such 

vehicular movements taking place on Sundays and Bank/Public Holidays unless 

agreed by the planning Authority in 

advance; 

(e) the number and sizes of vehicles visiting the site in connection with the 

development and the frequency of their visits; 

(f) the compound/location where all building materials, finished or unfinished 

products, parts, crates, packing materials and waste will be stored during the 

demolition and construction phases; 

(g) areas on-site where delivery vehicles and construction traffic will load or 

unload building materials, finished or unfinished products, parts, crates, packing 

materials and waste with confirmation that no construction traffic or delivery 

vehicles will park on the County highway for loading or unloading purposes, 

unless prior written agreement has been given by the Local Planning Authority; 

(h) hours during which no construction traffic will be present at the site; 

(i) the means of enclosure of the site during construction works; and 

page 108



(j) details of proposals to promote car sharing amongst construction staff in order 

to limit construction staff vehicles parking off-site 

(k) details of wheel washing facilities and obligations 

(l) The proposed route of all construction traffic exceeding 7.5 tonnes. 

(m) Details of the amount and location of construction worker parking. 

(n) Photographic evidence of the condition of adjacent public highway prior to 

commencement of any work; 

2. No development shall take place until details of secure cycle/scooter storage 

facilities have been submitted to and approved in writing by the County Planning 

Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the 

approved details. 

REASON: To promote sustainable travel in accordance with the East Devon 

Local Plan 2013-2031. 

Addendum 15/12/2023 

The final infrastructure layout for the Arch is to be discussed with the County 

Highway Authority (CHA) as part of a collective aspiration to improve the Arch 

area under a separate legal agreement. 

 County Highway Authority 

14/09/23 - The County Highway Authority (CHA) has visited the site and reviewed 

the planning documents. 

This is an outline application so I will reserve comments upon the internal layout, 

until such a point that a reserved matters application should come forward. 

The swept paths show successful maneuvering of the proposed vehicular access 

utilising a refuse vehicle. The proposed access onto the B3179 has acceptable 

visibility in both the East and West direction in accordance with Manual for 

Streets 1 and 2 at 43m distance for a 30mph speed limit. 

The CHA is pleased to see a highway traffic calming measure/gateway feature 

on the approach to the site in Globe Hill, including dragons teeth road markings 

and a neighbourhood sign feature. The final finish of this concept can be 

reviewed if a reserved matters application comes forward. 

The 29 car park space will help alleviate visitor and tertiary parking demand from 

this development and mitigate against on-street parking maintained, this car park 

is not due for adopted by the CHA. 

The widening of the footpath link to the village centre will help encourage 

sustainable travel and promote better compliance with DDA requirements. 

It is accepted that the trip generation from this development will present an 

increase over that of which is already permitted under its agricultural use. 

However, the proposal presents a benefit to the highway network in an improved 

page 109



traffic speed calming feature into the entrance of the village, better footway and 

PROW access links and a public car park that may reduce parking upon The 

Arch. 

Should a reserved matters application come forward, secure cycle storage for 

this development should further assist in encouraging sustainable travel, 

especially for shorter trips. The local services and facilities of Woodbury including 

the primary school and doctor surgery will also help reduce vehicular trips, 

together with Woodbury's regular bus service. 

Recommendation: 

THE HEAD OF PLANNING, TRANSPORTATION AND ENVIRONMENT, ON 

BEHALF OF DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL, AS LOCAL HIGHWAY AUTHORITY, 

MAY WISH TO RECOMMEND CONDITIONS ON ANY GRANT OF PLANNING 

PERMISSION 

1. Prior to commencement of any part of the site the Planning Authority shall 

have received and approved a Construction Management Plan (CMP) including: 

(a) the timetable of the works; 

(b) daily hours of construction; 

(c) any road closure; 

(d) hours during which delivery and construction traffic will travel to and from the 

site, with such vehicular movements being restricted to between 8:00am and 

6pm Mondays to Fridays inc.; 9.00am to 1.00pm Saturdays, and no such 

vehicular movements taking place on Sundays and Bank/Public Holidays unless 

agreed by the planning Authority in 

advance; 

(e) the number and sizes of vehicles visiting the site in connection with the 

development and the frequency of their visits; 

(f) the compound/location where all building materials, finished or unfinished 

products, parts, crates, packing materials and waste will be stored during the 

demolition and construction phases; 

(g) areas on-site where delivery vehicles and construction traffic will load or 

unload building materials, finished or unfinished products, parts, crates, packing 

materials and waste with confirmation that no construction traffic or delivery 

vehicles will park on the County highway for loading or unloading purposes, 

unless prior written agreement has been given by the Local Planning Authority; 

(h) hours during which no construction traffic will be present at the site; 

(i) the means of enclosure of the site during construction works; and 

(j) details of proposals to promote car sharing amongst construction staff in order 

to limit construction staff vehicles parking off-site  

page 110



(k) details of wheel washing facilities and obligations 

(l) The proposed route of all construction traffic exceeding 7.5 tonnes. 

(m) Details of the amount and location of construction worker parking. 

(n) Photographic evidence of the condition of adjacent public highway prior to 

commencement of any work; 

2. No development shall take place until details of secure cycle/scooter storage 

facilities have been submitted to and approved in writing by the County Planning 

Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the 

approved details. 

REASON: To promote sustainable travel in accordance with the East Devon 

Local Plan 2013-2031. 

 

South West Water 

17/07/23 -  

With reference to the planning application at the above address, the 

applicant/agent is advised to contact South West Water if they are unable to 

comply with our requirements as detailed below. 

Asset Protection 

Please find attached a plan showing the approximate location of a public 6 inch 

water main in the vicinity of the above proposed development.  Please note that 

no development will be permitted within 3.5 metres of the water main. The water 

main must also be located within a public open space and ground cover should 

not be substantially altered. 

Should the development encroach on the 3.5 metre easement, the water main 

will need to be diverted at the expense of the applicant. 

www.southwestwater.co.uk/developer-services/water-services-and-

connections/building-near-water-mains/ 

Further information regarding the options to divert a public water main can be 

found on our website via the link below: 

www.southwestwater.co.uk/developer-services/water-services-and-

connections/diversion-of-water-mains/  

Should you require any further information, please contact the Pre Development 

Team via email: DeveloperServicesPlanning@southwestwater.co.uk. 

If further assistance is required to establish the exact location of the water main, 

the applicant/agent should call our Services helpline on 0344 346 2020. 

Clean Potable Water 

page 111



South West Water is able to provide clean potable water services from the 

existing public water main for the above proposal.  The practical point of 

connection will be determined by the diameter of the connecting pipework being 

no larger than the diameter of the company's existing network. 

Foul Sewerage Services 

South West Water is able to provide foul sewerage services from the existing 

public foul or combined sewer in the vicinity of the site.  The practical point of 

connection will be determined by the diameter of the connecting pipework being 

no larger than the diameter of the company's existing network. 

The applicant can apply to South West Water for clarification of the point of 

connection for either clean potable water services and/or foul sewerage services.  

For more information and to download the application form, please visit our 

website: 

www.southwestwater.co.uk/developers   

Surface Water Services 

The applicant should demonstrate to your LPA that its prospective surface run-

off will discharge as high up the hierarchy of drainage options as is reasonably 

practicable (with evidence that the Run-off Destination Hierarchy has been 

addressed, and reasoning as to why any preferred disposal route is not 

reasonably practicable):  

1. Discharge into the ground (infiltration); or where not reasonably 

practicable, 

2. Discharge to a surface waterbody; or where not reasonably practicable, 

3. Discharge to a surface water sewer, highway drain, or another drainage 

system; or where not reasonably practicable, 

4.         Discharge to a combined sewer. (Subject to Sewerage Undertaker 

carrying out capacity evaluation) 

Having reviewed the applicant's current information as to proposed surface water 

disposal for its development, please note that method proposed to discharge into 

the ground (infiltration) is acceptable and meets with the Run-off Destination 

Hierarchy.   

I trust this clarifies the water and drainage material planning considerations for 

your LPA, however, if you have any questions or queries, please contact the 

Planning Team on 01392 442836 or via email: 

DeveloperServicesPlanning@southwestwater.co.uk. 

Kind regards, 

Peter 

 

page 112



EDDC District Ecologist 

20/08/24 - The planning balance support statement indicates the proposed 

outline development would result in a biodiversity net gain of 27% for habitats 

and 59% for hedgerows. This is considered to provide 'Significant' weight as it is 

exceeding 10%. However, no evidence is provided to quantify these gains 

including a completed biodiversity metric and condition assessment sheets.  

The amended plans have increased the proposed density of housing on the site. 

As highlighted by EDDC landscape architect there should be a minimum 2 m 

wide maintenance strip between the northern and western boundary hedges to 

ensure the long-term maintenance of these hedges can be secured, e.g., by a 

management company. Other recommendations regarding biodiversity 

mitigation, compensation, and enhancement in the former ecology consultation 

response are still considered to be required.  

It is recommended that the completed biodiversity metric and condition 

assessment sheets be provided to enable confidence in the predicted BNG 

outcomes and proposed 'Significant' weight attributed to this.  

For example, hedges that form part of residential curtilages cannot be considered 

in more than 'Poor' condition, given the uncertainty of their long-term 

management. Likewise, any habitats (including trees) within residential gardens 

can only be considered as 'Vegetated garden'. New trees cannot be 'Medium' 

sized (30-60cm DBH) given their unlikely use, e.g., due to costs, likely success 

of establishment etc. These elements can have a significant outcome on 

predicted BNG outcomes. Therefore, the completed metric and condition 

assessment sheets can evidence that these elements have been considered and 

the predicted outcomes are realistic.   

William Dommett MSc MCIEEM  

District Ecologist  

Countryside and Leisure 

East Devon District Council  

EDDC District Ecologist 

16/04/24 - The planning balance support statement indicates the proposed 

outline development would result in a biodiversity net gain of 27% for habitats 

and 59% for hedgerows. This is considered to provide 'Significant' weight as it is 

exceeding 10%. However, no evidence is provided to quantify these gains 

including a completed biodiversity metric and condition assessment sheets.  

The amended plans have increased the proposed density of housing on the site. 

As highlighted by EDDC landscape architect there should be a minimum 2 m 

wide maintenance strip between the northern and western boundary hedges to 

ensure the long-term maintenance of these hedges can be secured, e.g., by a 

management company. Other recommendations regarding biodiversity 

page 113



mitigation, compensation, and enhancement in the former ecology consultation 

response are still considered to be required.  

It is recommended that the completed biodiversity metric and condition 

assessment sheets be provided to enable confidence in the predicted BNG 

outcomes and proposed 'Significant' weight attributed to this.  

For example, hedges that form part of residential curtilages cannot be considered 

in more than 'Poor' condition, given the uncertainty of their long-term 

management. Likewise, any habitats (including trees) within residential gardens 

can only be considered as 'Vegetated garden'. New trees cannot be 'Medium' 

sized (30-60cm DBH) given their unlikely use, e.g., due to costs, likely success 

of establishment etc. These elements can have a significant outcome on 

predicted BNG outcomes. Therefore, the completed metric and condition 

assessment sheets can evidence that these elements have been considered and 

the predicted outcomes are realistic.    

EDDC District Ecologist 

13/10/23 - Please see scanned letter under the 'documents' tab. 

 

Devon County Council Education Dept 

29/01/24 - Regarding the proposal for a development of 29 family-type dwellings, 

Devon County Council would need to request an education contribution to 

mitigate its impact. 29 family-type dwellings will generate an additional 7.25 

primary pupils and 4.35 secondary pupils which would have a direct impact on 

Woodbury primary school and Exmouth Community College. In order to make 

the development acceptable in planning terms, an education contribution to 

mitigate its impact will be requested. This is set out below: 

In accordance with the Education Infrastructure Plan 2016-2033, DCC will 

consider the adopted Local Plan allocations in addition to the forecast spare 

capacity and already approved but not yet implemented developments.  We will 

share the forecast spare capacity of an area proportionately between all 

outstanding development sites allocated in the Local Plan. 

The local Primary School is forecast to not have capacity for the pupils likely to 

be generated by the proposed development. Therefore, Devon County Council 

would seek a contribution based on the number of pupils generated directly 

towards additional primary education infrastructure. The contribution sought 

towards primary is £123,953 (based on the DfE extension rate of £17,097 per 

pupil). This would relate directly to providing primary education facilities for those 

living in the development.  

The local Secondary Schools are also not forecast to have capacity for the pupils 

likely to be generated by the proposed development. Therefore, Devon County 

Council would seek a contribution based on the number of pupils generated 

directly towards additional secondary education infrastructure. The contribution 

page 114



sought towards secondary is £102,399 (based on the DfE extension rate of 

£23,540 per pupil). This would relate directly to providing secondary education 

facilities for those living in the development.  

DCC would also require a contribution towards secondary school transport costs 

due to the development being further than 2.25 miles from Exmouth Community 

College. The current costs required are as follows: - 

4.35 secondary pupils 

£2.65 per day x 4.35 pupils x 190 academic days x 5 years = £10,951 

All education infrastructure contributions will be subject to indexation using BCIS, 

it should be noted that education infrastructure contributions are based on June 

2020 rates and any indexation applied to these contributions should be applied 

from this date. All school transport contributions will be subject to indexation 

using RPI. Any indexation applied to school transport contributions should be 

applied from the date a section 106 agreement is signed for this application. 

The amount requested is based on established educational formulae (which 

related to the number of primary and secondary age children that are likely to be 

living in this type of accommodation). It is considered that this is an appropriate 

methodology to ensure that the contribution is fairly and reasonably related in 

scale to the development proposed which complies with CIL Regulation 122.  

In addition to the contribution figures quoted above, the County Council would 

wish to recover legal costs incurred as a result of the preparation and completion 

of the Agreement. 

Devon County Council Education Dept 

15/03/24 - Regarding the proposal for a development of 31 family type dwellings, 

Devon County Council would need to request an education contribution to 

mitigate its impact. 29 family type dwellings will generate an additional 7.25 

primary pupils and 4.65 secondary pupils which would have a direct impact on 

Woodbury primary school and Exmouth Community College. In order to make 

the development acceptable in planning terms, an education contribution to 

mitigate its impact will be requested. This is set out below:  

In accordance with the Education Infrastructure Plan 2016-2033,  DCC will 

consider the adopted Local Plan allocations in addition to the forecast spare 

capacity and already approved but not yet implemented developments.  We will 

share the forecast spare capacity of an area proportionately beween all 

outstanding development sites allocated in the Local Plan. 

The local Primary School is forecast to not have capacity for the pupils likely to 

be generated by the proposed development. Therefore, Devon County Council 

would seek a contribution based on the number of pupils generated directly 

towards additional primary education infrastructure. The contribution sought 

towards primary is £132,501 (based on the DfE extension rate of £17,097 per 

page 115



pupil). This would relate directly to providing primary education facilities for those 

living in the development. 

The local Secondary Schools are also not forecast to have capacity for the pupils 

likely to be generated by the proposed development. Therefore, Devon County 

Council would seek a contribution based on the number of pupils generated 

directly towards additional secondary education infrastructure. The contribution 

sought towards secondary is £109,461 (based on the DfE extension rate of 

£23,540 per pupil). This would relate directly to providing secondary education 

facilities for those living in the development.  

DCC would also require a contribution towards secondary school transport costs 

due to the development being further than 2.25 miles from Exmouth Community 

College. The current costs required are as follows: - 

4.35 secondary pupils 

£2.65 per day x 4.65 pupils x 190 academic days x 5 years = £11,706 

All education infrastructure contributions will be subject to indexation using BCIS, 

it should be noted that education infrastructure contributions are based on June 

2020 rates and any indexation applied to these contributions should be applied 

from this date. All school transport contributions will be subject to indexation 

using RPI. Any indexation applied to school transport contributions should be 

applied from the date a section 106 agreement is signed for this application. 

The amount requested is based on established educational formulae (which 

related to the number of primary and secondary age children that are likely to be 

living in this type of accommodation). It is considered that this is an appropriate 

methodology to ensure that the contribution is fairly and reasonably related in 

scale to the development proposed which complies with CIL Regulation 122.  

In addition to the contribution figures quoted above, the County Council would 

wish to recover legal costs incurred as a result of the preparation and completion 

of the Agreement. 

 

Police Architectural Liaison Officer - Kris Calderhead 

17/07/23 - Thank you on behalf of Devon and Cornwall Police for the opportunity 

to comment on this application. 

I appreciate that the layout of the site is only illustrative at this stage however, I 

would like to make the following comments and recommendations for 

consideration. They relate to the principles of Crime Prevention Through 

Environmental Design (CPTED) and should be embedded into the detailed 

design of the scheme to reduce the opportunity for crime and anti-social 

behaviour (ASB). 

The POS to the rear of plots 20 and 21 is somewhat enclosed and whilst I 

appreciate plots 15 and 17 will provide some surveillance over the space, the 

page 116



space does not appear particularly inviting and it also provides access to the rear 

boundaries and gates of plots 20 and 21. This could lead to the space being 

vulnerable to misuse and the plots vulnerable to intrusion. 

Should the application progress, it would be beneficial if designing out crime is 

referenced in any future Design and Access Statement (DAS) or any addendum 

to the existing one, in order to detail how the scheme has considered and 

embedded designing out crime principles into its design. 

Detailed design should include a layout that provides overlooking and active 

frontages to the new internal streets with accessible space to the rear of plots 

avoided. Should the rear boundaries of plots abut public space they should be 

afforded a buffer to prevent easy access. 

Any existing or new hedgerow that is likely to comprise new rear garden 

boundaries must be fit for purpose. They should be of sufficient height and depth 

to provide both a consistent and effective defensive boundary as soon as 

residents move in. If additional planting will be required to achieve this then 

temporary fencing may be required until such planting has matured. Any hedge 

must be of a type which does not undergo radical seasonal change which would 

affect its security function. 

Boundary treatments to the front of dwellings are important to create defensible 

space to prevent conflict between public and private areas and clearly define 

ownership of space. The use of low-level railings, walls, hedging for example 

would be appropriate. 

Kris Calderhead 

Designing Out Crime Officer 

Exeter Police Station 

Sidmouth Road 

EX2 7RY 

West Team 

Planning Office 

East Devon Council 

2 

o Treatments for the side and rear boundaries of plots should be adequately 

secure (min 1.8m height) with access to the rear of properties restricted via 

lockable gates. Defensible space should also be utilised where private space 

abuts public space in order to reduce the likelihood of conflict and damage etc. 

o Pedestrian routes throughout the development must be clearly defined, wide, 

well overlooked and well-lit. Planting immediately abutting such paths should 

page 117



generally be avoided as shrubs and trees have a tendency to grow over the path 

creating pinch points, places of concealment and unnecessary maintenance. 

o Presumably the site will be adopted and lit as per normal guidelines (BS 5489). 

Appropriate lighting for pathways, gates and parking areas must be considered. 

This will promote the safe use of such areas, reduce the fear of crime and 

increase surveillance opportunities. 

o Vehicle parking will clearly be through a mixture of solutions although from a 

crime prevention point of view, parking in locked garages or on a hard standing 

within the dwelling boundary is preferable. Where communal parking areas are 

utilised, bays should be in small groups, close and adjacent to homes in view of 

active rooms. 

Rear parking courts are discouraged as they provide legitimate access to the 

rear of plots and are often left unlit with little surveillance. 

If the 'car park for 30 parking spaces transferred to parish council' is intended for 

use by the parish council only, what measures will be in place to prevent misuse 

/ conflict from other users? 

o POS should be afforded an appropriate boundary treatment to prevent vehicle 

access. 

Should the application progress, please don't hesitate to contact me again to 

review any updated plans and designs. 

17/07/2023 

 

NHS Local (Eastern Locality) 

04/08/23 - see report under "document" tab 

  

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

page 118



Ward Woodbury And Lympstone

Reference 23/1600/MOUT

Applicant Mr Gary Salter

Location Land Off Globe Hill Woodbury EX5 1LL

Proposal Outline application for construction of up to 28
residential units (including affordable housing),
new vehicular access onto Globe Hill, open
space, new parish office and Globe Hill highway
works (all matters reserved except for access)

RECOMMENDATION: 
1. Adopt the appropriate assessment 
2. Secure financial contributions and other matters through a Section 106 Legal Agreement 
3. Approve with conditions

Crown Copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey 100023746

page 119

Agenda Item 9



 

23/1600/MOUT  

  Committee Date: 24.09.2024 
 

Woodbury And 
Lympstone 
(Woodbury) 
 

 
23/1600/MOUT 
 

Target Date:  
31.10.2023 

Applicant: Mr Gary Salter 
 

Location: Land Off Globe Hill  Woodbury 
 

Proposal: Outline application for construction of up to 28 residential 
units (including affordable housing), new vehicular access 
onto Globe Hill, open space, new parish office and Globe 
Hill highway works (all matters reserved except for 
access) 
 

  

 
RECOMMENDATION:  1. Adopt the appropriate assessment 

2. Secure financial contributions and other matters 
through a Section 106 Legal Agreement 

3. Approve with conditions  
 

 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
This application is before Members because it represents a departure from the 
adopted Development Plan and a contrary view has been adopted by the Ward 
Member. 
 
The proposal is not in accordance with the Local Plan, with Strategy 7 stating that 
new development in the countryside, and outside Built Up Area Boundaries 
should be strictly controlled.   As planning applications must be determined in 
accordance with the development plan this would suggest that planning 
permission ought to be refused, unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise.  
 
The site is located adjacent to the western edge of the built-up area boundary for 
Woodbury and is within the Woodbury Conservation Area.   
 
The application has been submitted in outline form for the construction of 28 
residential dwellings with public open space, SuDs systems, landscaping and 
associated infrastructure. The proposal includes the provision of affordable 
housing at 50% (35% on-site and 15% off-site contribution). Access is to be 
considered at this stage, with a new access road being created at the point of an 
existing access onto Globe Hill.  The proposed access has been found to be 
acceptable from a highway safety perspective and whilst off-site highway works 
and traffic calming measures on Globe Hill are also proposed, they are not 

page 120



 

23/1600/MOUT  

required to make the application acceptable in highway safety terms.  The 
reserved matter of access, which is sought under this application is therefore 
considered to be acceptable. 
 
The site lies outside of, but adjacent to the currently identified BuAB and within 
the Woodbury Conservation Area.  It is well related to the centre of the village with 
a pedestrian link to The Arch where there are a number of facilities and services, 
and public transport links.  As such the proposal would have some policy support 
from Strategy 3 (Sustainable Development) of the Local Plan and would contribute 
to the achievement of sustainable development required by the NPPF23.  
 
The delivery of additional housing is a material consideration in the determination 
of this application and significant weight should be given to the need to bolster 
the council’s housing land supply position, and in particular the provision of 
affordable housing. 
 
This development would provide 28 new dwellings with 50% affordable, 
comprising 35% on site with a 15% off-site contribution).   This would meet the 
requirements of Strategy 34 (District Wide Affordable Housing Provision Targets) 
of the Local Plan and will be secured by a S106 Legal Agreement. 
 
The character and appearance of the site would change quite significantly from 
its current parkland setting to a more urban built form, although it is proposed to 
retain the majority of trees, and to create large areas of landscaping within the 
site. The landscape and visual effects are generally localised, with limited views 
in and from the site. 
 
The provision of a Parish Council building is proposed on site, with off-site works 
including traffic calming measures and other highway improvement works which 
will be of benefit to local residents although they are not required as part of the 
wider development under any policy and therefore cannot be secured in any legal 
agreement with the council.   
 
Subject to appropriate conditions, the indicative layout is acceptable in terms of 
flood risk, surface water management and safeguarding the watercourse located 
in the southern part of the site.  It is also acceptable in terms of highway safety 
and access. 
 
The site lies near to a number of heritage assets including listed buildings and 
non-designated heritage assets. Any harm identified by the conservation officer 
and Historic England is considered to be at the lower end of less than substantial 
and concerns their setting rather than any direct effect to those buildings. In this 
respect it is necessary to consider the public benefits of granting permission over 
any harm. The benefits identified above, particularly in terms of the delivery of 
additional dwellings and  the provision of affordable housing, are considered, on 
balance, to outweigh any such harm. 
 
Whilst it is noted that the Council can, at present demonstrate the necessary 4 
year housing land supply this is considered to be a short term position and that 

page 121



 

23/1600/MOUT  

in order to be able to meet longer term housing requirements new housing 
development, and particularly affordable housing is necessary.   
 
In applying the planning balance there is a need to weigh any harm caused by 
development outside of any defined development boundary, and consequently  
contrary to Strategy 1 (Spatial Strategy for Development in East Devon), 7 
(Development in the Countryside) and 27 (Development at the Small Towns and 
Larger Villages), against the need for housing within the district.  In this case the 
development is sustainably located adjacent to the centre of the village and 
consequently supported by Strategy 3 (Sustainable Development) and the 
provisions of the NPPF23.  The application is supported by the Parish Council 
although it has also attracted a number of objections from neighbouring 
residents, and the Ward Member.  
 
In conclusion, having regard to all planning issues and material considerations, 
the need for new and affordable dwellings to boost the future housing supply of 
the district is considered to justify a departure from the Local Plan.  
 
It is recommended therefore that the appropriate assessment be adopted, and that 
outline permission (with access approved) is granted subject to the completion of 
a S106 agreement and the conditions set out below. 
 

 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Local Consultations 
 
Woodbury And Lympstone - Cllr Geoff Jung 
25.03.24 
I have viewed the further documents for planning application 23/1600/MOUT for 
outline application for construction of up to 28 residential units (including affordable 
housing), new vehicular access onto Globe Hill, open space, new parish office and 
Globe Hill highway works (all matters reserved except for access)at land Off Globe Hill 
Woodbury. 
I note that most of the objections from strategic consultees have reviewed their 
comments following various changes and proposals from the applicant. Therefore, I 
withdraw my comments of objection to the Flood, Highway, and the site being in the 
conservation area. 
Following changes to Government Planning policy in Dec 2023 the local planning 
policy can now demonstrate a 4-year land supply and therefore the current local plan 
can demonstrate that there is a 4-year land supply and therefore the EDDC Local Plan 
is at present current and active and not considered 'out of date'. 
Therefore, as this application does not comply to the Current Local Plan, I am unable 
to support this Application. 
If this application is proposed to be recommended for approval, I would want to see 
some clarification to the continuing management of the open spaces for this site along 
with the proposed other assets as it is normal practice for these site-specific proposals 
would be managed by a site management company in perpetuity. However, these 
open spaces would seem to be accessed and able to be used by the general public.  

page 122



 

23/1600/MOUT  

However, I reserve my final views on this application until I am in full possession of all 
the relevant arguments for and against. 
 
Woodbury And Lympstone - Cllr Geoff Jung 
16.10.23 
23/1600/MOUT 
I have viewed the further documents and visited this site for this planning application 
23/1600/MOUT for an outline application for construction of up to 28 residential units 
(up to 7 affordable), new vehicular access onto Globe Hill, open space, new parish 
office and Globe Hill highway works (all matters reserved except for access) on land 
off Globe Hill Woodbury. The extra information provided by the Environment Agency 
further confirms that the plan at presently presented should not be supported. 
Therefore, I cannot support the application, but I reserve my final views on this 
application until I am in full possession of all the relevant arguments for and against. 
 
Woodbury And Lympstone - Cllr Geoff Jung 
25.08.23 
23/1600/MOUT 
I have viewed the documents and visited this site for this planning application 
23/1600/MOUT for an outline application for construction of up to 28 residential units 
(up to 7 affordable), new vehicular access onto Globe Hill, open space, new parish 
office and Globe Hill highway works (all matters reserved except for access) on land 
off Globe Hill Woodbury. 
This is an imaginative and thoughtful application in a sensitive location as the site is in 
the Woodbury Conservation area. It provides a number of community assets with 
public access to the proposed open areas, and improved highway measures that will 
hopefully be complimented by a village 20MPH speed limit which is a key road safety 
requirement for this village included in the head of terms for this proposal through a 
proposed financial contribution. 
At the present time the Local Authority, cannot demonstrate a 5-year land supply and 
therefore Government Natural Planning Policy requires the East Devon Local Plan to 
be considered out of date. Therefore, there is a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development which applies to all developments for residential dwellings unless the 
application is within a protected area. The list of protected areas includes Heritage 
assets and areas at risk of flooding. Part of this site is in the flood zone 3 and is in the 
Woodbury conservation area. 
 
Regarding the issue of the area within the Flood Zone the EA has submitted their 
observations and I support their view. Regarding the site being in a conservation area, 
Historic England (a government body) has submitted their comments and I again 
support their views. 
 
Because two government bodies do not support this application and the National 
Policy excludes this from automatic presumption for development it is my view it 
therefore has to be considered against the present Local Plan strategies. 
 
The development fails on a substantial number of Local Plan Strategies including 
Strategy 1 and 2. As the community can demonstrate that they have oversupplied on 
their spatial requirement for small towns and villages already. Regarding Strategy 3 
the assessment by the applicants that development contributes towards the short-term 

page 123



 

23/1600/MOUT  

short fall in housing numbers does not comply to section e, which requires a long-term 
view rather than a short-term view which in this case is a temporary failure in housing 
numbers. It also fails in Strategy 5 section 7 as it fails to protect areas vulnerable to 
surface water runoff and flooding according to the EA.  
 
Regarding Strategy 6 regarding BUABs its clear that this application is outside this 
village boundary and therefore it must be considered as a development within the open 
countryside which then means it is not compliant to Strategy 7 as well. 
 
Strategy 27 relates to small towns and larger villages and lists Woodbury being 
assigned 35 dwellings which was covered in Strategy I and 2 so therefore fails.  
 
The final Strategy this application fails on is possibly the largest issue which is Strategy 
34 relating to affordable housing. The local plan requires 50% of the development to 
be affordable housing subject to viability considerations. Unfortunately, this application 
fails to provide this quota and fails to provide a valid reason for this shortfall. 
 
In view of the reasons given I am unable to support what I consider a well thought out 
and designed application with a number of community benefits but unfortunately not 
in the right location nor does it comply to National and Local policy. 
 
However, I reserve my final views on this application until I am in full possession of all 
the relevant arguments for and against. 
 
Parish/Town Council 
06.02.23 
Woodbury Parish Council would like to reiterate our support for the planning 
application 23/1600/MOUT. It is our understanding this is soon to be considered by 
East Devon District Council (EDDC) Planning Committee and in view of EDDC recent 
discussions and decision made relating to land supply we ask that the following is 
considered by this Committee.  
 
Woodbury Parish Council at our Full Council meeting on Monday 22nd January 2024 
considered whether to review its declared support for this application as well as 
decisions made towards other major applications in the Parish due to the current land 
supply situation.  
The Parish Council decided to maintain its position and, in this case, to support the 
application specifically in view of the benefits it will bring to Woodbury in the short term 
and in the longer term in view of traffic pressures from inevitable developments near 
the Parish.  
 
The Parish Council set out desired benefits in the form of the conditions listed in its 
submission to East Devon District Council on 21st September 2023. Despite the 
apparent short-term adjustment in land supply targets, there is no real change to the 
longer-term housing need requirement, including an orientation towards achieving a 
better balance of affordable properties in the housing mix. The application will support 
necessary traffic measures and provide additional and valuable public space for the 
enjoyment of residents which has not been generally available. 
 

page 124



 

23/1600/MOUT  

Woodbury Parish Council continues to support this application subject to the following 
conditions, as previously submitted; 
 
1. Fountain feature is fully maintained and kept clear of vegetation; 
 
2. Affordable housing in the region of 35% dependent on funding towards additional 
public amenities (in line with EDDC specialist officer's recommendations in Jan 2024) 
 
3. Effective traffic calming measures are being guaranteed which incorporates a good 
layout with safety for pedestrians as a priority. Vehicle activation enforcement on 
Globe Hill to be implemented, if possible; 
 
4. Funding for a 20mph scheme across the village to be provided; 
 
5. Funding towards improvements to the Arch including pedestrian safety and 
additional parking for as many as possible to be included within the lower part of the 
site, but ideally in the region of 20 spaces; 
 
6. Additional public amenity facilities around the community building and open space 
adjacent to the existing stream to provide a social area with seating.  
 
7. Lower part of the site not to be so compact, maybe several proposed dwellings to 
be moved to the upper part of the site to allow for social amenity space and more of 
an open vista. 
 
8. Oak trees to be protected and as much of the surrounding hedging. 
 
9. Only one pedestrian access suitable for all users from the site to The Arch (not near 
the junction). 
 
We, additionally have a major concern with any future development in the Parish and 
within the surrounding parishes and town with regards to sewage discharges. The 
number of sewage spills and discharges into the river Exe and tributaries, a SSSI and 
RAMSAR site and out to sea is not acceptable. The damage to public health, wildlife 
and related tourism businesses is completely deplorable.  
East Devon District Council should, prior to any further development being approved 
be insisting that South West Water resolves this matter with demonstrable proof of 
how it is stopping future discharges and spills. 
 
Parish/Town Council 
11.10.23 
Woodbury Parish Council does not have any further comment to make from our 
response submitted on Thu 21 September 2023. 
  
Parish/Town Council 
21.09.23 
Woodbury Parish Council supports this application subject to the following; 
 
1. Fountain feature is fully maintained and kept clear of vegetation;  

page 125



 

23/1600/MOUT  

2. Affordable housing in the region of 35% dependent on funding towards additional 
public amenities; 
3. Effective traffic calming measures being guaranteed which incorporates a good 
layout with safety for pedestrians as a priority. Electric enforcement on Globe Hill to 
be implemented, if possible;  
4. Funding for a 20mph scheme across the village to be provided; 
5. Funding towards improvements to the Arch including pedestrian safety and 
additional parking for as many as possible to be included within the lower part of the 
site, but ideally in the region of 20 spaces; 
6. Additional public amenity facilities around the community building and open space 
adjacent to the existing stream to provide a social area with seating. (i.e. Pickleball 
Court / French Boules)  
7. Lower part of the site not to be so compact, maybe several proposed dwellings to 
be moved to the upper part of the site to allow for social amenity space and more of 
an open vista.  
8. Oak trees to be protected and as much of the surrounding hedging.  
9. Only one pedestrian access suitable for all users from the site to The Arch (not near 
the junction). 
 
We would ask that East Devon District Council deducts any additional housing 
approved in the Parish from the number of dwellings in the new Local Plan to be 
allocated for Woodbury Parish.  
 
We have a general concern with any future development in the Parish and within the 
surrounding parishes and town with regards to sewage. The number of sewage spills 
and discharges in to the River Exe; a SSSI site and out to sea is not acceptable. 
Wildlife and Tourism are major assets to this area and sewage discharge and spills is 
a fundamental disaster. EDDC as a priority should prior to any further development 
being approved be insisting that South West Water resolves this matter and stops 
future discharges and spills or at least mitigates it so it is a rare event.  
 
Summary of Technical Consultations (Full Responses in Appendix 1) 
 
County Highway Authority 18.12.23 
 
Recommendation: 
 
THE HEAD OF PLANNING, TRANSPORTATION AND ENVIRONMENT, ON 
BEHALF OF DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL, AS LOCAL HIGHWAY AUTHORITY, MAY 
WISH TO RECOMMEND CONDITIONS ON ANY GRANT OF PLANNING 
PERMISSION 
 
Housing Strategy/Enabling Officer - Cassandra Harrison 22.01.24 
 
I can confirm that I support the application with 35% affordable housing, which equates 
to 9 units.   These 9 units can all be provided as a Rent to Buy product such as Rent 
Plus.  
 

page 126



 

23/1600/MOUT  

I do not support these 9 units as age restricted, because to meet housing need the 
district council provides for all age groups.   I would suggest you make your open 
market units age restricted.  
 
Environment Agency 13.03.24 
 
We withdraw our previous objection subject to inclusion of conditions relating to flood 
risk management. The suggested wording for these conditions and the reason for our 
position is provided below. The illustrative design, whilst not a confirmation of the 
proposed layout identifies that acceptable principles of flood risk management 
(including the easement of the flood alleviation channel) can be achieved on site with 
the quantum of development proposed. Therefore, we are satisfied at this stage that 
based on the information submitted, the proposal now complies in the broadest terms 
with the National Planning Policy Framework and the associated Planning Practice 
Guidance. If the following conditions are not included, we would maintain our 
objection.  
  
DCC Flood Risk SuDS Consultation 05.01.24 
  
Our objection is withdrawn and we have no in-principle objections to the above 
planning application at this stage, assuming pre-commencement planning conditions 
are imposed on any approved permission: 
 
South West Water 08.12.23 
 
SWWL does not object to the principle of the proposed Outline application; however, 
if the Local Planning Authority is minded to approve the application, SWWL request 
suitable conditions are attached. 
 
Foul Water Flows 
In summary, SWWL would support the inclusion of two conditions relating to Foul 
Water. A Grampian condition restricting occupation as described above, and a 
condition requesting further detail within a subsequent Reserved Matters application, 
in the event the LPA are minded to approve. 
 
Potable Water Supply 
It is anticipated that suitable provision can be made within the existing network for the 
supply of potable water to the proposed development.  
 
Should the development encroach on the 3 metre easement, the sewer will need to 
be diverted at the expense of the applicant. 
 
Devon County Archaeologist 29.11.23 
 
The results of the archaeological field evaluation have shown that the application area 
has a low potential for containing heritage assets with archaeological significance.  
The features that were exposed related to the drainage of the site as well as areas 
disturbed by the removal of tree. The drainage features on the site are likely to be 
associated with feeding water to the fountainhead built, in the late 19th century, into 

page 127



 

23/1600/MOUT  

the wall on the western boundary of the site and facing onto the carriageway of the 
B3179. 
 
Given the demonstrated low potential of the proposed development site I do not 
consider that any further archaeological work is required in mitigation for the impact of 
the proposed development and, as such, would like to withdraw the Historic 
Environment Team's previous objection and instead offer no comments on this 
planning application. 
 
Historic England 19.12.23 
 
Historic England has concern regarding the proposed development on the site, Land 
off Globe Hill. The introduction of housing will erode a positive green open space within 
the conservation area. It will also have an urbanising affect on the parkland character 
currently experienced from the grade II listed Oakhayes House (Para 206 and 202). 
The impact on the church is less harmful but would still have a degree of adverse 
impact.  
 
Conservation 19,12.23  
 
The concerns as raised in the previous comments will result in harm to the character 
and appearance of the Conservation Area and in addition result in harm to the setting 
of both Oakhayes and the Church. This harm is considered to be less than substantial.  
 
EDDC Trees 
 
Therefore based on the above comments, in principle I would have no objection to the 
proposal but recommend the following condition be put in place to ensure the retained 
trees are afforded protection during construction.  
 
EDDC Landscape Architect 16.11.23 
 
Although the proposals would have a major impact on the character of the site itself 
landscape and visual impacts beyond its boundaries are likely to be very localised. 
The principle of housing development on the site is therefore considered acceptable 
in terms of overall landscape and visual impact subject to design and density. 
 
District Ecologist 01.12.23 
 
The submitted ecological survey information including ecological avoidance, 
mitigation, and enhancement measures are generally considered acceptable subject 
to appropriate conditions are imposed and the successful implementation of the 
mitigation and enhancement measures. 
 
Natural England 24.01.24 
 
DESIGNATED SITES [EUROPEAN] - NO OBJECTION SUBJECT TO SECURING 
APPROPRIATE MITIGATION 
 
 

page 128



 

23/1600/MOUT  

Environmental Health 09.08.23 
 
A Construction and Environment Management Plan (CEMP) must be submitted and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to any works commencing on site and 
shall be implemented and remain in place throughout the development.   
 
Police Architectural Liaison Officer 14.08.23 
 
Detailed comments provided on illustrative layout 
 
DCC Education 
 
Regarding the proposal for a development of 24 family-type dwellings, Devon County 
Council would need to request an education contribution to mitigate its impact. 24 
family-type dwellings will generate an additional 6.00 primary pupils and 3.60 
secondary pupils which would have a direct impact on Woodbury primary school and 
Exmouth Community College. In order to make the development acceptable in 
planning terms, an education contribution to mitigate its impact will be requested. 
 
Other Representations 
 
58 representations have been received, with 57 raising the concerns (summarised 
below) 
 

• The infrastructure of the village cannot cope with more dwellings 

• Site is outside the Built-up Area Boundary 

• There is no need for more dwellings in the village 

• Detrimental to highway safety 

• Inadequate sewage facilities 

• Loss of wildlife habitat 

• Additional traffic on roads 

• Impact and loss of trees 

• New housing has already been approved in the village 

• Amendments to NPPF mean that there is no longer a shortfall of housing 

• Impact on Woodbury Conservation Area 

• Detrimental to setting of nearby listed buildings 

• New access through historic wall not acceptable 

• Loss of outlook and privacy 

• The Parish Council office should not be included in the application  

• Archaeological damage 

• Additional noise and pollution 

• Increased risk of flooding from surface water run-off 

• Lack of employment in Woodbury for future residents 

• Poor public transport links to the village 

• Loss of a valuable green space 
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
The application site has no planning history 

page 129



 

23/1600/MOUT  

 
The following applications are considered relevant to this site:  
 
22/1761/FUL | Conversion and extension of existing buildings to create two residential 
dwellings, construction of 6no. dwellings with associated landscaping, infrastructure 
and works and demolition of existing buildings. | Land At Venmore Barn Woodbury | 
APPROVED (15 Jan 2024)  
 
22/2838/MOUT Outline application for the construction of up to 70 residential units 
including open space, affordable housing, and offsite highway works (all matters 
reserved except for access) | Land To South Broadway Woodbury | RESOLUTION 
TO APPROVE SUBJECT TO LEGAL AGREEMENT 
 
23/1258/MOUT | Outline application (with details of access to be considered and all 
other matters reserved) for the residential development of up to 35 no. dwellings (12 
affordable); vehicular and pedestrian access from Globe Hill, pedestrian access only 
from public right of way; demolition of existing wooden structure to be replaced with 
Parish Council building; community parking area; public open space, landscaping, 
wildflower meadow and orchard and other associated infrastructure. | Land To The 
Rear Of Orchard House Globe Hill Woodbury | PENDING CONSIDERATION  
   
23/2166/MOUT  Outline application for the construction of up to 60 dwellings 
including affordable housing seeking approval for new vehicular access and 
pedestrian access, with matters of layout, scale, appearance and landscaping 
reserved for future consideration. | Land South of Gilbrook House, Woodbury | 
PENDING CONSIDERATION 
 
POLICIES 
 
Strategy 1 (Spatial Strategy for Development in East Devon)  
Strategy 3 (Sustainable Development)  
Strategy 5B (Sustainable Transport)  
Strategy 7 (Development in the Countryside)  
Strategy 27 (Development at the Small Towns and Larger Villages) 
Strategy 31 (Future Job and Employment Land Provision)  
Strategy 34 (District Wide Affordable Housing Provision Targets)  
Strategy 36 (Accessible and Adaptable Homes and Care/Extra Care Homes)  
Strategy 38 (Sustainable Design and Construction)  
Strategy 43 (Open Space Standards)  
Strategy 46 (Landscape Conservation and Enhancement and AONBs) 
Strategy 47 (Nature Conservation and Geology)  
Strategy 48 (Local Distinctiveness in the Built Environment)  
Strategy 49 (The Historic Environment)  
Strategy 50 (Infrastructure Delivery)   
 
D1 (Design and Local Distinctiveness)  
D2 (Landscape Requirements)  
D3 (Trees and Development Sites)  
 
EN5 (Wildlife Habitats and Features) 

page 130



 

23/1600/MOUT  

EN7 (Proposals Affecting Sites which may potentially be of Archaeological 
Importance)  
EN8 (Significance of Heritage Assets and their Setting)  
EN9 (Development Affecting a Designated Heritage Asset) 
EN10 (Conservation Areas) 
EN14 (Control of Pollution)  
EN19 (Adequacy of Foul Sewers and Adequacy of Sewage Treatment Systems)  
EN21 (River and Coastal Flooding)  
EN22 (Surface Run-off Implications of New Development) 
 
TC2 (Accessibility of New Development)  
TC7 (Adequacy of Road Network and Site Access)  
TC9 (Parking Provision in New Development) 
 
Government Planning Documents 
 
NPPF23 (National Planning Policy Framework 2023) 
National Planning Practice Guidance 
 
Site Location and Description 
 
The application site lies on the western side of the village of Woodbury, to the east of 
Globe Hill which is the main arterial route into the village and is outside, but adjacent 
to the identified built-up area boundary.  It is within the Woodbury Conservation Area. 
 
The site comprises green field land, formerly part of the extended parkland associated 
with Oakhayes, a Grade II listed building, extending to around 2.12ha in area, with an 
approximately rectangular form.  The southern boundary is formed by The Arch with 
the garden boundary of Oakhayes, to the north.  To the west the site is bounded by 
the gardens of dwellings in Broadmead, with the eastern boundary adjacent to Globe 
Hill (B3179). 
 
The site falls from the north (c.55m AOD) to south (c44m AOD), with the lowest part 
of the site being the flood relief channel which crosses the site from east to west. The 
channel separates the northern part of the site from the relatively level southern area, 
adjacent to The Arch in the centre of the village.   
 
A blanket Tree Preservation Order covers the whole of the site.  
 
The East Devon National Landscape is approximately 1.2km to the east.  
 
The site is located within 10km of the Exe Estuary Special Protection Area (SPA) and 
East Devon Pebblebed Heaths Special Area of Conservation (SAC) and SPA.  
 
The wider village of Woodbury is home to a number of services including a 
convenience shop, doctors surgery, church, village hall, primary school, hairdressers, 
playing fields, public house and the village is served by a number of bus routes 
including the T, 58/58A, and 358. Exton Train Station is located around 2.8km from 
the site. The city of Exeter City Centre is around 7 miles to the northwest (20-25 
minutes by car) and Exmouth is around 4.5 miles to the south (10-15 minutes by car). 

page 131



 

23/1600/MOUT  

 
Proposed Development  
 
This application seeks outline planning permission, with all matters reserved except 
access, for the development of up to 28 dwellings including 9 affordable units.  The 
indicative layout indicates a central, linear public open space area with most of the 
dwellings to the south and east of this.  
 
A new access is proposed from Globe Hill on the western side of the site, with a spine 
road, extending to the south where it is proposed that a new pedestrian access onto 
The Arch is also created. The proposal also includes off-site highway works including 
traffic calming measures, the creation of a footpath along part of Globe Hill, linking to 
three formalised parking spaces, and a central refuge pedestrian crossing point on 
Globe Hill. 
 
The indicative layout provides most of the dwellings towards the eastern side of the 
site, with further properties, parking and a new parish council building and disabled 
toilet with community square indicated to the south of the flood relief channel. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The main issues to be considered in the determination of this application relate to:  

• Policy Position and The Principle of Development  

• Housing Land Supply Position 

• Affordable Housing  

• Transport and Access 

• Design and Layout  

• Heritage Impact 

• Archaeology 

• Landscape and Visual Impact  

• Residential Amenity  

• Arboricultural Impact 

• Drainage and Flood Risk 

• Ecology/Biodiversity 

• Open Space 

• Planning Obligations  

• Planning Balance and Conclusions 
 
Policy Position and Principle of Development  
 
Strategies 1 and 2 of the Local Plan set out the scale and distribution of residential 
development in the district for the period 2013-2031. The main focus is on the West 
End and the seven main towns. Development in the smaller towns, villages and other 
rural areas is geared to meet local needs and represents a much smaller proportion 
of the planned housing development. 
  
Strategy 3 (Sustainable Development) of the adopted EDLP (2016) states that the 
objective of ensuring sustainable development is central to our thinking. We interpret 
sustainable development in East Devon to mean that the following issues and their 

page 132



 

23/1600/MOUT  

inter-relationships are taken fully into account when considering development: a) 
Conserving and Enhancing the Environment - which includes ensuring development 
is undertaken in a way that minimises harm and enhances biodiversity and the quality 
and character of the landscape. This includes reducing the risk of flooding by 
incorporating measures such as sustainable drainage systems. Developers should 
maximise the proportion of their developments that take place on previously developed 
land b) Prudent natural resource use - which includes minimising fossil fuel use 
therefore reducing carbon dioxide emissions. It also includes minimising resource 
consumption, reusing materials and recycling. Renewable energy development will be 
encouraged c) Promoting social wellbeing - which includes providing facilities to meet 
people's needs such as health care, affordable housing, recreation space and village 
halls. d) Encouraging sustainable economic development - which includes securing 
jobs. e) Taking a long term view of our actions - Ensuring that future generations live 
in a high quality environment where jobs, facilities, education and training are readily 
available. 
 
Strategy 7 (Development in the Countryside) of the adopted EDLP (2016) states that 
the countryside is defined as all those parts of the plan area that are outside the Built-
up Area Boundaries and outside of site specific allocations shown on the Proposals 
Map. Development in the countryside will only be permitted where it is in accordance 
with a specific Local or Neighbourhood Plan policy that explicitly permits such 
development and where it would not harm the distinctive landscape, amenity and 
environmental qualities within which it is located, including:  
1. Land form and patterns of settlement.  
2. Important natural and manmade features which contribute to the local 
landscape character, including topography, traditional field boundaries, areas of 
importance for nature conservation and rural buildings.  
3. The adverse disruption of a view from a public place which forms part of the 
distinctive character of the area or otherwise causes significant visual intrusions. 
 
The proposed development would comprise major development in the countryside, 
outside of the defined settlement boundary of Woodbury, thereby conflicting with 
Strategy 7 of the local plan. Consequently, the site would not offer an appropriate 
location for the development proposed having regard to the development plan's overall 
settlement strategy and expectation for such development to be contained within a 
designated built up area boundary.  
 
Strategy 27 (Development at the Small Towns and Larger Villages) of the adopted 
EDLP (2016) states that the following settlements vary in size and character but all 
offer a range of accessible services and facilities to meet many of the everyday needs 
of local residents and they have reasonable public transport.  
 
As stated above, the site in this case is located outside of the BuAB of Woodbury as 
defined in Strategy 27 (Development at the Small Towns and Larger Villages) of the 
adopted Local Plan and developed through the Villages Plan. In strategic policy terms 
therefore, the site is within the 'countryside' as defined in Local Plan Strategy 7 
(Development in the Countryside), the provisions of which would not ordinarily 
facilitate new build housing in the absence of any other local or neighbourhood plan 
policy that would permit such development. 
 

page 133



 

23/1600/MOUT  

The application site lies outside of the built-up area boundary for Woodbury as defined 
under the currently adopted Local Plan (as defined by the Villages Plan 2018) meaning 
that this site is located in open countryside as set out in Strategy 7. Strategy 7 also 
sets out that development in the countryside is resisted except where it is explicitly 
supported by a specific Local or Neighbourhood Plan policies and where that 
development would not harm the distinctive landscape, amenity, and environmental 
qualities of the area in which it is located. Under the adopted Local Plan, the site is not 
allocated for development and is not considered to be an exception site. At the time of 
determination, Woodbury has not adopted a Neighbourhood Plan meaning that there 
are no local or neighbourhood plan policies which explicitly supports the development. 
The proposal would therefore be in conflict with Strategies 1, 7 and 27.  
 
Given the above residential development of this nature and in this location conflicts 
with the spatial approach to development as expressed within the development plan. 
This conflict is considered to be attributed significant weight given that this is one of 
the main objectives of the local plan.  
 
The application has some support from Strategy 3 of the EDLP which encourages 
sustainable development. This is also supported by the NPPF (2023) which sets out 
a presumption in favour of sustainable development which involves meeting three 
overarching objectives (economic, social and environmental) which includes building 
a strong and competitive economy, support strong and healthy communities and 
protecting and enhancing our built and natural environment. The proposed 
development would provide housing and much needed affordable housing in 
Woodbury with associated economic benefits, the proposal would be located in close 
proximity to the existing village and would be within walking and cycling distance from 
day-to-day services, community facilities and open space. It is considered that the 
proposal would appear to accord with the overarching principles of delivering 
sustainable development which is given weight in the planning balance.  
 
Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2008 states that 
development must be made in accordance with the development plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. This is also echoed in Paragraph 12 of the NPPF 
(2023) which states that the presumption in favour of sustainable development does 
not change the statutory status of the development plan as the starting point for 
decision-making. Where a planning application conflicts with an up-to-date 
development plan (including any neighbourhood plans that form part of the 
development plan), permission should not usually be granted. Local planning 
authorities may take decisions that depart from an up-to-date development plan, but 
only if material considerations in a particular case indicate that the plan should not be 
followed.  
 
This paragraph of the NPPF allows for Local Planning Authority's to make decisions 
which depart from the local plan if the material considerations of the development 
outweigh the harm.  
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (December 2023) (NPPF) states, at 
paragraph 77, that "local planning authorities should identify and update annually a 
supply of specific deliverable sites sufficient to provide either a minimum of five years' 

page 134



 

23/1600/MOUT  

worth of housing, or a minimum of four years' worth of housing if the provisions in 
paragraph 226 apply."   
  
Paragraph 226 states: "From the date of publication of this revision of the Framework, 
for decision-making purposes only, certain local planning authorities will only be 
required to identify and update annually a supply of specific deliverable sites sufficient 
to provide a minimum of four years' worth of housing (with a buffer, if applicable, as 
set out in paragraph 77) against the housing requirement set out in adopted strategic 
policies, or against local housing need where the strategic policies are more than five 
years old, instead of a minimum of five years as set out in paragraph 77 of this 
Framework. This policy applies to those authorities which have an emerging local plan 
that has either been submitted for examination or has reached Regulation 18 or 
Regulation 19 (Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 
2012) stage, including both a policies map and proposed allocations towards meeting 
housing need." 
  
The draft local plan consultation undertaken by East Devon District Council in 
November 2022 to January 2023 was carried out under Regulation 18. The emerging 
new Local Plan is therefore sufficiently progressed to benefit from this provision.   
  
On this basis, and as the Council can demonstrate a 4.5 year housing land supply, 
policies within the adopted Local Plan most important for determining the application 
remain up to date and the presumption in favour of sustainable development (the 'tilted 
balance') set out at paragraph 11d) of the NPPF need not be applied. 
 
(It is noted that the current government is consulting on a revised version of the NPPF 
which proposes to delete paragraph 226 from the NPPF, reverting to the standard 
requirement for all Council’s to demonstrate a 5-year housing land supply, but the 
consultation document carries little weight at present.) 
 
Housing Land Supply Position 
 
The need for housing over the next five years is a crucial consideration in planning 
decisions and should be given significant weight. Paragraph 69 of the NPPF (2023) 
states that Local Planning Authority’s must identify specific sites for housing for the 
next five years and broader areas for growth for the subsequent 10-15 years. This 
means that a responsible and proactive council should be looking beyond the mere 4 
and 5 year timescales, recognise the implications of present actions and should take 
action now with regard to the impact of these longer time scales.  
  
If the Council cannot demonstrate a five-year housing supply when adopting a new 
local plan, it would conflict with paragraph 69(a) of the NPPF. Without an adequate 
supply of housing an Inspector would likely find such an emerging plan unsound and 
inconsistent with the requirements of Paragraph 35 of the NPPF. Therefore, on this 
basis alone the Council should not rely solely on a short-term, four-year housing 
supply, as providing robust reason enough for resisting further housing as a matter of 
principle, especially if the development would accord with the principles of sustainable 
development.  
  

page 135



 

23/1600/MOUT  

Appeal decisions have shown that even if a site is not allocated in the current plan or 
is outside development boundaries, it can still nevertheless be considered for 
'sustainable development' if there is no identified contextual conflict and is within 
reasonable reach of an appropriate level of services and facilities. This is especially 
relevant given the Council's current and future housing supply challenges, regardless 
of the 'tilted balance'. 
  
The NPPF, prior to December 2023 required a continuous five-year housing supply 
and a number of other authorities have struggled to maintain this, leading to weaker 
positions when subject to appeals against planning decisions. These decisions often 
relied on overly optimistic policy assessments (purposely or otherwise), resulting in a 
compounded effect on future planning. The experience of these authorities shows that 
it takes time to recover (so to claw back an appropriate supply of housing) so as to 
successfully defend against appeals for sites deemed unacceptable.  
  
The Council's Housing Monitoring Update shows that the forthcoming five-year 
housing trajectory will fall below the required numbers and it is notable that affordable 
housing delivery has also been below the required levels. Currently, about 6,000 
households are on the Council's housing register. The district's identified affordable 
housing need is 272 dwellings per year, totalling 4,896 dwellings over the 18-year plan 
period. Delivery in recent years has fallen well short of this annual target 
 
This issue was considered by Strategic Planning Committee on 15/7/2024 following 
the receipt of advice from Kings Counsel. The committee resolved to advise Planning 
Committee that in considering planning applications for housing developments that 
would deliver homes within the next 5 years in a sustainable way, significant weight 
should be given to the need to bolster the council’s housing land supply position. This 
is in order to ensure that the council has a robust housing land supply and as a result 
a sound local plan in respect of housing land supply for examination of the Local Plan. 
 
There is a clear need for more housing, both market and affordable, within the district. 
The current and projected levels of housing delivery do not meet this need in the long 
term under the current policy climate. This unmet need is a significant factor for 
decision-makers in planning applications and appeals, particularly pertinent for 
otherwise sustainable sites outside current settlement boundaries. 
 
To be in a strong position now, and remain so in the future, the Council must boost its 
supply of market and affordable housing and develop a local plan that ensures the 
realistic delivery of sufficient homes over the plan period. A robust approach in this 
regard would mean the adoption of a local plan which both expresses and reflects the 
needs of the district, provides the ability to defend unsustainable sites for development 
at appeal, prevent speculative planning applications afflicting local communities and 
meet the social elements at a national scale by delivering the right type of housing at 
the right time.  Accordingly, the need to boost the supply of housing is a material 
consideration that can be attributed great weight given the strategic importance that 
maintaining a healthy supply of housing means to the council and its ability to retain 
control over key planning decisions.  
 
Affordable Housing 
 

page 136



 

23/1600/MOUT  

Lack of affordable housing is a critical issue in East Devon and in order to retain 
younger people in our neighbourhoods and communities, as well as housing others in 
need, we need more affordable homes.  
 
Strategy 34 (District Wide Affordable Housing Provision Targets) of the adopted EDLP 
(2016) states that affordable housing will be required on residential developments in 
East Devon. Areas to which higher (50%) affordable housing targets apply: Outside of 
the areas listed above (i.e. all other parts of East Devon including all settlements not 
listed, coastal and rural areas and Budleigh Salterton and Sidmouth) 50% of the 
dwellings shall be affordable subject to viability considerations. The 50% figure applies 
to all areas that do not come under the 25% classification and which are permitted 
under Strategy 35 'Exceptions' policy. Strategy 34 sets a target of 70% for rented 
accommodation (social or affordable rent) and 30% for affordable home ownership.  
 
As the site lies outside the BUAB for Woodbury and in accordance with Strategy 34 
the development should provide 50% affordable housing. Full weight can be given the 
Local Plan policies on housing as the Council has the requisite housing land supply 
as noted above. This would equate to 14 dwellings (based on 28 dwelling total). At the 
time of the submission of the planning application (when the Council did not have the 
requisite housing land supply and therefore our housing policies were out of date) the 
requirement would have been 25%, as originally submitted. Since the publication of 
the new NPPF, to reflect the new position the Council now finds itself in with regard to 
having an up to date set of housing policies, the developer has confirmed it will 
propose 50% affordable housing, 32.1% on site and 17.9% (£145,137.50) off-site 
contribution which would accord with Strategy 34 
 
This level of affordable housing has received support from the Housing Enabling 
Officer, who has stated that they can be provided as a Rent to Buy product, such as 
Rent Plus. On a smaller scheme such as this a wider range of tenure types would be 
hard to achieve and a product such as RentPlus would add variety to the affordable 
housing provision coming forward within this area. 
 
In order to secure the level of affordable housing proposed, a S106 legal agreement 
would be required should an approval be forthcoming. Officers would expect a mix of 
houses to meet the local requirement in Woodbury.  
 
Whilst providing some of the affordable housing in the form of a contribution which 
would not be fully compliant with Strategy 34 as it is not wholly being provided on site, 
nine dwellings on site, plus a contribution to equate to 50% affordable provision must 
be seen as beneficial and afforded significant weight in the planning balance.  
 
In line with Strategy 36, all of the affordable housing and around 20% of market units 
must meet part M4(2) of the Building Regulations. This could be secured via S106 
legal agreement and reviewed as part of any reserved matters application.  
 
Having regard to the above, the development could accord with Strategy 36 
(Accessible and Adaptable Homes and Care/Extra Care Homes), and would accord 
with Strategy 34 (District Wide Affordable Housing Provision Targets), and Strategy 
50 (Infrastructure Delivery) of the adopted Local Plan (2016) and the East Devon 
Affordable Housing SPD (November 2020).   

page 137



 

23/1600/MOUT  

 
Transport and Access 
 
Strategy 5B (Sustainable Transport) of the EDLP (2016) states that development 
proposals should contribute to the objectives of promoting and securing sustainable 
modes of travel and transport. Development will need to be of a form, incorporate 
proposals for and be at locations where it will encourage and allow for efficient, safe 
and accessible means of transport with overall low impact on the environment, 
including walking and cycling, low and ultra-low emission vehicles, car sharing and 
public transport. 
 
Policy TC2 (Accessibility of New Development) of the EDLP (2016) states that new 
development should be located so as to be accessible by pedestrians, cyclists and 
public transport and also well related to compatible land uses so as to minimise the 
need to travel by car.  
 
Policy TC4 (Footpaths, Bridleways and Cycleways) of the EDLP (2016) states that 
development proposals will be required to include measures to provide, improve and 
extend facilities for pedestrians and cyclists commensurate with the scale of the 
proposal.  
 
Policy TC7 (Adequacy of Road Network and Site Access) of the EDLP (2016) states 
that planning permission for new development will not be granted if the proposed 
access, or the traffic generated by the development, would be detrimental to the safe 
and satisfactory operation of the local, or wider, highway network.  
 
Policy TC9 (Parking Provision in New Development) of the EDLP (2016) states that 
spaces will need to be provided for parking of cars and bicycles in new developments. 
All small scale and large scale major developments should include charging points for 
electric cars. 
 
The application is submitted in outline with the only detailed matter for consideration 
relating to access to the site.  Access to the site is proposed from Globe Hill (B1379) 
with a new junction being created slightly to the south of an existing field entrance.  
The new entrance will have a carriageway width of 4.8m with a 2m wide footpath on 
its southern side.  The footpath will extend around the entrance onto the eastern side 
of Globe Hill to a new pedestrian crossing with the formation of a pedestrian refuge in 
the centre of the road, subject to finalised agreement with the County Highway 
Authority, who are supportive of the suggested scheme in principle.  The footpath on 
the eastern side of the road would then extend to the existing informal parking area 
which it is proposed to be widened to allow cars to park safely in this area.  
 
The submitted draft Heads of Terms proposes contributions towards further off-site 
traffic calming measures on Globe Hill.  These include enhancement of the village 
gateway, various visual only speed bumps and markings, the provision of the 
pedestrian crossing and potentially the introduction of a reduced 20mph speed limit to 
this part of Globe Hill (although this element would require the approval of a Traffic 
Regulation Order) 
 

page 138



 

23/1600/MOUT  

Visibility splays would be achieved by the removal of part of the boundary hedging to 
the south of the junction and reduction in height of the vegetation to the north.  
 
The highway safety measures, traffic calming and crossing point are necessary to 
afford safe access to the proposed development from Globe Hill and would meet the 
statutory tests for Planning Obligations set out in Regulation 122 of the CIL regulations 
to make the development in planning terms and are directly related to the 
development.  They would also be of wider public benefit in terms of improving 
highway safety for the community. 
 
Notwithstanding the suggested off-site highway improvement works on Globe Hill, a 
direct pedestrian access is proposed from the site to the centre of the village by the 
creation of a new entrance on The Arch. This will enable residents to access the 
facilities within the centre of the village, including shops, public houses, church and 
school without having to negotiate crossing Globe Hill. 
 
The indicative masterplan shows the internal main spine road extending through the 
site with from north to south, crossing the flood channel and providing access to the 
development in the southern area, with a new pedestrian access onto The Arch.  
 
The development will inevitably generate some additional vehicular activity on the local 
road network however the Highway Authority are of the opinion that this would not be 
significant and whilst the off-site works would need to be subject to a Traffic Regulation 
Order, it is considered that the suggested measures will result in a safety net gain.  On 
this basis it is considered the proposal would comply with the provisions of Policy TC7 
(Adequacy of Road Network and Site Access) of the Local Plan.  
 
In terms of wider accessibility, Policy TC2 and the NPPF seek residential development 
that is in positions where there are viable alternatives to the private car allowing 
pedestrian, cycle and public transport access to jobs, services, and amenities.  The 
application site is accessible to a range of services including bus services, shops, 
schools, medical services, and jobs (predominantly in further afield settlements by 
bus).  There are suitable and safe walking routes into the village centre.  The site is 
accessible and future residents would have viable and sustainable alternatives to 
using the private car. 
 
The submitted Transport Assessment is considered acceptable by Devon County 
Highway Authority and the overall the scheme considered to accord with Policies TC2 
and TC7 of the EDDC Local Plan and the guidance in the NPPF. 
 
Design and Layout 
 
Policy D1 (Design and Local Distinctiveness) of the Local Plan sets out detailed criteria 
to ensure that new development is of a high quality design and is locally distinctive.  In 
particular, development should respect the key characteristics and special qualities of 
the area and ensure the scale, massing, density, height, fenestration and materials of 
buildings relate well to their context.  In addition, development should not adversely 
affect the urban form in terms of significant street patterns, groups of buildings and 
open spaces. 
 

page 139



 

23/1600/MOUT  

Section 12 of the NPPF, 2023 states that the creation of high quality, beautiful and 
sustainable buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and development 
process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development 
(para 126).  In addition, development should function well and add to the overall quality 
of the area; be visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and 
appropriate and effective landscaping; and be sympathetic to local character and 
history, including the surrounding built environment and landscape setting (para 130). 
Development that is not well designed should be refused (para 134) 
 
The application has been submitted in outline, with matters of design, appearance, 
layout and scale forming reserved matters to be considered in detail should an outline 
consent be forthcoming.  Nevertheless, an illustrative masterplan layout has been 
submitted which identifies, and seeks to address, the constraints of the site, both in 
physical terms and heritage impact. In this respect the majority of development is 
proposed on the eastern side of the site, and to the south of the drainage channel, 
seeking to maintain an open vista through the site from the Grade II listed building, 
Oakhayes, to the south down towards Globe Hill.  The suggested layout also maintains 
a view of the tower of the Grade I listed St Swithun’s Church through the development 
and above the existing properties on the eastern boundary of the site.   
 
The illustrative masterplan shows the indicative road layout, location of public open 
spaces, suggested position of dwellings and private gardens; and connections to the 
southern part of the site, with proposed parish building, parking and community 
square, together with proposed pedestrian access onto The Arch to the south of the 
site.   
 
However, as the application is submitted in outline it is subject to amendments in terms 
of design and layout which would be considered as part of any reserved matters 
application.  Any reserved matters application would need to address specific 
concerns raised regarding layout and form as well as design and appearance of the 
built form.   
 
Overall, it is considered that the level of development being proposed could be 
accommodated on the site without resulting in a cramped form of development that 
would be at odds with the grain of development within the village or surrounding built 
form.  It is considered that the proposals would therefore comply with the provisions 
of Policies D1 (Design and Local Distinctiveness) of the Local Plan, and the advice 
contained within the NPPF23. 
 
Heritage Impact 
 
The statutory duty contained in section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires the decision maker to have special regard to 
the desirability of preserving listed buildings or their setting, or any features of special 
architectural or historic interest which they possess. When considering the impact of 
a proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great 
weight should be given to the asset's conservation (and the more important the asset, 
the greater the weight should be). This is irrespective of whether any potential harm 
amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less than substantial harm to its significance. 
Any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated heritage asset (from its 

page 140



 

23/1600/MOUT  

alteration or destruction, or from development within its setting), should require clear 
and convincing justification.  
 
Section 72 requires the decision maker pay special regard to the desirability of 
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of conservation areas. 
 
Policy D1 (Design and Local Distinctiveness) of the Local Plan states that 
development proposals should not adversely affect the distinctive historic or 
architectural character of the area. 
 
Policy EN9 (Development Affecting a Designated Heritage Asset) of the Local Plan 
states that the Council will not grant permission for developments involving substantial 
harm or total loss of significance of a designated heritage asset unless it can be 
demonstrated that it is necessary to achieve substantial public benefits that outweigh 
that harm or loss, or all of the following apply:  
 
a) the nature of the heritage asset prevents all reasonable uses of the site. 
b) no viable use of the heritage asset itself can be found in the medium term through 
appropriate marketing that will enable its conservation.  
c) conservation by grant-funding or some form of charitable or public ownership is 
demonstrably not possible.  
d) the harm or loss is outweighed by the benefit of bringing the site back into use.  
 
Substantial harm to or loss of a grade ll listed building, park or garden should be 
exceptional. Substantial harm to of loss of designated heritage assets of the highest 
significance should be wholly exceptional. 
 
Where a development proposal would lead to less than substantial harm to the 
significance of a designated heritage asset, the harm will be weighed against the 
public benefits of the proposal, including securing its optimum viable use. 
 
Policy EN10 (Conservation Areas) states that proposals for development, including 
alterations, extensions and changes of use, or the display of advertisements within a 
Conservation Area, or outside the area, but which would affect its setting or views in 
or out of the area, will only be permitted where it would preserve or enhance the 
appearance and character of the area. 
 
Policies EN9 and EN10 reflect the guidance set out in paras 199 to 208 of the NPPF, 
2023 
 
Paragraph 201 of the NPPF requires that Local Planning Authorities identify and 
assess the particular significance of any heritage asset. Paragraph 205 requires that 
great weight is given to the conservation of designated heritage assets and this 
position is further supported by EDLP Strategy 49 (The Historic Environment) and 
Policies EN8 (Significance Of Heritage Assets and Their Setting) and EN9 
(Development Affecting A Designated Heritage Asset). 
 
It is considered that whilst there is currently no public access to the site, and restricted 
visibility into it from its immediate surroundings, it is visible from further afield, and that 

page 141



 

23/1600/MOUT  

from the northernmost part of the site, extensive views of the open countryside beyond 
the village can be afforded.   
 
The site makes a positive contribution to the wider setting of the grade II Oakhayes 
House because it formed part of the designed landscape and had an historic 
relationship with the house.  Whilst there are views from within the site towards the 
grade I listed church, only the tower is visible, with existing modern housing located 
adjacent to the eastern boundary and obscuring any views of the main body of the 
church.  From the church there are very limited views into the site, with only the 
boundary vegetation being visible due to the presence of the dwellings in Broadmead. 
 
It is considered that the main heritage impact would be that affecting the setting of 
Oakhayes, the Grade II listed building to the north of the site. and the Woodbury 
Conservation Area. The housing would have an urbanising effect on the parkland 
character of site experienced from Oakhayes and would erode a green space within 
the conservation area. 
 
Paragraphs 205-208 of the National Planning Policy Framework deal with the 
assessment of harm to designated heritage assets and which advises that great 
weight should be given to an asset's conservation, and this should be proportionate to 
the importance of the asset. This approach is echoed in policy EN9- Development 
Affecting a Designated Heritage Asset of the Local Plan. 
 
The application site is within the Woodbury Conservation Area, and to the south of a 
Grade II listed building.   
 
The setting of the Church is also compromised, but due to the location/distance and 
existing development, this harm is considered to be on a slightly lower scale of less 
than substantial harm.   
 
It is acknowledged that the proposal would result in less than substantial harm to the 
setting of Oakhayes and to the Woodbury Conservation Area through the introduction 
of new residential development, and the relationship between the heritage assets and 
change in the way the heritage assets are experienced. However, the final layout 
including landscaping and position of buildings would be a reserved matters 
application and it is expected that buffers are provided between heritage assets and 
built development to reduce the harm. Planting is proposed within and around the site 
which will help integrate and screen the development into the landscape but this will 
only go so far.  
 
Where harm is identified, clear and convincing justification needs to be provided for 
any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated heritage asset including 
development within its setting (NPPF, Para 200).  
 
In cases where the scheme will affect an element that positively contributes to a 
conservation area or within the setting of affected assets, it should be considered as 
harmful. In the consideration of the application, any harm needs to be shown to be 
demonstrably outweighed by the public benefits offered by the scheme (NPPF, 206 
and 202).   
 

page 142



 

23/1600/MOUT  

This identified harm to heritage assets needs to be weighed against any public 
benefits. The proposal would result in additional dwellings adjacent to the centre of 
Woodbury which would help support employment and services in the local area and 
35% of the on-site dwellings would be affordable. The proposal would result in public 
open space and play space as well as pedestrian connections and of-site highway 
works, including traffic calming measures which would benefit the wider village and 
improve highway safety. There are also employment opportunities associated with the 
construction of the development.  
 
It is considered that whilst the proposed development would result in some visual harm 
to the site which makes a positive contribution to the green space within the wider 
Conservation Area, this harm is considered to be at the lower end of less than 
substantial and the positive benefits of the development, in terms of providing new 
housing and much needed affordable housing, and creating public access to the site 
and new vistas of the heritage assets are considered to weigh heavily in favour of the 
development such that it would overall comply with the requirements of policy EN9 
(Development Affecting a Designated Heritage Asset) of the Local Plan and paragraph 
208 of the NPPF23. 
 
It has been suggested that there may be potential for the historic fountain head located 
within the boundary wall adjacent to Globe Hill be relocated either to within or on the 
edge of the development to better reveal its significance, although this is not proposed 
as part of the application the suggestion is not supported by Conservation Officers 
who consider that there is no justification for its relocation.  
 
Archaeology 
 
The application was accompanied by a geophysical survey which identified anomalies 
indicative of below-ground archaeological features, which it was not possible to 
determine the significant of and as such further intrusive field evaluation was required.  
An archaeological field evaluation of the site has been undertaken and completed with 
the results indicating that application site has a low potential for containing heritage 
assets with archaeological significance.  The features that were exposed related to 
drainage features likely to be associated with feeding water to the fountain head built, 
in the late 19th Century, into the wall on the western side for the boundary facing onto 
Globe Hill, as well as areas disturbed by the removal of trees.   
 
Given the findings of the field evaluation any archaeological concerns have been 
allayed and the Historic Environment Team objection withdrawn. 
 
However, with regard to the fountain head on the B3179, the development of this site 
as proposed will effectively remove the drainage system that once fed the fountain 
and the potential for it to flow again will be lost.  The fountainhead is located within the 
Conservation Area facing directly onto the southbound carriageway of the B3179 and 
is not accessible by any footpath.  The wall into which the fountainhead is built appears 
to have some cracks in its fabric and is leaning and bowed.   Given the removal of its 
water supply, the inaccessibility of this heritage asset and the potential need to repair 
this wall to make it secure as part of the development of the site would the applicant 
consider the removal and relocation of this non-designated heritage asset within or on 
the edge of the development site to better reveal the significance of this heritage asset 

page 143



 

23/1600/MOUT  

as required by para 206 of the NPPF (2023).  Any relocation would need to be 
sympathetic to the fountainhead itself, publicly accessible and accompanied by 
appropriate public information and interpretation. 
 
Landscape and Visual Impact  
 
Strategy 46 (Landscape Conservation and Enhancement and AONBs) of the Local 
Plan requires that development will need to be undertaken in a manner that is 
sympathetic to and helps conserve and enhance the quality and local distinctiveness 
of, the natural and historic landscape character of East Devon, in particular in Areas 
of Outstanding Natural Beauty (now known as National Landscapes (NLs). 
 
When considering development in or affecting AONBs, great weight will be given to 
conserving and enhancing their landscape and scenic beauty.  This is reinforced by 
para 176 of the NPPF, 2023 
 
Policy D1 (Design and Local Distinctiveness) of the Local Plan states that 
development proposals should not adversely affect important landscape 
characteristics or prominent topographical features. 
 
Para 174 of the NPPF, 2023 states that planning decisions should contribute to and 
enhance the natural and local environment by protecting and enhancing valued 
landscapes, should recognise the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside 
and should maintain the character of the undeveloped coast. 
 
The site comprises parkland, originally associated with Oakhayes, but which is now 
separated from the garden area associate with the property which has been sub-
divided into a number of apartments.  There is an open fence separating the site from 
the curtilage of Oakhayes, trees and hedgerow planting to the majority of the boundary 
with Globe Hill to the west and a stone boundary wall and further planting to its 
southern boundary adjacent to The Arch.  The eastern boundary is formed by trees 
and hedging, and domestic fencing to the rear gardens of the properties in 
Broadmead, and the properties accessed from The Arch. 
 
Within the site there are a number of large and attractive trees, with the whole site 
covered by a blanket tree preservation order. There is no public access to the site.  
Views out of the site are limited due to the presence of boundary vegetation, Oakhayes 
and the properties adjacent to the eastern boundary. However, at the top of the site, 
adjacent to the Oakhayes boundary, there are views to the open countryside beyond 
the village towards Woodbury Common and the Pebble Bed Heaths. 
 
The proposals will have a major impact within the site, however beyond the boundaries 
the wider landscape impact is likely to be very localised, generally being limited to 
glimpsed views from Globe Hill and from the proposed pedestrian access onto The 
Arch.  The indicative layout suggests two dwellings close to the entrance to the site, 
and these, together with the formation of a new estate access onto Globe Hill will have 
an urbanising impact on this immediate vicinity.  Existing development on the western 
side of Globe Hill, is already somewhat urban in form, with buildings and boundary 
walls located adjacent to the back edge of the narrow pavement.   
 

page 144



 

23/1600/MOUT  

The introduction of traffic calming measures at the entrance to the village, together 
with the formation of the new estate access and creation of a pedestrian refuge in the 
centre of the carriageway and introduction of pedestrian footway will also have an 
urbanising impact on this part of Globe Hill, and the approach to the village from the 
west.  
 
The residential development of the site would, inevitably, have a visual impact on the 
character of the site itself and would result in some loss of views of the church tower 
and the listed building to the north. Alterations to the access could be constructed 
without adverse impact on the boundary trees to Globe Hill and any wider landscape 
impacts are likely to be very localised.  
 
Whilst there remains some concern regarding the illustrative layout, the application is 
submitted in outline form and the principle of housing development on the site is 
considered to be acceptable in terms of overall landscape and visual impact subject 
to detailed design and density such that it would comply with Policy D2 (Landscape 
Requirements) of the East Devon Local Plan 2013-2031.  
 
Residential Amenity  
 
Policy D1 (Design and Local Distinctiveness) of the Local Plan states that 
development should not adversely affect the amenity of occupiers of adjoining 
residential properties. 
 
Policy EN14 (Control of Pollution) of the Local Plan states that permission will not be 
granted for development which results in unacceptable levels of pollution including 
smell, fumes and dust; pollution of surface or underground waters; noise; vibration; 
light intrusion and fly nuisance  
 
Para 130 of the NPPF, 2023 states that development should create places that are 
safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and well-being, with a high 
standard of amenity for existing and future users. 
 
There are a number of residential properties whose gardens border the eastern side 
of the site, and a further property to the south east of the site which fronts onto the 
eastern boundary.  The indicative layout suggests that most of the proposed dwellings 
would be located towards the eastern side of the site to maintain the open vistas from 
and of Oakhayes to the north of the site.   
 
Concerns have been raised that the proposed siting and proximity of dwellings to the 
boundary of the site will have an unacceptable impact on residential and other 
amenity, however the proposals are in outline and do not include detailed plans for the 
housing proposed.  The exact location and design of residential dwellings would be 
determined at the reserved matters stage.  However based on the illustrative 
masterplan submitted, it is considered that the number of dwellings and other 
development being proposed could be accommodated on the site without having an 
unacceptable impact on the residential amenities of those living adjacent to the site in 
terms of overlooking, loss of privacy or nuisance.  
 

page 145



 

23/1600/MOUT  

In terms of Environmental Health, the District Council's Environmental Health Officer 
reviewed the application and recommended a Construction and Environment 
Management Plan (CEMP) condition to any approval.   
 
The proposed dwellings would be expected to comply with the Nationally Described 
Space Standards (NDSS). Whilst these are not adopted planning policy within the 
Local Plan, they are nevertheless a useful guide and Policy D1 seeks to ensure that 
development does not adversely affect the living conditions of occupants of proposed 
future residential properties and that development includes features that maintain 
good levels of daylight and sunlight into buildings. These requirements also accord 
with the P.135 (f) of the NPPF's requirement for a high standard of amenity for existing 
and future occupiers.  
 
The proposed development at outline stage is therefore considered to be acceptable 
and would comply with Policy D1 and Policy EN14.   
 
Arboricultural Impact 
 
Policy D1 (Design and Local Distinctiveness) of the Local Plan states that 
development should not adversely affect trees worthy of retention. 
 
Policy D3 (Trees and Development Sites) states that permission will only be granted  
for development, where appropriate tree retention and/or planting is proposed in 
conjunction with the proposed nearby construction. The council will seek to ensure, 
subject to detailed design considerations, that there is no net loss in the quality of trees 
or hedgerows resulting from an approved development. The development should 
deliver a harmonious and sustainable relationship between structures and trees. The 
recommendations of British Standard 5837:2012 (or the current revision) will be taken 
fully into account in addressing development proposals. 
 
Para 136 of the NPPF23 states that trees make an important contribution to the 
character and quality of urban environments, and can also help mitigate and adapt to 
climate change; opportunities should be taken to incorporate trees elsewhere in 
developments (such as parks and community orchards), that appropriate measures 
should be in place to secure the long-term maintenance of newly-planted trees, and 
that existing trees should be retained wherever possible. 
 
The whole of the application site is covered by a blanket tree preservation order, and 
there are large specimen trees within both the main body of the site and towards the 
boundaries.  The illustrative layout suggests that some trees would be removed, 
although revisions to the layout have resulted in the retention of a number of those 
which were previously at risk.  Amendments to the access onto Globe Hill have also 
resulted in the retention of a number of trees in this location. Whilst the loss of any 
trees is regrettable, the amended indicative layout, subject to conditions is now 
considered to be acceptable in principle, such that the development would comply with 
Policy D3 (Trees and Development Sites) of the Local Plan.  
 
 
 
 

page 146



 

23/1600/MOUT  

Drainage and Flood Risk 
 
Policy EN21 (River and Coastal Flooding) of the EDLP (2016) states that a sequential 
approach will be taken to considering whether new developments excluding minor 
developments and changes of use will be permitted in areas subject to river and 
coastal flooding. Wherever possible, developments should be sited in Flood Zone 1. 
The policy sets out a sequential approach whereby if there is no reasonably available 
site in Flood Zone 1, only then will locating the development in Flood Zone 2 and Flood 
Zone 3 be considered. 
 
Policy EN22 (Surface Run-Off Implications of New Development) of the adopted Local 
Plan (2016) states that planning permission for new development will require that:  
1. The surface water run-off implications of the proposal have been fully considered 
and found to be acceptable, including implications for coastal erosion.  
2. Appropriate remedial measures are included as an integral part of the development, 
and there are clear arrangements in place for ongoing maintenance over the lifetime 
of the development.  
3. Where remedial measures are required away from the application site, the 
developer is in a position to secure the implementation of such measures.  
4. A Drainage Impact Assessment will be required for all new development with 
potentially significant surface run off implications.  
5. Surface water in all major commercial developments or schemes for 10 homes or 
more (or any revised threshold set by Government) should be managed by sustainable 
drainage systems, unless demonstrated to be inappropriate. 
 
The NPPF (2023) states at Paragraph 168 that the aim of the sequential test is to steer 
new development to areas with the lowest risk of flooding from any source. 
Development should not be allocated or permitted if there are reasonably available 
sites appropriate for the proposed development in areas with a lower risk of flooding. 
The strategic flood risk assessment will provide the basis for applying this test. The 
sequential approach should be used in areas known to be at risk now or in the future 
from any form of flooding. 
 
The majority of the site is within Flood Zone 1 where there is a very low risk of flooding 
however, part of the site adjacent to the flood alleviation channel in the south lies within 
an area identified as Flood Zones 2 and 3.  The illustrative masterplan indicates that 
the built development will avoid these areas. 
 
In relation to surface water run-off, a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) has been 
submitted as part of the application including a Surface Water Management Plan 
developed in accordance with DCC’s ‘SuDS Guidance for Devon’ with an additional 
allowance of 45% additional capacity made for climate change. 
 
The applicant has proposed to manage surface water drainage back to the existing 
green field rates, using under drained permeable paving, attenuation pond, a detention 
basin and cellular tank before discharge into the alleviation channel.  Other features 
such as raingardens and tree pits are also to be explored. 
 
The application was reviewed by DCC Flood Risk, as the Lead Local Flood Authority 
who initially objected to the application and requested further information. Following 

page 147



 

23/1600/MOUT  

the submission of an amended surface water drainage strategy, DCC Flood Risk 
removed their objection and requested a further detail condition is attached to any 
approval. The condition would seek a detailed drainage design, management of the 
surface water drainage system as well as information on the existing surface water 
drainage systems. The proposal is considered to be acceptable at this stage in relation 
to surface water subject to conditions.  
 
As part of the site is located within the Flood Zone, the Environment Agency (EA) were 
consulted on the application. The EA raised no objection to the proposed development 
subject to the inclusion of a condition relating to the management of flood risk on any 
permission granted. The EA also advised the LPA that the flood risk Sequential Test 
must be satisfied in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
and the failure of the Sequential Test is sufficient justification to refuse a planning 
application.  
 
The Flood Risk Assessment submitted by the applicant indicates that the site layout 
and levels and associated finished floor levels will be wholly in Flood Zone 1, therefore 
the Sequential Test is deemed to be met. 
 
However, The R (Mead and Redrow) v SoS LUHC [2024] EWHC 279 High Court 
judgement indicated that as parts of the site (albeit not parts intended to be built on) 
were within flood zones 2 and 3, a sequential test was required in relation to flood risk. 
This judgement indicates that for this application, a more detailed sequential test would 
be required to consider whether there are any sites where all development and 
associated open spaces and accesses lie wholly outside flood zones 2 and 3, rather 
than just the built development.  
 
The reason for the sequential test is to ensure that areas at little or no risk of flooding 
from any source are developed in preference to areas at higher risk. This means 
avoiding, so far as possible, development in current and future medium and high flood 
risk areas considering all sources of flooding including areas at risk of surface water 
flooding. There is some limited national guidance (NPPG) on what information is 
required to inform the Sequential Test. 
 
The guidance states that for individual planning applications where there has been no 
sequential testing of the allocations in the development plan, or where the use of the 
site being proposed is not in accordance with the development plan, the area to apply 
the Sequential Test across will be defined by local circumstances relating to the 
catchment area for the type of development proposed. For some developments this 
may be clear, for example, the catchment area for a school. In other cases, it may be 
identified from other Local Plan policies, such as the need for affordable housing within 
a town centre, or a specific area identified for regeneration.  
 
The NPPG does state that local factors can be considered when deciding the area of 
search to draw up. However, there is no up to date housing needs assessment 
identifying a specific need for the housing in the local area or any other factors that 
would limit the area of search to a smaller area, so for the purposes of this application 
the area of search is considered to be the district of East Devon. 
 

page 148



 

23/1600/MOUT  

An important factor to take into account is the current local plan review that is being 
undertaken by the Council, in particular its allocation of housing sites to meet the 
needs of the district to cover the plan period. A strategic review of available sites 
across the district has been undertaken and culminated in a Regulation 18 plan being 
consulted upon which included first and second choice housing sites together with a 
new community.  Even if all proposed allocations are carried forward to Regulation 19 
stage the amount of sites would fall short of the number of houses required to meet 
the needs of the district going forward. The draft local plan includes this application 
site as a proposed housing allocation. Given that there is only a finite amount of 
available housing land in sustainable locations in the district it is considered that the 
sequential test has been passed. 
 
Where the sequential test has been passed paragraph 169 of the NPPF requires that 
the LPA undertakes an exceptions test, to pass the exception test it should be 
demonstrated that: 
 
a) the development would provide wider sustainability benefits to the community that 
outweigh the flood risk; and 
b) the development will be safe for its lifetime taking account of the vulnerability of its 
users, without increasing flood risk elsewhere, and, where possible, will reduce flood 
risk overall 
 
In this instance the proposal would provide much needed open market and affordable 
housing where there is a district wide need, but more importantly it would be in a 
sustainable location where there is good access to a range of services including   
shops, primary school, public houses, places of worship together with convenient 
public transport links to further afield settlements.  
 
It would remain safe for the lifetime of its use given that none of the built form would 
be close to areas of flooding vulnerability and surface water run off from the site would 
be controlled in an appropriate manner (once improvements are made to the local 
sewerage pumping station to deal with flows form the combined surface and foul water 
drainage) which is a benefit over the current situation of green field run off. As such it 
is considered that the exceptions test would be passed. 
 
In relation to Foul Sewage, South West Water were consulted on the application and 
do not object to the principle of the proposed outline application subject to conditions. 
They requested conditions in relation to Surface Water Management and a Water 
Conservation Strategy. They have also recommended a condition requiring written 
confirmation prior to the occupation of any dwelling, from South West Water that 
improvement works at Woodbury Waste Water Treatment Works have been 
completed, or until 1st December 2025. Officers have concerns in relation to the 
wording of this condition in so far as it suggests occupation could occur in December 
2025 even if the improvements have not taken place.    The officer view is that no 
occupation should take place until the works have been completed.  This could be 
secured via a Grampian condition if there is a reasonable prospect of the works taking 
place within the lifetime of the permission.   South West Water have confirmed some 
of the works have been completed and they are on track to complete by December 
2025.  This would be within the lifetime of the permission and therefore the application 
of a Grampian condition would be reasonable and necessary. 

page 149



 

23/1600/MOUT  

 
Having regard to the above the proposal is considered to comply with Paragraph 168 
of the NPPF23 and Policies EN21 (River and Coastal Flooding) and EN22 (Surface 
Run-off Implications of New Development) of the Local Plan. 
 
Ecology/Biodiversity 
 
Strategy 47 (Nature Conservation and Geology) of the Local Plan states that all 
development proposals will need to conserve the biodiversity and geodiversity value 
of land and buildings and minimise fragmentation of habitats; maximise opportunities 
for restoration, enhancement and connection of natural habitats and incorporate 
beneficial biodiversity conservation features.  The aims of this Strategy are reinforced 
in paras 180 to 182 of the NPPF, 2023. 
 
Policy EN5 (Wildlife Habitats and Features) of the adopted Local Plan (2016) states 
that wherever possible sites supporting important wildlife habitats or features not 
otherwise protected by policies will be protected from development proposals which 
would result in the loss of or damage to their nature conservation value, particularly 
where these form a link between or buffer to designated wildlife sites. Where potential 
arises positive opportunities for habitat creation will be encouraged through the 
development process. Where development is permitted on such sites mitigation will 
be required to reduce the negative impacts and where this is not possible adequate 
compensatory habitat enhancement or creation schemes will be required and/or 
measures required to be taken to ensure that the impacts of the development on 
valued natural features and wildlife have been mitigated to their fullest practical extent. 
 
The closest designated site is the East Devon Pebblebed Heaths SPA/SAC/SSSI, 
located about 1.8 km east of the site. The Exe Estuary SPA/SAC/RAMSAR is located 
around 2.8km from the site. There are also a number of non-statutory designated sites 
within 2 km of the site, the nearest being the Backhill County Wildlife Site (CWS) which 
is 1.9km from the site. Higher Mallocks Unconfirmed Wildlife Site (UWS) is 1.4km 
south east of the site and Rushmoor Wood Other Site of Wildlife Interest (OSWI) is 
1.9km north east of the site.  
 
The application is supported by a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal, including an 
Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey with additional ecological surveys for bats, nesting 
birds, and reptiles.  These surveys have demonstrated that the site is used by foraging 
and commuting bats, including greater horseshoe, barbastelle and lesser horseshoe, 
nesting birds including Red listed, house sparrow and Amber listed, and by slow 
worms.  The margins of the site could potentially offer habitat for dormice, but found 
that they were unlikely to be present, although this could not be ruled out. 
 
The development of the site would result in the permanent loss of approximately 0.8ha 
of neutral grassland, 50m of species-poor hedgerow and some trees.  Without 
mitigation this would result in a minor adverse ecological impact.   
 
The District Council's Ecologist reviewed the application and stated that the proposed 
ecological avoidance, mitigation, and enhancement measures are generally 
considered acceptable subject to conditions. 
 

page 150



 

23/1600/MOUT  

The mitigation proposed as part of this application as well as a CEMP and LEMP will 
need to be secured and this can reasonably be achieved through a suitably worded 
condition in the form of the requirement for the approval of an Ecological Mitigation 
Strategy based on the proposed mitigation in the Environmental Report.  
 
Biodiversity Net Gain 
 
As part of this planning application, a biodiversity net gain of at least 10% is expected 
based on the most up to date metric.  A Draft Biodiversity Gain Plan has been 
submitted, demonstrating a 15.38% positive change for habitat, with 0.47km of 
hedgerow, providing a hedgerow gain of 53.77% will be provided. 
 
Whilst the final landscaping scheme would be secured as part of a reserved matters 
application and the BNG needs to secured via a condition and then be evidenced in 
the subsequent reserved matters, it is considered that the application site would result 
in a BNG of at least 10%.  
 
Open Space 
 
Strategy 43 (Open Space Standards) of the adopted EDLP (2016) states that 
developments proposing net new dwellings will be expected to provide for open space 
on-site where there is a demonstrable need for such open space in the vicinity. 
Developments will be assessed against existing provision in the parish in which they 
are proposed. Where existing provision of specific typologies exceeds quantity 
standards, on-site provision will only be required where the existing open space 
typology is of poor quality or is in some other manner deficient such as not matching 
up to the accessibility standard. Developments will be expected to provide open space 
on-site through a Section 106 Agreement in line with the following thresholds: 

• 9 dwellings or less will not be required to provide any specific open space 
typologies onsite, however developers may choose to make such provision. 

• 10 - 49 dwellings will be required to provide amenity open space on-site. 

• 50 - 199 dwellings will be required to provide amenity open space, and 
children's and youth play space on-site.  

• 200+ dwellings will be required to provide for all open space typologies on-site. 
 
The application would include up to 28 residential dwellings meaning that amenity 
open space is required on site by Strategy 43. Strategy 43 sets out that in rural 
locations developments should include 3.0m2 per person of amenity open space  
 
As detailed layouts are not know it is considered that the application could include up 
to 70 residents. The requirement for up to 70 residents would be for 210m2 of amenity 
open space.  Whilst the detailed site layout would be reviewed as part of the reserved 
matters the illustrative layout indicates that around 1.28ha of landscaped open space 
would be provided, including an informal Local Area of Play (LAP) consisting of natural 
play equipment.  Whilst the level of development would not require the provision of a 
LAP, this is considered to be of benefit to the proposal. 
 
The proposal is considered to be acceptable in accordance with Strategy 43.  
 
 

page 151



 

23/1600/MOUT  

Habitat Regulations Assessment and Appropriate Assessment 
 
The nature of this application and its location close to the Pebblebed Heaths and their 
European Habitat designation is such that the proposal requires a Habitat Regulations 
Assessment. This section of the report forms the Appropriate Assessment required as 
a result of the Habitat Regulations Assessment and Likely Significant Effects from the 
proposal. In partnership with Natural England, the council and its neighbouring 
authorities of Exeter City Council and Teignbridge District Council have determined 
that housing and tourist accommodation developments in their areas will in-
combination have a detrimental impact on the Pebblebed Heaths through impacts from 
recreational use. The impacts are highest from developments within 10 kilometres of 
the designation. It is therefore essential that mitigation is secured to make such 
developments permissible. This mitigation is secured via a combination of funding 
secured via the Community Infrastructure Levy and contributions collected from 
residential developments within 10km of the designations. The mitigation contribution 
would be secured through a S106, currently at £367.62 per dwelling. 
 
Natural England were consulted on the AA and have advised that on the basis of the 
appropriate financial contributions being secured to the South-east Devon European 
Sites Mitigation Strategy, they would concur with this authority's conclusion in the AA 
that the proposed development will not have an adverse effect on the integrity of the 
European Sites. It is for the LPA to adopt the AA and accordingly there is a further 
recommendation on this at the end of the report. 
 
Health Care 
 
A request for a financial contribution towards healthcare services provided by the 
Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust has been made. 
 
However, the amount requested is yet to be qualified with the complexities in the 
funding gap unclear.  Recent court judgements have to be taken into account, and 
this, like other ongoing requests from the NHS have to be scrutinised in detail. In this 
case insufficient justification has been provided to support this request. 
 
Education 
 
Devon County Council Education Department has indicated that the local primary 
school’s capacity would be breached by the school aged children which this 
development would produce and have asked for contributions towards extending the 
school. Such matters fall under the CIL regime where public bodies are required to bid 
for appropriate funding towards infrastructure projects including the extension of local 
schools. As this proposal would contribute a CIL amount from each dwelling, an 
education contribution cannot be secured. 
 
Planning Obligations 
 
Strategy 50 (Infrastructure Delivery) of the adopted Local Plan (2016) states that the 
Council produced and consulted (in June/July 2013) on an Infrastructure Delivery Plan 
to set out how the implementation of Local Plan policies and proposals will be 
supported through the timely delivery of infrastructure improvements. It identifies 

page 152



 

23/1600/MOUT  

schemes, sets out how much they will cost, indicates potential funding sources and 
establishes a funding gap. Developer contributions will be sought to ensure that the 
necessary infrastructure improvements are secured to support the delivery of 
development and mitigate any adverse impacts. The failure to provide or absence of 
relevant infrastructure will be grounds to justify refusal of permission. 
 
As set out throughout this report, the following obligations are sought for this 
development via a S106 legal agreement:  

• Provision of affordable housing (32.1% on site and an off-site contribution of 
17.9% - £145,137.50) 

• Habitats Mitigation contribution of £367.62 per dwelling 

• Provision and maintenance of public open space and drainage attenuation 

• Provision of access through wall onto The Arch 

• Agreement to secure alterations to the public highway to accommodate the 
access works 

• Off-site Highways Infrastructure 

• Travel Plan 

• Secure and maintain BNG 

• Monitoring Fees 
 
At the time of writing a S106 legal agreement securing the above requirements has 
not been secured. Accordingly, the recommendation to Members is that of a resolution 
to approve, subject to the completion of the S106 and the conditions at the end of this 
report. Completion of the above mitigation measures are required to accord with 
Strategy 50 (Infrastructure Delivery) of the Local Plan.   
 
Other Matters 
 
The proposed parish council building and parking (which would be gifted to the parish 
council at nil cost) would be of benefit to the community, as would the proposed off-
site traffic calming and improvements to Globe Hill and the area around The Arch, and 
it is noted that there is Parish Council support for these elements of the application 
which would also be of wider public benefit.  However there is no evidenced demand 
for these works and there is no policy requirement to lend support to these elements 
of the proposals. 
 
At the time of determination, there are also a number of other planning applications 
for residential development in Woodbury and consideration must be given to whether 
the village can support the level of growth proposed. At present application 
22/2838/MOUT has a resolution for approval (subject to the completion of a legal 
agreement) for 70 residential dwellings and applications 23/1258/MOUT and 
21/2166/MOUT are pending consideration for 35 and 60 dwellings respectively. In total 
and including this application, up to 193 additional dwellings are proposed at 
Woodbury, all of which are unallocated in the local plan. This increase, if all were 
approved would result in a 26.4% increase in the number of dwellings in Woodbury 
and it is acknowledged that this would be a large increase for the village.  
 
Planning Balance 
 

page 153



 

23/1600/MOUT  

The NPPF seeks to significantly boost the supply of housing across England. The 
proposal would provide for a not insignificant amount of dwellings, required to bolster 
the much needed supply of housing in the district. Notwithstanding the recent changes 
to the NPPF this Council will need to demonstrate a five year housing land supply in 
order to successfully bring forward a new, updated Local Plan.  Housing delivery 
therefore remains a significant material consideration.   
 
However as set out earlier in this report, this development proposes development in 
the countryside outside of a built-up area boundary.  There has thus been an identified 
conflict with Strategy 7 (Development in the Countryside) of the Local Plan. 
 
Whilst it is currently possible to identify a sufficient housing land supply to satisfy the 
amended NPPF23 such that the ‘tilted balance’ is not engaged, the lack of current and 
future delivery of homes, and particularly affordable homes is of significance such that 
a ‘flat balance’ is considered to be an appropriate assessment of the proposed 
development. 
 
The site is considered to occupy a sustainable location within the village and is in close 
proximity to the range of services and facilities on offer within Woodbury.   
 
This application has been submitted in outline form for up to 28 residential units 
seeking approval for access only. Matters of layout, appearance, scale and 
landscaping have been reserved for future consideration, however the submitted 
indicative layout, as amended is considered to be appropriate to demonstrate that it 
would be possible to accommodate up to 28 residential units whilst respecting the 
constraints of the site. 
 
The application has a number of associated benefits including housing delivery and 
the provision of affordable homes, highway works and public open space which are 
given weight in the decision. The sustainable location and access to services and 
infrastructure is also a benefit. The proposal would include economic benefits from 
construction to operation and benefits to local businesses and services as well as CIL 
payments of which a proportion would go to the parish council. These are all 
considered to be benefits of the development which align with the NPPF's three 
overarching objectives (economic, social and environmental). Some less than 
substantial harm to the landscape and heritage assets is acknowledged which weighs 
negatively in the planning balance.  The application has been assessed in relation to 
design, amenity, ecology, sustainability, contamination and transport and is 
considered to be acceptable in these regards subject to conditions.  
 
When taking all of the above into account the conflict with residential development 
beyond the built up area boundary, and visual impact on the character of the 
immediate area and less than substantial harm to heritage assets, this not considered 
to significantly and demonstrable outweigh the benefits (noted above), when assessed 
against the policies of the framework as a whole.  
 
Furthermore, the proposed development would provide economic opportunities for the 
District including direct and indirect employment and spending in the local area. The 
proposal would provide for play and open space which is beyond the requirements of 
the Local Plan and would include public access to what is currently private amenity 

page 154



 

23/1600/MOUT  

land. The proposed houses would also be liable for CIL and Council Tax, with a 
proportion of CIL being allocated to the Parish Council to spend in the local area.    
 
In summary, whilst the proposal would sit outside of the built-up area boundary and 
would not align with the spatial strategy for development in East Devon, the proposal 
has some support from Strategy 3 and the principles of the NPPF and would benefit 
from day-to-day services within Woodbury. Furthermore, the need for housing, 
especially affordable housing within the district is a material consideration and is given 
significant weight in the decision-making process. The balance between unregulated 
development in the countryside and supply of homes is finely balanced however given 
the need to bolster supply for the longer term, the proximity to the centre of the village, 
level of affordable housing proposed and other proposed highway improvements, the 
material considerations in this instance would on balance justify a departure from the 
Adopted Local Plan subject to the satisfactory resolution of all planning issues. Every 
planning application is determined on its own merits and the precise context of every 
site is different, in this case the approval of this application does not set any 
precedence for development in the countryside.  
 
This proposal is considered to benefit from the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development which, as a material consideration, outweighs the limited conflict with the 
development plan.  As such a recommendation of approval is made, subject to 
completion of a Section 106 Agreement and appropriate conditions. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

a) ADOPT the Appropriate Assessment  
b) APPROVE the application subject to the completion of a S106 Agreement 

securing the items listed in the planning obligations section of this report and 
the following conditions. 

 
1. Application for approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the Local 

Planning Authority before the expiration of one year from the date of this 
permission. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of two years from the date of approval of the last of the reserved 
matters to be approved. 

  
(Reason - To comply with section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.). 

 
2. Approval of the details of the layout, scale and external appearance of the 

buildings and the landscaping of the site (hereinafter called "the reserved 
matters") shall be obtained from the Local Planning Authority in writing before 
any development is commenced. 

 
(Reason - The application is in outline with one or more matters reserved.) 

 
3. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved plans listed at the end of this decision notice. 
  

(Reason - For the avoidance of doubt.) 

page 155



 

23/1600/MOUT  

 
4. Prior to any works commencing on site, a Construction and Environment 

Management Plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority and shall be implemented and remain in place 
throughout the construction period. The CEMP shall include at least the following 
matters: 

   
 1) Air Quality 
 2) Dust control 
 3) Lighting 
 4) Noise and vibration 
 5) Pollution Prevention and Control, including an emergency plan 
 6) Monitoring Arrangements 
 7) Site compound and parking - location and size 
 8) Construction traffic management  
 9) Waste Management 
 10) Airport safeguarding  
 11) A detailed soil resources management plan prepared in accordance with 

Construction Code of Practice for the Sustainable use of Soils on Construction 
Sites - DEFRA September 2009. 

    
 Construction working shall not take place outside the hours of 8am to 6pm 

Monday to Friday and 8am to 1pm on Saturdays, with no working on Sundays or 
Bank Holidays, Christmas Day or Boxing Day. There shall be no burning on site. 
There shall be no high frequency audible reversing alarms used on the site. 

   
 (Reason - A pre-commencement condition is required to ensure that the details 

are agreed before the start of works to protect the amenities of nearby occupiers 
and to protect the ecology/protected species in the locality to accord with Policy 
EN14 (Control of Pollution) and EN5 (Wildlife Habitats and Features) of the East 
Devon Local Plan 2013-2031. The CEMP needs to be approved and 
implemented prior to the start of development operations as risks to the 
environment, amenity and ecology will be present from this point.) 

 
5. Construction Traffic Management Plan (CTMP)  
  
 No development shall take place until a detailed Construction Traffic 

Management Plan (CTMP) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The CTMP shall detail:  

  
 a) the timetable of the works;  
 b) daily hours of construction;  
 c) any road closure required (and a time table for this);  
 d) hours during which delivery and construction traffic will travel to and from the 

site, with such vehicular movements being restricted to between 8:00am and 
6:00pm Mondays to Fridays Inc.; 9.00am to 1.00pm Saturdays, and no such 
vehicular movements taking place on Sundays and Bank/Public Holidays unless 
agreed in writing by the Local planning Authority in advance;  

 e) the number and sizes of vehicles visiting the site in connection with the 
development and the frequency of their visits;  

page 156



 

23/1600/MOUT  

 f) the compound/location where all building materials, finished or unfinished 
products, parts, crates, packing materials and waste will be stored during the 
demolition and construction phases;  

 g) areas on-site where delivery vehicles and construction traffic will load or unload 
building materials, finished or unfinished products, parts, crates, packing 
materials and waste with confirmation that no construction traffic or delivery 
vehicles will park on the County highway for loading or unloading purposes, 
unless prior written agreement has been given by the Local Planning Authority;  

 h) hours during which no construction traffic will be present at the site;  
 i) the means of enclosure of the site during construction works; and  
 j) details of proposals to promote car sharing amongst construction staff in order 

to limit construction staff vehicles parking off-site  
 k) details of wheel washing facilities and obligations  
 l) The proposed route of all construction traffic exceeding 7.5 tonnes.  
 m) Details of the amount and location of construction worker parking.  
 n) Photographic evidence of the condition of adjacent public highway prior to 

commencement of any work;  
  
 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details 

and any subsequent amendments as shall be agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority.  

  
 (Reason - A pre-commencement condition is required to ensure that the details 

are agreed before the start of works to ensure that adequate measures are put 
in place to manage construction traffic during the development in accordance 
with Policy D1 (Design and Local Distinctiveness) and E14 (Control of Pollution 
in New Development) of the adopted East Devon Local Plan.) 

 
6. Prior to the commencement of any works on site (including demolition and site 

clearance or tree works), a full tree survey based on BS5837:2012, including a 
Tree Constraints Plan, Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural Method Statement 
for the protection of retained trees, hedges and shrubs growing on or adjacent to 
the site, [including trees which are the subject of a Tree Preservation Order 
currently in force], shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. No development or other operations shall take place except 
in complete accordance with the approved protection scheme. 

  
 The TPP and AMS shall adhere to the principles embodied in BS 5837:2012 and 

shall indicate exactly how and when the trees will be protected during the 
development process. Provision shall be made for the supervision of the tree 
protection by a suitably qualified and experienced arboriculturalist and details 
shall be included within the AMS. The AMS shall provide for the keeping of a 
monitoring log to record site visits and inspections along with: the reasons for 
such visits; the findings of the inspection and any necessary actions; all variations 
or departures from the approved details and any resultant remedial action or 
mitigation measures. On completion of the development, the completed site 
monitoring log shall be signed off by the supervising arboriculturalist and 
submitted to the Planning Authority for approval and final discharge of the 
condition. 

  

page 157



 

23/1600/MOUT  

 (Reason - A pre-commencement condition is required to ensure retention and 
protection of trees on the site during and after construction. The condition is 
required in the interests of amenity and to preserve and enhance the character 
and appearance of the area in accordance with Policies D1 - Design and Local 
Distinctiveness and D3 - Trees and Development Sites of the Adopted East 
Devon Local Plan 2013-2031.) 

 
7. No external lighting shall be installed until a Lighting Design including lux 

contours, based on the detailed site design, most recent guidelines (currently 
GN08/23 and DCC 2022), and the proposed lighting strategy has been submitted 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The design should 
clearly demonstrate where dark corridors (<0.5 lux) are provided without the 
attenuation of habitat features which long-terms management cannot be 
guaranteed. All lighting shall be installed in accordance with the specifications 
and locations set out in the design, and these shall be maintained thereafter in 
accordance with the design. Under no circumstances should any other external 
lighting be installed without prior consent from the Local Planning Authority. 

  
 (Reason - To ensure that the development has no adverse effect on protected 

and notable species and provides ecological mitigation and enhancement 
measures in accordance with Strategy 47 (Nature Conservation and Geology) 
and Policy EN5 (Wildlife Habitats and Features) and EN14 (Control of Pollution) 
of the Adopted East Devon Local Plan 2013-2031.) 

 
8. A Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) for a minimum period of 

30 years shall be submitted to, and be approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority prior to the commencement of the development based on the submitted 
Phase 1 Habitat Survey & Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (Sunflower 
International April 2023), supporting Biodiversity Net Gain Plan (Colmer Ecology 
11 June 2024) and comments made from the District Ecologist. It should include 
the location and design of biodiversity features including bird boxes (at a ratio of 
1 per unit), bat boxes, permeable fencing, and other features to be shown clearly 
on submitted plans. 

  
 The content of the LEMP shall also include the following: 
  
 a) Description and evaluation of features to be managed. 
 b) Ecological trends and constraints on site that might influence management. 
 c) Aims and objectives of management. 
 d) Appropriate management options for achieving aims and objectives. 
 e) Prescriptions for management actions. 
 f) Preparation of a work schedule (including an annual work plan capable of being 

rolled forward over a minimum 30-year period). 
 g) Details of the body or organization responsible for implementation of the plan. 
 h) Ongoing monitoring and remedial measures. 
  
 The LEMP shall also include details of the legal and funding mechanism(s) by 

which the long-term implementation of the plan will be secured by the developer 
with the management body(ies) responsible for its delivery. The plan shall also 
set out (where the results from monitoring show that conservation aims and 

page 158



 

23/1600/MOUT  

objectives of the LEMP are not being met) how contingencies and/or remedial 
action will be identified, agreed and implemented so that the development still 
delivers the fully functioning biodiversity objectives of the originally approved 
scheme. The approved plan will be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details. 

  
 (Reason - This is pre-commencement to ensure that the development has no 

adverse effect on protected and notable species and provides ecological 
mitigation and enhancement measures in accordance with Strategy 47 (Nature 
Conservation and Geology) and Policy EN5 (Wildlife Habitats and Features) and 
EN14 (Control of Pollution) of the Adopted East Devon Local Plan 2013-2031.) 

 
   
10. The reserved matters application for layout and/or landscaping submitted 

pursuant to this, permission shall include details of a scheme for the provision of 
surface water management. The details shall include: 

  
 - A description of the surface water drainage systems operation; 
 - Details of the final drainage schemes including ground investigations and 

testing results, calculations and layout; 
 - Confirmation of the viability of, and secured arrangements for, discharging 

surface water to the watercourse, if a SuDS solution is demonstrably evidenced 
to be unviable as sole discharge method; 

 - A construction Surface Water Management Plan; 
 - A Construction Quality Control Plan; 
 - Confirmation of details pertaining to the intended maintenance/adoption 

arrangements of the final drainage scheme, including responsibilities for the 
drainage systems and overland flow routes. The plan must include a drawing 
which clearly delineates the management responsibility for each drainage 
element and schedule of maintenance; and 

 - A timetable of construction. 
  
 The developments shall be implemented in accordance with the approved 

details. 
  
 (Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding and minimise the risk of 

pollution of surface and ground waters by ensuring the provision of a satisfactory 
means of surface water control and disposal, and in accordance with the aims 
and intentions of national (PPG: 7-056-20220825), county (Sustainable Drainage 
System - Guidance for Devon, Paragraph 6.3) and local policy (Strategy 3 & 
EN22).) 

 
11. No development approved by this, or subsequent Reserved Matters pursuant to 

this, permission shall be commenced until details of a scheme for the provision 
of foul water management has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The details shall include: 

  
 - A description of the foul water drainage systems operation; 
 - Confirmation from South West Water Ltd that they will accept the flows from the 

development into their network; 

page 159



 

23/1600/MOUT  

 - Details of the final drainage scheme including estimated volume of waste water 
from the development at full occupation; 

 - A Construction Quality Control Plan; 
 - A timetable of construction; 
  
 The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details. 
  
 (Reason: This is required as a pre-commencement condition to minimise the risk 

of pollution by ensuring the provision of a satisfactory means of foul water 
disposal and in accordance with policy EN19 of the East Devon Local Plan.) 

 
12. No development shall take place until details of the construction of the access, 

the internal roads, turning and parking areas have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Prior to the start of any other 
development on the site, the first 5 metres of the access road, measured from 
the nearside edge of the carriageway, shall be constructed and surfaced in 
accordance with the approved details, and any other access to the site shall be 
permanently closed. 

 
(Reason - A pre-commencement condition is required to ensure that the road 
works are planned and provided  in good time in the interests of highway safety 
for construction and other vehicles and to ensure that mud and loose material is 
not deposited on the highway in accordance with the requirements of Policy TC7 
- Adequacy of Road Network and Site Access of the Adopted East Devon Local 
Plan 2013-2031.) 

 
13. No development shall commence until a Biodiversity Management Plan to ensure 

that there is a quantifiable net gain in biodiversity of at least 10% within a 30-year 
period as a result of the development has been submitted to, and approved in 
writing by, the Local Planning Authority.  

 
The net biodiversity impact of the development shall be measured in accordance 
with the DEFRA biodiversity metric as applied in the area in which the site is 
situated at the relevant time, and the Biodiversity Management Plan shall include:  

 
1. Proposals for on-site biodiversity net gain (full details of which will be provided 

in relation to each phase of development (where applicable) and/or for off-site 
offsetting); 

2. A management and monitoring plan for any on-site and off-site biodiversity 
net gain, including 30-year objectives, management responsibilities, 
maintenance schedules and a methodology to ensure the submission of 
monitoring reports in years 2, 5, 10, 15, 20, 25 and 30 from commencement 
of development, demonstrating how the biodiversity net gain is progressing 
towards achieving its objectives, evidence of arrangements and any rectifying 
measures needed;  

3. A methodology for the identification of any site(s) to be used for offsetting 
measures and the identification of any such offsetting site(s); and/or 

4. Details of any payments for offsetting measures including the biodiversity unit 
cost and the agreed payment mechanism.  

 

page 160



 

23/1600/MOUT  

The development shall be implemented in full accordance with the requirements 
of the approved Biodiversity Management Plan and shall be retained as such 
thereafter. 

   
 (Reason: This is prior to development commencing to ensure that the 

development has no adverse effect on protected and notable species and 
provides ecological mitigation and enhancement measures in accordance with 
Strategy 47 (Nature Conservation and Geology) and Policy EN5 (Wildlife 
Habitats and Features) and EN14 (Control of Pollution) of the Adopted East 
Devon Local Plan 2013-2031.) 

 
14.  No dwelling hereby approved shall be occupied until written confirmation is 

received by the Local Planning Authority from South West Water that 
improvement works at Woodbury Waste Water Treatment Works to ensure there 
is capacity to deal with foul sewage from this development have been completed 
unless alternative means of adequately dealing with foul drainage have been 
previously agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and implemented in 
full.  

 
 (Reason: To enable required improvement works to take place at Woodbury 

Waste Water Treatment Works to suitably receive and accommodate the 
increase in flows expected as a result of the proposed development in 
accordance with Policy EN19 (Adequacy of Foul Sewers and Adequacy of 
Sewage Treatment Systems) of the East Devon Local Plan. Allowing flows above 
acceptable volumes from the occupation of dwellings prior to these works being 
completed would have unacceptable impact on existing infrastructure, with 
unacceptable risk of potential pollution events occurring.)  

 
15. The development shall not be occupied until the Local Planning Authority has 

been provided with evidence, including photographs and completed toolbox talk 
sheets, that all ecological mitigation and enhancement features, including bat 
boxes, bird boxes (at least 1 per dwelling), and other features that relate to that 
part of the development to be occupied have been installed/constructed, and 
compliance with any protected species licences, and ecological method 
statements detailed with the submitted LEMP and CEcoMP. 

  
 (Reason - To ensure that the development has no adverse effect on protected 

and notable species and provides ecological mitigation and enhancement 
measures in accordance with Strategy 47 (Nature Conservation and Geology) 
and Policy EN5 (Wildlife Habitats and Features) and EN14 (Control of Pollution) 
of the Adopted East Devon Local Plan 2013-2031.) 

 
16. Should any contamination of soil and/or ground or surface water be discovered 

during excavation of the site or the development, the Local Planning Authority 
shall be contacted immediately. Site activities in the area affected shall be 
temporarily suspended until such time as a method and procedure for addressing 
the contamination is agreed upon in writing with the Local Planning Authority 
and/or other regulating bodies. 

   

page 161



 

23/1600/MOUT  

 (Reason: To ensure that any contamination existing and exposed during the 
development is identified and remediated in accordance with Policy EN16 
(Contaminated Land) of the East Devon Local Plan 2013 to 2031 and with the 
National Planning Policy Framework.) 

 
17. The landscaping works approved as part of the reserved matters application(s) 

or as part of an advance planting scheme shall be undertaken in accordance with 
the approved scheme within either, an agreed timetable or within 12 months of 
completion of development or during the next planting season following 
completion whichever is the sooner.  

  
 If within a period of 10 years from the date planted any tree, plant, grass area or 

shrub dies, is removed or becomes seriously damaged or diseased it shall be 
replaced in the next planting season with other(s) of similar size and species by 
the developer.  

  
 If within a period of 10 years of the commencement of development, any part of 

any retained/translocated hedgerow dies or becomes diseased, it shall be 
replaced by the developer before the end of the next available planting season 
in accordance with details to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 

  
 (Reason - In the interests of enhancing and preserving the amenity of the area in 

accordance with Policy D2 (Landscape Requirements) of the East Devon Local 
Plan.) 

 
18. All reserved matters applications shall be accompanied by Waste Audit 

Statement to ensure that waste generated by the development during both its 
construction and operational phases is managed in accordance with the waste 
hierarchy, with a clear focus on waste prevention in the first instance. 

   
 Development must be undertaken in accordance with the agreed details. 
   
 (Reason: To ensure waste generated by the construction and operational phases 

is in accordance with Policy W4 of the Devon Waste Plan which requires major 
development proposals to be accompanied by a Waste Audit Statement.) 

 
NOTE FOR APPLICANT 
 
Informative: 
In accordance with the requirements of Article 35 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 in determining this 
application, East Devon District Council has worked positively with the applicant to 
ensure that all relevant planning concerns have been appropriately resolved. 
 
 
Informative:  
 
The Local Planning Authority (LPA) has a statutory duty under Regulation 3(4) to have 
regard to the requirements of the Habitats Directive in the exercise of its functions 

page 162



 

23/1600/MOUT  

when dealing with cases where a European Protected Species (EPS) may be affected. 
The species protection provisions of the Habitats Directive, as implemented by the 
Habitats Regulations, contain three 'derogation tests' which must be applied by Natural 
England when deciding whether to grant a licence to a person carrying out an activity 
which would otherwise lead to an offence under provisions protecting species in the 
Habitats Regulations. Having regard to the three tests, the LPA considers that the 
three tests would not be met and that Natural England are unlikely to grant an EPS 
licence.  
 
Informative - Biodiversity Net Gain: 
 
Paragraph 13 of Schedule 7A to the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 means that 
this planning permission is deemed to have been granted subject to ''the biodiversity 
gain condition" (BG condition).  
 
The Local Planning Authority cannot add this condition directly to this notice as the 
condition has already been applied by law.  This informative is to explain how the 
biodiversity condition applies to your development. 
 
The BG conditions states that development may not begin unless: 
(a) a Biodiversity Gain Plan (BG plan) has been submitted to the planning authority, 

and 
(b) the planning authority has approved the BG plan.  
 
In this case the planning authority you must submit the BG Plan to is East Devon 

District Council. 
 
There are some exemptions and transitional arrangements which mean that the 
biodiversity gain condition does not always apply. These are listed below. 
 
Based on the information available this permission is considered to be one which will 
not require the approval of a biodiversity gain plan before development is begun 
because one or more of the statutory exemptions or transitional arrangements in the 
list below is/are considered to apply. 
 
In this case exemption 1 from the list below are considered to apply:  
 
Statutory exemptions and transitional arrangements in respect of the biodiversity gain 
condition. 
 
1. The application for planning permission was made before 12 February 2024. 
 
2. The planning permission relates to development to which section 73A of the Town 

and Country Planning Act 1990 (planning permission for development already 
carried out) applies.  

 
3. The planning permission was granted on an application made under section 73 of 

the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and  
(i)  the original planning permission to which the section 73 planning permission relates 

was granted before 12 February 2024; or 

page 163



 

23/1600/MOUT  

(ii) the application for the original planning permission to which the section 73 planning 
permission relates was made before 12 February 2024. 

 
4. The permission which has been granted is for development which is exempt being:  
4.1  Development which is not 'major development' (within the meaning of article 2(1) 

of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) 
(England) Order 2015) where: 

(i) the application for planning permission was made before 2 April 2024;   
(ii) planning permission is granted which has effect before 2 April 2024; or  
(iii) planning permission is granted on an application made under section 73 of the 

Town and Country Planning Act 1990 where the original permission to which the 
section 73 permission relates* was exempt by virtue of (i) or (ii). 

 
4.2  Development below the de minimis threshold, meaning development which: 
(i) does not impact an onsite priority habitat (a habitat specified in a list published 

under section 41 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006); 
and 

(ii) impacts less than 25 square metres of onsite habitat that has biodiversity value 
greater than zero and less than 5 metres in length of onsite linear habitat (as 
defined in the statutory metric). 

 
4.3 Development which is subject of a householder application within the meaning of 

article 2(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management 
Procedure) (England) Order 2015. A "householder application" means an 
application for planning permission for development for an existing 
dwellinghouse, or development within the curtilage of such a dwellinghouse for 
any purpose incidental to the enjoyment of the dwellinghouse which is not an 
application for change of use or an application to change the number of dwellings 
in a building. 

 
4.4 Development of a biodiversity gain site, meaning development which is 

undertaken solely or mainly for the purpose of fulfilling, in whole or in part, the 
Biodiversity Gain Planning condition which applies in relation to another 
development, (no account is to be taken of any facility for the public to access or 
to use the site for educational or recreational purposes, if that access or use is 
permitted without the payment of a fee). 

 
4.5 Self and Custom Build Development, meaning development which: 

(i)    consists of no more than 9 dwellings; 
(ii)    is carried out on a site which has an area no larger than 0.5 hectares; and 
(iii) consists exclusively of dwellings which are self-build or custom housebuilding 

(as defined in section 1(A1) of the Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Act 
2015). 

 
Irreplaceable habitat 
If the onsite habitat includes irreplaceable habitat (within the meaning of the 
Biodiversity Gain Requirements (Irreplaceable Habitat) Regulations 2024) there are 
additional requirements for the content and approval of Biodiversity Gain Plans.  
The Biodiversity Gain Plan must include, in addition to information about steps taken 
or to be taken to minimise any adverse effect of the development on the habitat, 

page 164



 

23/1600/MOUT  

information on arrangements for compensation for any impact the development has 
on the biodiversity of the irreplaceable habitat. 
 
The planning authority can only approve a Biodiversity Gain Plan if satisfied that the 
adverse effect of the development on the biodiversity of the irreplaceable habitat is 
minimised and appropriate arrangements have been made for the purpose of 
compensating for any impact which do not include the use of biodiversity credits. 
 
Informative - Flood Risk Activity Permit: 
 
We take this opportunity to inform all parties that the watercourse at this location is 
designated as a 'Main' river. as a such the Environmental Permitting (England and 
Wales) Regulations 2016 require a permit to be obtained for any activities which will 
take place: 
 
- on or within 8 metres of a main river (16 metres if tidal) 
- on or within 8 metres of a flood defence structure or culverted main river (16 metres 

if tidal) 
- on or within 16 metres of a sea defence 
- involving quarrying or excavation within 16 metres of any main river, flood defence 

(including a remote defence) or culvert 
- in the floodplain of a main river if the activity could affect flood flow or storage and 

potential impacts are not controlled by a planning permission 
 
 
 
Plans relating to this application: 
  
1000 Location Plan 21.07.23 

   
Transport Statement 21.07.23 

  
2035_100 Rev H: 
Illustrative Master 
Plan 

Proposed Site Plan 21.06.24 

  
01-PHL-101 E: 
preliminary 
access 
arrangements 

Other Plans 08.11.23 

 
 
List of Background Papers  
Application file, consultations and policy documents referred to in the report. 
 
 
 
Statement on Human Rights and Equality Issues 
 
Human Rights Act:  

page 165



 

23/1600/MOUT  

The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights Act 
1998, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself. This 
Act gives further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on Human 
Rights. In arriving at this recommendation, due regard has been given to the 
applicant's reasonable development rights and expectations which have been 
balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as expressed through 
third party interests / the Development Plan and Central Government Guidance.  
 
Equality Act: 
In arriving at this recommendation, due regard has been given to the provisions of the 
Equality Act 2010, particularly the Public Sector Equality Duty and Section 149. The 
Equality Act 2010 requires public bodies to have due regard to the need to eliminate 
discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations between 
different people when carrying out their activities. Protected characteristics are age, 
disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race/ethnicity, religion or 
belief (or lack of), sex and sexual orientation. 
 
 

page 166



23/1600/MOUT - APPENDIX 1  

Technical Consultation Responses in Full 

 

Housing Strategy/Enabling Officer - Cassandra Pressling 

22/01/24 - I can confirm that I support the application with 35% affordable 

housing, which equates to 9 units.   These 9 units can all be provided as a Rent 

to Buy product such as Rent Plus.  

I do not support these 9 units as age restricted, because to meet housing need 

the district council provides for all age groups.   I would suggest you make your 

open market units age restricted.  

22/01/24 - Dear Gary 

Further to my email of 20th June, I can confirm that I would support your 

application with 35% on site and 15% as a financial contribution.  

35% on-site (9 dwellings)  

15% off-site contribution (5 remaining dwellings) totalling £144,790 (4 dwellings 

x £28,958 due to 50% requirement) 

Housing Strategy/Enabling Officer - Cassandra Pressling 

22/09/23 - Objection 

Percentage of Affordable Housing - Strategy 34 in the adopted East Devon Local 

Plan 2013 - 2031 requires 50% affordable housing.  This application is only 

offering 25% affordable which is not policy compliant.  They have not submitted 

a viability appraisal to state why they are only offering 25% affordable housing 

so I object to this application. 

Cassandra Harrison 

Housing Enabling Officer - East Devon District Council 

 

Devon County Archaeologist 

09/10/23 - Application No. 23/1600/MOUT 

Land Off Globe Hill Woodbury EX5 1LL - Outline application for construction of 

up to 28 residential units (up to 7 affordable), new vehicular access onto Globe 

Hill, open space, new parish office and Globe Hill highway works (all matters 

reserved except for access): Historic Environment 

My ref: ARCH/DM/ED/38715c 

09/10/23 - I refer to the above planning application, the archaeological field 

evaluation of this proposed development site has been completed and while a 

report has yet to be received by the Historic Environment Team I did visit site 

page 167



and observe the excavated trenches while they were still open.  I have also been 

appraised of the results by the applicant's archaeological contractor - AC 

Archaeology - and have been informed that the report will be submitted shortly. 

The results of the archaeological field evaluation have shown that the application 

area has a low potential for containing heritage assets with archaeological 

significance.  The features that were exposed related to the drainage of the site 

as well as areas disturbed by the removal of tree. The drainage features on the 

site are likely to be associated with feeding water to the fountainhead built, in the 

late 19th century, into the wall on the western boundary of the site and facing 

onto the carriageway of the B3179. 

Given the demonstrated low potential of the proposed development site I do not 

consider that any further archaeological work is required in mitigation for the 

impact of the proposed development and, as such, would like to withdraw the 

Historic Environment Team's previous objection and instead offer no comments 

on this planning application. 

However, with regard to the fountain head on the B3179, the development of this 

site as proposed will effectively remove the drainage system that once fed the 

fountain and the potential for it to flow again will be lost.  The fountainhead is 

located within the Conservation Area facing directly onto the southbound 

carriageway of the B3179 and is not accessible by any footpath.  The wall into 

which the fountainhead is built appears to have some cracks in its fabric and is 

leaning and bowed.   Given the removal of its water supply, the inaccessibility of 

this heritage asset and the potential need to repair this wall to make it secure as 

part of the development of the site would the applicant consider the removal and 

relocation of this non-designated heritage asset within or on the edge of the 

development site to better reveal the significance of this heritage asset as 

required by para 206 of the NPPF (2023).  Any relocation would need to be 

sympathetic to the fountainhead itself, publicly accessible and accompanied by 

appropriate public information and interpretation. 

Please do get back to me if you need any more information or clarification of any 

of the above.  I have copied in the East Devon Conservation Team with regard 

to my comments on the fountainhead. 

09/10/23 - I refer to the above planning application and the submission of the 

report setting out the results of the geophysical survey.   

The geophysical survey has identified anomalies that are indicative of below-

ground archaeological features.  However, it is just not possible to determine the 

significance of any heritage assets with archaeological interest within the 

application area through remote means alone and a programme of intrusive field 

evaluation is still required to test the anomalies that have been identified as well 

as the efficacy of the survey itself, i.e. what is the significance of the anomalies 

identified and are there archaeological features that have not been detected by 

the survey? 

page 168



In the absence of the results of a programme of intrusive field evaluation the 

Historic Environment Team would reiterate its previous objection on the basis of 

insufficient heritage information and advise that the application should be 

supported by the results of a programme of intrusive field evaluation.  The 

requirement for such information is in accordance with East Devon Local Plan 

Policies EN7 - Proposals Affecting Sites Which May Potentially be of 

Archaeological Importance - and EN8 - Significance of Heritage Assets and their 

Setting, and paragraphs 194 and 195 of the National Planning Policy Framework 

(2021).  If this information on the impact of the development upon the 

archaeological resource is not submitted in support of this application then I 

would recommend the refusal of the application as being contrary to the above 

policies. 

The results of these investigations will enable the presence and significance of 

any heritage assets within the proposed development area affected by the 

proposed development to be understood as well as the potential impact of the 

development upon them, and enable an informed and reasonable planning 

decision to be made by your Authority. 

I will be happy to discuss this further with you, the applicant or their agent if this 

would be helpful. 

Devon County Archaeologist 

11/08/23 - The proposed development lies in an area of archaeological potential 

within a landscape contain evidence of prehistoric and Romano-British activity 

and this potential is highlighted in the archaeological assessment report 

submitted in support of this planning application, which states: 

"There is currently limited evidence for prehistoric and Romano-British 

occupation within the vicinity of the site, although its position on a south-facing 

slope and historic agricultural land use indicate that there is a potential, albeit 

unknown, for archaeological remains to be present, with these, if present, likely 

to pre-date the medieval period." 

In addition, given the proximity to the 13th century parish church there is also the 

potential for the site to contain archaeological and artefactual deposits 

associated with the early historic settlement at Woodbury. 

However, the information submitted in support of this application is not sufficient 

to enable an understanding of the significance of any heritage assets with 

archaeological interest that may lie within the application area or of the impact of 

the proposed development upon these heritage assets. 

Given the unknown potential for survival and significance of any below ground 

archaeological deposits associated with the historic settlement at Woodbury and 

the known prehistoric and Romano-British activity in the surrounding landscape 

and the absence of sufficient archaeological information, the Historic 

Environment Team objects to this application.  If further information on the impact 

of the development upon the archaeological resource is not submitted in support 

page 169



of this application then I would recommend the refusal of the application. The 

requirement for this information is in accordance with East Devon Local Plan 

Policies EN7 - Proposals Affecting Sites Which May Potentially be of 

Archaeological Importance - and EN8 - Significance of Heritage Assets and their 

Setting, and paragraphs 194 and 195 of the National Planning Policy Framework 

(2021). 

The additional information required to be provided by the applicant would be the 

results of:  

i) An archaeological geophysical survey, and 

ii) A programme of intrusive archaeological field evaluation. 

The results of these investigations will enable the presence and significance of 

any heritage assets within the proposed development area affected by the 

proposed development to be understood as well as the potential impact of the 

development upon them, and enable an informed and reasonable planning 

decision to be made by your Authority. 

I will be happy to discuss this further with you, the applicant or their agent.  The 

Historic Environment Team can also provide the applicant with advice of the 

scope of the works required, as well as contact details for archaeological 

contractors who would be able to undertake this work. Provision of detailed 

advice to non-householder developers may incur a charge. For further 

information on the historic environment and planning, and our charging schedule 

please refer the applicant to: 

https://new.devon.gov.uk/historicenvironment/development-management/. 

 

Conservation 

19/12/23 - Please see the additional comments below:  

In line with the NPPF, para 200 states that any harm requires clear and 

convincing justification.  

The potential harm to the heritage assets, both the Woodbury Conservation Area 

and the setting of Oakhayes and St Swithuns Church, as a result of the proposed 

development works, has been balanced against paras. 202 and 206 of the 

NPPF23.  

The concerns as raised in the previous comments will result in harm to the 

character and appearance of the Conservation Area and in addition result in 

harm to the setting of both Oakhayes and the Church. This harm is considered 

to be less than substantial.  

In summary, the proposed development would result in the erosion of and visual 

harm to the site which currently makes a positive contribution to the green space 

within the wider Conservation Area and therefore failing to preserve, enhance or 

better reveal the significance of the conservation area as a heritage asset. In 

page 170



addition, the impact on the immediate setting of Oakhayes which contributes to 

its significance resulting in less than substantial harm.  The setting of the Church 

is also compromised, but due the location/distance and existing development, 

this harm is considered to be on a slightly lower scale of less than substantial 

harm.  This harm therefore needs to be weighed against any public benefits.  

The application should therefore be determined in line with the NPPF ensuring 

that great weight is given to the significance of the affected heritage assets. 

19/12/23 - Further to DCC Historic Environment Officer's email, we discussed 

the last paragraph today at our Conservation Team chat:  

"However, with regard to the fountain head on the B3179, the development of 

this site as proposed will effectively remove the drainage system that once fed 

the fountain and the potential for it to flow again will be lost.  The fountainhead is 

located within the Conservation Area facing directly onto the southbound 

carriageway of the B3179 and is not accessible by any footpath.  The wall into 

which the fountainhead is built appears to have some cracks in its fabric and is 

leaning and bowed.   Given the removal of its water supply, the inaccessibility of 

this heritage asset and the potential need to repair this wall to make it secure as 

part of the development of the site would the applicant consider the removal and 

relocation of this non-designated heritage asset within or on the edge of the 

development site to better reveal the significance of this heritage asset as 

required by para 206 of the NPPF (2023).  Any relocation would need to be 

sympathetic to the fountainhead itself, publicly accessible and accompanied by 

appropriate public information and interpretation." 

The fountain head is referred to in the Woodbury Conservation Area Appraisal 

and marked on the Map as an important feature. 

Just to say that we do not agree with this suggestion. It is appreciated that the 

water supply will be lost and that the fountainhead (1867) is in need of some 

repairs. Repairs to the fountain would of course be welcomed.   

However, there is no justification for it to be re-located which will both de-value 

the fountain as a non- designated heritage asset and alter the context in which 

is currently seen and experienced.  

It is acknowledged that it is not easy to access, but there is a pavement opposite 

and if an interpretation board is required this could be located opposite the 

fountainhead.  

I hope that these views can be considered in conjunction with the current 

application, thanks. 

Conservation 

13/12/23 - ADDRESS: Land Off Globe Hill, Woodbury 

GRADE: Setting   APPLICATION NO:  23/1600/MOUT 

Amended plans received 8th December 2023: 

page 171



The revisions relate to the Illustrative Masterplan which has been amended.  

The changes appear to be minimal and include:  

o Units closest to Oakhayes now has revised layout, more closely arranged with 

garaging/parking re-located further away from boundary;  

o Other minor layout changes, revisions to parking etc throughout site;  

o Informal footpath at southern end re-located; 

o Pedestrian access at southern end onto The Arch reduced to one.  

These appear to address some of the comments raised, but overall the original 

comments still stand.  

KBH 

13/12/23  

Conservation 

08/11/23 - CONSULTATION REPLY TO PLANNING WEST TEAM  

PLANNING APPLICATION AFFECTING LISTED BUILDING AND 

CONSERVATION AREA 

ADDRESS: Land Off Globe Hill, Woodbury 

GRADE: Setting   APPLICATION NO:  23/1600/MOUT   

CONSERVATION AREA:   Woodbury 

PROPOSAL: Outline application for construction of up to 28 residential units 

(up to 7 affordable), new vehicular access onto Globe Hill, open space, new 

parish office and Globe Hill highway works (all matters reserved except for 

access) 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF HISTORIC CHARACTER/ ARCHITECTURAL 

MERIT: 

The site is within the Woodbury Conservation Area and is located to the west of 

the village just outside the original historic core as shown on the historic OS maps 

dating from 1889/90. The land appears to form part of the original grounds to 

Oakhayes which is a large, detached house circa 1830, now subdivided, to the 

north of the site, and a Grade II listed building. As suggested in the listing 

description, the original owner was an enthusiastic gardener and this has some 

bearing on the current landscape. 

The site is bounded by mature trees and vegetation to the west with an existing 

gated access opposite Greenfield Cottage and a high (approx 6/7') grey/pinky 

stone boundary wall with adjacent trees and shrubs, at the bottom end of the site, 

including the fountain dated 1867 and turning the corner to the south of the site 

adjacent to The Arch. At this point there is also a stone bus shelter and a K6 

Telephone Kiosk. 

page 172



Within the site itself the area is open grassland bounded on all sides by mature 

trees/vegetation with a number of individual trees throughout, including those 

lining the watercourse running through the south end of the site. The gardens to 

Oakhayes bound the site to the north and there are a number of 'historic' 

pathways around the edge of the site. The gardens to Broadmead back onto the 

land to the east and there are magnificent views of the Grade I St Swithuns 

Church. The land is identified as an area of local amenity importance. The 

Woodbury Conservation Area Appraisal also identifies the prominent walls to the 

south, the red brick bridge, just outside the site and the main hedgerows and 

trees on Map 2 as being of importance. 

HOW WILL PROPOSED ALTERATIONS AFFECT HISTORIC CHARACTER OF 

BUILDING AND ITS SETTING: 

This outline application relates to the construction of 28 residential units, new 

vehicular access onto Globe Hill, open space, new parish office and Globe Hill 

highway works. It is clear from the submitted plans (outline) that further 

consideration has been given to the proposed development since the original 

pre-application under 14/0357/PREAPP (previous developer) and more recently 

under 21/0020/PREAPP (18 dwellings) and 22/0039/PREAPP (18 dwellings). 

In addition, a detailed Heritage Statement has been submitted and in relation to 

Oakhayes, para 4.21 states that 'The Site therefore makes a positive contribution 

to the setting and appreciation of the significance of the listed house, because it 

formed part of the designed landscape and had a historic functional relationship 

with the house. The Site remains a green space visible in views from the house 

across the landscape to the south'. 

Para 4.29. There is no known historic functional relationship between the Site 

and the Church, aside from it being located in the parish, and forming part of the 

land associated with the former vicarage. Trees within the Site can be glimpsed 

from the churchyard beyond the bungalows in Broadmead. The Site forms an 

attractive open setting to the Church in the glimpsed view from Globe Hill, where 

the landscape can be seen in the background, and to this extent makes a positive 

contribution to the setting and appreciation of the significance of the Church. 

Bearing this in mind the key issues are how the site contributes to the character 

and appearance of the conservation area and the setting of Oakhayes (Grade II) 

and the Church (Grade I).  

The Woodbury Conservation Area Appraisal doesn't specifically identify the land 

as green open space, but it does identify 'good open space breaks and several 

mature tree groups closing vistas'. However, there is a clear sense of it being an 

undeveloped green area, providing an open space between buildings within the 

village, even though public views into it are limited. Depending on the time of 

year, there are more than glimpsed views into the site from a number of points 

along Globe Hill, from which its character as a green space is recognisable, even 

though it cannot be fully appreciated. The site is divided into two areas, both 

physically and visually, by the drainage channel which crosses its southern end. 

page 173



To the north of this channel, the field does have something of an open parkland 

character, the grass being interspersed with occasional trees. This area of the 

site has a greater visual relationship with significant buildings in the conservation 

area such as Oakhayes House and the Church. The southern end of the site is 

more visually self-contained and lacks that parkland character although the 

boundary wall separating it from the street is a distinctive feature of it. In terms 

of the setting of listed buildings, there is clearly a strong relationship with 

Oakhayes and a strong visual connection between the house and field, to which 

any development would cause considerable change. The glimpsed views of the 

church cross the site from Globe Hill are also significant on the approach to the 

village. 

In conclusion, there are still a number of concerns relating to the development of 

the land for housing, not least the erosion of this green open space within the 

Woodbury Conservation Area.   

1. the setting of Oakhayes and the loss of the historic parkland to the south of 

the house which forms part of the original landscaped setting to the property: the 

Heritage assessment within the Statement gives considerable weight to the 

replacement of the historic grounds with public open space and the heritage 

benefit of being able to view and appreciate the House itself.  However, although 

the 'Oakhayes vista' is shown on the Masterplan, there do not appear to be any 

photographs looking south to illustrate this aspect or how the setting may 

therefore change. It is likely that only a very limited amount of residential 

development could be accommodated within the site, the predominantly open 

parkland character of the area to the north of the drainage channel, before its 

character starts to become eroded. 

2. historic paths within the site appear to have been lost, although it is recognised 

that there are a number of informal pedestrian routes throughout the site linking 

it to the south. However, these create a much more informal setting and inevitably 

the 'street' traverses the whole site cutting through the historic open space.  

3. alterations to the historic access on Globe Hill, thereby opening up the site, 

and creating a more visible domestic presence onto the road with considerable 

visual impact.  

4. loss of the area of local amenity space which forms an important buffer 

between the road and the historic core of Woodbury. However, it is appreciated 

that the proposals include a level of public open space/access.  

5. loss of views of the Church: the Heritage Statement has already stated that 

the attractive open setting contributes to the significance of the Church. In 

addition, in the Assessment it suggests that there is likely to be some harm due 

to the new development in the foreground of views from Globe Hill and within the 

site itself. Again, the public benefits are weighed in favour against this harm. It is 

noted that the 'Church vista' is shown on the Masterplan, but it will be funnelled 

through the development of the site closest to Broadmead. This will minimise the 

page 174



prominence of the tower and have considerable impact on the setting of the 

Church.  

5. two new pedestrian openings within the prominent stone wall to the south of 

the site to allow access. The inclusion of a community building/space is noted 

and the development of this part of the site is considered to be less harmful. 

However, vehicular access would require driving through the whole of the site to 

access the parking.  

Together these will still have considerable impact on the character and 

appearance of Woodbury Conservation Area and a more immediate impact on 

the setting of the Grade II listed building, Oakhayes and the setting of the Church.  

It is noted that the development has progressed from 2014 when using the 

majority of the centre of the field, to the less dominant eastern and southern part 

of the site. In addition, the potential for development to deliver some 

enhancement to the conservation area by allowing public access.  

In accordance with the NPPF Historic England have also raised concerns relating 

to the site and the proposed development. 

DATE: 08/11/23 

INITIALS: KBH 

 

Historic England 

19/12/23 - Thank you for your letter of 8 December 2023 regarding further 

information on the above application for planning permission. On the basis of this 

information, we offer the following advice to assist your authority in determining 

the application. 

Historic England Advice 

On the basis of the additional information submitted, the revised information does 

not change our previous advice. We would refer you back to our response dated 

the 24 August 2023 for Historic England's extant position. 

Recommendation 

Consequently, Historic England continues to have serious concerns in respect of 

this application on heritage grounds.  

Our concerns relate to the erosion of the character and appearance of the 

conservation area as well as impact on parkland character to the grade II listed 

Oakhayes House.  

The council should have regard to the statutory duty of section 66(1) of the 

Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 to have special 

regard to the desirability of preserving listed buildings or their setting or any 

features of special architectural or historic interest which they possess. As well 

page 175



as the need to pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing 

the character or appearance of conservation areas (section 72(1) of the Planning 

(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990). 

The application therefore should be determined in line with National Legislation 

and policy, ensuring that they give great weight to the significance of the affected 

heritage assets. 

Historic England 

16/10/23 - Thank you for your letter of 6 October 2023 regarding further 

information on the above application for planning permission. On the basis of this 

information, we offer the following advice to assist your authority in determining 

the application. 

Historic England Advice 

On the basis of the additional information submitted, we do not wish to offer any 

comments. However, we would suggest that you seek the views of your 

archaeological advisers. 

The revised information does not change our previous advice and we would refer 

you back to our response dated the 24 August 2023 for Historic England's extant 

position.  

Recommendation 

Consequently, Historic England continues to have serious concerns in respect of 

this application on heritage grounds.  

Our concerns relate to the erosion of the character and appearance of the 

conservation area as well as impact on parkland character to the grade II listed 

Oakhayes House.  

The council should have regard to the statutory duty of section 66(1) of the 

Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 to have special 

regard to the desirability of preserving listed buildings or their setting or any 

features of special architectural or historic interest which they possess. As well 

as the need to pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing 

the character or appearance of conservation areas (section 72(1) of the Planning 

(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990). 

The application therefore should be determined in line with National Legislation 

and policy, ensuring that they give great weight to the significance of the affected 

heritage assets.  

Historic England 

24/08/23 - T&CP (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 

& Planning (Listed Buildings & Conservation Areas) Regulations 1990 

 

page 176



LAND OFF GLOBE HILL , WOODBURY , EX5 1LL 

Application No. 23/1600/MOUT 

Thank you for your letter of 2 August 2023 regarding the above application for 

planning permission. On the basis of the information available to date, we offer 

the following advice to assist your authority in determining the application.  

Historic England Advice 

Although outline, the scheme looks to establish the principle of development, 

urbanising the green open space that is identified as a positive feature within the 

Woodbury Conservation Area. It would also erode the strong relationship the 

grade II listed Oakhayes House has with the site as well as introducing to a lesser 

extent, conspicuous development into views of the church tower. The site is not 

allocated, and we would question whether there is clear and convincingly 

justification for the identified harm that would be caused (NPPF, Para 200).  

Significance of affected heritage assets 

Woodbury is a nucleated settlement with early historic origins dating back to the 

7th century and is designated a conservation area. The conservation area 

appraisal for Woodbury recognises the important contribution made by open 

spaces generally within the village. It refers to them creating "a pleasing 

informality and spaciousness of layout with good open space breaks and several 

mature tree groups closing vistas." We would regard this site as relevant to that 

positive characteristic. 

The application site sits to the west of the main historic core, which contains the 

grade I listed Church of St Swithun, a medieval church situated on elevated 

ground with a prominent tower. The church is separated from the field by a row 

of modern houses. However, the site still allows for views across to the tower of 

the church, which is prominent feature within the village.  

The site itself is set behind an established stone boundary wall, with some well-

established trees. To the north sits the grade II listed Oakhayes House which 

had a strong relationship to the application site. Although primarily agricultural, 

there is a visual connection that provides the house with a parkland type setting.  

 

Although grade II listed buildings would not normally fall within our remit to 

comment, we advocate a holistic approach to the consideration of the historic 

environment and the intrinsic relationship between Oakhayes and the site is a 

key consideration.  

Consequently, the application site forms an integral part of the setting of 

Oakhayes House and therefore contributes to its significance. It also positively 

contributing to the character and appearance of the conservation area and the 

appreciation of the church as a prominent feature within the settlement.   

Impact of the proposed development 

page 177



The application is an outline consent, all matters reserved except access, for the 

development of 27 units within the identified field known as Land off Globe Hill. 

An indicative layout plan has been provided to demonstrate how development 

could be accommodated on the site. The approach has sought to retain the 

strong tree buffer around the boundary, a green wedge through the site to allow 

for views out from Oakhayes as well as providing a vista through the 

development to the church tower.  

Although the scheme is outline only, we were surprised that a view from 

Oakhayes has not been included within the supporting documentation, due to 

the integral relationship the property has with the application site (NPPF, Para 

194). 

Notwithstanding this lack of information, the scheme would introduce extensive 

modern development, eroding a principal green open space. We appreciate 

there is a tree boundary around the site; however, it is still recognisable and 

experienced as an undeveloped field within the conservation area. Furthermore, 

there is a strong likelihood that the development will erode the strong rural 

connection to Oakhayes, which provides it with a parkland setting. A vista has 

been provided through to the church, but the development would somewhat 

curtail the experience of the church within the site.  

Policy context 

The current site is not identified as being allocated in the extant or emerging local 

plan. Within the Site Selection Reports for Tier 1- 4 Settlements, the site was 

rejected due to part to the impact on the historic environment.   

In respect of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), Para 194 

highlights the need for the level of detail to be proportionate to the assets' 

importance and no more than is sufficient to understand the potential impact of 

the proposal on their significance. 

Where harm is identified, clear and convincing justification needs to be provided 

for any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated heritage asset 

including development within its setting (NPPF, Para 200).  

In cases where the scheme will affect an element that positively contributes to a 

conservation area or within the setting of affected assets, it should be considered 

as harmful. In the consideration of the application, any harm needs to be shown 

to be demonstrably outweighed by the public benefits offered by the scheme 

(NPPF, 206 and 202).   

The NPPF is clear that when the council is considering the impact of a proposed 

development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, should ensure 

that great weight be given to the asset's conservation (NPPF, Para 199). 

Historic England's Position 

Historic England has concern regarding the proposed development on the site, 

Land off Globe Hill. The introduction of housing will erode a positive green open 

page 178



space within the conservation area. It will also have an urbanising affect on the 

parkland character currently experienced from the grade II listed Oakhayes 

House (Para 206 and 202). The impact on the church is less harmful but would 

still have a degree of adverse impact.  

The site is not allocated in the current and extant local plans and the Site 

Selection Reports for Tier 1- 4 Settlements has rejected the scheme on heritage 

grounds, identifying alternative sites that could accommodate development 

within the vicinity but minimise the impact on the historic environment. In light of 

this, we do not see that there is clear and convincingly justification for the 

identified harm to the character and appearance of the conservation area or the 

grade II listed Oakfield House (NPPF, Para 200).  

Due to the impact on the historic environment, the council need to ensure they 

give great weight to the asset's conservation as part of their decision-making 

process (NPPF, Para 199). 

Recommendation 

Historic England has serious concerns regarding the application on heritage 

grounds. 

Our concerns relate to the erosion of the character and appearance of the 

conservation area as well as impact on parkland character to the grade II listed 

Oakhayes House.  

The council should have regard to the statutory duty of section 66(1) of the 

Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 to have special 

regard to the desirability of preserving listed buildings or their setting or any 

features of special architectural or historic interest which they possess. As well 

as the need to pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing 

the character or appearance of conservation areas (section 72(1) of the Planning 

(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990). 

The application therefore should be determined in line with National Legislation 

and policy, ensuring that they give great weight to the significance of the affected 

heritage assets. 

Rhiannon Rhys 

Inspector of Historic Buildings and Areas 

 

Environment Agency 

13/03/24 - Thank you for re-consulting us on this application and we apologise 

for the delay in responding.   

Environment Agency position 

We have reviewed the revised layout as shown on the submitted drawing 

'Illustrative Masterplan' ref.: 1100 Rev G dated 08.02.24, and in light of this and 

page 179



previous advice, we withdraw our previous objection subject to inclusion of 

conditions relating to flood risk management. The suggested wording for these 

conditions and the reason for our position is provided below. The illustrative 

design, whilst not a confirmation of the proposed layout identifies that acceptable 

principles of flood risk management (including the easement of the flood 

alleviation channel) can be achieved on site with the quantum of development 

proposed. Therefore, we are satisfied at this stage that based on the information 

submitted, the proposal now complies in the broadest terms with the National 

Planning Policy Framework and the associated Planning Practice Guidance. If 

the following conditions are not included, we would maintain our objection.  

Condition - Flood Channel Access 

No development approved by this permission shall commence until such time 

that the planning authority has received and approved in writing, details of the 

access arrangements to the flood channel, and the form and nature of fencing 

and gates. The scheme shall be fully implemented and subsequently maintained, 

in accordance with the scheme's timing/phasing arrangements, or within any 

other period as may subsequently be agreed, in writing, by the local planning 

authority. The features shall be retained for the lifetime of the development. 

Reason - To ensure adequate and safe access to the channel will be provided 

for the flood risk management authority and landowner over the lifetime of the 

development. 

Condition - Finished Floor Levels 

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until such 

time that the planning authority has received and approved in writing, details of 

finished floor levels of the proposed buildings, levels of roads and landscaping. 

Reason - To ensure the proposed buildings would be free from flood risk in a 

scenario of the existing channel flood alleviation channel being blocked and thus 

overflowing. 

Condition - Permitted Development Rights 

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 or any order revoking and re-

enacting that order with or without modification structure shall be erected within 

the 8m buffer either side of the top of bank of the existing flood channel. 

Reason - To help safeguard the 8m buffer from development thus ensuring 

access for future flood risk management thus ensuring that management of the 

alleviation channel can be sustained for the lifetime of the development. 

Reason - Flood Risk 

We can report that we are satisfied that the revised layout addresses our 

previous position regarding safeguarding an 8m unfettered access buffer either 

side the important flood alleviation channel that is present within the site. We are 

also satisfied that the 'Illustrative Masterplan' identifies provision of 2.2m wide 

page 180



gated access either side of the channel both upstream and downstream of the 

proposed channel crossing, such being required to provide access for grass 

mowing equipment into the channel. The details of such can be covered by 

condition as recommended above.  

In terms of the form and nature of the proposed channel crossing we note the 

principles set out in the correspondence from Chris Yalden of AWP titled 

'Response to EA comments'. These principles are accepted, although a crossing 

may ultimately have to take the form of a clear span bridge and not a culvert 

arrangement. Such would be subject to the obtaining of a flood risk activity 

environmental permit from the EA as detailed below: 

We recommend the following informative is also included on any decision notice 

because the applicant is required to obtain a flood risk activity permit separate to 

planning permission.  

Informative - Environmental Permitting 

We confirm that given the status of the flood relief channel as a 'Main' river. The 

Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) Regulations 2016 require a 

permit to be obtained for any activities which will take place, including; 

on or within 8 metres of a main river on or within 8 metres of a flood defence 

structure or culverted main river (16 metres if tidal) in the floodplain of a main 

river if the activity could affect flood flow or storage and potential Details can be 

obtained at Flood risk activities: environmental permits -GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 

Please contact us again if you require any further advice.  

Environment Agency 

05/02/24 - Thank you for re-consulting us on this application and we apologise 

for the delay in responding. 

Environment Agency position 

We have reviewed the revised layout proposed by the applicant, shown within 

the submitted drawing "Illustrative Masterplan" Rev E dated 24.11.23. We 

recognise the work undertaken in order to try to address our concerns and this 

revised layout does go some way to doing so. However, before we can be 

confident that we can support the development at this outline stage, there are 

some issues which need to be addressed prior to a determination. As such, we 

maintain our objection until such time that additional information is provided, as 

outlined in this letter.   

We remind your authority that the flood risk sequential test is applicable to this 

application. Before you determine the application, your Authority will also need 

to be content that the flood risk Sequential Test has been satisfied in accordance 

with the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) if you have not done so 

already.  

page 181



The reason for our position and advice for the applicant to overcome the 

outstanding matters is provided below.  

Reason - Flood Risk 

We can report that we are satisfied that the revised layout addresses our 

previous position regarding safeguarding an 8m unfettered access buffer either 

side the important flood alleviation channel that is present. This is a positive 

measure we can support. 

Since receipt of your last consultation we confirm that we have consulted our 

internal Field Services Team, who manage the existing flood scheme, on drawing 

'Illustrative Masterplan' Rev E dated 24.11.23. Following their feedback we deem 

that the EA could support, subject to condition, the principle of development 

following clarification of: 

o the form and nature of the proposed access bridge, which we require must 

provide a minimum 8 ton load capacity. 

o that the 'Illustrative Masterplan' be revised to show 2.2m wide gated access 

either side of the channel both upstream and downstream of the proposed 

bridge. Such are required to provide access for grass mowing equipment into the 

channel. 

It is essential that these elements are provided prior to a determination.  

Way forward 

The applicant should provide the above information for our review and we will 

consult internally with the Field Service Team again as part of that review. For 

your information, should the above two issues be addressed, we would be 

comfortable to advise that compliance with the NPPF and PPG could in broadest 

terms be met subject to: 

o finished floor levels of the proposed buildings, levels of roads and landscaping, 

being set at a level to cater for the very present residual risk associated with a 

blockage/overflowing of the existing channel. Such is required to ensure the 

proposed buildings would be free from flood risk. 

o permitted development rights being removed for the 8m buffer either side of the 

top of bank of the existing flood channel. 

These two requirements could be addressed by appropriately worded conditions. 

As has been previously outlined, we recommend that the following informative is 

placed on any decision notice and we raise it as a matter for the applicant to 

consider at this stage also.  

Informative - Environmental Permitting 

We confirm that given the status of the flood relief channel as a 'Main' river. The 

Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) Regulations 2016 require a 

permit to be obtained for any activities which will take place: 

page 182



o on or within 8 metres of a main river 

o on or within 8 metres of a flood defence structure or culverted main river (16 

metres if tidal) 

o in the floodplain of a main river if the activity could affect flood flow or storage 

and potential impacts are not controlled by a planning permission. 

The EA, as the regulator, hold the right to withhold a permit should an activity, 

for example 'interfere with the regulator's access to or along that river'. 

Additionally, we advise that any bridge structure should not encroach on the 

channel. A clear span design is preferable, avoiding the need to build any 

structures in the channel or on the bank directly adjacent to the watercourse. 

This is for both flood risk reasons and in regard to preventing encroachment into 

the channel for the interests of biodiversity and habitats. 

We take this opportunity to provide the following advisory comments again. 

These were placed on our first consultation response:  

Advice - Pollution Prevention 

We recommend that a Construction Environment Management Plan (CEMP) is 

produced to pull together and manage the pollution control and waste 

management requirements during the construction phase. Run off from exposed 

ground / soils can pose a significant risk of pollution to nearby watercourses, 

particularly through soil/sediment run off and the CEMP should address how 

such run-off can be minimised, controlled and treated (if necessary). The 

applicant should ensure that this is considered well in advance because some 

treatment methods can require an Environmental Permit to be obtained. 

We refer the applicant to the advice contained within our Pollution Prevention 

Guidelines (PPGs), in particular PPG5 - Works and maintenance in or near water 

and PPG6 - Working at construction and demolition sites. These can be viewed 

via the following link: 

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/pollution-prevention-guidance-ppg 

Further guidance is available at: 

Pollution prevention for businesses - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 

We also advise that the use or disposal of any waste should comply with the 

relevant waste guidance and regulations. 

Please contact us again if you require any further advice.  

Environment Agency 

10/10/23 -  

Following receipt of correspondence from Chris Yaldon of AWP Exeter, we 

provide the following consultation response taking into account the matters 

raised within the email of 13th September 2023. The email in question was 

page 183



provided to you on the 26th September 2023. We consider that transparency 

between all parties will be valuable in communicating the key issues and 

ensuring a full understanding is gained on these matters.  

Environment Agency position 

As outlined in our previous consultation response dated 22/08/2023, we object 

to the proposed development as submitted because development is proposed 

too close to the existing flood relief channel that passes through the site. This 

flood relief channel forms part of the Woodbury Flood Alleviation scheme. It is 

likely that we would not be able to issue a Flood Risk Activity Permit for the layout 

currently submitted. We recommend that the application is not determined until 

a revised layout is submitted that shows an 8m unobstructed buffer be provided 

both sides of the flood relief channel. 

Paragraphs within the email from AWP are copied below (in italics) with our 

response provided below each section. 

"We note that the EA have raised an objection on the basis of the proximity of 

the proposed development to the existing main river channel. Our drainage 

drawing shows all dwellings outside of the 8m easement and also outside the 

Q1,000 flood extents, however the below advice suggests that we cannot even 

include amenity space, footpaths or roads inside the easement - which is a first, 

and comes as a surprise!  

I can appreciate that parking spaces could result in vehicular obstructions, and 

whilst there are ways of managing this, I'm sure we could update the layout to 

suit. However, I'm unsure why we are not allowed to identify private amenit 

space, footpaths and roads inside the easement. These land uses would not 

prevent access for maintenance activities and this can be controlled within 

property deeds (i.e. no structures or fencing to be erected etc)." 

Access for future flood risk management must be unfettered to avoid a burden 

and cost to future generations, and to ensure an increase in flood risk doesn't 

occur over the lifetime of the development. We consider the layout proposed to 

date fails to cater for such. The layout must also cater for how the Environment 

Agency currently accesses the land in question. As mentioned previously, we 

appreciate that this is an outline application however the parameters of 

acceptable development and principle of an adequate easement need to be 

established at this stage to ensure that the detailed design is informed by these 

principles.  

"In terms of the road network, this is intended to cross the watercourse, so on 

approach it must sit within 8m - surely that is acceptable? This approach would 

also provide an opportunity for access into the 8m maintenance corridor." 

We advise that a new road network could feasibly cater for access to the flood 

channel, and associated unfettered 8metre buffers. 

"The root of your advice is referenced as Para 161 from the NPPF, which is 

extracted below: 

page 184



"All plans should apply a sequential, risk-based approach to the location of 

development - taking into account all sources of flood risk and the current and 

future impacts of climate change - so as to avoid, where possible, flood risk to 

people and property. They should do this, and manage any residual risk, by: 

o safeguarding land from development that is required, or likely to be required, 

for current or future flood management "." 

I feel we have already taken a sequential approach; we are only showing water 

compatible development within areas at risk of flooding or within the 8m 

easement. We have assessed development against the 1 in 1,000 year event, 

and have committed to offering freeboard above maximum flood levels for all 

new properties." 

Future flood management includes activities such as reconnecting watercourses 

to their floodplains, and improving flood storage and/or flow capacity. The layout 

proposed appears to compromise the delivery of such works. 

By comparison to the existing site, the proposals should enhance access to the 

channel - currently it is fenced, with dense vegetation on both sides (see below 

photo). 

We have reviewed the photograph provided. It is noted that, arguably the EA 

could advise that the 8m buffer should extend from the trees rather than the fence 

line. As outlined above, it is essential that the easement is provided and this may 

only be possible by reevaluating the proposed layout. This position is based on 

the National Planning Policy Framework and relate to our responsibilities for 

main river management under the Water Resources Act 1991.  

Environment Agency 

22/08/23 - Our ref: DC/2023/123479/01-L01 

Your ref: 23/1600/MOUT 

Date:  22 August 2023 

Dear Sir/Madam 

OUTLINE APPLICATION FOR CONSTRUCTION OF UP TO 28 RESIDENTIAL 

UNITS (UP TO 7 AFFORDABLE), NEW VEHICULAR ACCESS ONTO GLOBE 

HILL, OPEN SPACE, NEW PARISH OFFICE AND GLOBE HILL HIGHWAY 

WORKS (ALL MATTERS RESERVED EXCEPT FOR ACCESS)    

LAND OFF GLOBE HILL WOODBURY EX5 1LL       

Thank you for consulting us on this application.  

Environment Agency position 

We object to the proposed development as submitted because development is 

proposed too close to the existing flood relief channel that passes through the 

site which forms part of the Woodbury Flood Alleviation scheme. It is likely that 

page 185



we would not be able to issue a Flood Risk Activity Permit for the layout currently 

submitted. We recommend that the application is not determined until a revised 

layout is submitted that shows an 8m unobstructed buffer be provided both sides 

of the flood relief channel. 

We are mindful that a proposal for dwellings, a community building, parking and 

public open space is located to the west of this site (ref.: 23/1258/MOUT), and 

also interacts with the Woodbury Flood Alleviation scheme channel. Our 

concerns for this proposal are very similar to that of application 23/1258/MOUT 

and as such, our comments are very similar.  

Before determining the application your Authority will need to be content that the 

flood risk Sequential Test has been satisfied in accordance with the NPPF if you 

have not done so already. 

The reasons for this position are set out below, together with an informative on 

environmental permitting, and advice on biodiversity and pollution prevention. 

Reason - Proximity to Flood Relief Channel 

The Environment Agency maintain the flood relief channel within the red line 

boundary of the site, which is classified as a 'main river'. Adequate access is 

needed to ensure that the channel can be properly maintained. 

Whilst we recognise that this is an Outline application and layout is a reserved 

matter, the applicant has submitted an illustrative masterplan. The proposed 

layout indicated on the plan (2035-110 rev E) would prevent/inhibit access to the 

flood relief channel. The development layout as proposed is therefore contrary 

to paragraph 161 of the NPPF which states: 

"All plans should apply a sequential, risk-based approach to the location of 

development - taking into account all sources of flood risk and the current and 

future impacts of climate change - so as to avoid, where possible, flood risk to 

people and property. They should do this, and manage any residual risk, by: 

o safeguarding land from development that is required, or likely to be required, 

for current or future flood management ". 

It is important that land adjacent to the flood relief channel is safeguarded for 

flood risk management purposes and not developed. 

Overcoming our objection 

We advise that the layout should be revised to show that an 8m unobstructed 

buffer will be provided both sides of the alleviation channel. This is necessary to 

allow unfettered access for current or future flood management over the lifetime 

of the development. Failure to achieve this would result in an increase in flood 

risk which is contrary to the overriding policy aims of the NPPF. This buffer shall 

need to be retained through any future reserved matters application and 

incorporated into the proposed layout of the site at detailed design stage. Your 

authority may find it appropriate to apply planning conditions to any permission 

page 186



which secures this. If this is the case, please re-consult us to allow for 

discussions on the extent of the necessary buffer and other details.  

Informative - Environmental Permitting 

We confirm that given the status of the flood relief channel as a 'Main' river. The 

Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) Regulations 2016 require a 

permit to be obtained for any activities which will take place: 

o on or within 8 metres of a main river 

o on or within 8 metres of a flood defence structure or culverted main river (16 

metres if tidal) 

o in the floodplain of a main river if the activity could affect flood flow or storage 

and potential impacts are not controlled by a planning permission. 

The EA, as the regulator, hold the right to withhold a permit should an activity, 

for example 'interfere with the regulator's access to or along that river'. 

Advice - Biodiversity 

If our objection can be overcome through the submission of a revised layout, we 

would welcome some environmental improvements in the final scheme. For 

example, we would welcome any proposals to re-meander the straightened 

watercourse, with a more natural cross sectional and long profile, to reinstate 

more natural features and provide interest for both biodiversity and people. 

Additionally, we advise that any bridge structure should not encroach on the 

channel. A clear span design is preferable, avoiding the need to build any 

structures in the channel or on the bank directly adjacent to the watercourse. 

Advice - Pollution Prevention 

We recommend that a Construction Environment Management Plan (CEMP) is 

produced to pull together and manage the pollution control and waste 

management requirements during the construction phase. Run off from exposed 

ground / soils can pose a significant risk of pollution to nearby watercourses, 

particularly through soil/sediment run off and the CEMP should address how 

such run-off can be minimised, controlled and treated (if necessary). The 

applicant should ensure that this is considered well in advance because some 

treatment methods can require an Environmental Permit to be obtained. 

We refer the applicant to the advice contained within our Pollution Prevention 

Guidelines (PPGs), in particular PPG5 - Works and maintenance in or near water 

and PPG6 - Working at construction and demolition sites. These can be viewed 

via the following link: 

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/pollution-prevention-guidance-ppg  

Further guidance is available at: 

Pollution prevention for businesses - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)  

page 187



We also advise that the use or disposal of any waste should comply with the 

relevant waste guidance and regulations. 

Advice to the LPA 

We will maintain our objection until the applicant has supplied information to 

demonstrate that the flood risks posed by the development can be satisfactorily 

addressed. We would like to be re-consulted on any information submitted to 

address our concerns and we will provide you with bespoke comments within 21 

days of receiving formal re-consultation. If you are minded to approve the 

application at this stage contrary to this advice, we request that you contact us 

to allow further discussion and/or representations from us. 

Harriet Fuller 

Planning Advisor 

 

South West Water 

08/12/23 - South West Water Limited [SWWL] comment on the above application 

in their function acting as Statutory Water and Sewerage Undertaker for East 

Devon. SWWL have a duty under the Water Industry Act to protect statutory 

assets to provide water and sewerage services, as well as upgrade and improve 

infrastructure to accommodate development where suitable and required. Once 

a proposal is given planning approval, the Duty to Connect - as described within 

the Water Industry Act - activates and SWWL are under obligation to provide a 

public connection, unless specific circumstances deem otherwise. SWWL does 

not object to the principle of the proposed Outline 

applicahttps://eastdevon.gov.uk/planning/planning-applications-and-information/view-

planning-applications-enforcements-and-planning-appeals/tion; however, if the Local 

Planning Authority is minded to approve the application, SWWL request suitable 

conditions are attached, as suggested below. 

We note we have commented previously. We have undertaken a full network 

review and below are our updated comments. 

Surface Water Flows 

It should be noted that our comments refer to SWW duty to accept surface water 

which covers domestic run off only. It does not cover any Highway drainage. It is 

noted that the applicant has stated within their Application Form that surface 

water flows are intended for disposal via SuDS, an existing watercourse, mains 

sewer and pond/lake. Submitted details within the Preliminary Drainage Layout 

(01-PDL-1001 Rev B) show an attenuation pond within the southern section of 

the site, an attenuation tank close to the southern boundary each with an 

overflow discharge to the watercourse that transects the southern part of the site. 

The use of SuDS is in line with the established surface water disposal hierarchy, 

as described in Planning Practice Guidance (Flood risk and coastal change, 

paragraph 56, ref id: 7-056-20220825). However, it would seem from the 

page 188

https://eastdevon.gov.uk/planning/planning-applications-and-information/view-planning-applications-enforcements-and-planning-appeals/
https://eastdevon.gov.uk/planning/planning-applications-and-information/view-planning-applications-enforcements-and-planning-appeals/


application form that the final method of discharging surface water fouls is still 

uncertain. If the viability of a SuDS solution for surface water disposal is found at 

a future date to be unviable, then robust evidence must be submitted to justify 

moving down the hierarchy; in line with Devon County Council guidance (Para 

6.3, Sustainable Drainage System - Guidance for Devon - Flood Risk 

Management). The disposal method described within the Preliminary Drainage 

Layout crosses over method 1 and 2 of the Disposal Hierarchy.  

SWWL have committed to reducing the use of Combined Sewer Overflows 

[CSO], also known as Storm Overflows, to an average of 20 per year by 2025 

across our operational area. Central Government has also recently published 

their Storm Overflows Discharge Reduction Plan (September 2023), which 

further states that by 2050 'no storm overflows will be permitted to operate 

outside of unusually heavy rainfall or to cause any adverse ecological harm' 

(page 11). SWWL have planned works to reduce flows into the combined sewer 

system and reducing spills from all CSOs; in line with national commitments. 

These works include using the ongoing Waterfit Programme, to provide 

mitigation to existing conditions through Surface Water Infiltration Removal, and 

the Surface Water Separation project planned to be undertaken during 2025 to 

2030.  

To secure our commitments and regulatory targets, as well as to avoid adding 

stresses on the Combined Sewer Overflow [CSO] at Hams Drive, a Combined 

Sewer connection will not be supported or accepted. Allowing additional 

connections into the combined sewer network will negatively impact the planned 

works noted above. As such, a combined sewer network connection will not be 

accepted by SWWL, unless as an absolute last resort. No highway drainage will 

be permitted to connect to the combined sewer.  

In the event the LPA is minded to approve, SWWL would suggest the inclusion 

of a condition securing the required evidenced justification for any subsequent 

Reserved Matters application demonstrating why disposal cannot viably be 

achieved via solely SuDS. Draft wording of a supported condition is set out 

below. 

Draft Condition: 

No development approved by this, or subsequent Reserved Matters pursuant to 

this, permission shall be commenced until details of a scheme for the provision 

of surface water management has been submitted to and approved in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include: 

- A description of the surface water drainage systems operation; 

- Details of the final drainage schemes including ground investigations and 

testing results, calculations and layout; 

- Confirmation of the viability of, and secured arrangements for, discharging 

surface water to the watercourse, if a SuDS solution is demonstrably evidenced 

to be unviable as sole discharge method; 

page 189



- A construction Surface Water Management Plan; 

- A Construction Quality Control Plan; 

- Confirmation of details pertaining to the intended maintenance/adoption 

arrangements of the final drainage scheme, including responsibilities for the 

drainage systems and overland flow routes. The plan must include a drawing 

which clearly delineates the management responsibility for each drainage 

element and schedule of maintenance; and 

- A timetable of construction. 

Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding and minimise the risk of 

pollution of surface and ground waters by ensuring the provision of a satisfactory 

means of surface water control and disposal, and in accordance with the aims 

and intentions of national (PPG: 7-056-20220825), county (Sustainable Drainage 

System - Guidance for Devon, Paragraph 6.3) and local policy (Strategy 3 & 

EN22).  

Foul Water Flows 

It is noted that the applicant has stated within their Application Form that foul 

water flows are intended for disposal via mains sewer. The Preliminary Drainage 

Layout states that foul will discharge from the northern parcel to the sewer within 

Globe Hill and the southern parcel to discharge into the sewer within The Arch. 

In principle, SWWL does not currently hold any objection to foul water disposal 

through a connection to a public Foul Sewer; however, the Woodbury Waste 

Water Treatment Works [WWTW] requires improvement works and amendments 

to existing permits prior to accepting an increase in flows. The required 

improvements at the WWTW, to enable further development to be supported, 

can only begin in the Spring as dry weather conditions are required. SWWL 

believe a Grampian condition is required to restrict occupation until the required 

improvement works have been completed and a permit variation has been 

approved by the Environment Agency. A suitable connection location will need 

to be agreed with SWWL once details of the proposal are known, in the event of 

an Outline approval and subsequent Reserved Matters application. 

Additionally, it is noted that an existing foul sewer passes through part of the 

northern parcel, which is shown diverted from its existing position within the 

submitted Preliminary Drainage Strategy. If a diversion is required to avoid 

conflict with proposed development, please continue to engage with SWWL.  

To fully assess the potential impacts on SWWL infrastructure posed by the 

proposed development, SWWL request the following information is submitted 

within a subsequent Reserved Matters, in the event the LPA is minded to approve 

the application: 

- A description of the foul water drainage systems operation; 

- Details of the final drainage scheme including estimated volume of waste water 

from the development at full occupation; 

page 190



- A Construction Quality Control Plan; 

- A timetable of construction; 

In summary, SWWL would support the inclusion of two conditions relating to Foul 

Water. A Grampian condition restricting occupation as described above, and a 

condition requesting further detail within a subsequent Reserved Matters 

application, in the event the LPA are minded to approve. Draft wording is set out 

below. 

Draft Conditions: 

The occupation of any dwellings approved by this, or subsequent Reserved 

Matters pursuant to this, permission shall not be authorised until written 

confirmation is received by the Local Planning Authority from South West Water 

that improvement works at Woodbury Waste Water Treatment Works have been 

completed, or until 1st December 2025, whichever is sooner. 

Reason: To enable required improvement works to take place at Woodbury 

Waste Water Treatment Works to suitably receive and accommodate the 

increase in flows expected as a result of the proposed development. Allowing 

flows above acceptable volumes from the occupation of # dwellings prior to these 

works being completed would have unacceptable impact on existing 

infrastructure, with unacceptable risk of potential pollution events occurring. 

No development approved by this, or subsequent Reserved Matters pursuant to 

this, permission shall be commenced until details of a scheme for the provision 

of foul water management has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. The details shall include: 

- A description of the foul water drainage systems operation; 

- Confirmation from South West Water Ltd that they will accept the flows from the 

development into their network; 

- Details of the final drainage scheme including estimated volume of waste water 

from the development at full occupation; 

- A Construction Quality Control Plan; 

- A timetable of construction; 

Reason: To minimise the risk of pollution by ensuring the provision of a 

satisfactory means of foul water disposal and in accordance with policy EN19 of 

the East Devon Local Plan. 

Potable Water Supply 

It is anticipated that suitable provision can be made within the existing network 

for the supply of potable water to the proposed development. The applicant is 

strongly advised to consider maximising the use water efficiency opportunities 

within the design of their proposals, as supported by adopted planning policy 

Strategy 3 and 38. The current average water use in the UK is approx. 142 

page 191



litres/person/day [l/p/d] (Water UK, 2020), with the South West experiencing a 

higher-than-average consumption rate than the rest of England. With climate 

change progressing with trends set to add further stress upon available water 

resources, SWWL would support the LPA imposing a condition requiring the 

optional Building Regulations requirement (G2) of 110 l/p/d for the proposed 

residential development. Draft wording of a condition securing the G2 optional 

requirement is set out below. 

Draft Condition: 

Each Reserved Matters applications for a phase of development pursuant to this 

outline permission which include a residential component shall be accompanied 

by a Water Conservation Strategy to be submitted for the approval of the Local 

Planning Authority. The strategy shall include a water efficiency specification for 

each dwelling type, based on the Fitting Approach set out in Part G of the Building 

Regulations 2010 (2015 edition or any future successor) demonstrating that all 

dwellings (when considered as a whole) are able to achieve a typical water 

consumption standard of no more than 110 litres per person per day, in line with 

Building Regulations Optional Requirement G2. The approved strategy for each 

residential dwelling shall be subsequently implemented in full accordance with 

the approved details prior to first occupation of that residential dwelling and 

thereafter shall be retained. 

Reason: To ensure that the development makes efficient use of water and 

promotes the principles of sustainable construction in line with Paragraph 154 of 

the NPPF and adopted policy Strategy 3 of the East Devon Local Plan (January 

2016). 

We look forward to sight of your draft Planning Conditions in due course. 

Asset Protection: 

Please find enclosed a plan showing the approximate location of a public 150mm 

dedicated foul sewer in the vicinity. Please note that no development will be 

permitted within 3 metres of the sewer, and ground cover should not be 

substantially altered. 

Should the development encroach on the 3 metre easement, the sewer will need 

to be diverted at the expense of the applicant. 

Please click here to view the table of distances of buildings/structures from a 

public sewer. 

Further information regarding the options to divert a public sewer can be found 

on our website via the link below:www.southwestwater.co.uk/developer-

services/sewer-services-and-connections/diversion-of-public-sewers/ 

South West Water 

06/11/23 - South West Water Limited [SWWL] comment on the above application 

in their function acting as Statutory Water and Sewerage Undertaker for East 

Devon. SWWL have a duty under the Water Industry Act to protect statutory 

page 192



assets to provide water and sewerage services, as well as upgrade and improve 

infrastructure to accommodate development where suitable and required. Once 

a proposal is given planning approval, the Duty to Connect - as described within 

the Water Industry Act - activates and SWWL are under obligation to provide a 

public connection, unless specific circumstances deem otherwise. SWWL does 

not object to the principle of the proposed Outline application; however, if the 

Local Planning Authority is minded to approve the application, SWWL request 

suitable conditions are attached, as suggested below. 

We note we have commented previously. We have undertaken a full network 

review and below are our updated comments. 

Surface Water Flows 

It should be noted that our comments refer to SWW duty to accept surface water 

which covers domestic run off only.  It does not cover any Highway drainage.  It 

is noted that the applicant has stated within their Application Form that surface 

water flows are intended for disposal via SuDS, an existing watercourse, mains 

sewer and pond/lake. Submitted details within the Preliminary Drainage Layout 

(01-PDL-1001 Rev B) show an attenuation pond within the southern section of 

the site, an attenuation tank close to the southern boundary each with an 

overflow discharge to the watercourse that transects the southern part of the site. 

The use of SuDS is in line with the established surface water disposal hierarchy, 

as described in Planning Practice Guidance (Flood risk and coastal change, 

paragraph 56, ref id: 7-056-20220825). However, it would seem from the 

application form that the final method of discharging surface water fouls is still 

uncertain. If the viability of a SuDS solution for surface water disposal is found at 

a future date to be unviable, then robust evidence must be submitted to justify 

moving down the hierarchy; in line with Devon County Council guidance (Para 

6.3, Sustainable Drainage System - Guidance for Devon - Flood Risk 

Management). The disposal method described within the Preliminary Drainage 

Layout crosses over method 1 and 2 of the Disposal Hierarchy.  

SWWL have committed to reducing the use of Combined Sewer Overflows 

[CSO], also known as Storm Overflows, to an average of 20 per year by 2025 

across our operational area. Central Government has also recently published 

their Storm Overflows Discharge Reduction Plan (September 2023), which 

further states that by 2050 'no storm overflows will be permitted to operate 

outside of unusually heavy rainfall or to cause any adverse ecological harm' 

(page 11). SWWL have planned works to reduce flows into the combined sewer 

system and reducing spills from all CSOs; in line with national commitments. 

These works include using the ongoing Waterfit Programme, to provide 

mitigation to existing conditions through Surface Water Infiltration Removal, and 

the Surface Water Separation project planned to be undertaken during 2025 to 

2030.  

To secure our commitments and regulatory targets, as well as to avoid adding 

stresses on the Combined Sewer Overflow [CSO] at Hams Drive, a Combined 

Sewer connection will not be supported or accepted. Allowing additional 

page 193



connections into the combined sewer network will negatively impact the planned 

works noted above. As such, a combined sewer network connection will not be 

accepted by SWWL, unless as an absolute last resort. No highway drainage will 

be permitted to connect to the combined sewer.  

In the event the LPA is minded to approve, SWWL would suggest the inclusion 

of a condition securing the required evidenced justification for any subsequent 

Reserved Matters application demonstrating why disposal cannot viably be 

achieved via solely SuDS. Draft wording of a supported condition is set out 

below. 

Draft Condition: 

No development approved by this, or subsequent Reserved Matters pursuant to 

this, permission shall be commenced until details of a scheme for the provision 

of surface water management has been submitted to and approved in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include: 

- A description of the surface water drainage systems operation; 

- Details of the final drainage schemes including ground investigations and 

testing results, calculations and layout; 

- Confirmation of the viability of, and secured arrangements for, discharging 

surface water to the watercourse, if a SuDS solution is demonstrably evidenced 

to be unviable as sole discharge method; 

- A construction Surface Water Management Plan; 

- A Construction Quality Control Plan; 

- Confirmation of details pertaining to the intended maintenance/adoption 

arrangements of the final drainage scheme, including responsibilities for the 

drainage systems and overland flow routes. The plan must include a drawing 

which clearly delineates the management responsibility for each drainage 

element and schedule of maintenance; and 

- A timetable of construction. 

Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding and minimise the risk of 

pollution of surface and ground waters by ensuring the provision of a satisfactory 

means of surface water control and disposal, and in accordance with the aims 

and intentions of national (PPG: 7-056-20220825), county (Sustainable Drainage 

System - Guidance for Devon, Paragraph 6.3) and local policy (Strategy 3 & 

EN22).  

Foul Water Flows 

It is noted that the applicant has stated within their Application Form that foul 

water flows are intended for disposal via mains sewer. The Preliminary Drainage 

Layout states that foul will discharge from the northern parcel to the sewer within 

Globe Hill and the southern parcel to discharge into the sewer within The Arch. 

page 194



In principle, SWWL does not currently hold any objection to foul water disposal 

through a connection to a public Foul Sewer; however, the Woodbury Waste 

Water Treatment Works [WWTW] requires improvement works and amendments 

to existing permits prior to accepting an increase in flows. The required 

improvements at the WWTW, to enable further development to be supported, 

can only begin in the Spring as dry weather conditions are required. SWWL 

believe a Grampian condition is required to restrict occupation until the required 

improvement works have been completed and a permit variation has been 

approved by the Environment Agency. A suitable connection location will need 

to be agreed with SWWL once details of the proposal are known, in the event of 

an Outline approval and subsequent Reserved Matters application. 

Additionally, it is noted that an existing foul sewer passes through part of the 

northern parcel, which is shown diverted from its existing position within the 

submitted Preliminary Drainage Strategy. If a diversion is required to avoid 

conflict with proposed development, please continue to engage with SWWL.  

To fully assess the potential impacts on SWWL infrastructure posed by the 

proposed development, SWWL request the following information is submitted 

within a subsequent Reserved Matters, in the event the LPA is minded to approve 

the application: 

- A description of the foul water drainage systems operation; 

- Details of the final drainage scheme including estimated volume of waste water 

from the development at full occupation; 

- A Construction Quality Control Plan; 

- A timetable of construction; 

In summary, SWWL would support the inclusion of two conditions relating to Foul 

Water. A Grampian condition restricting occupation as described above, and a 

condition requesting further detail within a subsequent Reserved Matters 

application, in the event the LPA are minded to approve. Draft wording is set out 

below. 

Draft Conditions: 

The occupation of any dwellings approved by this, or subsequent Reserved 

Matters pursuant to this, permission shall not be authorised until written 

confirmation is received by the Local Planning Authority from South West Water 

that improvement works at Woodbury Waste Water Treatment Works have been 

completed, or until 1st December 2025, whichever is sooner. 

Reason: To enable required improvement works to take place at Woodbury 

Waste Water Treatment Works to suitably receive and accommodate the 

increase in flows expected as a result of the proposed development. Allowing 

flows above acceptable volumes from the occupation of # dwellings prior to these 

works being completed would have unacceptable impact on existing 

infrastructure, with unacceptable risk of potential pollution events occurring. 

page 195



No development approved by this, or subsequent Reserved Matters pursuant to 

this, permission shall be commenced until details of a scheme for the provision 

of foul water management has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. The details shall include: 

- A description of the foul water drainage systems operation; 

- Confirmation from South West Water Ltd that they will accept the flows from the 

development into their network; 

- Details of the final drainage scheme including estimated volume of waste water 

from the development at full occupation; 

- A Construction Quality Control Plan; 

- A timetable of construction; 

Reason: To minimise the risk of pollution by ensuring the provision of a 

satisfactory means of foul water disposal and in accordance with policy EN19 of 

the East Devon Local Plan. 

Potable Water Supply 

It is anticipated that suitable provision can be made within the existing network 

for the supply of potable water to the proposed development. The applicant is 

strongly advised to consider maximising the use water efficiency opportunities 

within the design of their proposals, as supported by adopted planning policy 

Strategy 3 and 38. The current average water use in the UK is approx. 142 

litres/person/day [l/p/d] (Water UK, 2020), with the South West experiencing a 

higher-than-average consumption rate than the rest of England. With climate 

change progressing with trends set to add further stress upon available water 

resources, SWWL would support the LPA imposing a condition requiring the 

optional Building Regulations requirement (G2) of 110 l/p/d for the proposed 

residential development. Draft wording of a condition securing the G2 optional 

requirement is set out below. 

Draft Condition: 

Each Reserved Matters applications for a phase of development pursuant to this 

outline permission which include a residential component shall be accompanied 

by a Water Conservation Strategy to be submitted for the approval of the Local 

Planning Authority. The strategy shall include a water efficiency specification for 

each dwelling type, based on the Fitting Approach set out in Part G of the Building 

Regulations 2010 (2015 edition or any future successor) demonstrating that all 

dwellings (when considered as a whole) are able to achieve a typical water 

consumption standard of no more than 110 litres per person per day, in line with 

Building Regulations Optional Requirement G2. The approved strategy for each 

residential dwelling shall be subsequently implemented in full accordance with 

the approved details prior to first occupation of that residential dwelling and 

thereafter shall be retained. 

page 196



Reason: To ensure that the development makes efficient use of water and 

promotes the principles of sustainable construction in line with Paragraph 154 of 

the NPPF and adopted policy Strategy 3 of the East Devon Local Plan (January 

2016). 

We look forward to sight of your draft Planning Conditions in due course. 

Asset Protection: 

Please find enclosed a plan showing the approximate location of a public 150mm 

dedicated foul sewer in the vicinity. Please note that no development will be 

permitted within 3 metres of the sewer, and ground cover should not be 

substantially altered. 

Should the development encroach on the 3 metre easement, the sewer will need 

to be diverted at the expense of the applicant. 

Please click here to view the table of distances of buildings/structures from a 

public sewer. 

Further information regarding the options to divert a public sewer can be found 

on our website via the link below:www.southwestwater.co.uk/developer-

services/sewer-services-and-connections/diversion-of-public-sewers/ 

see sww sewer map under document tab 

06/11/23 - With reference to the planning application at the above address, the 

applicant/agent is advised to contact South West Water if they are unable to 

comply with our requirements as detailed below. 

Asset Protection 

Please find enclosed a plan showing the approximate location of a public 150mm 

dedicated foul sewer in the vicinity. Please note that no development will be 

permitted within 3 metres of the sewer, and ground cover should not be 

substantially altered. 

Should the development encroach on the 3 metre easement, the sewer will need 

to be diverted at the expense of the applicant.   

Please click here to view the table of distances of buildings/structures from  a 

public sewer. 

Further information regarding the options to divert a public sewer can be found 

on our website via the link below: 

www.southwestwater.co.uk/developer-services/sewer-services-and-

connections/diversion-of-public-sewers/  

Clean Potable Water 

South West Water is able to provide clean potable water services from the 

existing public water main for the above proposal.  The practical point of 

page 197



connection will be determined by the diameter of the connecting pipework being 

no larger than the diameter of the company's existing network. 

Foul Sewerage Services 

South West Water is able to provide foul sewerage services from the existing 

public foul or combined sewer in the vicinity of the site.  The practical point of 

connection will be determined by the diameter of the connecting pipework being 

no larger than the diameter of the company's existing network. 

The applicant can apply to South West Water for clarification of the point of 

connection for either clean potable water services and/or foul sewerage services.  

For more information and to download the application form, please visit our 

website: 

www.southwestwater.co.uk/developers   

Surface Water Services 

The applicant should demonstrate to your LPA that its prospective surface run-

off will discharge as high up the hierarchy of drainage options as is reasonably 

practicable (with evidence that the Run-off Destination Hierarchy has been 

addressed, and reasoning as to why any preferred disposal route is not 

reasonably practicable):  

1. Water re-use (smart water butts/rainwater harvesting etc.) 

2. Discharge into the ground (infiltration); or where not reasonably 

practicable, 

3. Discharge to a surface waterbody; or where not reasonably practicable, 

4. Discharge to a surface water sewer, highway drain, or another drainage 

system; or where not reasonably practicable, 

5. Discharge to a combined sewer.( Subject to Sewerage Undertaker 

carrying out capacity evaluation) 

I trust this provides confirmation of our requirements, however should you have 

any questions or queries, please contact the Planning Team on 01392 442836 

or via email: DeveloperServicesPlanning@southwestwater.co.uk. 

 

DCC Flood Risk SuDS Consultation 

05/01/24 - Our objection is withdrawn and we have no in-principle objections to 

the above planning application at this stage, assuming that the following pre-

commencement planning conditions are imposed on any approved 

permission: 

- Prior to or as part of the Reserved Matters, the following information shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority: 

page 198



(a) Soakaway test results in accordance with BRE 365, groundwater monitoring 

results in line with our DCC groundwater monitoring policy. 

(b) A detailed drainage design based upon the approved Flood Risk Assessment 

and Drainage Strategy and the results of the information submitted in relation to 

(a) above. 

(c) Detailed proposals for the management of surface water and silt run-off from 

the site during construction of the development hereby permitted. 

(d) Proposals for the adoption and maintenance of the permanent surface water 

drainage system. 

(e) A plan indicating how exceedance flows will be safely managed at the site. 

No building hereby permitted shall be occupied until the works have been 

approved and implemented in accordance with the details under (a) - (e) above. 

Reason: The above conditions are required to ensure the proposed surface 

water drainage system will operate effectively and will not cause an increase in 

flood risk either on the site, adjacent land or downstream in line with SuDS for 

Devon Guidance (2017) and national policies, including NPPF and PPG. The 

conditions should be pre-commencement since it is essential that the proposed 

surface water drainage system is shown to be feasible before works begin to 

avoid redesign / unnecessary delays during construction when site layout is 

fixed. 

Observations: 

Following my previous consultation response (FRM/ED/1600/2023; dated 21st 

Aug. 2023), the applicant has submitted additional information in relation to the 

surface water drainage aspects of the above planning application, for which I am 

grateful. 

The applicant has confirmed that upstream features, such as rain gardens, tree 

pits, swales and permeable paving, must be considered. This is to form a SuDS 

Management Train. 

The applicant has also proposed to lower the levels of the site entrance so that 

exceedance flows can be routed into the Public Open Space. 

The Parish Council might be interested in having an above-ground feature, such 

as a rain garden or tree pits, to manage surface water from their building. If they 

are not able to maintain the feature, then perhaps the management company or 

water authority for the development can take it on. 

DCC Flood Risk SuDS Consultation 

21/08/23 - Recommendation: 

At this stage, we object to this planning application because we do not believe 

that it satisfactorily conforms to Policy EN22 (Surface Run-Off Implications of 

New Development) of the East Devon Local Plan (2013-2031). The applicant will 

page 199



therefore be required to submit additional information in order to demonstrate 

that all aspects of the proposed surface water drainage management system 

have been considered. 

Observations: 

The applicant has submitted the Flood Risk Assessment (Rev. Initial Issue, dated 

7th July 2023) to demonstrate the surface water management proposals for the 

site. 

The applicant has mentioned that soakaways are unlikely to be feasible within 

the site. However, infiltration test are required. If these cannot be submitted at 

this stage, then the applicant will need to submit these results at the next stage 

of planning (should planning permission be granted). 

The applicant has split the site into two areas due to the location of the 

watercourse. The applicant has proposed to manage surface water from the 

northern parcel within a detention basin. Surface water from the southern parcel 

will be managed by an attenuation tank. Surface water from both areas will be 

discharged into the main river flowing through the site. 

The applicant should be aware that the area used to calculate greenfield run off 

rates should not include allowances for urban creep. 

Maintenance schedules are required at this stage. 

The applicant should confirm the suitability of the exceedance flow routed out of 

the highway entrance to the site. If it is more suitable to route the potential flow 

into the Public Open Space, then this should be assessed (green arrows below). 

PLAN HERE 

Will all of the flows from the southern area be able to drain through the proposed 

flow control? It looks like some of the area would need to 'backfall' into the 

drainage system in order to reach the flow control. 

The applicant should also note that in accordance with the SuDS Management 

Train, surface water should be managed at source in the first instance. The 

applicant will therefore be required to explore the use of a 

variety of above-ground source control components across the whole site to 

avoid managing all of the surface water from the proposed development at one 

concentrated point (e.g. a single attenuation pond). Examples of these source 

control components could include permeable paving (which could be 

underdrained), formalised tree pits or other bioretention features such as rain 

gardens, as well as green roofs, swales and filter drains. 

Would the Parish Council be interested in a rain garden within their area of the 

site? 

Any temporary or permanent works within 8 meters of a main river usually require 

a Flood Risk Activity Permit from the Environment Agency. 

page 200



Ruilin Jiao 

Flood and Coastal Risk Intern 

 

County Highway Authority 

18/12/23 - I have reviewed the planning application documents and visited the 

site. 

This application is for outline only therefore I will reserve judgement upon the 

internal layout. 

However in terms of access the proposed access provides a visibility splay which 

accords to our current best practice guidance, Manual for Streets 1 and 2 of 2.4m 

by 43m in both directions, utilising the 1m offset clause for traffic of lower 

speeds., with the proposal of a reduced speed limit to 20mph in this zone, 

delivered as either part of this development or the 

adjacent scheme, this would be achieved. However the 20mph speed zone 

would be subject to a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) which sits outside of the 

planning system. 

The proposed footway will also run along Globe Hill, formalising the existing un-

official on-street parking with a parallel parking bay along with an island 

pedestrian crossing and pinch-pointed carriageway width and tactile paving, this 

will provide a speed calming measure and a sustainable footway connection into 

Woodbury village centre. 

Furthermore, north of the proposed access, a 'village entry-gate' speed calming 

feature is also proposed. Additionally upon the southern boundary of this 

proposed development a footway entry onto The Arch, is proposed with the final 

infrastructure layout for the Arch to be discussed with the County Highway 

Authority (CHA) as part of a collective aspiration to improve the Arch area under 

a separate legal agreement.. 

Whilst it is accepted that this development may produce a slight vehicular trip 

generation intensification from that of it's existing use, I do not believe this would 

trigger the severity clause under the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

and the highway mitigation measures proposed, will create a safety net gain for 

all. 

This can be  further strengthened should the application be approved with secure 

cycle storage to encourage sustainable travel and help mitigate against shorter 

vehicular trip generation to the services and facilities of Woodbury. 

Additionally, due to the locality of the site, I believe a comprehensive 

Construction and Environment Management Plan (CEMP) will help mitigate 

against construction impact on the local highway network. 

Recommendation: 

page 201



THE HEAD OF PLANNING, TRANSPORTATION AND ENVIRONMENT, ON 

BEHALF OF DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL, AS LOCAL HIGHWAY AUTHORITY, 

MAY WISH TO RECOMMEND CONDITIONS ON ANY GRANT OF PLANNING 

PERMISSION 

1. Prior to commencement of any part of the site the Planning Authority shall 

have received and approved a Construction Management Plan (CMP) including: 

(a) the timetable of the works; 

(b) daily hours of construction; 

(c) any road closure; 

(d) hours during which delivery and construction traffic will travel to and from the 

site, with such vehicular movements being restricted to between 8:00am and 

6pm Mondays to Fridays inc.; 9.00am to 1.00pm Saturdays, and no such 

vehicular movements taking place on Sundays and Bank/Public Holidays unless 

agreed by the planning Authority in advance; 

(e) the number and sizes of vehicles visiting the site in connection with the 

development and the frequency of their visits; 

(f) the compound/location where all building materials, finished or unfinished 

products, parts, crates, packing materials and waste will be stored during the 

demolition and construction phases; 

(g) areas on-site where delivery vehicles and construction traffic will load or 

unload building materials, finished or unfinished products, parts, crates, packing 

materials and waste with confirmation that no construction traffic or delivery 

vehicles will park on the County highway for loading or unloading purposes, 

unless prior written agreement has been given by the Local Planning Authority; 

(h) hours during which no construction traffic will be present at the site; 

(i) the means of enclosure of the site during construction works; and 

(j) details of proposals to promote car sharing amongst construction staff in order 

to limit construction staff vehicles parking off-site 

(k) details of wheel washing facilities and obligations 

(l) The proposed route of all construction traffic exceeding 7.5 tonnes. 

(m) Details of the amount and location of construction worker parking. 

(n) Photographic evidence of the condition of adjacent public highway prior to 

commencement of any work; 

2. No development shall take place until details of secure cycle/scooter storage 

facilities have been submitted to and approved in writing by the County Planning  

Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the 

approved details. 

page 202



REASON: To promote sustainable travel in accordance with the East Devon 

Local Plan 2013-2031. 

County Highway Authority 

27/09/23 - Observations: 

I have reviewed the planning application documents and visited the site. 

This application is for outline only therefore I will reserve judgement upon the 

internal layout. 

However in terms of access the proposed access provides a visibility splay which 

accords with our current best practice guidance, Manual for Streets 1 and 2 of 

2.4m by 43m in both directions, this includes a 2m footway into the site. 

The proposed footway will also run along Globe Hill, formalising the current un-

official on-street parking with a parallel parking bay along with an island 

pedestrian crossing and pinch-pointed carriageway width and tactile paving, this 

will provide a speed calming measure and a sustainable footway connection into 

Woodbury village centre. 

Furthermore, north of the proposed access, a 'village entry-gate' speed calming 

feature is also proposed. Additionally upon the southern boundary of this 

proposed development a footway entry onto The Arch, is proposed with the final 

infrastructure layout for the Arch to be discussed with the County Highway 

Authority (CHA). 

The CHA does not require planning applications containing fewer than 40 

dwellings to contain a Travel Plan,with a travel plan co-coordinator or car club 

provision due to the trip generation impact not triggering a set severity level. 

Whilst it is accepted that this development may produce a slight vehicular trip 

generation intensification from that of it's existing use. I believe that the highway 

mitigation measures proposed will create a safety net gain for all. 

This can be further strengthened should the application be approved with secure 

cycle storage to encourage sustainable travel and help mitigate against shorter 

vehicular trip generation to the services and facilities of Woodbury. 

Additionally, due to the locality of the site, I believe a comprehensive 

Construction and Environment Management Plan (CEMP) will help mitigate 

against construction impact on the local highway network. 

Recommendation: 

THE HEAD OF PLANNING, TRANSPORTATION AND ENVIRONMENT, ON 

BEHALF OF DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL, AS LOCAL HIGHWAY AUTHORITY, 

MAY WISH TO RECOMMEND CONDITIONS ON ANY GRANT OF PLANNING 

PERMISSION 

1. Prior to commencement of any part of the site the Planning Authority shall 

have received and approved a Construction Management Plan (CMP) including: 

page 203



(a) the timetable of the works; 

(b) daily hours of construction; 

(c) any road closure; 

(d) hours during which delivery and construction traffic will travel to and from the 

site, with such vehicular movements being restricted to between 8:00am and 

6pm Mondays to Fridays inc.; 9.00am to 1.00pm Saturdays, and no such 

vehicular movements taking place on Sundays and Bank/Public Holidays unless 

agreed by the planning Authority in advance; 

(e) the number and sizes of vehicles visiting the site in connection with the 

development and the frequency of their visits; 

(f) the compound/location where all building materials, finished or finished 

products, parts, crates, packing materials and waste will be stored during the 

demolition and construction phases; 

(g) areas on-site where delivery vehicles and construction traffic will load or 

unload building materials, finished or unfinished products, parts, crates, packing 

materials and waste with confirmation that no construction traffic or delivery 

vehicles will park on the County highway for loading or unloading purposes, 

unless prior written agreement has been given by the Local Planning Authority; 

(h) hours during which no construction traffic will be present at the site; 

(i) the means of enclosure of the site during construction works; and 

(j) details of proposals to promote car sharing amongst construction staff in order 

to limit construction staff vehicles parking off-site 

(k) details of wheel washing facilities and obligations 

(l) The proposed route of all construction traffic exceeding 7.5 tonnes. 

(m) Details of the amount and location of construction worker parking. 

(n) Photographic evidence of the condition of adjacent public highway prior to 

commencement of any work; 

2. No development shall take place until details of secure cycle/scooter storage 

facilities have been submitted to and approved in writing by the County Planning 

Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the 

approved details. 

REASON: To promote sustainable travel in accordance with the East Devon 

Local Plan 2013-2031. 

Officer authorised to 

sign on behalf of the County Council 

 

page 204



Natural England 

12/02/24 - Thank you for your consultation on the above dated 24 January 2024 

which was received by Natural England on 24 January 2024 

Natural England is a non-departmental public body. Our statutory purpose is to 

ensure that the natural environment is conserved, enhanced, and managed for 

the benefit of present and future generations, thereby contributing to sustainable 

development. 

DESIGNATED SITES [EUROPEAN] - NO OBJECTION SUBJECT TO 

SECURING APPROPRIATE MITIGATION 

This advice relates to proposed developments that falls within the 'zone of 

influence' (ZOI) for one or more European designated sites, such as Exe Estuary 

Special Area of Conservation (SPA) and East Devon Pebblebed Heaths Special 

Area of Conservation (SAC). It is anticipated that new residential development 

within this ZOI is 'likely to have a significant effect', when considered either alone 

or in combination, upon the qualifying features of the European Site due to the 

risk of increased recreational pressure that could be caused by that 

development. On this basis the development will require an appropriate 

assessment. 

Your authority has measures in place to manage these potential impacts in the 

form of a strategic solution Natural England has advised that this solution will (in 

our view) be reliable and effective in preventing adverse effects on the integrity 

of those European Site(s) falling within the ZOI from the recreational impacts 

associated with this residential development. 

This advice should be taken as Natural England's formal representation on 

appropriate assessment given under regulation 63(3) of the Conservation of 

Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended). You are entitled to have 

regard to this representation. 

Natural England advises that the specific measures (including financial 

contributions) identified in the strategic solution can prevent harmful effects from 

increased recreational pressure on those European Site within the ZOI. 

Natural England is of the view that if these measures are implemented, they will 

be effective and sufficiently certain to prevent an adverse impact on the integrity 

of those European Site(s) within the ZOI for the duration of the proposed 

development. 

The appropriate assessment concludes that the proposal will not result in 

adverse effects on the integrity of any of the sites as highlighted above (in view 

of its conservation objectives) with regards to recreational disturbance, on the 

basis that the strategic solution will be implemented by way of mitigation. 

Having considered the assessment, and the measures proposed to mitigate for 

all identified adverse effects likely to occur as a result of the proposal, Natural 

England advises that we concur with the assessment conclusions. If all mitigation 

page 205



measures are appropriately secured, we are satisfied that there will be no 

adverse impact on the sites from recreational pressure. 

If the Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) has not been produced by your 

authority, but by the applicant, it is your responsibility (as the competent 

authority) to produce the HRA and be accountable for its conclusions. We 

provide the advice enclosed on the assumption that your authority intends to 

adopt this HRA to fulfil your duty as competent authority. 

Natural England should continue to be consulted on all proposals where 

provision of site specific SANGS (Suitable Alternative Natural Green Space) or 

other bespoke mitigation for recreational impacts that falls outside of the strategic 

solution is included as part of the proposal. We would also strongly recommend 

that applicants proposing site specific infrastructure including SANGs seek pre 

application advice from Natural England through its Discretionary Advice 

Service. If your consultation is regarding bespoke site-specific mitigation, please 

reconsult Natural England putting 'Bespoke Mitigation' in the email header. 

Reserved Matters applications, and in some cases the 

discharge/removal/variation of conditions, where the permission was granted 

prior to the introduction of the Strategic Solution, should also be subject to the 

requirements of the Habitats Regulations and our advice above applies. 

Further general advice on the consideration of protected species and other 

natural environment issues is provided at Annex A. 

For any queries regarding this letter, for new consultations, or to provide further 

information on this consultation please send your correspondences to 

consultations@naturalengland.org.uk. 

Vicky Brown 

Consultations Team 

Annex A -Natural England general advice 

Protected Landscapes 

Paragraph 182 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) requires great 

weight to be given to conserving and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty 

within Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty (known as National Landscapes), 

National Parks, and the Broads and states that the scale and extent of 

development within all these areas should be limited. Paragraph 183 requires 

exceptional circumstances to be demonstrated to justify major development 

within a designated landscape and sets out criteria which should be applied in 

considering relevant development proposals. Section 245 of the Levelling Up and 

Regeneration Act 2023 places a duty on relevant authorities (including local 

planning authorities) to seek to further the statutory purposes of a National Park, 

the Broads or an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty in England in exercising 

their functions. This duty also applies to proposals outside the designated area 

but impacting on its natural beauty. 

page 206



The local planning authority should carefully consider any impacts on the 

statutory purposes of protected landscapes and their settings in line with the 

NPPF, relevant development plan policies and the Section 245 duty. The 

relevant National Landscape Partnership or Conservation Board may be able to 

offer advice on the impacts of the proposal on the natural beauty of the area and 

the aims and objectives of the statutory management plan, as well as 

environmental enhancement opportunities. Where available, a local Landscape 

Character Assessment can also be a helpful guide to the landscape's sensitivity 

to development and its capacity to accommodate proposed development. 

Wider landscapes 

Paragraph 180 of the NPPF highlights the need to protect and enhance valued 

landscapes through the planning system. This application may present 

opportunities to protect and enhance locally valued landscapes, including any 

local landscape designations. You may want to consider whether any local 

landscape features or characteristics (such as ponds, woodland, or dry-stone 

walls) could be incorporated into the development to respond to and enhance 

local landscape character and distinctiveness, in line with any local landscape 

character assessments. Where the impacts of development are likely to be 

significant, a Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment should be provided with 

the proposal to inform decision making. We refer you to the Landscape Institute 

Guidelines for Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment for further guidance. 

Biodiversity duty 

The local planning authority has a duty to conserve and enhance biodiversity as 

part of its decision making. Further information is available here. 

Designated nature conservation sites 

Paragraphs 186-188 of the NPPF set out the principles for determining 

applications impacting on Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) and habitats 

sites. Both the direct and indirect impacts of the development should be 

considered. A Habitats Regulations Assessment is needed where there is a likely 

significant effect on a habitats site and Natural England must be consulted on 

'appropriate assessments'. Natural England must also be consulted where 

development is in or likely to affect a SSSI and provides advice on potential 

impacts on SSSIs either via Impact Risk Zones or as standard or bespoke 

consultation responses. 

Protected Species 

Natural England has produced standing advice to help planning authorities 

understand the impact of particular developments on protected species. Natural 

England will only provide bespoke advice on protected species where they form 

part of a Site of Special Scientific Interest or in exceptional circumstances. A 

protected species licence may be required in certain cases. 

Local sites and priority habitats and species 

page 207



The local planning authority should consider the impacts of the proposed 

development on any local wildlife or geodiversity site, in line with paragraphs 180, 

181 and 185 of the NPPF and any relevant development plan policy. There may 

also be opportunities to enhance local sites and improve their connectivity to help 

nature's recovery. Natural England does not hold locally specific information on 

local sites and recommends further information is obtained from appropriate 

bodies such as the local records centre, 

Annex A -Natural England general advice 

wildlife trust, geoconservation groups or recording societies. Emerging Local 

Nature Recovery Strategies may also provide further useful information. 

Priority habitats and species are of particular importance for nature conservation 

and are included in the England Biodiversity List published under section 41 of 

the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. Most priority habitats 

will be mapped either as Sites of Special Scientific Interest on the Magic website 

or as Local Wildlife Sites. A list of priority habitats and species can be found on 

Gov.uk. 

Natural England does not routinely hold species data. Such data should be 

collected when impacts on priority habitats or species are considered likely. 

Consideration should also be given to the potential environmental value of 

brownfield sites, often found in urban areas and former industrial land, further 

information including links to the open mosaic habitats inventory can be found 

here. 

Biodiversity and wider environmental gains 

Development should provide net gains for biodiversity in line with the NPPF 

paragraphs 180(d), 185 and 186. Major development (defined in the NPPF 

glossary) is required by law to deliver a biodiversity gain of at least 10% from 12 

February 2024 and this requirement is expected to be extended to smaller scale 

development in spring 2024. For nationally significant infrastructure projects 

(NSIPs), it is anticipated that the requirement for biodiversity net gain will be 

implemented from 2025. 

Further information on biodiversity net gain, including draft Planning Practice 

Guidance, can be found here. 

The statutory Biodiversity Metric should be used to calculate biodiversity losses 

and gains for terrestrial and intertidal habitats and can be used to inform any 

development project. For small development sites, the Small Sites Metric may 

be used. This is a simplified version of the Biodiversity Metric and is designed for 

use where certain criteria are met. 

The mitigation hierarchy as set out in paragraph 186 of the NPPF should be 

followed to firstly consider what existing habitats within the site can be retained 

or enhanced. Where on-site measures are not possible, provision off-site will 

need to be considered. 

page 208



Development also provides opportunities to secure wider biodiversity 

enhancements and environmental gains, as outlined in the NPPF (paragraphs 8, 

74, 108, 124, 180, 181 and 186). Opportunities for enhancement might include 

incorporating features to support specific species within the design of new 

buildings such as swift or bat boxes or designing lighting to encourage wildlife. 

Natural England's Environmental Benefits from Nature tool may be used to 

identify opportunities to enhance wider benefits from nature and to avoid and 

minimise any negative impacts. It is designed to work alongside the Biodiversity 

Metric and is available as a beta test version. 

Further information on biodiversity net gain, the mitigation hierarchy and wider 

environmental net gain can be found in government Planning Practice Guidance 

for the natural environment. 

Ancient woodland, ancient and veteran trees The local planning authority should 

consider any impacts on ancient woodland and ancient and veteran trees in line 

with paragraph 186 of the NPPF. Natural England maintains the Ancient 

Woodland Inventory which can help identify ancient woodland. Natural England 

and the Forestry Commission have produced standing advice for planning 

authorities in relation to ancient woodland and ancient and veteran trees. It 

should be taken into account when determining relevant planning applications. 

Natural England will only provide bespoke advice on ancient woodland, ancient 

and veteran trees where they form part of a Site of Special Scientific Interest or 

in exceptional circumstances. 

Best and most versatile agricultural land and soils 

Local planning authorities are responsible for ensuring that they have sufficient 

detailed agricultural land classification (ALC) information to apply NPPF policies 

(Paragraphs 180 and 181). This is the case regardless of whether the proposed 

development is sufficiently large to consult Natural England. 

Annex A -Natural England general advice 

Further information is contained in GOV.UK guidance Agricultural Land 

Classification information is available on the Magic website and the Data.Gov.uk 

website 

Guidance on soil protection is available in the Defra Construction Code of 

Practice for the Sustainable Use of Soils on Construction Sites, and we 

recommend its use in the design and construction of development, including any 

planning conditions. For mineral working and landfilling, separate guidance on 

soil protection for site restoration and aftercare is available on Gov.uk website. 

Detailed guidance on soil handling for mineral sites is contained in the Institute 

of Quarrying Good Practice Guide for Handling Soils in Mineral Workings. 

Should the development proceed, we advise that the developer uses an 

appropriately experienced soil specialist to advise on, and supervise soil 

handling, including identifying when soils are dry enough to be handled and how 

to make the best use of soils on site. 

page 209



Green Infrastructure 

Natural England's Green Infrastructure Framework provides evidence-based 

advice and tools on how to design, deliver and manage green and blue 

infrastructure (GI). GI should create and maintain green liveable places that 

enable people to experience and connect with nature, and that offer everyone, 

wherever they live, access to good quality parks, greenspaces, recreational, 

walking and cycling routes that are inclusive, safe, welcoming, well-managed and 

accessible for all. GI provision should enhance ecological networks, support 

ecosystems services and connect as a living network at local, regional and 

national scales. 

Development should be designed to meet the 15 Green Infrastructure Principles. 

The GI Standards can be used to inform the quality, quantity and type of GI to 

be provided. Major development should have a GI plan including a long-term 

delivery and management plan. Relevant aspects of local authority GI strategies 

should be delivered where appropriate. 

GI mapping resources are available here and here. These can be used to help 

assess deficiencies in greenspace provision and identify priority locations for new 

GI provision. 

Access and Recreation 

Natural England encourages any proposal to incorporate measures to help 

improve people's access to the natural environment. Measures such as 

reinstating existing footpaths, together with the creation of new footpaths and 

bridleways should be considered. Links to urban fringe areas should also be 

explored to strengthen access networks, reduce fragmentation, and promote 

wider green infrastructure. 

Rights of Way, Access land, Coastal access and National Trails 

Paragraphs 104 and 180 of the NPPF highlight the important of public rights of 

way and access. Development should consider potential impacts on access land, 

common land, rights of way and coastal access routes in the vicinity of the 

development. Consideration should also be given to the potential impacts on the 

any nearby National Trails. The National Trails website www.nationaltrail.co.uk 

provides information including contact details for the National Trail Officer. 

Appropriate mitigation measures should be incorporated for any adverse 

impacts. 

Further information is set out in Planning Practice Guidance on the natural 

environment 

Natural England 

02/01/24 - comments received 22/12/2023 

Thank you for your consultation on the above dated 18 October 2023 which was 

received by Natural England on the same date. 

page 210



Natural England is a non-departmental public body. Our statutory purpose is to 

ensure that the natural environment is conserved, enhanced, and managed for 

the benefit of present and future generations, thereby contributing to sustainable 

development. 

SUMMARY OF NATURAL ENGLAND'S ADVICE 

DESIGNATED SITES [EUROPEAN] - NO OBJECTION SUBJECT TO 

SECURING APPROPRIATE MITIGATION FOR RECREATIONAL PRESSURE 

IMPACTS ON HABITAT SITES (EUROPEAN SITES). 

Natural England notes that the Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) has not 

been provided with the application. As competent authority, and before deciding 

to give permission for the project which is likely to have a significant effect on a 

European Protected Site, you must carry out a HRA and adhere to its 

conclusions. 

For all future applications within the zone of influence identified by your authority, 

please only consult Natural England once the HRA has been produced. 

FURTHER INFORMATION REGARDING RECREATIONAL PRESSURE 

IMPACTS ON HABITAT SITES (EUROPEAN SITES). 

Natural England considers that this advice may be used for all applications that 

fall within the parameters detailed below. 

This advice relates to proposed developments that falls within the 'zone of 

influence' (ZOI) for one or more European designated sites, such as Exe Estuary 

Special Area of Conservation (SAC); East Devon Pebblebed Heaths Special 

Area of Conservation (SAC); and East Devon Heaths Special Protection Area 

(SPA). It is anticipated that new residential development within this zone is 'likely 

to have a significant effect', when considered either alone or in combination, upon 

the qualifying features of the European Site due to the risk of increased 

recreational pressure that could be caused by that development and therefore 

such development will require an appropriate assessment. 

Your authority has measures in place to manage these potential impacts through 

a strategic solution which we have advised will (in our view) be sufficiently certain 

and effective in preventing adverse impacts on the integrity of those European 

Site(s) within the ZOI from the recreational impacts associated with such 

development. 

However, following the People Over Wind ruling by the European Court of 

Justice, mitigation may not be taken into account at screening stage when 

considering 'likely significant effects', but can be considered at appropriate 

assessment. In the light of this, these measures) should be formally checked and 

confirmed by your authority, as the competent authority, via an appropriate 

assessment in view of the European Site's conservation objectives and in 

accordance with the Conservation of Habitats & Species Regulations 2017 (as 

amended). 

page 211



Natural England is of the view that if these measures, including contributions to 

them, are implemented, they will be effective and reliable in preventing adverse 

effects on the integrity of the relevant European Site(s) from recreational impacts 

for the duration of the development proposed within the relevant ZOI. 

Providing that the appropriate assessment concludes that the measures can be 

secured [with sufficient certainty] as planning conditions or obligations by your 

authority , and providing that there are no other likely significant effects identified 

(on this or other protected sites) which require consideration by way of 

appropriate assessment, Natural England is likely to be satisfied that your 

appropriate assessments will be able to ascertain with sufficient certainty that 

there will be no adverse effect on the integrity of the European Site from 

recreational pressure in view of the site's conservation objectives. In this 

scenario, Natural England is unlikely to have further comment regarding the 

Appropriate Assessment, in relation to recreational disturbance. 

Natural England should continue to be consulted on all proposals where 

provision of site specific SANGS (Suitable Alternative Natural Green Space) or 

other bespoke mitigation for recreational impacts that falls outside of the strategic 

solution is included as part of the proposal. We would also strongly recommend 

that applicants proposing site specific infrastructure including SANGs seek pre 

application advice from Natural England through its Discretionary Advice 

Service. If your consultation is regarding bespoke site-specific mitigation, please 

reconsult Natural England putting 'Bespoke Mitigation' in the email header. 

Reserved Matters applications, and in some cases the 

discharge/removal/variation of conditions, where the permission was granted 

prior to the introduction of the Strategic Solution, should also be subject to the 

requirements of the Habitats Regulations and our advice above applies. 

Other Protected Sites 

European Sites 

Based on the plans submitted, Natural England considers that the proposed 

development will not have likely significant effects on other statutorily protected 

sites and has no objection to the proposed development. To meet the 

requirements of the Habitats Regulations, we advise you to record your decision 

that a likely significant effect can be ruled out. 

Sites of Special Scientific Interest 

Based on the plans submitted, Natural England considers that the proposed 

development will not have likely significant effects on other statutorily protected 

sites and has no objection to the proposed development. 

Protected Landscapes - East Devon AONB 

The proposed development is for a site within or close to a nationally designated 

landscape namely East Devon AONB. Natural England advises that the planning 

authority uses national and local policies, together with local landscape expertise 

page 212



and information to determine the proposal. The policy and statutory framework 

to guide your decision and the role of local advice are explained below. 

Your decision should be guided by paragraph 176 and 177 of the National 

Planning Policy Framework which gives the highest status of protection for the 

'landscape and scenic beauty' of AONBs and National Parks. For major 

development proposals paragraph 177 sets out criteria to determine whether the 

development should exceptionally be permitted within the designated landscape. 

Alongside national policy you should also apply landscape policies set out in your 

development plan, or appropriate saved policies. 

We also advise that you consult the relevant AONB Partnership or Conservation 

Board. Their knowledge of the site and its wider landscape setting, together with 

the aims and objectives of the AONB's statutory management plan, will be a 

valuable contribution to the planning decision. Where available, a local 

Landscape Character Assessment can also be a helpful guide to the landscape's 

sensitivity to this type of development and its capacity to accommodate the 

proposed development. 

The statutory purpose of the AONB is to conserve and enhance the area's natural 

beauty. You should assess the application carefully as to whether the proposed 

development would have a significant impact on or harm that statutory purpose. 

Relevant to this is the duty on public bodies to 'have regard' for that statutory 

purpose in carrying out their functions (S85 of the Countryside and Rights of Way 

Act, 2000). The Planning Practice Guidance confirms that this duty also applies 

to proposals outside the designated area but impacting on its natural beauty. 

Further general advice on the consideration of protected species and other 

natural environment issues is provided at Annex A. 

We would be happy to comment further should the need arise but if in the 

meantime you have any queries please do not hesitate to contact us. 

For any queries regarding this letter, for new consultations, or to provide further 

information on this consultation please send your correspondences to 

consultations@naturalengland.org.uk. 

02/01/24 - Natural England has previously commented on this proposal and 

made comments to the authority in our response dated 11 August 2023 reference 

number 444751. 

The advice provided in our previous response applies equally to this amendment 

The proposed amendments to the original application are unlikely to have 

significantly different impacts on the natural environment than the original 

proposal.  

Should the proposal be amended in a way which significantly affects its impact 

on the natural environment then, in accordance with Section 4 of the Natural 

Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006, Natural England should be 

consulted again. Before sending us the amended consultation, please assess 

page 213



whether the changes proposed will materially affect any of the advice we have 

previously offered. If they are unlikely to do so, please do not re-consult us. 

Yours faithfully, 

James McGiveron 

Operations Delivery, Consultations Team 

Natural England 

Natural England 

11/08/23 - comments dated 11/08/2023 

Thank you for your consultation on the above dated and received by Natural 

England on 02 August 2023. 

Natural England is a non-departmental public body. Our statutory purpose is to 

ensure that the natural environment is conserved, enhanced, and managed for 

the benefit of present and future generations, thereby contributing to sustainable 

development. 

SUMMARY OF NATURAL ENGLAND'S ADVICE 

DESIGNATED SITES [EUROPEAN] - NO OBJECTION SUBJECT TO 

SECURING APPROPRIATE MITIGATION FOR RECREATIONAL PRESSURE 

IMPACTS ON HABITAT SITES (EUROPEAN SITES). 

Natural England notes that the Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) has not 

been provided with the application. As competent authority, and before deciding 

to give permission for the project which is likely to have a significant effect on a 

European Protected Site, you must carry out a HRA and adhere to its 

conclusions. 

For all future applications within the zone of influence identified by your authority, 

please only consult Natural England once the HRA has been produced. 

FURTHER INFORMATION REGARDING RECREATIONAL PRESSURE 

IMPACTS ON HABITAT SITES (EUROPEAN SITES). 

Natural England considers that this advice may be used for all applications that 

fall within the parameters detailed below. 

This advice relates to proposed developments that falls within the 'zone of 

influence' (ZOI) for one or more European designated sites, such as East Devon 

Pebblebed Heaths Special Area of Conservation (SAC), then East Devon Heaths 

Special Protection Area (SPA), and Exe Estuary Special Protection Area (SPA). 

It is anticipated that new residential development within this zone is 'likely to have 

a significant effect', when considered either alone or in combination, upon the 

qualifying features of the European Site due to the risk of increased recreational 

pressure that could be caused by that development and therefore such 

development will require an appropriate assessment. 

page 214



Your authority has measures in place to manage these potential impacts through 

a strategic solution which we have advised will (in our view) be sufficiently certain 

and effective in preventing adverse impacts on the integrity of those European 

Site(s) within the ZOI from the recreational impacts associated with such 

development. 

However, following the People Over Wind ruling by the European Court of 

Justice, mitigation may not be taken into account at screening stage when 

considering 'likely significant effects', but can be considered at appropriate 

assessment. In the light of this, these measures) should be formally checked and 

confirmed by your authority, as the competent authority, via an appropriate 

assessment in view of the European Site's conservation objectives and in 

accordance with the Conservation of Habitats & Species Regulations 2017 (as 

amended). 

Natural England is of the view that if these measures, including contributions to 

them, are implemented, they will be effective and reliable in preventing adverse 

effects on the integrity of the relevant European Site(s) from recreational impacts 

for the duration of the development proposed within the relevant ZOI. 

Providing that the appropriate assessment concludes that the measures can be 

secured [with sufficient certainty] as planning conditions or obligations by your 

authority , and providing that there are no other likely significant effects identified 

(on this or other protected sites) which require consideration by way of 

appropriate assessment, Natural England is likely to be satisfied that your 

appropriate assessments will be able to ascertain with sufficient certainty that 

there will be no adverse effect on the integrity of the European Site from 

recreational pressure in view of the site's conservation objectives. In this 

scenario, Natural England is unlikely to have further comment regarding the 

Appropriate Assessment, in relation to recreational disturbance. 

Natural England should continue to be consulted on all proposals where 

provision of site specific SANGS (Suitable Alternative Natural Green Space) or 

other bespoke mitigation for recreational impacts that falls outside of the strategic 

solution is included as part of the proposal. We would also strongly recommend 

that applicants proposing site specific infrastructure including SANGs seek pre 

application advice from Natural England through its Discretionary Advice 

Service. If your consultation is regarding bespoke site-specific mitigation, please 

reconsult Natural England putting 'Bespoke Mitigation' in the email header. 

Reserved Matters applications, and in some cases the 

discharge/removal/variation of conditions, where the permission was granted 

prior to the introduction of the Strategic Solution, should also be subject to the 

requirements of the Habitats Regulations and our advice above applies. 

Protected Landscapes - East Devon Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty AONB 

The proposed development is for a site within or close to a nationally designated 

landscape namely East Devon AONB. Natural England advises that the planning 

authority uses national and local policies, together with local landscape expertise 

page 215



and information to determine the proposal. The policy and statutory framework 

to guide your decision and the role of local advice are explained below. 

Your decision should be guided by paragraph 176 and 177 of the National 

Planning Policy Framework which gives the highest status of protection for the 

'landscape and scenic beauty' of AONBs and National Parks. For major 

development proposals paragraph 177 sets out criteria to determine whether the 

development should exceptionally be permitted within the designated landscape. 

Alongside national policy you should also apply landscape policies set out in your 

development plan, or appropriate saved policies. 

We also advise that you consult the relevant AONB Partnership or Conservation 

Board. Their knowledge of the site and its wider landscape setting, together with 

the aims and objectives of the AONB's statutory management plan, will be a 

valuable contribution to the planning decision. Where available, a local 

Landscape Character Assessment can also be a helpful guide to the landscape's 

sensitivity to this type of development and its capacity to accommodate the 

proposed development. 

The statutory purpose of the AONB is to conserve and enhance the area's natural 

beauty. You should assess the application carefully as to whether the proposed 

development would have a significant impact on or harm that statutory purpose. 

Relevant to this is the duty on public bodies to 'have regard' for that statutory 

purpose in carrying out their functions (S85 of the Countryside and Rights of Way 

Act, 2000). The Planning Practice Guidance confirms that this duty also applies 

to proposals outside the designated area but impacting on its natural beauty. 

Further general advice on the consideration of protected species and other 

natural environment issues is provided at Annex A (see document tab) 

We would be happy to comment further should the need arise but if in the 

meantime you have any queries please do not hesitate to contact us. 

For any queries regarding this letter, for new consultations, or to provide further 

information on this consultation please send your correspondences to 

consultations@naturalengland.org.uk. 

 

EDDC Ecology response to planning application  

Application no. 23/1600/MOUT - 01/12/2023  

1. Introduction  

This report forms the EDDC’s Ecology’s response to the outline application for 

the above site. The report provides a review of ecology related information 

submitted with the application in relation to adopted policy, relevant guidance, 

current best practice and existing site context and should be read in conjunction 

with the submitted information.  

2. Review of submitted details  

page 216



1.1. Ecological Impact Assessment (EcIA) The application is supported by a 

Preliminary Ecological Appraisal, including an Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey. 

Additional ecological surveys for bats, nesting birds, and reptiles have been 

undertaken and provided. Surveys have largely been undertaken in accordance 

with published survey guidelines (refer to reptile section below) and within the 

last 12 months. Therefore, the ecological survey work is considered suitable to 

support the planning submission.  

1.2. Ecological receptors The surveys have demonstrated the site is used by 

foraging and commuting bats, including Annex II greater horseshoe, barbastelle 

and lesser horseshoe (in low numbers), nesting birds, including Red listed1 

house sparrow and Amber listed and Priority Species (NERC, 2006) dunnock, 

and by slow worms.  

Reptiles  

The application is supported by a reptile survey which deviates from current 

guidelines. Supporting statements are made regarding the modified survey 

method. Given the site has been subject to a previous reptile survey, and the 

updated survey has identified continued presence of slow worms it is considered 

sufficient to confirm presence of reptiles.  

It is noted however in the reptile survey report that a slow worm found during the 

survey was relocated to an unknown receptor site. No details regarding the 

receptor site have been provided, such as an assessment of its carrying capacity. 

In accordance with .GOV guidance, the translocation of reptiles is a last resort 

for consented development proposals where it has been demonstrated this 

would be beneficial to reptiles, not for the purpose of potential double counting 

reptiles during a survey. Therefore, it is not clear why reptiles are 1 Birds of 

Conservation Concern 5. Eaton et al. 2021 being moved out of suitable habitat 

to an unknown area without consent or a justifiable reason.  

Dormouse  

The submitted report indicates the margins of the site could potentially offer 

habitat for dormice but considers that dormice are unlikely to be present. The 

report states there are no records within the data search and habitats are 

unsuitable. There is a record of a dormouse mitigation licence (on Magic Map) 

within 1 km of the site and dormice are known to be frequent within East Devon. 

The tree-lined west boundary species-poor hedge does have potential 

connectivity to the wider landscape to the west across the B3179 and the north 

include a densely wooded area in the adjacent property, and the wider 

landscape. Dormice are known to nest within the central reservation of the A30 

in Cornwall so the minor B-road is not considered as a potential barrier to their 

movement and their present cannot be fully discounted.  

Other receptors (not considered within the submitted reports)  

It is considered likely due the habitats on the site that it could also be used by 

other Priority Species including common toad and hedgehogs, as well as 

common invertebrates.  

1.3. Ecological impacts 

The development of the site would result in the permanent loss of approximately 

0.8 ha of other neutral grassland, 50 m of species-poor hedgerow, and some 

page 217



trees, considered to result in a minor adverse ecological impact on a local scale, 

if unmitigated.  

There are no predicted impacts on any designated sites for wildlife interest other 

than an increase in recreational disturbance to the Exe Estuary and the East 

Devon Pebblebed Heaths Special Protection Areas (SPA's).  

Assuming appropriate mitigation and enhancement measures are implemented, 

there are no predicted significant impacts or effects on any protected and notable 

species.  

1.4. Ecological mitigation, compensation, and enhancement measures  

General recommendations are made within the ecological appraisal report 

(Sunflower Ecology, 2023), with detailed recommendations for bat mitigation, 

compensation, and enhancement measures within the bat survey report (Colmer 

Ecology, 2023).  

In addition to the measures proposed, I would also recommend that any 

hedgerow or scrub clearance be supervised by a suitable experienced Ecological 

Clerk of Works (ECoW) who holds a Natural England dormouse licence, to 

undertake a fingertip search of these habitats. Should evidence of nesting 

dormice be found, then a European protected species licence would need to be 

obtained to continue with the works. 

I would also recommend that the site includes permeable garden fencing and 

insect bricks (one per dwelling).  

The proposed landscaping and amount of green space within the development 

appears to be proportional. However, it would be preferable to see the application 

supported by a biodiversity metric calculation to quantify losses and gains based 

on the emerging requirement for development proposals to demonstrate 

biodiversity net gain. 

A Habitat Mitigation payment, as set out on the EDDC website, would be required 

to off-set potential impacts from the development on the designated sites.  

3. Conclusions and recommendations  

1.5. Acceptability of the proposals  

The submitted ecological survey information including ecological avoidance, 

mitigation, and enhancement measures are generally considered acceptable 

notwithstanding the above comments and assuming the following conditions are 

imposed and the successful implementation of the mitigation and enhancement 

measures.  

1.5. Conditions  

Should this application be approved, the following conditions should be imposed.  

• No works shall commence on site until a Lighting Impact Assessment (LIA) 

including lux contours, based on the detailed site design, most recent guidelines 

page 218



(currently GN08/23 and DCC 2022), and recommendations within the bat survey 

report (Colmer Ecology, 2023), has been submitted and approved in writing by 

the local planning authority. The LIA should clearly demonstrate that dark 

corridors are achievable without the attenuation of habitat features which long-

terms management cannot be guaranteed. All lighting shall be installed in 

accordance with the specifications and locations set out in the design, and these 

shall be maintained thereafter in accordance with the design. Under no 

circumstances should any other external lighting be installed without prior 

consent from the local planning authority.  

• A landscape and ecological management plan (LEMP) shall be submitted to, 

and be approved in writing by, the local planning authority prior to the 

commencement of the development based on the submitted Preliminary 

Ecological Appraisal (Sunflower International, 2023), bat survey report (Colmer 

Ecology, 2023) and comments made from the District Ecologist. It should include 

the location and design of biodiversity features including bird boxes (at a ratio of 

1 per unit), bat boxes, permeable fencing, and other features to be shown clearly 

on submitted plans. The content of the LEMP also include the following.  

a) Description and evaluation of features to be managed.  

b) Ecological trends and constraints on site that might influence management.  

c) Aims and objectives of management. 

d) Appropriate management options for achieving aims and objectives.  

e) Prescriptions for management actions.  

f) Preparation of a work schedule (including an annual work plan capable of being 

rolled forward over a minimum 30-year period).  

g) Details of the body or organization responsible for implementation of the plan. 

h) Ongoing monitoring and remedial measures.  

The LEMP shall also include details of the legal and funding mechanism(s) by 

which the long-term implementation of the plan will be secured by the developer 

with the management body(ies) responsible for its delivery. The plan shall also 

set out (where the results from monitoring show that conservation aims and 

objectives of the LEMP are not being met) how contingencies and/or remedial 

action will be identified, agreed and implemented so that the development still 

delivers the fully functioning biodiversity objectives of the originally approved 

scheme. The approved plan will be implemented in accordance with the 

approved details.  

• No development shall take place (including ground works) until a Construction 

and Ecological Management Plan (CEcoMP) has been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the local planning authority. The CEcoMP shall include 

the following.  

a) Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction activities.  

page 219



b) Identification of “biodiversity protection zones”.  

c) Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working practices) 

to avoid or reduce impacts during construction (may be provided as a set of 

method statements).  

d) The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to biodiversity 

features.  

e) The times during construction when specialist ecologists need to be present 

on site to oversee works.  

f) Responsible persons and lines of communication, including reporting 

compliance of actions to the LPA  

g) The role and responsibilities on site of an ecological clerk of works (ECoW), 

including any licence requirements.  

h) Use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs.  

The approved CEcoMP shall be adhered to and implemented throughout the 

construction period strictly in accordance with the approved details, unless 

otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority.  

• The development shall not be occupied until the local planning authority has 

been provided with evidence, including photographs, that all ecological mitigation 

and enhancement features, including bat boxes, bird boxes (1 per dwelling), 

have been installed/constructed, and compliance with any ecological method 

statements in accordance with details within the submitted LEMP and CEcoMP.  

1.6. Reason To ensure that the development has no adverse effect on 

protected and notable species and provides ecological mitigation and 

enhancement measures in accordance with Strategy 47 (Nature Conservation 

and Geology) and Policy EN5 (Wildlife Habitats and Features) and EN14 (Control 

of Pollution) of the Adopted East Devon Local Plan 2013- 2031.  

William Dommett MSc MCIEEM District Ecologist East Devon District Council 

District Ecologist 

11/10/23 - The submitted ecological survey report indicates that surveys for 

reptiles, bats, and breeding birds are being undertaken.  

Therefore, I currently submit an objection to the proposals until all ecological 

surveys have been completed and the results provided within an amended report 

that details the results of all ecological surveys, mitigation, compensation, and 

enhancement measures. 

Reason 

ODPM Circular 06/2005 states:  "It is essential that the presence or otherwise of 

protected species, and the extent that they may be affected by the proposed 

development, is established before the planning permission is granted, otherwise 

page 220



all relevant material considerations may not have been addressed in making the 

decision." 

BS 42020:2013 Par 6.4.5 states: "... where a PEA contains recommendations 

that further detailed survey work is necessary in order to inform a planning 

application, this work should be undertaken before determination of the planning 

application.". 

Consideration of impacts on protected species is a material consideration of 

planning permission. It is not possible to properly consider the impacts of the 

proposals on priority and protected habitats and species, or designated sites, in 

absence of adequate survey information and suitable 

avoidance/mitigation/compensation measures.  

In absence of this information, the proposal is not in accordance with Policies 

EN5, and Strategy 47 of the East Devon Local Plan 2013 to 2031. 

EDDC Trees 

22/09/23 - As an outline application, in principle I believe the site can be 

developed if an appropriate design is forthcoming based on a sound BS5837 

survey. However, there are significant tree constraints on site which will limit 

development particularly in the northern and north-eastern section of the site. A 

number of trees on site are considered to be either veteran or future veterans.  

In regards to the present plans as shown within the AIA I have significant 

concerns due to the loss of important trees and the pressure to prune or fell 

retained trees. As discussed with the project arboriculturalist on site (and latterly 

with the applicant), I have the following concerns which would need to be rectified 

before I could support any proposal: 

 

1) Access onto Globe Hill - visibility requirements are likely to result in 

significant tree loss within W1 (B category). Trees closest to entrance are the 

larger, more significant specimens. Works proposed to facilitate access at 

present only suggest crown lifting. However it is likely that to gain the required 

visibility sights onto Globe Hill will require the removal of a significant number of 

trees particularly to the north of the junction. The impact of this removal would 

need to be clearly assessed.   

2) Loss of A1. B category trees including  2 Oak's which are considered 

long-term to be important future trees and potiential replacement trees if any of 

the larger, older specimens were to fail. The design should be based around 

retaining these trees. Its considered reasonable to remove the understory trees. 

3) T27, Fastigate Elm B category described as having 'good future 

potential'. Like the Oaks within A1, this is a potentially important future tree which 

should be retained. These semi mature trees help to give character and structure 

to the development, rather than waiting 30 years for newly planted trees to 

develop. 

page 221



4) Locating of plot 3 between T7 (A category Copper Beech)  and T11 (A 

category Oak) is not considered a sustainable  juxtaposition between the 

dwelling and nearby trees. This will result in undue pressure to prune or fell the 

trees due to concerns over safety; especially from T11, a large tree described in 

the tree survey with 'multiple signs of early veteran status' with decay pockets, 

fungi, large sections of deadwood. The tree contains numerous heavy limbs with 

evidence of history of branch drop. The current proposed location of plot 3 will 

create unnecessary targets. The area between these trees should be kept free 

of development and retained as 'parkland trees'.  

5) T12 - move outside of RPA. 

6) Access path adjacent to T20 (A4) - significant ground level changes 

likely to result in root damage. Access point appears unnecessary. 

 

EDDC Landscape Architect 

16/11/23 - 1 INTRODUCTION 

This report forms the EDDC's landscape response to the outline application for 

the above site. 

The report provides a review of landscape related information submitted with the 

application in relation to adopted policy, relevant guidance, current best practice 

and existing site context and should be read in conjunction with the submitted 

information. 

2 SITE DESCRIPTION & CONTEXT 

The site is situated close to the northwestern edge of Woodbury and is currently 

accessed from a field gate off Globe Hill which runs along the western boundary. 

The application is for the construction of up to 28 dwellings, public open space, 

a parish office and associated infrastructure utilising the existing access point 

which would be enlarged and re-graded to accommodate proposed vehicular and 

pedestrian access. Two new pedestrian access points are proposed from the 

Arch which runs adjacent to the southern boundary. A range of traffic calming 

measures is proposed along Globe Hill as part of the access requirements. 

The site comprises parkland associated with Oakhayes House dating from 

C1880 situated in its garden immediately to the north. The parkland has a gently 

sloping southerly aspect, levelling towards its southern end. Land cover is 

predominantly rough grass with some areas of scrub and numerous large and 

handsome specimen trees which are a prominent and important site feature. A 

recent engineered flood relief channel runs across the lower end of the site. 

A high rubble limestone wall with native hedgerow and trees behind forms the 

southern boundary with the Arch and extending a short distance along the 

boundary with Globe Hill. The remainder of the Globe Hill frontage comprises a 

native hedgebank with a stand of mature trees north of the access gate. On its 

northern side an open fence separates the parkland from the garden of 

page 222



Oakhayes. A line of late 20th century bungalows is situated to the east with rear 

gardens backing on to the site, their boundaries formed by a mix of low fences 

and hedges. Otherwise, OS 1890 mapping (refer fig. 1 below) shows that the 

parkland boundaries are much as they were when originally laid out and, 

notwithstanding the bungalows to the eastern side, the site has a strong sense 

of time depth and tranquillity. 

There is no public access within the site. Views out of the site are limited due to 

surrounding vegetation and Oakhayes House itself. There are however extensive 

views afforded from the higher parts of the site to open countryside to the south 

and southeast extending to Woodbury Common and the Pebble Bed Heaths. 

The church tower is clearly visible beyond the eastern boundary. 

Views into the site from its immediate surroundings are restricted by existing 

boundary walls and vegetation, the only clear view into it being from the existing 

field gate on Globe Hill. There are however local glimpse views afforded across 

the site and the church tower is visible in some views from Globe Hill through or 

above boundary vegetation. There are also attractive views towards across the 

site from the church yard and village green to the east. The bungalows beyond 

the eastern boundary have large living room windows which afford direct views 

into the site. The south elevation of Oakhayes House directly overlooks the site 

and dwellings to the west side of Globe Hill are likely to afford partial views over 

it. 

Figure 1 - Extract of OS 1890 map showing Oakhayes House and parkland as 

originally laid out 

Oakhayes House is grade II listed and St Swithen's Church is grade I. The site 

and surrounding roads lie within the Woodbury conservation area. There is a 

blanket TPO across the site. The East Dorset AONB boundary lies 1.6km to the 

east/ southeast. 

3 REVIEW OF SUBMITTED DETAILS 

3.1 Landscape and visual impact 

Generally, the LVIA findings that landscape and visual impacts of the 

development would be largely limited to the site itself and its immediate 

surroundings, and that there would be no adverse impacts on the AONB are 

accepted. 

The sensitivity of the parkland itself to development should be considered high 

rather than medium-high as stated in the LVIA due to its relationship with the 

grade II Oakhayes House, its intactnesss and the presence of numerous 

important trees within it. 

The proposals would have a major adverse impact on the historic parkland 

character of the site due to the introduction of buildings, access roads, lighting 

etc and vegetation clearance including some trees, although the provision for 

public access would be beneficial. 

page 223



The proposals would alter the character of Globe Hill introducing a range of traffic 

calming features, removal of 35m boundary hedgerow and construction of two 

new houses backing on to its undeveloped eastern edge with associated on 

street parking. Further development within the interior of the site would be visible 

in partial and filtered views from Globe Hill. These changes would have a locally 

urbanising effect. 

The visual impact of development on The Arch is likely to be negligible due to 

the proposed retention of the existing high boundary wall and mature trees 

behind. 

The proposals would result in the loss of some glimpse views of the church tower 

from Globe Hill and a slight loss of openness in near views across the site from 

other directions to the east and southeast. 

3.2 Scheme Drawings 

Access proposals (dwg. no. 01-PHL-101 rev. E) 

It appears that the proposed access could be constructed without adverse impact 

on the RPA of trees to the north but the RPA extent immediately to the north of 

the site access is incorrectly plotted and should be amended on the arboricultural 

and access plans as per the plan extract below. 

Illustrative site layout 

Although the submitted layout plan is illustrative only, layout being a reserved 

matter, the following comments are noted: 

The layout of plots 3-17 appears well considered providing a wide buffer 

separating them from the existing bungalows to the east, maintaining a view to 

the church tower as a focus of the site access road and an open vista from 

Oakhayes House, while providing natural surveillance over the open space to 

the west (exccept where obstructed by plots 18-20). 

The location of plots 1 and 2 backing onto Globe Hill with associated car parking 

will have an adverse urbanising effect on the rural edge character of Globe Hill. 

Plots 1-2 together with plots 18-20 impinge excessively on the parkland resulting 

in a high adverse impact on its character and constricting its width to 23-36m 

which reduces its potential as active community and recreational space. By 

comparison the open space provision for the recently constructed housing 

scheme at Lympstone nursery site (application ref 18/2589/MFUL) for 11 houses 

provided more than double the recreational space of this scheme. Additionally, 

while the location of proposed dwellings has sought to retain an open vista from 

Oakhayes House across the parkland to wider countryside beyond the proposed 

dwellings will impinge on this especially plots 1-2 and 18-20. 

The omission of units 1-2 and 18-20 would result in a much more sympathetic 

development retaining a stronger sense of the original parkland and the setting 

of Oakhayes House and providing greater recreational opportunity. 

page 224



At its southern end the site is weakly connected with The Arch. This is partly due 

to the existing trees and high boundary wall which form the boundary but is 

exacerbated by the layout which provides poor pedestrian connectivity with the 

parkland open space beyond. Reconfiguring the layout so that there is a clear 

pedestrian corridor connecting directly to the open space with housing fronting 

this and carparking tucked to the rear as indicated in the overmarked plan extract 

below would help considerably to improve this connection and draw people into 

the site. 

Parameter plans 

The submitted parameter plans comprising scale, land-use, density and open 

space provision are considered unacceptable for reasons noted above. 

4 CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

4.1 Acceptability of proposals 

Although the proposals would have a major impact on the character of the site 

itself landscape and visual impacts beyond its boundaries are likely to be very 

localised. The principle of housing development on the site is therefore 

considered acceptable in terms of overall landscape and visual impact subject to 

design and density. 

The proposed access could be constructed without adverse impact on existing 

boundary trees and with minimal cutting back of existing hedgerow. 

The proposals will have an urbanising effect on the character of Globe Hill due 

to the siting of plots 1 and 2 with associated car parking and the introduction of 

traffic calming measures. 

The proposals as indicated on the illustrative layout plan appear to be an 

overdevelopment of the site resulting in excessive harm to the parkland character 

of the site and a reduction of units is recommended as noted above to retain 

parkland character and provide a larger community space less dominated by built 

form and free of development along its western rural edge. 

4.2 Conditions 

Notwithstanding the above comments should the application be approved the 

following conditions should be imposed: 

1) No development work shall commence on site until the following information 

has been submitted and approved: 

a) A full set of hard landscape details for proposed walls, fencing, retaining 

structures, hedgebanks, pavings and edgings, site furniture, play equipment and 

signage. 

b) Details of locations, heights and specifications of proposed free standing and 

wall mounted external lighting including means of control and intended hours of 

operation including lux levels plan. 

page 225



External lighting shall be designed to minimise light-spill and adverse impact on 

dark skies/ bat foraging and commuting in accordance with Institute of Lighting 

Professionals (ILP) guidance notes GN01 2011 - Guidance notes for the 

reduction of obtrusive light and GN 08/18 - Bats and Artificial Lighting in the UK. 

c) A site levels plan indicating existing and proposed levels and showing the 

extent of earthworks and any retaining walls at 1:250 scale or greater. This shall 

be accompanied by a minimum of 4 sections through the site at a scale of 1:200 

or greater clearly showing existing and proposed ground level profiles across the 

site and relationship to surroundings. 

d) A landscape and green infrastructure strategy plan showing existing trees, 

hedgerow and habitat to be retained and removed; proposed tree and structure 

planting and new habitat to be created; 

existing and proposed watercourses, ponds and wetland areas; pedestrian and 

cycle routes through the site and how they connect to the existing network 

beyond 

d) Surface water drainage strategy incorporating an appropriate SuDS treatment 

train and details of SuDS features including proposed profiles, levels and make 

up of swales and attenuation ponds and locations and construction details of 

check dams, inlets and outlets etc. The SuDS scheme shall be designed to 

enhance bio-diversity value and engineered elements should have a positive or 

neutral impact on visual amenity. 

f) A soil resources plan prepared in accordance with Construction Code of 

Practice for the Sustainable use of Soils on Construction Sites - DEFRA 

September 2009, which should include: 

o a plan showing topsoil and subsoil types based on trial pitting and laboratory 

analysis, and the areas to be stripped and left in-situ. 

o methods for stripping, stockpiling, re-spreading and ameliorating the soils. 

o location of soil stockpiles and content (e.g. Topsoil type A, subsoil type B). 

o schedules of volumes for each material. 

o expected after-use for each soil whether topsoil to be used on site, used or sold 

off site, or subsoil to be retained for landscape areas, used as structural fill or for 

topsoil manufacture. 

o identification of person responsible for supervising soil management. 

g) A full set of soft landscape details including: 

i) Planting plan(s) showing locations, species and number of new tree, shrub and 

herbaceous planting, type and extent of new amenity/ species rich grass areas, 

existing vegetation to be retained and removed. 

ii) Plant schedule indicating the species, form, size, numbers and density of 

proposed planting. 

page 226



iii) Soft landscape specification covering soil quality, depth, cultivation and 

amelioration; planting, sowing and turfing; mulching and means of plant support 

and protection during establishment period together with a 5 year maintenance 

schedule. 

iv) Tree pit and tree staking/ guying details including details for extended soil 

volume under paving where necessary for trees within/ adjacent to hard paving. 

h) Measures for protection of existing perimeter trees/ undisturbed ground during 

construction phase in accordance with BS5837: 2012. Approved protective 

measures shall be implemented prior to commencement of construction and 

maintained in sound condition for the duration of the works. 

3) No development shall take place until a Landscape and Ecology Management 

Plan (LEMP) for a minimum period of 30 years has been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority which should include the 

following details: 

o Extent, ownership and responsibilities for management and maintenance 

accompanied by a plan showing areas to be adopted, maintained by 

management company or other defined body and areas to be privately owned/ 

maintained. 

o Details of how the management and maintenance of habitats, open space and 

associated features will be funded for the life of the development. 

o A description and evaluation of landscape and ecological features to be 

created/ managed and any site constraints that might influence management. 

o Landscape and ecological aims and objectives for the site. 

o Condition survey of existing trees, hedgerow and other habitat to be retained 

as a baseline for future monitoring and to identify any initial works required to 

address defects/ issues identified and bring them into good condition. 

o Detailed maintenance works schedules covering regular cyclical work and less 

regular/ occasional works in relation to: 

o Existing trees, woodland and hedgerows/banks. Hedgerow management shall 

be carried out in accordance with the Hedge Management Cycle as set out in 

Hedgelink guidance. 

o New trees, woodland areas, hedges and amenity planting areas. 

o Grass and wildflower areas. 

o Biodiversity features - hibernaculae, bat/ bird boxes etc. 

o Boundary structures, drainage swales, water bodies and other infrastructure/ 

facilities within public/ communal areas. 

o Arrangements for Inspection and monitoring of the site and maintenance 

practices. 

page 227



o Arrangements for periodic review and update of the plan that may be required 

to meet the objectives of the plan and reflect any relevant changes to site, 

legislation and best practice guidance. 

Management, maintenance and monitoring shall be carried out in accordance 

with the approved plan. 

4) The works shall be executed in accordance with the approved drawings and 

details and shall be completed prior to first use of the proposed buildings with the 

exception of planting which shall be completed no later than the first planting 

season following first occupation. 

5) Any new planting or grass areas which fail to make satisfactory growth or dies 

within five years following completion of the development shall be replaced with 

plants of similar size and species to the satisfaction of the LPA. 

(Reason - In the interests of amenity and to preserve and enhance the character 

and appearance of the area in accordance with Strategy 3 (Sustainable 

Development), Strategy 4 (Balanced Communities), Strategy 5 (Environment), 

Strategy 43 (Open Space Standards), Policy D1 (Design and Local 

Distinctiveness), Policy D2 (Landscape Requirements) and Policy D3 (Trees in 

relation to development) of the East Devon Local Plan. The landscaping scheme 

is required to be approved before development starts to ensure that it properly 

integrates into the development from an early stage.) 

SEE FULL REPORT WITH IMAGES UNDER DOCUMENT TAB 

  

Environmental Health 

09/08/23 - A Construction and Environment Management Plan (CEMP) must be 

submitted and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to any works 

commencing on site, and shall be implemented and remain in place throughout 

the development.  The CEMP shall include at least the following matters : Air 

Quality, Dust, Water Quality, Lighting, Noise and Vibration, Pollution Prevention 

and Control, and Monitoring Arrangements.  Any equipment, plant, process or 

procedure provided or undertaken in pursuance of this development shall be 

operated and retained in compliance with the approved CEMP.   Construction 

working hours shall be 8am to 6pm Monday to Friday and 8am to 1pm on 

Saturdays, with no working on Sundays or Bank Holidays. There shall be no 

burning on site and no high frequency audible reversing alarms used on the site. 

Reason: To protect the amenities of existing and future residents in the vicinity 

of the site from noise, air, water and light pollution. 

 

Police Architectural Liaison Officer - Kris Calderhead 

14/08/23 - Thank you on behalf of Devon and Cornwall Police for the opportunity 

to comment on this application. 

page 228



I appreciate that the layout of the site is only illustrative at this stage however, I 

would like to make the following comments and recommendations for 

consideration. They relate to the principles of Crime Prevention Through 

Environmental Design (CPTED) and should be embedded into the detailed 

design of the scheme to reduce the opportunity for crime and anti-social 

behaviour (ASB). 

o Should the application progress, it would be beneficial if designing out crime is 

referenced in any future Design and Access Statement (DAS) or any addendum 

to the existing one, in order to detail how the scheme has embedded designing 

out crime principles into its design and thus considered both local and national 

guidance relating to safety and security. 

o The Habitat corridor with new planting to form a future linear woodland / 

landscape buffer / informal open space running along the east of the 

development is somewhat of a concern if it is expected that this space will be 

freely accessible and promoted to use, as it provides legitimate access to the 

rear boundaries of numerous plots. The space will lack surveillance opportunities 

and it is recommended that such a layout is avoided as it can increase the risk 

of crime and ASB, unless the landscape is sufficiently robust and substantial, so 

as to prevent access. 

o Detailed design should include a layout that provides overlooking and active 

frontages to the new internal streets with accessible space to the rear of plots 

avoided. Should the rear boundaries of plots abut public space they should be 

afforded a buffer to prevent easy access. 

o Any existing or new hedgerow that is likely to comprise new rear garden 

boundaries must be fit for purpose. They should be of sufficient height and depth 

to provide both a consistent and effective defensive boundary as soon as 

residents move in. If additional planting will be required to achieve this then 

temporary fencing may be required until such planting has matured. Any hedge 

must be of a type which does not undergo radical seasonal change which would 

affect its security function. 

o Boundary treatments to the front of dwellings and around apartment blocks are 

important to create defensible space to prevent conflict between public and 

private areas and clearly define ownership of space. The use of low-level railings, 

walls, hedging for example would be appropriate. 

o Treatments for the side and rear boundaries of plots should be adequately 

secure (min 1.8m height) with access to the rear of properties restricted via 

lockable gates. Defensible space should also be utilised where private space 

abuts public space in order to reduce the likelihood of conflict and damage etc. 

o Pedestrian routes throughout the development must be clearly defined, wide, 

well overlooked and well-lit. Planting immediately abutting such paths should 

generally be avoided as shrubs and trees have a tendency to grow over the path 

creating pinch points, places of concealment and unnecessary maintenance. 

page 229



o Presumably the site will be adopted and lit as per normal guidelines (BS 5489). 

Appropriate lighting for pathways, gates, parking areas and the community 

square must be considered. This will promote the safe use of such areas, reduce 

the fear of crime and increase surveillance opportunities. 

o Vehicle parking will clearly be through a mixture of solutions although from a 

crime prevention point of view, parking in locked garages or on a hard standing 

within the dwelling boundary is preferable. Where communal parking areas are 

utilised, bays should be in small groups, close and adjacent to homes in view of 

active rooms. 

Rear parking courts are discouraged as they provide legitimate access to the 

rear of plots and are often left unlit with little surveillance. 

o POS such as 'Pollinator Park' and the 'Sensory Garden' should be afforded an 

appropriate boundary treatment to prevent vehicle access. 

o Detailed design of the community square, public council office and disable toilet 

should also consider designing out crime principles with effective management 

and maintenance, good surveillance opportunities and physical protection 

measures. 

Should the application progress, please don't hesitate to contact me again to 

review any updated plans and designs. 

DCC Education 

Regarding the proposal for a development of 24 family-type dwellings, Devon 

County Council would need to request an education contribution to mitigate its 

impact. 24 family-type dwellings will generate an additional 6.00 primary pupils 

and 3.60 secondary pupils which would have a direct impact on Woodbury 

primary school and Exmouth Community College. In order to make the 

development acceptable in planning terms, an education contribution to mitigate 

its impact will be requested. This is set out below:  

In accordance with the Education Infrastructure Plan 2016-2033, DCC will 

consider the adopted Local Plan allocations in addition to the forecast spare 

capacity and already approved but not yet implemented developments.  We will 

share the forecast spare capacity of an area proportionately between all 

outstanding development sites allocated in the Local Plan.  

The local Primary School is forecast to not have capacity for the pupils likely to 

be generated by the proposed development. Therefore, Devon County Council 

would seek a contribution based on the number of pupils generated directly 

towards additional primary education infrastructure. The contribution sought 

towards primary is £102,582 (based on the DfE extension rate of £17,097 per 

pupil). This would relate directly to providing primary education facilities for those 

living in the development.  

 

page 230



The local Secondary Schools are also not forecast to have capacity for the pupils 

likely to be generated by the proposed development. Therefore, Devon County 

Council would seek a contribution based on the number of pupils generated 

directly towards additional secondary education infrastructure. The contribution 

sought towards secondary is £84,744 (based on the DfE extension rate of 

£23,540 per pupil). This would relate directly to providing secondary education 

facilities for those living in the development.  

DCC would also require a contribution towards secondary school transport costs 

due to the development being further than 2.25 miles from Exmouth Community 

College. The current costs required are as follows: - 

3.60 secondary pupils 

£2.65 per day x 3.60 pupils x 190 academic days x 5 years = £9,063 

All education infrastructure contributions will be subject to indexation using BCIS, 

it should be noted that education infrastructure contributions are based on June 

2020 rates and any indexation applied to these contributions should be applied 

from this date. All school transport contributions will be subject to indexation 

using RPI. Any indexation applied to school transport contributions should be 

applied from the date a section 106 agreement is signed for this application. 

The amount requested is based on established educational formulae (which 

related to the number of primary and secondary age children that are likely to be 

living in this type of accommodation). It is considered that this is an appropriate 

methodology to ensure that the contribution is fairly and reasonably related in 

scale to the development proposed which complies with CIL Regulation 122.  

In addition to the contribution figures quoted above, the County Council would 

wish to recover legal costs incurred as a result of the preparation and completion 

of the Agreement. 

 

page 231



Ward Broadclyst

Reference 24/1051/FUL

Applicant Mr Mark Heuff

Location Unit 10 Mushroom Road Hill Barton Business
Park Clyst St Mary

Proposal Construction of a synchronous gas-powered
standby generation facility and associated
infrastructure

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval with conditions
 

 

 

Crown Copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey 100023746

page 232

Agenda Item 10



 

24/1051/FUL  

  Committee Date: 24th September 2024 
 

Broadclyst 
(Farringdon) 
 

 
24/1051/FUL 
 

Target Date:  
17.07.2024 

Applicant: Mr Mark Heuff 
 

Location: Unit 10 Mushroom Road 
 

Proposal: Construction of a synchronous gas-powered standby 
generation facility and associated infrastructure 
 

  

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approval with conditions 
 

 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
This application is before Members at the discretion of the Chair and Vice Chair 
of the Planning Committee. 
 
The site refers to Unit 10 Hill Barton Business Park which is located within the 
north eastern corner business park. The is previously developed land with a 
concrete hard surfaced finish which is currently being used as an open storage 
compound. 
 
The proposal is for a gas peaking facility that would generate 6.9MW capacity 
which would play a role in ensuring energy stability and contribute to the 
reliability of the electricity supply at times of peak demand, thus supporting a 
national move away from fossil fuel generation to a supply based increasingly 
on renewable energy. The NPPF supports the transition towards a low carbon 
economy by balancing the fluctuation of power during periods of high usage and 
Planning Inspectors have accepted this when assessing the planning balance. 
Inspectors have suggested that the benefits of electricity generation at times of 
high demand should attract considerable weight in favour of the proposal but 
that the harm to climate change objectives due to GHG emissions from the 
facility should be given considerable weight against allowing the proposed 
development. 
 
Read against the backdrop of the existing business park and commercial uses, 
the proposal would result in no heritage harm and it has been demonstrated and 
accepted by the Council’s EHO that there would be no harm to residential 
amenity from noise and air quality to nearby residents. No further technical 
issues would arise in respect of highway safety, ecology, heritage, residential 
amenity or flood risk. 
 

page 233



 

24/1051/FUL  

On balance having regard for the above, there is clear support within the 
government's National Policy Statement's for Energy which recognises that 
there must be some fossil fuel generating capacity to provide back-up for when 
generation from intermittent renewable generating is low and to help with the 
transition to low carbon electricity generation. The proposal would support the 
delivery of renewable and low carbon energy and could therefore reasonably be 
regarded as the type of 'supporting infrastructure' meant by paragraph 160 b) of 
the NPPF. 
 
The proposal would contribute towards energy security with no harm to the 
environment, on a brownfield site in an existing industrial estate with no 
technical issues or planning harm. It has been demonstrated that the proposal 
complies with national and local policy, does not conflict with the Farringdon 
Neighbourhood Plan such that the application is recommended for approval. 
 

 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Local Consultations 
 
Parish/Town Council 
 
Please note  in response to the additional document, that there continues to be 
issues for villagers re. the fan at Brooke Energy.  It is not acceptable for another 
level of noise to be added during times when villagers expect there to be no noise 
coming from HBBP during weekday evenings/night and weekends. 
 
All 3 can be activated at once. It is not acceptable that Farringdon villagers should be 
further affected by more industrialisation at HBBP. 
  
Parish/Town Council 
Submission by Farringdon Parish Council in response to the application 
24/1051/FUL for "Construction of a synchronous gas-powered standby generation 
facility request and associated infrastructure by Mark Heuff of Brooke Energy, 
Jewells Farm, Hemyock, Cullompton EX15 3PX through agents Bell Cornwell LLP at 
Unit 10, Mushroom Road, Hill Barton Business Park, Clyst St Mary. 
 
Farringdon parish Council opposes this application. 
 
Main issues opposing planning application 24/1051/FUL: 
 
Planning statement prepared by Bell Cornwell in May 2024 
 
The Planning statement reflects a number of errors/issues shown in italics below 
followed by commentary: 
 
1.2 National and Local Plan Policy is supportive of technologies which promote the 
transition to a low carbon economy. Whilst the proposal would be powered by gas, it 
is recognised by government that some use of natural gas may be needed into the 

page 234



 

24/1051/FUL  

future to meet the overall objective in reducing Green House Gases (GHG) and the 
transition to net zero GHG. 
 
This statement is self-serving and clearly contrary to the intention of the clean, green 
power intended by the manifestos of the main parties especially Labour who is 
believed will form the next government.   
 
The report accepts that this is use of natural gas - the appeals referred to at section 
4 of the report under "Planning history" needs to be looked at again in light of the 
new government's policy. 
 
1.4 It would be located on an industrial site where there are no nearby residential 
uses, it is not within any national or local landscape designation, and is not within a 
flood zone. 
 
There is nearby residential use, including Grade II listed properties, across the 
village of Farringdon. 
 
Please also refer to paragraphs 9.2, 9.3 and 9.7 of the Farringdon Neighbourhood 
Plan dated 2021. 
 
1.5 The site is therefore entirely suitable for such a use, which is supported by 
national policy and guidance, and meets the criteria laid out in the East Devon Local 
Plan and the Farringdon Neighbourhood Plan. 
 
1.6 A Noise Survey and Air Quality Survey have been undertaken which both 
demonstrate that the noise and air emissions are acceptable. 
 
This is not accepted.  Please see further details below. 
 
2.4 It does not fall within a site of any protected designation such as conservation 
area or national landscape, and there are no listed buildings nearby. 
 
This statement is incorrect.  There are 17 listed buildings and structures in 
Farringdon, at least 3 are very close to HBBP, and Farringdon has a Grade II* listed 
church.  See reference in the Farringdon Neighbourhood Plan para. 2.4. 
 
3.3 The proposal comprises three 2.3 MWe containerised generators fuelled by 
natural gas for energy generation. Peaking plants operate in standby mode 24/7 
when not in use and operate only when there is a demand to supply electricity. 
Operationally they would be in most frequent use during the day, and not late at 
night with a working assumption time of 1500 hours per annum. 
 
What is the basis of the assumption of 1500 hours per annum.  Once the plant is in 
place it could be operational regularly - morning and night - as it can be activated at 
any time 24/7.   
 
For reference to section 4 "Planning history" see above. 
 
Section 5 "Planning policy"  

page 235



 

24/1051/FUL  

 
This application does not accord with the references made to the NPPF nor Strategy 
3, 39, 7, D1 or EN14 of the Local Plan nor Farr 6 for the reasons set out in this 
document.   
 
Noise 
Noise Assessment by Clarke Saunders Acoustic Consultants of 11th April 2024;  
Concerns: 
1. The containerised generators are on the north side of HBBP and therefore 
proximate to residential dwellings. There have been ongoing issues with noise 
generated by HBBP by villagers.   
2. All 3 generators could be in use at one time and during nighttime hours as per 
para. 2.6.3 : "the development includes three 2.3MWe containerised generators and 
associated electrical equipment. These may operate during any period which there is 
a requirement for additional electricity demand which could include night-time 
periods. There is no restriction to the number of the three generators which can 
operate at any one time." 
3. Villagers complain of a range of issues with Hill Barton which is underplayed 
by the references in para 4.2 .2 where it says: "The sound climate in the local area is 
primarily influenced by operational activity at Hill Barton Business Park including 
sound from vehicle movements, a scaffolding yard, reversing beepers and alarms. "  
Villagers closer to the site complain of significant dust levels, which has been the 
subject of EA monitoring, as well as noise from machinery early morning pre-7am.  
The  3 generators will add to that noise level. 
4. And further the report notes at para. 5.4 .1 Noise generated by the proposed 
plant may be audible at the receptors..  In the experience of the FPC, what is 
commonly said in reports and "may be audible…."  
Once the generators are built these will  be audible by which time the permission has 
been given, investment made, and it is too late for EA or anyone involved to row 
back from this such that permits will be inevitable and the ongoing issues to keep 
other permit holders working respectively, say through daily monitoring of noise and 
effects of weather causing greater noise travel (which has NOT been addressed in 
the report) and thus will continue to be tiresome for authorities and for villagers alike. 
5. It is noted, as has been seen with previous applications for development at 
HBBP, that when reports predict low noise levels, the reality for residents of 
Farringdon is very different, particularly when the cumulative effect of the numerous 
businesses at HBBP are taken into account.  
Residents experience is very different from desktop calculations based on a very 
limited sound sampling used for this report contrary to the conclusion at 5.5.7, 5.5.8 
and 7.7. It is noted also: para  5.2 .2 The supplier of the generators has not been 
able to provide detailed technical data for the units, however, have certified that the 
container/enclosure and associated attenuation will be designed such that sound 
from any part of the unit, including the exhaust stack, will be limited to a sound 
pressure level of 75 dB(A) at one metre.  
6. All of the above shows that predictions serve the applicant seeking to 
persuade the planning authority but the reality for villagers very different and, if 
granted, will add another layer of noise to that experienced from HBBP already. 
7. This is therefore contrary to Farr 6 c),d), f) and h) and the Local Plan and 
NPPF as referenced above. 
 

page 236



 

24/1051/FUL  

Air quality and odours  
Air Quality Assessment by Karius Ltd May 2024 -. 
2.2  Operational hours have been assumed as 1500 hours per annum as a base 
case scenario. 
The whole premise of the report is based on an assumption of 1500 with no 
explanation of the hours proposed and it is noted they are referred to as a base line.   
As noted above, once the plant is in place it could be operational regularly - morning 
and night - as it can be activated at any time 24/7. Therefore the premise for the 
modelling provided by this report is not reflective of the potential reality of operating 
hours which cumulatively, with other operations at HBBP, would have an adverse 
effect upon residents of Farringdon.   
 
On this basis it cannot be said that the proposal will meet the air quality requirements 
of Policy EN14- Control of Pollution which states: "Permission will not be granted for 
development which would result in unacceptable levels, either to residents or the 
wider environment of: Pollution of the atmosphere by gas or particulates, including 
smell, fumes, dust, grit, smoke and soot." 
 
Technical Consultations 
 
Conservation 
On the basis of the information provided through this application, the works as 
proposed for the 'construction of a synchronous gas-powered standby generation 
facility housed in standard steel profile shipping containers including ancillary 
equipment such as the exhaust stack mounted on the roof, switchgear, and 
transformer.' Would, on account of the location of the development site, abundance 
of mature vegetation to the boundary of the site and existing infrastructure within Hill 
Barton Business Park, continue to preserve the setting of The Thatch, Hill Barton 
Farm a Grade II heritage asset located to the south of the development site, Glebe 
House a Grade II heritage asset located to the east, Denbow Farm a collection of 
Grade II heritage assets to the north and Higher Holbrook Farm a Grade II heritage 
asset located northwest of the development site. In this respect conservation do not 
wish to offer any further comment. Case Officer to assess on planning merit. 
  
Environmental Health 
I have reviewed the submitted technical advice note together with the NIA and do not 
anticipate any environmental health concerns. 
  
Other Representations 
 
No third party representations received 
 
POLICIES 
 
Adopted East Devon Local Plan 2013-2031 Policies 
Strategy 3 (Sustainable Development) 
 
Strategy 7 (Development in the Countryside) 
 
Strategy 46 (Landscape Conservation and Enhancement and AONBs) 

page 237



 

24/1051/FUL  

 
Strategy 39 (Renewable and Low Carbon Energy Projects) 
 
D1 (Design and Local Distinctiveness) 
 
D2 (Landscape Requirements) 
 
EN14 (Control of Pollution) 
 
EN5 (Wildlife Habitats and Features) 
 
EN22 (Surface Run-Off Implications of New Development) 
 
TC7 (Adequacy of Road Network and Site Access) 
 
Neighbourhood plan 
Farringdon Neighbourhood Plan (Made) 
 
Government Planning Documents  
NPPF (National Planning Policy Framework 2023) 
 
National Planning Practice Guidance 
 
Site Location and Description: 
 
The site refers to Unit 10 Hill Barton Business Park which is located within the north eastern 
corner business park. The is previously developed land with a concrete hard surfaced finish 
which is currently being used as an open storage compound. It is located at the far end of 
Mushroom Road, an internal access road which serves a number of industrial buildings and 
uses including the Tarmac Exeter Asphalt Plant to the west. The site is located within the 
countryside but falls within the extent of authorised uses as defined by the East Devon Villages 
Plan. It is not the subject of any national or local landscape designations and falls within an 
area designated as flood zone 1 (low probability of flooding). 
 
Planning History: 
 
This site forms part of a larger site on which a County Matter planning permission has been 
granted for an energy generation plant (ref DCC/2909/2009).  
 
It is understood that this planning permission will not be implemented because the approved 
energy generation plant was based on technology at the time which is no longer cost effective. 
It is understood that an alternative planning application is likely to be submitted for an energy 
waste plant on the remainder of the site. 
 
Whilst not directly related to this application site, reference will be made to an appeal decision 
at Liverton Business Park for a synchronous gas-powered standby generation facility, plus 
ancillary infrastructure and equipment and access (ref APP/U1105/W/20/3247638) in which 
the Inspector gave significant weight to the fact that gas peaking plants assist in the transition 
to a low carbon economy. 
 
 
 
 

page 238



 

24/1051/FUL  

Proposed Development: 
 
Planning permission is sought for the construction of a synchronous gas-powered standby 
facility comprising of three gas fired generators for the production of standby electricity, along 
with ancillary structures. It is stated that the output for the generators would be 6.9 MW. 
 
Each generator would be housed within steel profiled shipping containers measuring 3.3 
metres in height and would be provided with emission stacks which would terminate above 
each container at 10 metres above ground level. The generators would be connected to 
ancillary equipment which includes switch gears and transformers. The compound would be 
enclosed by a palisade fence. 
 
Access to the site would be via Mushroom Road and parking would be provided for two 
vehicles. 
 
The purpose of the development is to provide additional power at peak times, rather than to 
be generating power the whole time.  
 
The installation of 3 containerised gas-fired generators for the production of standby electricity 
is part of a national initiative to assist National Grid when it requires access to extra power in 
the form of either generation or demand reduction during certain periods of the day to manage 
situations where actual demand is greater than forecast demand and/ or unforeseen 
generation unavailability.  
 
It is understood that gas-fired standby generation is a contracted balancing service awarded 
by National Grid annually whereby the Service Provider delivers a contracted level of power 
when instructed by National Grid. The proposal would contribute to a national programme to 
fulfil demand for energy during peak electricity periods. It is understood that the proposal, 
unlike national energy generation, feeds electricity into the local electricity network at the point 
of requirement.  
 
The proposal would help to maintain power supplies at peak times when capacity is marginal, 
whilst off-setting the decline in traditional power sources and supporting the development of a 
low carbon economy addressing short-term fluctuations in supply whilst the UK transitions 
from fossil fuels to low-carbon energy generation.  
 
Issues and Assessment 
 
The main issues to consider in determining this application are considered to be: 
 

• The principle of development, and the benefits to be derived from increased energy 
security and new energy infrastructure to support the UK's shift towards low carbon 
energy having regard to national and local policy.   

• The impact on the character and appearance of the area 

• The impact on the residential amenities of the occupiers of surrounding properties.  

• Ecological Impacts 

• Highway Safety 

• Heritage Impact 
 
The Policy Position: 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that applications for planning 
permission must be determined in accordance with the development plan, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. The Council formally adopted the East Devon Local Plan 

page 239



 

24/1051/FUL  

2013-2031 on 28th January 2016 and the policies contained within it are those against which 
applications are being determined. The Farringdon Neighbourhood Plan (NP) has been 'made' 
and carries full weight alongside the Local Plan. 
 
Principle of Development: 
 
In planning terms the site is located outside of the built-up area boundary of Farringdon as 
defined by the East Devon Local Plan and the Farringdon Neighbourhood Plan where 
development is only permitted under the provisions of Strategy 7- Development in the 
Countryside where it is in accordance with a specific Local or Neighbourhood Plan policy that 
explicitly permits such development and where it would not harm the distinctive landscape, 
amenity and environmental qualities within which it is located, including:  
1. Land form and patterns of settlement.  
2. Important natural and manmade features which contribute to the local landscape character, 
including topography, traditional field boundaries, areas of importance for nature conservation 
and rural buildings.  
3. The adverse disruption of a view from a public place which forms part of the distinctive 
character of the area or otherwise causes significant visual intrusions. 
 
The application was originally advertised as a departure from the Local Plan on the basis that 
it was felt that there is no express policy support within it for developments on this nature. 
Officers accept that the proposal is not a renewable or low carbon energy project, a position 
that was supported by the Inspector in the Liverton appeal decision, where it was concluded: 
 
‘Strategy 39 of the EDLP provides that renewable or low-carbon energy projects will in 
principle be supported and encouraged. The appeal scheme is not a renewable energy 
project. The EDLP Glossary definition for renewable and low carbon energy states that low 
carbon technologies are those that can help reduce emissions (compared to conventional use 
of fossil fuels). Gas-powered generation is a conventional use of fossil fuel. The proposal 
would not, therefore, help reduce emissions compared to conventional use of fossil fuels. The 
appeal scheme is not a low carbon technology for the purposes of applying the EDLP. Strategy 
39 does not apply to the proposed development’. 
 
However the Inspector did find compliance with Strategy 3- Sustainable Development of the 
Local Plan  
 
In respect of Strategy 3, the Inspector concluded: 
 
EDLP Strategy 3 states that the objective of ensuring sustainable development is central to 
EDDC's thinking, where sustainable development is interpreted to mean that certain issues 
(Issues a) to e) below) and their interrelationships are taken fully into account when 
considering development. In determining this appeal in accordance with the development 
plan, I am required by Strategy 3 to follow the same process, with the same aims. 
 
In considering Issue a) Conserving and enhancing the environment, the site is a cleared and 
vacant area within an established industrial and commercial estate. The proposed 
development, subject to appropriate conditions, could be undertaken in a way that minimised 
landscape and biodiversity harm. Development of the cleared site could, to some extent, 
enhance the quality and character of the landscape. However, the proposal would not provide 
scope to enhance biodiversity. An approved drainage scheme could require appropriate 
sustainable drainage systems. 
 
Issue b) Prudent natural resource use, includes minimising fossil fuel use and therefore 
reducing carbon dioxide emissions. The fact that there are other means of generating standby 
electricity that would produce the same output with lower carbon emissions than the appeal 

page 240



 

24/1051/FUL  

scheme lends support to the argument that the proposal would not minimise fossil fuel use. 
However, this issue can also be considered in a broader context where energy needs are to 
be met by a mix of technologies in a complex energy sector. Determining how the operation 
of the proposed generators would fit within this complexity is not straightforward. It is too 
simplistic just to say that the proposed technology is less efficient than other means of 
generating an equivalent quantity of electricity. I have found that the appeal scheme would 
result in the emission of GHG and so would harm climate change objectives, resulting in an 
adverse impact that should be given considerable weight in the planning balance. But this 
finding does not necessarily mean that the scheme would be at odds with Issue b) on the 
grounds that it would fail to minimise fossil fuel use. The proposal would not materially be at 
odds with the other aims of Issue b) regarding resource consumption, reusing materials and 
recycling. It would gain no support from the encouragement in Issue b) for renewable energy 
development. 
 
The proposal would not directly promote social wellbeing (Issue c)) in terms of providing 
healthcare, affordable housing, recreation space and village halls. However, in generating 
electricity for the grid at times of high demand it would provide a facility to meet people's needs. 
The security of the electricity supply at these times is an important element of social well-
being. The imposition of appropriate noise conditions would reasonably safeguard the well-
being of those living and working nearby. 
 
The modest contribution the appeal scheme would make to the economy, especially in terms 
of securing only three part-time jobs, would do little to encourage sustainable economic 
development (Issue d)). However, energy security is crucial to the economy. Whether the 
appeal scheme would encourage sustainable economic development raises again the 
considerations set out in Issue b) above. 
 
Issue e) requires that I take a long-term view in deciding this appeal. The significant GHG 
emissions from the proposed generators would, cumulatively over time, add to the problems 
that future generations will face due to climate change (Issue b)). Nevertheless, energy 
security is important in maintaining a high-quality environment (Issues c) and d)), and 
especially one in which jobs, facilities, education and training are readily available. 
 
There is local concern that the proposed facility would become a stranded asset as 
renewables and low carbon generation is encouraged to come on line. However, if the 
proposal is at odds with Issue b) to some extent due to the use of fossil fuels, then this would 
be insufficient, in my judgement, to bring the scheme into conflict with the overall sustainable 
development aims of Strategy 3, given the energy security benefits of the proposal regarding 
Issues c) and d). The inability of the scheme to enhance biodiversity would similarly fall short 
of resulting in an overall conflict with Strategy 3. 
 
I consider that Issues a) to e) and their interrelationships are taken fully into account in the 
above analysis. Furthermore, in my consideration of the proposed development, I have had 
regard to these findings as an important element that is central to my thinking about the merits 
of the proposal. On this basis, I find compliance with EDLP Strategy 3’. 
 
The Inspector also considered the proposals against the NPPF and National Policy 
Statements EN-1 and EN-2 and concluded: 
 
‘The planning balance that applies here is a straight weighing of the benefits of the proposed 
development against the harm. The overall assessment in this case is finely balanced. The 
benefits of electricity generation at times of high demand should attract considerable weight 
in favour of the proposal. The harm to climate change objectives due to GHG emissions from 
the facility should be given considerable weight against allowing the proposed development. 
The other matters considered do not weigh significantly in the planning balance. In my 

page 241



 

24/1051/FUL  

judgement, the support the proposed development gains from EN-1, which is a relevant 
material consideration here, notwithstanding that the scheme is not an NSIP, is sufficient to 
tip the planning balance in favour of the proposal’. 
 
Whilst each application must be determined on its own merits, having regard for the above 
and the Inspector's conclusions that the proposal did not conflict with the development plan 
when considered as a whole, officers have concluded that the proposal is not a departure from 
the Local Plan despite the fact that it was advertised as such. 
 
Farringdon Neighbourhood Plan: 
 
The site falls with the 'made' Farringdon Neighbourhood Plan area and falls within the extent 
of employment uses contained within the inset map on page 28 of the FNP. Policy FARR6- 
Existing Business and Commercial Areas of the FNP states: 
 
Business and commercial development or redevelopment for business and commercial uses 
on the sites listed below (and delineated on Map 5) will be supported, provided it is in keeping 
with those uses and business activity already on the site and does not lead to the outward 
expansion of the site.  
 
o Hill Barton Business Park 
 
The proposal would not conflict with this part of the policy as it is contained within the business 
park and does not lead to its outward expansion. 
 
The policy continues to state: 
 
All business/commercial development should: 
a) respect the character of its surroundings by way of its scale and design; 
b) not harm the surrounding landscape; 
c) not adversely affect any listed building, heritage asset or setting; 
d) not have an adverse effect on the living conditions of its neighbours; 
e) not have an unacceptable adverse impact on the transport network or parking provision;  
f) safeguard residential amenity and road safety; 
g) promote access on foot, by bicycle, or by public transport;  
h) mitigate any adverse effects of noise, air pollution and light pollution; and  
i) ensure there is no increase in flood risk. 
 
On the basis that the proposal does not lead to the outward expansion of the site, it is 
considered that it is acceptable in principle subject to its compliance with the remaining criteria 
in the policy and other relevant policies within the Neighbourhood Plan. 
 
Character and Appearance: 
 
Strategy 46 - Landscape Conservation and Enhancement and AONBs of the Local Plan states 
that development will need to be undertaken in a manner that is sympathetic to, and helps 
conserve and enhance the quality and local distinctiveness of, the natural and historic 
landscape character of East Devon, in particular in Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty. 
 
Strategy 7- Development in the Countryside of the Local Plan requires that development does 
not harm the distinctive landscape, amenity and environmental qualities within which it is 
located. 
 

page 242



 

24/1051/FUL  

Policy D1- Design and Local Distinctiveness of the Local Plan requires that proposals will only 
be permitted where they respect the key characteristics and special qualities of the area in 
which the development is proposed. 
 
Policy FARR6 of the FNP requires that proposals respect the character of its surroundings by 
way of its scale and design and not harm the surrounding landscape. 
 
Whilst the site is located within the countryside, it is within the extent of authorised uses of Hill 
Barton Business Park as defined by the Local Plan and the Farringdon Neighbourhood Plan. 
The site is well contained towards the rear of the business park and is not open to public views 
from outside of the business park. 
 
The facility and infrastructure would be constructed within the existing compound area and 
would be installed on brownfield land which is surrounded by a variety of commercial uses 
including the Tarmac Exeter Asphalt Plant to the west which has a large number of buildings 
and infrastructure which is visible from within the business park. 
 
Whilst the plant and facility would not be aesthetically pleasing, it would only be viewed from 
within the confines of the business park in the context of open compounds, industrial buildings 
and other plant and equipment. The proposal would result in no landscape or visual harm to 
the surrounding countryside and would not be viewed from outside of the site. The proposal 
would use brownfield land, a position which is supported within the NPPF (para 124 c) to which 
substantial weight is attributed. In the absence of any landscape harm arising from the 
proposals, there is no conflict with the aforementioned policies. 
 
Residential Amenity: 
 
Policy guidance with respect to noise is found in the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF).  Regarding noise and planning the NPPF contains the following statement in 
paragraph 191, “planning policies and decisions should ensure that new development is 
appropriate for its location taking into account the likely effects (including cumulative effects) 
of pollution on health, living conditions and the natural environment as well as the potential 
sensitivity of the site or the wider impacts that could arise from the development. In doing so 
they should: 
 

• mitigate and reduce to a minimum any potential adverse impacts resulting from noise 
from new development and avoid noise giving rise to significant adverse impacts on 
health and quality of life. 
 

The Planning Practice Guidance Noise (PPGN) provides further guidance regarding the 
assessment of noise within the context of Planning Policy. The overall aim of this guidance, is 
the tying in with the principles of the NPPF and the Explanatory Note of the Noise Policy 
Statement for England (NPSE), is to identify whether the overall effects of noise exposure 
from the proposed development is, or would be, above the significant observed adverse effect 
level (SOAEL) and the lowest observed adverse effect level (LOAEL). 
 
Therefore, in making sure that this development is appropriate for this location it’s important 
to consider and ensure that the effective management targets for noise set out within the Noise 
Policy Statement for England are followed.  This includes that any noise giving rise to 
significant adverse impacts on health and wellbeing of local residents are avoided and any 
potential adverse impacts resulting from noise are mitigated against and reduced to a 
minimum.  
  
Policy D1 of the Local Plan requires that proposals do not adversely affect the amenities of 
existing residents and policy EN14- Control of Pollution of the Local Plan states that 

page 243



 

24/1051/FUL  

permission will not be granted for development which would result in unacceptable levels, 
either to residents or the wider environment of: 
1. Pollution of the atmosphere by gas or particulates, including. smell, fumes, dust, grit,  smoke 
and soot. 
2. Pollution of surface or underground waters including: 
a) Rivers, other watercourses, water bodies and wetlands. 
b) Water gathering grounds including water catchment areas, aquifers and groundwater 
protection areas. 
c) Harbours, estuaries or the sea.  
3. Noise and/or vibration. 
4. Light intrusion, where light overspill from street lights or floodlights on to areas not intended 
to be lit, particularly in areas of open countryside and areas of nature conservation value. 
5. Fly nuisance. 
6. Pollution of sites of wildlife value, especially European designated sites or species. 
7. Odour 
 
Criterion d) of policy FARR6 of the FNP requires that proposals do not have an adverse effect 
on the living conditions of its neighbours; 
 
Noise: 
 
The application is accompanied by a Noise Impact Assessment (NIA) prepared by Clarke 
Saunders Associates to determine the potential noise impacts of the operation of the site on 
noise sensitive receptors (NSRs).  
 
On the advice of the Council’s Environmental Health Officer the report focuses on existing 
operations at the business park and noise impacts on NSRs considering the cumulative impact 
of the proposal and potential low frequency noise emissions of the proposed generators and 
associated electrical equipment. 
 
The report identifies the nearest NSRs to the site to be residential properties Swiss Cottage 
to the N.W. and Denbow Farm to the N.E. containing five separate residential dwellings. 
 
The report identifies that the soundscape in the locality is heavily influenced by operational 
activity at the business park including sound from vehicle movements, scaffolding yard, 
reversing alarms and beepers. 
 
The NIA concludes that whilst noise generated by the plant may be audible at the amenity of 
NSRs, given the distance and the other industrial generated noise from the business park the 
NIA indicates a low impact, depending on the context (for both daytime and night-time). The 
NIA assumes that noise emissions from the units are within the worst-case scenario of 125 
Hz octave band on the basis that all three units would operate at one time which is unlikely to 
occur at night-time. 
 
The predicted Specific Sound Level from the plant at the nearest noise sensitive receptors 
has been predicted as being LAeq 31 – 33 dB.  This is significantly below the following 
measured ambient and background sound levels:  
 

• Daytime ambient sound level of LAeq, 16-hour 50 dB at the monitoring location  

• Night-time ambient sound level of LAeq, 8-hour 46 dB at the monitoring location 

• Daytime background sound level of LA90, 16-hour 40 dB at the monitoring location  

• Night-time background sound level of LA90, 8-hour 38 dB at the monitoring location 
 

page 244



 

24/1051/FUL  

The report details that each of the containers and exhaust stacks would be designed to provide 
a sound attenuation which would result in limiting the sound pressure level to 75dB (A) at 1m.  
 
At the nearest NSRs during daytime and night-time, the rating level would be at least 5dB 
below the background sound level.  The report has been considered by the Council’s EHO 
who raised concerns that the NIA identified that the typical background sound levels (LA90) 
for the NSRs are lower over the weekday evenings and weekend periods than during the 
normal weekdays (which makes sense given the reduction in work activities and vehicle 
movements during this time from the business park). 
 
During these periods the soundscape will not be overly determined by existing industrial noise 
from the business park.  It's likely that future peak operating periods for the plant will occur 
during these quieter periods.  As highlighted in the NIA the noise from the development will 
likely be perceivable at the receptor's location. Taking these points into consideration, the 
BS4142 assessment needs to be reviewed particularly the point of whether any acoustic 
feature corrections should be applied that may have an impact on the final rating level.   
 
In response to these concerns, the noise consultant provided a further technical note clarifying 
that the typical lowest background noise levels during the evening periods (19:00 –23:00) has 
been detailed as 39 dB (LA904hr).  The predicted Specific Sound Level from the plant at the 
nearest NSRs has been predicted as being LAeq 31 – 33 dB.  This is significantly below the 
evening background sound levels.  
 
The EHO accepts that the absolute predicted levels are at least 5dB lower than the typical 
lowest background sound level at night.  Therefore, sound from the proposed plant would not 
be readily distinctive against the residual acoustic environment which is still both industrial and 
commercial in nature.  Keeping the noise level 5 dB below the current background sound level 
will avoid any further noise creep from the business park.  
   
On this basis the perception of any noise impact is that at certain times, the noise may be 
heard but it does not cause any change in behaviour, attitude, or any other physiological 
response. It doesn't change the acoustic character of the area.  Therefore, the increasing 
effect level is considered to be ‘No Observed Adverse Effect’ and no specific measures are 
required.  It isn’t considered that the proposal would give rise to any significant harm to the 
residential amenities of the occupiers of the nearest residential receptors. The proposal would 
comply with policy D1 and EN14 of the Local Plan and the residential amenity criteria of policy 
FARR6 of the Neighbourhood Plan. 
 
Air Quality: 
 
Whilst concerns regarding air quality are noted, the Council’s Environmental Health Officer 
has advised that they are satisfied that due to the separation distances between the proposed 
development and any sensitive receptors that any airborne emissions from the gas generators 
will have negligible impacts on these receptors.  The proposed development would meet 
current national and local planning Air Quality Policies and Air Quality Guidance and therefore 
no objection can be sustained in relation to air quality.   
 
Ecological Impacts: 
 
Policy EN5 - Wildlife Habitats and Features of the Local Plan states that wherever possible 
sites supporting important wildlife habitats or features not otherwise protected by policies will 
be protected from development proposals which would result in the loss of or damage to their 
nature conservation value, particularly where these form a link between or buffer to designated 
wildlife sites. Where potential arises positive opportunities for habitat creation will be 
encouraged through the development process. 

page 245



 

24/1051/FUL  

 
The application is accompanied by a short ecological statement prepared by Richard Green 
ecology who prepared an Environmental Statement to support a previous proposal for a 
pyrolosis plant covering a larger site area. The ecologist concludes that on the basis that the 
proposed installation would be on an area of existing hard standing with no ecological value, 
situated away from any natural habitats that it would have no significant ecological impacts or 
impacts on protected species. The ecologist does identify that any external lighting over that 
present on the existing industrial estate has the potential to impact on protected species 
sensitive to artificial lighting but the proposal does not include any external lighting and a 
condition could be imposed to ensure that if the event that lighting is installed, details would 
have to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The proposal 
would not result in any harm to ecology or protected species and would comply with policy 
EN5 of the Local Plan. 
 
Highway Safety: 
 
Policy TC7 - Adequacy of Road Network and Site Access of the Local Plan states that planning 
permission for new development will not be granted if the proposed access, or the traffic 
generated by the development, would be detrimental to the safe and satisfactory operation of 
the local, or wider, highway network.  
 
Being contained within the confines of the business park, the site would be accessed via the 
existing internal business parks road with no significant highway’s impacts. Traffic generation 
is likely to be greatest during the construction of phase of the plant with vehicle movements 
limited to during its operation. 
 
No objections have been raised by the County Highway Authority and it is not considered that 
the proposal would result in any harmful impacts to the safe and satisfactory operation of the 
local, or wider, highway network.  
 
Heritage Impacts: 
 
Under section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 the 
Council has a duty in favour of preserving heritage assets. Paragraphs 205-208 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework deal with the assessment of harm to designated heritage assets 
and which advises that great weight should be given to an asset's conservation and this should 
be proportionate to the importance of the asset. Relevant policies for an assessment of the 
impact of proposals from the East Devon Local Plan are as follows: 
 
EN9- Development Affecting a Designated Heritage Asset- Where a development proposal 
would lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, 
the harm will be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, including securing its 
optimum viable use. Favourable consideration will be given for new development within the 
setting of heritage assets that enhance or better reveal the significance of the asset, subject 
to compliance with other development plan policies and material considerations. 
 
Criterion c) of FNP policy FARR6 requires that proposals do not adversely affect any listed 
building, heritage asset or setting. 
 
The nearest heritage assets to the application site are grade II listed buildings Denbow Thatch, 
Denbow Farm and Denbow House 400 metres to the N.E. Parts of the business park are 
visible from Denbow Farm 
 
At 10.0 metres in height, the exhaust stacks are likely to be visible from Denbow Farm. The 
exhaust stacks would however be read against the context and back drop of the existing 

page 246



 

24/1051/FUL  

buildings including the Tarmac plant which are visible above the trees in views looking back 
towards the business park.  
 
The significance of the heritage assets at Denbow Farm are derived from their historic 
character and appearance such that given the distance between the application site and these 
heritage assets, the visibility of the existing industrial and commercial buildings and noise and 
activity within the business park, it isn’t considered that the proposed development would 
result in any harm to the significance or setting of heritage assets. The proposal would comply 
with the provisions of policy EN9 of the Local Plan, FARR 6 of the Neighbourhood Plan and 
the NPPF. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
The proposal is for a gas peaking facility that would generate 6.9MW capacity which would 
play a role in ensuring energy stability and contribute to the reliability of the electricity supply 
at times of peak demand, thus supporting a national move away from fossil fuel generation to 
a supply based increasingly on renewable energy. The NPPF supports the transition towards 
a low carbon economy by balancing the fluctuation of power during periods of high usage and 
Planning Inspectors have accepted this when assessing the planning balance. Inspectors 
have suggested that the benefits of electricity generation at times of high demand should 
attract considerable weight in favour of the proposal but that the harm to climate change 
objectives due to GHG emissions from the facility should be given considerable weight against 
allowing the proposed development.  
 
The government recognises that moving towards 2050 that natural gas fired generation may 
still be needed to provide for affordable and reliable supply, and to respond to peak in 
demands. Significant weight should therefore be given to NPS EN1 and the provisions of the 
local plan which, when assessed against the relevant criteria, would be sustainable 
development. 
 
It has been identified that the proposal would comply with Strategy 3 of the Local Plan and 
FARR 6 of the Farringdon Neighbourhood Plan and the Development Plan when considered 
as a whole. The proposal would be constructed within the confines of an existing business 
park, commercial in nature and activity and would utilise brownfield land which weighs in 
favour within the overall planning balance. The proposal would not result in any adverse 
impact on the character and appearance of the surrounding area and be a form of 
development is compatible with the industrial uses within the business park.  
 
Read against the backdrop of the existing business park and commercial uses, the proposal 
would result in no heritage harm and it has been demonstrated and accepted by the Council’s 
EHO that there would be no harm to residential amenity from noise and air quality to nearby 
residents. No further technical issues would arise in respect of highway safety, ecology, 
heritage, residential amenity or flood risk. 
 
On balance having regard for the above, there is clear support within the government's 
National Policy Statement's for Energy which recognises that there must be some fossil fuel 
generating capacity to provide back-up for when generation from intermittent renewable 
generating is low and to help with the transition to low carbon electricity generation. The 
proposal would support the delivery of renewable and low carbon energy and could therefore 
reasonably be regarded as the type of 'supporting infrastructure' meant by paragraph 160 b) 
of the NPPF; a position that has been recognised by Inspectors in a number of aforementioned 
appeal decisions. 
 
The proposal would contribute towards energy security with no harm to the environment, on a 
brownfield site in an existing industrial estate with no technical issues or planning harm. It has 

page 247



 

24/1051/FUL  

been demonstrated that the proposal complies with national and local policy, does not conflict 
with the Farringdon Neighbourhood Plan such that the application is recommended for 
approval. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
APPROVE subject to the following conditions: 
 
 
 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 

years from the date of this permission and shall be carried out as approved.  
 (Reason - To comply with section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 

1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004). 

 
 2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved plans listed at the end of this decision notice. 
 (Reason - For the avoidance of doubt.) 
 
 3. Details of the external colour of all buildings and plant equipment to be 

constructed on site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority prior to their installation. Development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details and thereafter retained 

 (Reason: In the interests of the character and appearance of the area in 
accordance with policy D1- Design and Local Distinctiveness of the East Devon 
Local Plan 2013-2031). 

 
 4. The generators hereby permitted shall be fired on non-other than natural gas. 
 (Reason: A condition is necessary to specify use only of natural gas as fuel for 

the generators, as that is the basis on which the effects of the scheme have 
been assessed in respect of its noise and air quality impacts in accordance with 
policy EN14- Control of Pollution of the East Devon Local Plan 2013-2031). 

 
 5. A validation report must be submitted and approved by the Local Planning 

Authority prior to the first use of the site for the generation of electricity.   Each 
containerised generator, flue stack and any other fixed plant associated with the 
generation of electricity must be tested by an acoustic engineer to validate that 
it's operating at the specified sound pressure level of: 

 75 dB (LAeq 1hr) between the hours of 07:00 until 23:00  
 75 dB (LAeq 15min) between the hours of 23:00 until 07:00 
 When measured at one meter from each noise source (as detailed within the 

applicants Noise Impact Assessment).  
 Any measurements and calculations shall be carried out in accordance with 

'BS4142+2014 Methods for Rating and Assessing Industrial and Commercial 
Sound'. The plant shall thereafter not exceed the noise levels stated in this 
condition at any time. 

 (Reason: To avoid noise being detrimental to the amenity of local residents in 
accordance with policy EN14- Control of Pollution of the East Devon Local Plan 
2013-2031). 

 

page 248



 

24/1051/FUL  

NOTE FOR APPLICANT 
 
Informative: Confirmation - No CIL Liability.  This Informative confirms that this 
development is not liable to a CIL charge. 
 
Plans relating to this application: 
   

Location Plan 22.05.24 
  
EDS-238976-
0005 REV P08 1 
OF 6 

Proposed Site Plan 22.05.24 

  
EDS-238976-
0005 REV P08 2 
OF 6 

Proposed Elevation 22.05.24 

  
EDS-238976-
0005 REV P08 3 
OF 6 

Proposed Elevation 22.05.24 

  
EDS-238976-
0005 REV P08 4 
OF 6 

Proposed Elevation 22.05.24 

  
EDS-238976-
0005 REV P08 5 
OF 6 

Proposed Elevation 22.05.24 

  
AIR QUALITY 
ASSESSMENT 

Other Plans 22.05.24 

  
acoustic 
assessment 

Noise Impact 
Assessment 

22.05.24 

   
Protected Species 
Report 

22.05.24 

 
 
 
List of Background Papers  
Application file, consultations and policy documents referred to in the report. 
 
 

 
Statement on Human Rights and Equality Issues 
 
Human Rights Act:  
The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights Act 
1998, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself. This 

page 249



 

24/1051/FUL  

Act gives further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on Human 
Rights. In arriving at this recommendation, due regard has been given to the 
applicant's reasonable development rights and expectations which have been 
balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as expressed through 
third party interests / the Development Plan and Central Government Guidance.  
 
Equality Act: 
In arriving at this recommendation, due regard has been given to the provisions of the 
Equality Act 2010, particularly the Public Sector Equality Duty and Section 149. The 
Equality Act 2010 requires public bodies to have due regard to the need to eliminate 
discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations between 
different people when carrying out their activities. Protected characteristics are age, 
disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race/ethnicity, religion or 
belief (or lack of), sex and sexual orientation. 
 
 

page 250


	Agenda
	1 Speakers' list and revised running order for the applications
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	7 Planning appeal statistics
	Appeals lodged
	Appeals decided
	Appeals in progress

	8 23/1258/MOUT (Major) WOODBURY AND LYMPSTONE
	23.1258.F
	23.1258.MOUT FINAL Land rear of Orchard House Woodbury Ctte
	23.1258.MOUT Appendix 1 Technical Consultation Responses

	9 23/1600/MOUT (Major) WOODBURY AND LYMPSTONE
	23.1600.F
	23.1600.MOUT FINAL Ctte Report v2
	23.1600.MOUT Appendix 1 Technical Consultation Responses

	10 24/1051/FUL (Minor) BROADCLYST
	24.1051.F
	24.1051.FUL (Unit 10 Hill Barton Business Park) comm report


